AGENDA

Committee

Date and Time

- County Hall
\¥ l diff
Ny | oo,
(/ Tel: (029) 2087 2000
-.gil- ‘ 3 Neuadd y Sir
CARDIFF E?f&dfﬁﬁv
CAERDYDD

Ffén: (029) 2087 2000

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY, 7 MARCH 2017, 4.30 PM

of Meeting
Venue COMMITTEE ROOM 4 - COUNTY HALL
Membership Councillor Richard Cook (Chair)
Councillors Boyle, Chaundy, Gordon, Joyce, Murphy, Dianne Rees and
Lynda Thorne
Patricia Arlotte (Roman Catholic representative), Carol Cobert (Church
in Wales representative), Karen Dell'’Armi (Parent Governor
Representative) and Hayley Smith (Parent Governor Representative)
Time
approx.
1 Apologies for Absence 4.30 pm
To receive apologies for absence.
2 Declarations of Interest
To be made at the start of the agenda item in question, in accordance
with the Members’ Code of Conduct.
3 Minutes
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting on
10 January 2017 and 14 February 2019.
4 Welsh in Education Strategy (Pages 1 - 88) 4.35 pm

This report provides the Committee with an opportunity to review the
draft Cabinet Report setting out the Welsh in Education Strategy for
Cardiff 2017 — 2020.

(a) Councillor Sarah Merry (Cabinet Member for Education) will be

in attendance and may wish to make a statement;

By receiving this Agenda Pack electronically you have
saved the Authority approx. £11.40 in printing costs



(b) Nick Batchelar (Director, Education and Lifelong Learning) and
Officers from the Education Directorate will present the report
and be available to answer any questions members may have;
and

(c) Questions from Committee Members

The way forward for this item will be considered at the end of the
meeting.

School Admissions Policy (Pages 89 - 202)

This report provides the Committee with the opportunity to review the
amended Council Admissions Policy together with the details of the
pilot coordinated admissions with faith schools.

(a) Councillor Sarah Merry (Cabinet Member for Education) will be
in attendance and may wish to make a statement;

(b) Nick Batchelar (Director, Education and Lifelong Learning) and
Officers from the Education Directorate will present the report
and be available to answer any questions members may have;
and

(c) Questions from Committee Members

The way forward for this item will be considered at the end of the
meeting.

Education Quarter 3 Performance & Cardiff 2020 - 'Aiming for
Excellence' (Pages 203 - 256)

This report provides the Committee with an update on the corporate
performance indicators for the Education Department, together with the
Cardiff 2020 — ‘Aiming for Excellence Plan’.

(a) Councillor Sarah Merry (Cabinet Member for Education) will be
in attendance and may wish to make a statement;

(b) Nick Batchelar (Director, Education and Lifelong Learning) and
Officers from the Education Directorate will present the report
and be available to answer any questions members may have;
and

(c) Questions from Committee Members

The way forward for this item will be considered at the end of the
meeting.

Child Sexual Exploitation - Progress Report (Pages 257 - 266)

This report enables the committee to review the progress being made

5.05 pm

5.35 pm

6.05 pm



to implement the Committee recommendations following the Task &
finish Inquiry.

(a) Councillor Sue Lent (Cabinet Member, Early Years, Children

and Families and Deputy Leader) will be in attendance and may
wish to make a statement;

(b) Tony Young (Director, Social Services) and Officers from the
Directorate will present the report and be available to answer
any questions members may have; and

(c) Questions from Committee Members

The way forward for this item will be considered at the end of the
meeting.

8 Children's Services Quarter 3 Performance Report (Pages 267 -
296)

This report enables the Committee to review and assess the
performance of Children’s Services across a number of key
performance indicators.

(@) Councillor Sue Lent (Cabinet Member, Early Years, Children &
Families and Deputy Leader) will be in attendance and may
wish to make a statement;

(b) Tony Young (Director, Social Services) and Officers from the
Social Services Directorate will introduce the briefing be
available to answer any questions members may have; and

(c) Questions from Committee Members

The way forward for this item will be considered at the end of the
meeting.

9 FGM Task Group Report (Pages 297 - 342)
To provide the Committee with the report from the recent FGM Task
Group for approval to present to Cabinet.

(a) Martyn Hutchings — Principal Scrutiny Officer, will briefly
introduce the report; and

(b) Questions from Committee Members.

The way forward for this item will be considered at the end of the
meeting.

10 School Term Time Task Group Report (Pages 343 - 362)

6.35 pm

7.05 pm

7.15 pm



To provide the committee with the report from the recent School Term
Time Task Group for approval to present to Cabinet.

(a) Martyn Hutchings — Principal Scrutiny Officer, will briefly
introduce the report; and

(b) Questions from Committee Members.

The way forward for this item will be considered at the end of the
meeting.

11 Annual Report (Pages 363 - 396) 7.30 pm

To provide the Committee with a copy of the Committee Draft Annual
Report for approval and agreement to present to Council.

(a) Scrutiny Officer to briefly introduce the report; and
(b) Questions from Committee Members.
12 Correspondence Report (Pages 397 - 404) 7.40 pm

To provide the Committee with copies of the Correspondence sent and
responses received since November 2016.

(a) Scrutiny Officer to briefly introduce the report; and
(b) Questions from Committee Members.

13 Way Forward 7.50 pm

Davina Fiore

Director Governance & Legal Services

Date: Wednesday, 1 March 2017

Contact: Mandy Farnham,

029 2087 2618, Mandy.Farnham@cardiff.gov.uk

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg



Agenda Iltem 4

CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL
CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD

CABINET MEETING: MARCH 2017

EDUCATION: WELSH IN EDUCATION STRATEGIC PLAN
2017-2020

REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION AND LIFELONG
LEARNING
AGENDA ITEM:

PORTFOLIO: EDUCATION (COUNCILLOR SARAH MERRY)
Reason for this Report

1. This report is to approve the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2017 — 2020 and
includes a summary of consultation responses received.

Background

2. Every three years each local authority in Wales is required to submit a three-year
Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP). A WESP is a plan that details the
strategic direction for the planning and delivery of Welsh-medium and Welsh-
language education in the authority.

3. The first WESP produced by Cardiff covered 2014-2017. During this time, there
has been significant investment and an increase in Welsh-medium education
across the city including:

= 2012 - the opening of the third Welsh-medium High School in Cardiff,
Bro Edern in Penylan.

= 2013 - a new 3FE Welsh-medium primary school in Canton, Ysgol
Treganna.

= 2015 - anincrease of 0.5FE (15 places) at Ysgol-y-Wern.

= 2016 - a new 2FE Welsh primary starter school for Butetown, Ysgol

Hamadryad, and a new nursery with 48 Part Time Equivalent (PTE) places
at Ysgol Glan Ceubal.

4. Cardiff's new WESP will cover the period 2017-2020. The plan is underpinned
and informed by Welsh Government’s current Welsh-medium Education Strategy
(April 2010) and policy statement for 2016-17 (March 2016) along with the Welsh
Government draft strategy: A Million Welsh Speakers by 2050. Itis also an
integral part of Cardiff's five year Bilingual Cardiff Strategy (2017-2022).

5. The aspirations within Cardiff's WESP are in line with Bilingual Cardiff five year

strategy and this is reflected through complimentary mission statements and
visions. The vision of Cardiff's WESP is:

Page 1 Page 1 of 7



Cardiff’s education system will act as a key driver to ensure that children are
able to develop their Welsh skills, and create new speakers, to support
Welsh Government’s vision of having a million Welsh speakers by 2050.

6. The Welsh Government's guidance on producing the 2017-2020 Welsh in

Education Strategic Plan was issued to Cardiff's Education department in August
2016 based on guidance issued by Welsh Ministers under section 87 of the
School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013. The guidance provides a
standard template for the plans with standard measures specified.

There are seven outcomes that are stipulated by the Welsh Government that are
to be included (five of which continue to focus on the five outcomes of the Welsh-
medium Education Strategy 2010). These are:

* Outcome 1
More seven year old children being taught through the medium of Welsh.

* Outcome 2
More learners continuing to improve their language skills on transfer from
primary school to secondary school.

* Outcome 3
More learners aged 14-16 studying for qualifications through the medium of
Welsh.

* Outcome 4
More learners aged 16-19 studying subjects through the medium of Welsh.

* Outcome 5
More learners with improved skills in Welsh.

* Outcome 6
Welsh medium provision for learners with additional learning needs (ALN).

* Outcome 7
Workforce planning and continuing professional development (CPD).

Consultation Process

8.

10.

11.

There was a statutory consultation period of 8 weeks and this ran from 2™
December 2016 to 27t January 2017.

The Welsh Government have a list of consultees that each local authority must
consult, including neighbouring local authorities, head teachers and governing
bodies of each maintained school, and the appropriate religious body if the school
has a religious character.

Stakeholders including Chairs of school governing bodies, school head teachers,
Mudiad Meithrin, Meter Caerdydd, RhAG, neighbouring local authorities, Central
South Consortium, Further Education Colleges, the Diocese and others were
directly invited to respond to the consultation. Other stakeholders were able to
access the document on-line.

The consultation process involved the following:

¢ Draft strategy published on the Council's website,
Page 2 Page 2 of 7



Distribution of WESP via emails to various stakeholders,

Meetings with Welsh head teachers,

Meetings with Cardiff's Welsh in Education Forum,

Web link to strategy was distributed via the Council social media channels.

12. The views expressed through the appropriate channels, and within the
consultation period, have been represented below and in Appendix 2.

13. In total 28 responses were received. This included responses from:

e Members of the public

Governing Bodies and Head Teachers of Welsh-medium primary schools and
Welsh-medium secondary schools across Cardiff

RhAG

Mudiad Meithrin

Menter Caerdydd

The Welsh Language Commissioner

The Welsh Language Society

Ymgyrch TAG

Cardiff University

14. There were a range of views expressed. Responses have been summarised to
identify common themes, which included the following:

Outcome 1 - More 7 Years old children being taught through the medium of
Welsh

e Additional Provision of Welsh-medium education at pre-school, cylch’s, primary
and secondary phases including published admission numbers and capacities.
Existing provision and monetary resources.

Implications of the Local Development Plan (LDP) and Welsh-medium demand
Promotion

Data & Projections

Training for front line staff

Catchment Areas

Minority ethnic communities and Welsh-medium education

Learner Travel

Outcome 2 - More Learners continuing to improve their language skills on
transfer from primary to secondary schools

e Transfer Rates

e In Year Transfers

e Welsh Language Immersion Centre

Outcome 3 & 4 - More students aged 14-16 studying for qualifications through
the medium of Welsh and more students aged 14-19 studying subjects
through the medium of Welsh in schools, colleges and work based learning.

e GCSE qualifications

e Welsh Second Language

Outcome 5 - More students with advanced skills in Welsh
e A’level Provision

e Extra-curricular Provision

e Higher Education Sector

Outcome 6 - Welsh-medium provision for learners with ALN

Page 3 Page 3 of 7



Greater amount of ALN provision required especially relating to children with
behavioural needs

Outcome 7 - Workforce planning & continuing professional development

Leadership Roles
Teaching Practitioners
Student Involvement

Issues arising from the consultation

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

The majority of responses welcomed the Council’s proposals to develop, expand,
and promote provision for Welsh education.

However, some respondents were of the view that the document did not
sufficiently address the need to:

e provide sufficient Welsh-medium places across the city at all stages,
particularly in relation to the LDP

e improve the availability of Additional Learning Needs (ALN) provision in the
Welsh-medium sector (particularly around behaviour ALN provision)

e provide greater commitment to ensuring there are enough spaces available
at secondary level in time for the pupils who are attending Welsh-medium
primary schools

e ensure there is a strong vision setting out what the Council wants to achieve
in partnership to increasing the number of Welsh speakers in the capital city
as part of the wider national target

e ensure a greater focus on the improvement actions going forward rather
than recent developments

For a full summary of all responses received during the consultation and the
Council’s appraisal of each issue raised, please see Appendix 2. The Welsh in
Education Strategic Plan has incorporated changes as a result of the consultation
process.

A Mission Statement has been added to the strategy to capture the Council’s
ambition to develop the Welsh language across the city and the Vision has been
changed to reinforce the Welsh Governments vision of 1m speakers by 2050.
Projections and targets have also been amended following feedback.

For a full list of all changes made to the WESP following consultation, please see
Appendix 3.

Implementation and Monitoring

20.

21.

The Minister has the following powers to approve the plan as submitted, approve
with modifications or to reject the plan and prepare another one. A draft of the
WESP has already been submitted to Welsh Government and the final document
will be submitted at the end of March.

Following Welsh Government approval of the strategy, it would need to be
implemented from 1st April 2017. Following approval by the Welsh Government
the Council is required to publish the plan (or revised plan) by 1st June 2017 by
placing it on the local authority’s website, and making copies of the plan available
for inspection by members of the public at the local authority’s offices, and any
other places it considers appropriate.

Page 4 Page 4 of 7



22.

23.

The local authority must revise the WESP annually to demonstrate progress and
include any changes deemed necessary to reach targets during the three-year
implementation of the Plan. Revised plans should be submitted to the Welsh
Government by the 20th December each year.

The Minister has indicated the intention to review the WESPs as part of a wider
review into the legislative framework for the Welsh language as documented in
‘The Culture, Welsh Language and Communications Committee / 18/01/2017 No.
244,

Reason for Recommendations

24.

25.

The drafting and publication of the WESP is a statutory requirement and all
Welsh Government guidelines and regulations have been followed.

Taking into account all consultation responses and the guidance provided by
Welsh Government, the WESP now represents a fully involved stakeholder
document and as such, it is recommended that the Council’'s Cabinet approve
Cardiff's Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) 2017 — 2020.

Financial Implications

26.

There are no financial implications arising directly from the approval of the plan.
Any actions undertaken in relation to the delivery of the plan, that give rise to
costs in either individual schools or the Education directorate, will need to be met
from within existing resource allocations.

Legal Implications (including Equality Impact Assessment)

27.

28.

29.

Under the Education Act 1996, the Council has a general statutory obligation to
promote high standards of education and to consider parental preference which
includes preference for Welsh medium education.

Section 84 and 85 of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013
and the Welsh in Education Strategic Plans and Assessing Demand for Welsh
Medium Education (Wales) Regulations 2013, set out the statutory obligations for
all local authorities to prepare, submit, publish and revise Welsh in Education
Strategic Plans (WESPs).

The Council also has to satisfy its public sector duties under the Equality Act 2010
(including specific Welsh public sector duties). Pursuant to these legal duties,
Councils must in making decisions have due regard to the need to (1) eliminate
unlawful discrimination, (2) advance equality of opportunity and (3) foster good
relations on the basis of protected characteristics. The Protected characteristics
are:

* Age

* Gender reassignment

* Sex

* Race — including ethnic or national origin, colour or nationality

* Disability

* Pregnancy and maternity

» Marriage and civil partnership

» Sexual orientation

* Religion or belief — including lack of belief

Page 5 Page 5 of 7



30.

31.

The purpose of the Equality Impact Assessment is to ensure that the Council has
understood the potential impacts of the proposal in terms of equality so that it can
ensure that it is making proportionate and rational decisions having due regard to
its public sector equality duty. The Council has to be mindful of the Welsh
Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and the Welsh Language Standards when
making any policy decisions and consider the impact upon the Welsh language,
the report and Equality Impact Assessment deals with all these obligations.

To view the Equality Impact Assessment for the WESP please see Appendix 4.

HR Implications

32.

Whilst there are no direct Human Resource implications arising from this report,
HR People Services will continue to support Welsh-medium Headteachers and
Governing Bodies to address any recruitment challenges they may encounter.
Advice will also continue to be available regarding work force planning and whole
school staffing structures.

Equality Impact Assessment

33. An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed and concludes that the
WESP 2017 — 2020 would have a positive impact on the development of the
Welsh language.

RECOMMENDATIONS

34. The Cabinet is recommended to:

Approve Cardiff Council WESP 2017-202 for implementation from 1st April
2017.

Nick Batchelar
Director of Education and Lifelong Learning

March 2017

The following appendices are attached:

Appendix 1 — WESP 2017-2020

Appendix 2 — WESP Consultation Responses Summary

Appendix 3 — List of changes made to the WESP

Appendix 4 — Statutory Screening Tool / EqlA

The following background papers have been taken into account.

The Welsh Government’s Welsh Language Strategy 2012—17 and draft
strategy: A million Welsh speakers by 2050 (2016).

Page 6 Page 6 of 7



Welsh in Education Strategic Plans and Assessing Demand for Welsh Medium
Education (Wales) Regulations 2013.

Welsh Government’s current Welsh-medium Education Strategy (April 2010)
and policy statement for 2016-17 (March 2016)

Rewriting the Future: raising ambition and attainment in Welsh schools, 2014.
Successful Futures: Independent Review of Curriculum and Assessment
Arrangements in Wales, Prof Donaldson, February 2015.

The City of Cardiff Council Corporate Plan 2016-18 & What Matters Integrated
Partnership Strategy.

Cardiff 2020: a renewed vision for education in Cardiff.

Bilingual Cardiff: 5-Year Welsh Language Strategy, 2017 — 2022.

Page 7 Page 7 of 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

_
'~
&

LI,

ol
'CARDIFF
CAERDYDD

Welsh in Education Strategic Plan
2017 — 2020

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educa%raga%ggﬂan 2017-2020_March 2017



Contents
1.0 Introduction

Mission Statement
Vision & Values
Context

Learner Travel

2.0 Strategic Outcomes

Outcome 1 — More 7 Years old children being taught through the medium of Welsh

Measure 1.1: Increase the number of seven year olds taught through the
medium of Welsh by 1.2%, from 15.2% in January 2016 to 16.4% by 2020.

Outcome 2 — More Learners continuing to improve their language skills on transfer
from primary to secondary schools.

Measure 2.1: Increase the number of year nine learners who are assessed
in Welsh (First Language) by 1.5% to 14.4% by 2020.

Measure 2.2: Maintain or improve the city wide average transfer rate between
Foundation Phase to KS2, KS2 to KS3 and KS3 to KS4 of 96% by 2020.

Measure 2.3: Maintain 100% transfer from the Welsh Immersion
Unit to Welsh-medium schools by 2020. 14

Outcome 3 - More students aged 14-16 studying for qualifications through the
Medium of Welsh.

Measure 3.1: Maintain the percentage of learners entered for GCSE Welsh
(first language) who are studying for at least two further level 1 or level 2
qualifications through the medium of Welsh at 100% by 2020

(Please note that this does not include those children with statements of SEN).

Measure 3.2: Increase the percentage of learners entered for GCSE Welsh
(first language) for at least five further level 1 or level 2 qualifications though

the medium of Welsh to by 3% to 95% by 2020
(Please note this does not include those children with statements of SEN).

Outcome 4 — More students aged 14-19 studying subjects through the medium of
Welsh in schools, colleges and work based learning.

Measure 4.1: Increase the percentage of learners aged 17 who study 2 or more
Subjects through the medium of Welsh by 4% to 95% by 2020.

Outcome 5 — More students with advanced skills in Welsh

Improve provision and standards in Welsh First Language
Measure 5.1: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of the Foundation
Phase who reach at least Foundation Phase Outcome 5 in Language, Literacy

and Communication Skills in Welsh-medium schools to 95% by 2020.

Measure 5.2: Maintain the percentage of learners at the end of Key Stage 2 who
reach at least Level 4 in teacher assessment in Welsh at 96% by 2020.

Measure 5.3: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of Key Stage 3 who
reach at least Level 5 in teacher assessment in Welsh to 95% by 2020.

Measure 5.4: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of Key Stage 4 who
achieve grades A*- C in GCSE Welsh first language to 85% by 2020.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in EdEc)gcg éra;chl Plan 2017-2020_March 2017

12

14

14

14

16

17

17

19

19

21

21

21

21

22

22



Improve provision and standards of Welsh Second Language 23

Measure 5.5: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of Key Stage 2 who
reach at least Level 4 in the teacher assessment of Welsh Second Language to
80% by 2020. 23

Measure 5.6: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of Key Stage 3 who
reach at least Level 5 in the teacher assessment of Welsh Second Language to
83% by 2020. 23

Measure 5.7: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of Key Stage 4 who

achieve grades A*-C in GCSE Welsh Second Language Full Course to 85%

by 2020. 23

Measure 5.8: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of Key Stage 4 who

achieve grades A*-C in GCSE Welsh Second Language Short Course to 50%

by 2018. 24
Increase the number of learners with higher-level Welsh language skills 24

Measure 5.9: Increase the total A Level Welsh first language entries (as a
percentage of GCSE Welsh first language entries two years earlier) to 5.5% by 2020. 24

Measure 5.10: Increase the total A Level Welsh second language entries
(as a percentage of the full course GCSE Welsh second language entries two
years earlier) to 1% by 2020. 24

Outcome 6 — Welsh-medium provision for learners with ALN 27

Measure 6.1: Increase the number of places available in Welsh-medium

primary & secondary SRB’s from 18 places to 42 by September 2020. 27
Outcome 7 — Workforce planning & continuing professional development 29
3.0 Moving Forward 32

List of Tables

Table 1: 4-18 year olds in Welsh-medium education. 7
Table 2: Welsh-medium Reception intakes 2004-2016 9
Table 3: Projected and target Reception intakes 2017 — 2020 9
Table 4: Welsh-medium Year 2 projections and targets up to 2022/23 13

Table 5: Learners in year nine who are assessed in Welsh (First Language) in
Welsh-medium schools or Welsh-medium streams. 15

Table 6: Total cohort in year 11 with number of entries for 2+ further
level 1 or level 2 qualifications in Welsh (first language). 17

Table 7: Total cohort in year 11 with number of entries for 5+ further
level 1 or level 2 qualifications in Welsh (first language). 17

Table 8: The number and percentage of learners who study 2 or more

subjects through the medium of Welsh at an Advanced level. 20
Table 9: Cardiff & Wales WFL Foundation Phase Level 5+ attainment 2013 - 2016 22
Table 10: Cardiff & Wales WFL Key Stage 2 — Level 4+ attainment 2013 - 2016 22

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educa%faga%gilgran 2017-2020_March 2017



Table 11: Cardiff and Wales WFL Key Stage 2 — Level 5+ attainment 2015/16

Table 12: Cardiff and Wales Key Stage 3 — Level 5+ 2013 — 2016

Table 13: Cardiff & Wales WFL Key Stage 4 A*-C 2013 — 2016

Table 14: Number of places in the Welsh-medium SRB’s and the planned capacity increase
Table 15: Schools that deliver Welsh-medium education across Cardiff.

Table 16: Respondents who use and want different language provision for
their current and future childcare provision.

Table 17: Pupil admissions to the Immersion Unit and the transfer rate.

List of Appendices

Appendix A: Supporting Information for Outcome 1
Appendix B: Supporting Information for Outcome 2
Appendix C: Mudiad Meithrin Transfer Data 2014/15 & 2015/16

Appendix D: Summary of WESP Measures

City of Cardiff, Welsh in EdEc)gcg gral% Plan 2017-2020_March 2017

23

23

23

28

33

37

38

33

38

39

40



1.0

Introduction

This Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) is for the period 2017-2020 and builds
on the momentum and commitments from the predecessor WESP from 2014. Whilst
based around the seven key outcomes it will further develop the Council’s vision and
enhance the delivery of the growth and provision of Welsh-medium education
throughout the city.

The City of Cardiff Council is committed to developing a bilingual Cardiff. This Welsh
in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) 2017-2020 will help Cardiff to support the Welsh
Government’s vision to see one million Welsh speakers across Wales by 2050.

In order for Cardiff to play its part in achieving Welsh Government’s vision, we would
need to increase the number of Welsh speakers (aged 3+) in Cardiff by 15.9% from
36,735 (2011 Census) to 42,584 (2021 Census). Cardiff’'s education sector has
already contributed to achieving 58% of this target to date through increasing the
number of children accessing Welsh-medium education at the first point of entry at
primary level.

This WESP is an integral part of the Councils 5-year Bilingual Cardiff strategy. The
most prominent area of interdependency between both strategies is based on
strategic area 1: Families, Children and Young People. The priorities within this area
are based on promotion, provision and progression. These aspects are core
deliverables within outcomes 1 and 2 within this WESP.

The Bilingual Cardiff Strategy aims to increase the number of Welsh speakers and
learners within Cardiff as well as increasing the use of the Welsh language in the city.
The City of Cardiff Council recognise that the education system is a key element in
ensuring that children are able to develop their Welsh skills, and for creating new
speakers.

The WESP will also contribute to the seven national well-being goals within the Well-
being of Future Generations Act, in particular to a prosperous Wales providing high
quality education and training to children and young people with a view to opening up
employment, training and further/higher education opportunities in the language of their
choice.

This strategy has also been developed within the strategic policy context provided by:

e The Welsh Government’s Welsh Language Strategy 2012—17 and draft
strategy: A million Welsh speakers by 2050 (2016).

¢ Welsh in Education Strategic Plans and Assessing Demand for Welsh
Medium Education (Wales) Regulations 2013.

e Rewriting the Future: raising ambition and attainment in Welsh schools, 2014.

o Successful Futures: Independent Review of Curriculum and Assessment
Arrangements in Wales, Prof Donaldson, February 2015.

e The City of Cardiff Council Corporate Plan 2016-18 & What Matters Integrated
Partnership Strategy.

e Cardiff 2020: a renewed vision for education in Cardiff.

¢ Bilingual Cardiff: 5-Year Welsh Language Strategy, 2017 — 2022.

This WESP will focus on ensuring all learners; regardless of their socio-economic
background have an equal chance of achieving their expectations through the delivery
of the highest quality Welsh-medium education. The Council recognises the critical
importance of developing strong partnerships and of seamless transition at all key
stages to develop a truly bilingual city with a thriving Welsh education system.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educa%raga%gilg?an 2017-2020_March 2017



Mission Statement

Every child in our city feels confident in Welsh by 2050 to contribute towards creating a truly
bilingual Cardiff where the Welsh language is protected and nurtured for future generations
to use and enjoy.

Vision

Cardiff's education system will act as a key driver to ensure that children are able to develop
their Welsh skills, and create new speakers, to support Welsh Government’s vision of
having a million Welsh speakers by 2050.

Values

Over the next three years, 2017-2020, the strategic aims of this Welsh in Education
Strategic Plan are for educational provision in which:

¢ Welsh-medium education and childcare is available to all, with effective transition
between ages and phases;

e Pupils have improved fluency and use of the Welsh language across all community,
faith and foundation schools in Cardiff.

e Provision is Inclusive, overcoming barriers, providing opportunities for any young
person to achieve a good education through the medium of Welsh;

e We Celebrate and promote the Welsh language, through high quality teaching and
challenging children’s learning abilities;

¢ We Promote the wider use of Welsh outside the classroom through play, leisure and

holiday care and youth opportunities as well as beyond school in Further and Higher
Education, training and employment.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in EdEc)gcg éra;Lgl Plan 2017-2020_March 2017



Context

Cardiff's city context is changing. Its population is increasing rapidly and is expected to
increase by 26% by 2036, some 91,500 new residents. Accommodating this growth will mean
the construction of 41,000 new homes and the creation of 40,000 new jobs. This will also
require significant numbers of new school establishments across the city, including Welsh-
medium provision in the primary, secondary and special sectors.

Adapting to this changing demographic will be challenging. However, the Council is committed
to capitalising on the opportunities it brings to support the vision for a Bilingual Cardiff through
its education provision.

Between 2011/12 and 2015/16, there has been an increase of 985 pupils in Welsh-medium
education across the city. By 2020, this is expected to rise by a further 798 pupils, a projected
increase of total pupils taught through the medium of Welsh to 15% (shown in table 1).

This has been in part a result of population increases and a result of the expansion of provision
within the Welsh-medium sector and the establishment of new schools. This includes notably
the opening of the third Welsh-medium High School in Cardiff, Bro Edern in Penylan, 2012
and then in 2013, the building of a new 3FE Welsh-medium primary school in Canton, which
saw the merger of Ysgol Tan Yr Eos and Ysgol Treganna and the increase by one form of
entry.

In addition, Ysgol-y-Wern Primary School in Llanishen increased in capacity by 0.5 forms of
entry (15 places) in September 2015. This has been further complemented by the
establishment of a new 2FE Welsh primary starter school for Butetown, Ysgol Hamadryad,
which opened in September 2016 and will move to a new build school in the spring of 2018.

Other schemes to increase the capacity within the primary sector include a one form of entry
extension to Ysgol Glan Morfa in Splott to take effect from September 2017, with the school
moving to a new build establishment in the spring of 2018. There will also be an increase of
the age range from 4 - 11 years to 3 -11 years at Ysgol Glan Ceubal in Llandaff North by
providing a new nursery with 48 Part Time Equivalent (PTE) places from September 2016. A
new building for Gabalfa / Ysgol Glan Ceubal was approved at the Council’s February Planning
Committee.

This growth in the sector is shown below in Table 1.

Table 1: 4-18 year olds in full-time Welsh-medium education

Pupils enrolled in Welsh-medium % 4-18 years’ in
School Year education 4-18 years. Welsh-medium education as
a % of total cohort
201112 6,025 13.0%
2012/13 6,241 13.3%
2013/14 6,541 13.7%
2014/15 6,867 14.2%
2015/16 7,010 14.3%
2016/17 (projection) 7,222 14.4%
2017/18 (projection) 7,429 14.7%
2018/19 (projection) 7,628 14.9%
2019/20 (projection) 7,808 15.0%
2020/21 (projection) 7967 15.1%
2021/22 (projection) 8,107 15.2%

Sources: 2011/ 12 to 2015/16 PLASC data supplied by schools (January); 2016/17 to 2019/20 projections based
on 2016 PLASC and NHS data.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educa%raga%gilgan 2017-2020_March 2017



The overall growth of full time Welsh-medium education for pupils aged 4-18 years shows an
increase of 985 pupils from 2011/12 to 2015/16. Between 2016/17 and 2021/22, the number
of pupils aged 4-18 taught in Welsh-medium schools is projected to increase by 12.3% (from
7,222 to 8,107), making a significant contribution to meeting the targets set in the Council’s
5-year Bilingual Cardiff Strategy.

A picture of the growth of Welsh-medium education will be provided by looking at pupil
numbers on entrance to Reception. Between 2004/5 and 2016/17 there has been a 77.0%
increase in the number of pupils entering Welsh-medium education, in a period when the
overall number of pupils entering primary education increased by 28.9%.

Welsh-Medium Reception Intake 2004-2020

S

A Q) S
X N N S @
. & & &V

S O I N MR
m Welsh-Medium Reception Actual Intake ~ m Welsh-Medium Reception Projected Intake
m Welsh-Medium Reception Target Intake

900

800

70

o

60

o

50

o

40

o

30

o

20

o

10

o

> ™ &) ©
\’\ q>'\ “_)\\ bg\ 93\'\

In 2015/16, 15.9% of Reception age pupils were admitted to Welsh-medium education,
comparted to 12.6% in 2004/5.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Edﬁﬁg éral@ Plan 2017-2020_March 2017



Table 2: Reception Intakes 2004 - 2016

S$:::>I Actual Intake (WM) AcItEl:\:laI:;all:(aeiéhW)M, % Ac:s:l:nl)ntake
2004/05 421 3333 12.6%
2005/06 455 3402 13.4%
2006/07 465 3257 14.3%
2007/08 519 3463 15.0%
2008/09 555 3474 16.0%
2009/10 572 3683 15.5%
2010/11 594 3859 15.4%
2011/12 651 4019 16.2%
2012/13 686 4221 16.3%
2013/14 678 4256 15.9%
2014/15 706 4246 16.6%
2015/16 690 4335 15.9%
2016/17 745 4297 17.3%

Source: PLASC 2004 — 2015 and NOR — October 2016

Data for the 2016/17 school year shows that 17.3% of pupils were admitted to Welsh-
medium education. This represents a significant uplift compared to 2015/16. Projections and
targets are stated below however; analysis of 2017 school census data will be required later
in the year to fully consider how future projections may be affected.

Table 3: Projected and target Reception Intakes 2017 - 2020

Projected % Target %

School Year Projected Intake (WM, | Projected Inta?(e Target
Intake (WM) EM and Intake (WM) Intake

Faith) (WM) (WM)

2017/18 720 4343 16.6% 720 16.6%
2018/19 733 4139 17.7% 738 17.8%
2019/20 737 4189 17.6% 767 18.3%
2020/21 741 4220 176% | 811 | 19.2%

Source: NHS GP Registration Data 2016 and PLASC based projections

The Council will ensure that Welsh-medium primary school pupils transfer into the three
Welsh-medium secondary schools within the city. It is recognised that the continued growth in
the Welsh-medium primary sector will necessitate an increase in provision in the secondary
sector, however it is not anticipated that this will be required until after 2022, which is outside
the timescale of this WESP. There is currently 16% net surplus capacity within the secondary
sector. The Council will continue to monitor the primary school projections, conduct feasibility
studies and undertake planning development work over this plan period to ensure that it will
be in a position to ensure the sufficiency of Welsh secondary places when further secondary
provision is required.

What must also be recognised is the impact that the two major housing sites within the Local
Development Plan (LDP) will have on education provision across the city. There are two major
housing sites contained within the LDP and these are found in the North East of the city
between the areas of Lisvane and Pontprennau and in the West of the city in the area between
Radyr and Fairwater. It is anticipated that these two areas will yield up to 12,000 new homes
between now and 2026. As part of the development of these areas some 22 forms of entry at
primary will be required to serve these new communities, along with two major new secondary
schools.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educa%raga%g;Zan 2017-2020_March 2017



This strategy was consulted on widely with stakeholders during its development and as a city
wide strategy, the implementation and delivery of the WESP will be shared with numerous
stakeholders. These stakeholders will include head teachers and governing bodies of Welsh-
medium schools, Mudiad Meithrin, Menter Caerdydd, the Family Information Service, the
Central South Consortium and the Welsh Education Forum including RhAG, who share the
responsibility for promoting and facilitating the use of Welsh across the city.

A Welsh in Education Forum (WEF) meets on a termly basis and has become an integral part
of the Schools Organisation Planning as well as a quarterly meeting with Welsh Head
Teachers to help guide and steer the development of Welsh-medium education across the
city. Respondents to the consultation identified a number of other stakeholders that could be
included on the membership of the Welsh Education Forum including Cardiff University,
Governors of schools, Health Board, National Museum and Coleg Cymraeg Cenedlaethol.

It is the Council’s responsibility to ensure that Welsh-medium education is available to all and
to develop the provision. The WEF is not a decision making body but is an important
contributor to the planning of school places in the city. Subject to approval, the main objectives
for the WEF are:

e To contribute to the development and implementation of a Welsh in Education Strategic
Plan for the City of Cardiff in compliance with the School Standards and Organisation
(Wales) Act (2013).

e To ensure stakeholder participation in the preparation, submission and review of the
Welsh in Education Strategic Plan for Cardiff.

e To actively inform the planning of Welsh-medium places through contributing to
highlighting areas in need of development, monitoring admission numbers as well as
transfer rates between stages within Welsh-medium education.

e To contribute to the development and promotion of Welsh-medium education and
activities to support the wider role of Welsh outside the classroom through celebrating
positive outcomes and identifying /sharing best practice and assisting in developing
improvement strategies.

e To contribute to the aspirations for Welsh-medium education to be fully integrated into
the Bilingual Cardiff Strategy (2017-2022).

City of Cardiff, Welsh in EdEc)gcg ér)alﬁ Plan 2017-2020_March 2017



2.0

Learner Travel

Cardiff Council provides free home to school transport to Welsh-medium pupils who
are of statutory school age (5 to 16) who live 2 or more miles, primary aged, or 3 or
more miles, secondary aged, (measured via the shortest available walking distance)
from their nearest appropriate catchment area school for their home address.

Cardiff Councils current home to school transport policy states that there are 4
categories/types of the nearest appropriate school, these are:-

The nearest English-medium Community School
The nearest Welsh-medium Community School
The nearest Church in Wales School

The nearest Roman Catholic School

R N

In line with the Council’s current policy, free transport is provided to pupils who live
more than the statutory walking distances from their nearest appropriate catchment
area Welsh-medium school, regardless of a closer English-medium or Faith based
school.

When new schools are opened and catchment areas are designated for each
type/category of school, Cardiff applies the same principle to all schools in that the new
catchment area applies to all pupils starting at a school from the September that the
change is effective from. The new catchment area also applies to any pupils starting at
the school in each subsequent year thereafter.

Ysgol Hamadryad, the new 2 form of entry Welsh-medium primary school in Butetown,
will be piloting new approaches to sustainable travel. The aim is to have 70% of the
school population accessing the school premises using sustainable modes of transport
mainly in the form of walking. Council teams and Active Travel to School group
members are working closely with the Head Teacher and Governing Body to plan
appropriate initiatives.

Strategic Outcomes

There are seven key strategic outcomes upon which the Welsh in Education Strategic
Plan has been developed and monitored. These are used as the basis for the planning
and delivery of Welsh-medium education across the city.

These are set out in the following sections and establish the city’s aspirations for
Welsh-medium education up to the year 2020.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educa%raga%gilgan 2017-2020_March 2017



Outcome 1:

More seven-year-old children being taught through

the medium of Welsh

The first strategic outcome of the WESP is to have more seven-year-old children being taught
through the medium of Welsh in a primary school setting. The ambition of Outcome 1 is to
increase this by 1.2% by 2019/20, through a variety of actions including increasing both
primary and early year’s provision and through partnership working and targeted promotion.

Table 4 below details the recent Reception intakes to Welsh-medium primary schools and
Welsh-medium classes in dual stream primary schools, who promote to year 2 and how that
figure will progress forward with age promotion up to 2023. Columns 7 and 8 outline the
Councils aspirations to increase the targets for children in year 2, over and above age
promotion.

It should be noted that an increase of children into Welsh-medium Reception classes in
academic year 2018/19, as a result of promotional activities and / or additional early years
provision, will not show as an increase in year 2 children (7 year olds) until the 2020/21
academic year.

Table 4: Welsh-medium Year 2 projections and targets up to 2022/23.

Target Date Total Year 2 Projected Year | Projected WM % | Target WM | Target WM
population 2 WM pupils pupils %
(WM, EM and
Faith)

AU 4,303 658 15.2% : :
Current
2016/17 4,304 683 15.9% - -
2017/18 4,390 670 15.3% - -
2018/19 4,457 724 16.2% - -
2019/20 4,187 687 16.4% 687 16.4%
2020/21 4,238 699 16.5% 704 16.6%
2021/22 4,232 703 16.6% 732 17.3%
2022/23 4,232 707 16.7% 774 18.3%

Sources: NHS GP registration data 2016, PLASC 2013 — 2016, NOR October 2016, PLASC based projections
January 2016.

The measure of achievement of Outcome 1 is as follows: -

Measure 1.1: Increase the number of seven year olds taught through the
medium of Welsh by 1.2%, from 15.2% in January 2016 to 16.4% by 2020.

The impact of promotional and other activities to increase the numbers of children into Welsh-
medium education into reception will not start impacting on the numbers of year 2 pupils until
after the lifetime of this current WESP. This can be seen in Table 4 above, where, by 2022/23
it is anticipated that additional activities combined with an increase in capacity, over and above
age promotion, could increase the number of children in year 2 by up to 3.1% to 18.3%
overall.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in EdEc)gcg é%agcgl Plan 2017-2020_March 2017



Actions to address Qutcome 1

1.

Increase Provision — To increase the provision of Welsh-medium community primary
school places by 60 by September 2017, through increasing the capacity of Ysgol
Hamadryad and Ysgol Glan Morfa, with new school buildings being delivered during
the 2017/18 academic year. To commence the master planning of new Welsh schools
established as a result of the Local Development Plan major housing sites in the North
and West of Cardiff by 2020, in order to increase the number of seven year olds taught
through the medium of Welsh in later years.

Create Stronger Partnerships - To create a stronger partnership approach to the
planning and promotion of Welsh-language opportunities. This will be achieved by
increased partnership working between the Family Information Service, Health Visitors,
Mudiad Meithrin and schools to create partnership opportunities, improve
communications and identify pre-school priorities. Through working together to drive
demand from the bottom up and publicise information so parents can make an informed
choice prior to their children being of statutory school age.

Strengthen Early Years Provision — The City of Cardiff Council recognises that the
provision of a Cylch Mythrin partnered to a Welsh-medium primary school would
provide a natural progression for statutory schooling age progression. This will also
encourage skills development and closer partnership working at early years to ensure
successful transition. The City of Cardiff Council and Mudiad Meithrin will work
together to capture the operational requirements and the feasibility of these
arrangements and they will be considered in the future Welsh-medium place planning
across the city.

Increase Promotion Activity - The increased promotion of Welsh school education
provision throughout the city to enable parents to make early informed decisions about
the benefit of Welsh-medium education. This will be achieved by Welsh-medium
primary schools promoting and holding open days at their schools before parents have
to apply for a reception place to provide opportunities for promotion of the Welsh-
language, to break down perceptions that exist about Welsh-medium education and to
increase awareness and understanding of what Welsh-medium education can offer.
Welsh-medium school staff will be able to explain the concept of Welsh-medium
education at an early stage and to inquire why parents/carers of reception-aged
children have chosen Welsh-medium education for their children and feed this back to
the local authority to help with future planning. Promotion will also be increased by
giving parents information about language options and the concept of Welsh-medium
education at an early stage and highlighting opportunities for pupils to transfer into
Welsh-medium education in the 2018/19 Schools Admissions Booklet.

Additional information to support the actions for Outcome One including a list of Welsh-medium
schools in Cardiff, both primary and secondary, is shown in Appendix A at page 33.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educa%fa@a%gg.gran 2017-2020_March 2017



Outcome 2:

More learners continuing to improve their lanquage skills

on transfer from primary to secondary school

The second strategic outcome of the WESP is to ensure that learners are continuing to
improve their language skills when they transfer from a primary education setting to a
secondary education setting. This will be measured in two distinct ways. Firstly, by measuring
the numbers of pupils who are being assessed within year 9 through the medium of Welsh and
seeking to increase this figure through to 2020, which would demonstrate a growth in the
sector. Secondly by tracking the transfer rates between the key stages and at the Welsh
Immersion Unit to ensure that learners are continuing on in Welsh-medium education.

Table 5 below shows the number of pupils that are currently on roll in year 9 and how that
figure will progress forward with age promotion. The percentages show year 9 pupils in Welsh-
medium education as a percentage of the overall cohort at year 9 in English-medium, Welsh-
medium and Faith education.

What must be recognised, however, is that the impact of activities to increase the number of
children into Welsh-medium education will not take effect with year 9 cohorts until after 2020.
This is unless the city experiences significant numbers of pupils transferring into Welsh-
medium education instead of progressing through the age groups and/or the impact of
Outcome 1 and the achievement of the ambitious target delivers an increase in the number of
7 years olds in Welsh-medium earlier.

Table 5: Learners in year nine who are assessed in Welsh (First Language) in Welsh-medium
schools or Welsh-medium streams

NOR/ target date (January) Ngocli?t;,n“xg:r ::’;:)Ifl 2 ;Ti‘i':g % of \FI)\;II\II? lls in
Current 2015/16 (Jan 2016) 3,268 422 12.9%
2016/17 (Jan 2017 - target) 3,389 456 13.5%
2017/18 (Jan 2018 - target) 3,346 470 14.0%
2018/19 (Jan 2019 — target) 3,616 479 13.2%
2019/20 (Jan 2020 - target) 3,711 534 14.4%

Source: PLASC Return January 2016 and PLASC based projections
Therefore, the measures that will be used for achievement of Outcome 2 are as follows: -

Measure 2.1: Increase the number of year nine learners who are assessed in
Welsh (First Language) by 1.5% to 14.4% by 2020.

Measure 2.2: Maintain or improve the city-wide average transfer rate between
Foundation Phase to KS2, KS2 to KS3 and KS3 to KS4 of 96% by 2020.

Measure 2.3: Maintain 100% transfer from the Welsh Immersion Unit to Welsh-
medium schools by 2020.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in EdEc)gcg éﬁag% Plan 2017-2020_March 2017



Actions to address Qutcome 2

1. Sustain Transfer Rates — Currently the average transfer rates between Foundation
Phase to KS2, KS2 to KS3 and KS3 to KS4 in Welsh-medium in Cardiff are very high
with an average rate of 95%. The lowest transfer rates can be seen between KS2 (Year
3) to KS3 (Year 7) whilst the highest transfer rates being between KS3 (Year 7) and
KS4 (Year 10) (see Appendix D for details).

The population of Cardiff is rapidly growing however, it is recognised that there is a
high degree of mobility both within the city and within the wider city region. Therefore,
the achievement of 100% progression through the stages may not be possible.
However, Cardiff Council Education planning team will investigate the trends that are
visible within the data and in particular the Transfer Rates between:

the start of Foundation Phase (Reception) and the start of KS2 (Year 3)
the start of Foundation Phase (Reception) and the end of KS2 (Year 6)
the end of KS2 (Year 6) and the start of KS3 (Year 7)

the start of KS3 (Year 7) and the start of KS4 (Year 10)

the end of KS3 (Year 9) and the end of KS4 (Year 11).

The initial data included within Appendix D suggest that the transfer rate between KS2
and KS3 needs to be improved as a priority however, the Council will review all key
stages with the aim of ensuring that a greater number of individuals complete a whole
journey of Welsh-medium provision during their education. The Council will work
closely with Welsh schools to mitigate the loss of some of those pupils who may be
leaving the sector as a result of not achieving their expected outcomes.

2. Encourage Early Transition Arrangements - It is recognised that some children join
the Welsh-medium sector during the later years of primary school. The City of Cardiff
Council support this with the provision of a citywide Welsh Immersion Unit. In recent
years this immersion provision has expanded to include children from year 6 (and out
of county placements) who are transferring to Welsh-medium high schools. It is
recognised that this unit has been successful in integrating children in to the Welsh-
medium sector at a later stage however; there is an aspiration for those wishing to
receive Welsh-medium education to transfer at the earliest possible opportunity. The
City of Cardiff Council will support those who wish to change language medium by
working closely together with schools and governing bodies to capture parental
preferences at an early stage. In addition, this will be supported by the permanent
establishment of Welsh-medium immersion provision.

3. Engage with stakeholders to inform the planning of Welsh-medium School
Places — The population of Cardiff is rapidly growing. An important aspect of the rising
population is to ensure that within a Bilingual Cardiff, school place planning, takes
account of the increasing demand for Welsh-medium provision in both the primary and
secondary sectors. This is a statutory duty of the Council to ensure the sufficiency of
school places. An important part of planning school paces will be to fully engage with
stakeholders including schools, governing bodies, parents, early years’ providers,
health visitors, Mudiad Meithrin, the Family Information Service, Menter Caerdydd and
the extended range of Welsh language organisations to ensure that the demand is
effectively captured.

Additional information to support the actions for Outcome Two are shown in Appendix B at
page 38.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educa%raga%ggg?an 2017-2020_March 2017



Outcome 3:

More students aged 14 - 16 studying for qualifications through

the medium of Welsh

The third strategic outcome of the WESP is to increase the number of pupils aged 14-16
studying for qualifications through the medium of Welsh. This will be measured in two ways.
Firstly, by measuring the percentage of learners entered for GCSE Welsh (first language) who
are studying for at least two further level 1 or level 2 qualifications through the medium of
Welsh and secondly the percentage of learners entered for GCSE Welsh (first language)
studying for at least five further level 1 or level 2 qualifications through the medium of Welsh.

Table 6 below shows the number and percentage of learners in year 11 entered for GCSE
Welsh (first language) who are studying for at least two further level 1 or level 2 qualifications
through the medium of Welsh. Currently some 99.7% of pupils within Welsh-medium
Secondary Schools achieve at least 2+ qualifications at Level 1 or 2 in Welsh first language.
The target for 2020 is set at 100%, however, it is recognised that this will not include those
children with particular statements of special educational need.

Table 6: Total cohort in year 11 with number of entries for 2+ further level 1 or level 2
qualifications in Welsh (first language)

Numbers i Entri . .
Year yeaurn; 1‘?:15‘;\2\” \r;v;;'fs Number studying % studying
2+ further L1 or L2 WM qualifications

Current 2015/16 365 361 360 99.7%
2016/17 (Jan 17 - target) 382 382 382 100%
2017/18 (Jan 18 - target) 417 417 417 100%
2018/19 (Jan 19 — target) 451 451 451 100%
2019/20 (Jan 20 - target) 464 464 464 100%

Source: CSC - Provisional KS4 data supply 2016 (Welsh language and Welsh literature qualifications are
excluded from the calculations.

Table 7 below shows the number and percentage of learners in year 11 entered for GCSE
Welsh (first language) studying for at least five further level 1 or level 2 qualifications through
the medium of Welsh. Currently some 92% of pupils within Welsh-medium Secondary Schools
achieve 5+ qualifications at Level 1 or 2 in Welsh first language. The Target is set to increase
by 1% year on year to reach 95% by 2020. However, it is recognised that this will not include
those children with particular statements of special educational need.

Table 7: Total cohort in year 11 with number of entries for 5+ further level 1 or level 2
qualifications in Welsh (first language)

Year y::laurnfllﬁ:\sxm Ewl';ifs Number studying % studying
5+ further L1 or L2 WM qualifications
Current 2015/16 365 361 332 92%
2016/17 (Jan 17 - target) 382 382 355 93%
2017/18 (Jan 18 - target) 417 417 392 94%
2018/19 (Jan 19 — target) 451 451 428 95%
2019/20 (Jan 20 - target) 464 464 441 95%

Source: CSC - Provisional KS4 data supply 2016 (Welsh language and Welsh literature qualifications are
excluded from the calculations).

City of Cardiff, Welsh in EdEc)gcg é?agg% Plan 2017-2020_March 2017



Therefore, the measures that will be used for achievement of Outcome 3 are as follows: -

Measure 3.1: Maintain the percentage of learners entered for GCSE Welsh (first
language) who are studying for at least two further level 1 or level 2 qualifications

through the medium of Welsh at 100% by 2020 (Please note that this does not include
those children with statements of SEN).

Measure 3.2: Increase the percentage of learners entered for GCSE Welsh (first
language) for at least five further level 1 or level 2 qualifications though the

medium of Welsh to by 3% to 95% by 2020 (Please note this does not include those
children with statements of SEN).

It is important to acknowledge that all the Welsh-medium secondary schools will be aiming to
generate 100% of learners with Welsh plus two qualifications at least at Level 1. This measure
is underpinned and driven by school performance measures including:

e the Level 1 threshold

e Level 2 threshold

o Level 2 plus including English/Welsh and Mathematics

e Performance in the Best 9.

Itis also important to note that whilst 100% level 1 target is achieveable in the main for Welsh-
medium secondary schools it is not an applicable target for students in Specialist Resource
Bases and those with particular statements of SEN. Therefore until these pupils are
disaggragated it will not be an achievable target. Welsh secondary schools will continue to set
targets for improvements and to raise standards.

Actions to address Qutcome 3

1. Encourage Curriculim Breadth and Choice for 14-16 years — The Learning and
Skills Measure 2009 indicates that pupils in KS4 are entitiled to an offer of twenty Level
2 subjects, five of which must be Level 2 Vocational. In order to maintain and provide
a varied curriculum suited to pupils’ interests, abilities and needs the Welsh secondary
schools in Cardiff continue to work together in a 14-19 partnership to meet and deliver
the Measure.

Schools are encouraged to utilise their Education Improvement Grant for this purpose
by the Consortium and Local Authority and pupils from all three Welsh-medium
secondary schools are encouraged to take up subjects not offered by their Welsh-
medium home school at a Welsh-medium host school or Further Education Institution
where applicable and appropriate.

2. Promote Welsh Immersion Opportunities — As indicated in Outcome 2 it is
acknowledged that the transfer rates between Welsh-medium primary and Welsh-
medium secondary school are currently very high. In order to ensure that English-
medium to Welsh-medium transfer between primary and secondary schools is
available the Local Authority will look to continue to support a Welsh Immersion Unit.

Currently there is limited uptake of this provision at secondary level reflecting the
benefits to learners of accessing or transfering to Welsh-medium education at the
earliest point of entry. However, this option will continue to be publicised to
parents/carers who wish to transfer from English-medium to Welsh-medium.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educa%raga%gggan 2017-2020_March 2017



3. Raise Standards - Both the Local Authority and the Central South Consortium will
be providing challenge to the three Welsh-medium secondary schools in Cardiff in
order to continually improve their standards against performance indicators.
Furthermore, the three Welsh-medium secondary schools continue to support one
another in their curriculum development through the 14-19 partnership as well as
external networks and forums such as CYDAG. This support, challenge and
intervention provides professional development opportunities and curriculum
developments which supports school improvement in the Welsh-medium sector.

4. Actively Celebrate Welsh-medium Secondary School Successes — The Council

will liaise with Welsh-medium Secondary Schools to promote the successes of co-
horts to stimulate awareness and interest in the Welsh-medium education sector.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in EdEc)gcg éﬁagﬁ Plan 2017-2020_March 2017



Outcome 4:

More students aged 14-19 studying subjects through the

medium of Welsh, in schools, colleges and work-based learning

The fourth strategic outcome of the WESP is to increase the number of learners aged 14-19
that are studying subjects through the medium of Welsh, in schools, colleges and work-based
learning. This will be measured by percentage of learners aged 16-19 who study 2 or more
subjects through the medium of Welsh, as shown in the table below.

Table 8: The number and percentage of learners who study 2 or more subjects through the
medium of Welsh at an Advanced level:

Cohort 17 year .
Year olds in WM Nurr:geéas:;(fjfylng % studying
In Cardiff
2+ qualifications through WM
Current 2015/16 (Jan 2016) 252 229 90.9%
2016/17 — (Jan 2017 target) 258 239 92.0%
2017/18 — (Jan 2018 target) 270 252 93.3%
2018/19 — (Jan 2019 target) 294 277 94.2%
2019/20 — (Jan 2020 target) 318 302 95.0%

Source: CCC - Provisional KS4 data supply 2016.

Currently from a cohort of some 252, there are some 229 or 90% of 17 years olds studying 2
or more subjects through the medium of Welsh at an advanced level in schools, colleges and
work based learning in the City of Cardiff. The target is to increase the number of pupils
annually to reach a target of 95% by 2020.

Therefore, the measure that will be used for achievement of Outcome 4 is as follows: -

Measure 4.1: Increase the percentage of learners aged 17 who study 2 or more
subjects through the medium of Welsh by 4% to 95% by 2020.

Actions to address Qutcome 4

1. Encourage Curriculum Breadth and Choice for 16-19 years — The Learning and
Skills Measure 2009 indicates that pupils aged 16-19 are entitiled to an offer of thirty
Level 3 subjects five of which must be Level 3 Voctional. In order to maintain and
provide a varied curriculum suited to pupils interests, ability and needs the Welsh
secondary schools in Cardiff continue to work together in a 14-19 parternship to meet
and deliver the Measure. Pupils from all three Welsh-medium secondary schools are
encouraged to take up subjects not offered by their Welsh-medium home school at a
Welsh-medium host school or Work Based Learning Centre or Further Education
where applicable and appropriate. Labour Market Intelligence from the Wales
Learning and Skills Observatory should be utilised by schools to inform curriculum
planning in 16-19 that reflects the Labour market with specific reference to Welsh
Speaking Industries.

Concerns regarding some subjects have been expressed, for example, Childcare and
Welsh 1st Language A Level. This is because ALPs data indicates that from 2012 to
2015 there has been a steady decline in the uptake of Welsh 15t Language nationally.
It must be noted however in Cardiff take-up has grown slightly in this last year and data
indicates 13 entries in 2014, 12 entries in 2015 and 18 entries in 2016. However, these
numbers remain limited despite achievement in Welsh 15t language GCSE. Some, but

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educa%ra@a%QZZan 2017-2020_March 2017



not all, of the long term impact of this in Wales could be a shortage of Welsh 1st
Language teaching staff and difficulty of recruitment for translation services and
therefore this needs to be addressed at a national level.

2. Raise Standards - Both the Local Authority and the Central South Consortium will
provide challenge to the three Welsh-medium secondary schools in Cardiff in order to
continually improve their standards against performance indicators. ALPS data will
continue to inform and support ongoing improvement in the quality of sixth form
provision in the Welsh-medium secondary sector taking into account of value added
information in determining its relative progress. Furthermore, the three Welsh-
medium high schools continue to support one another in their curriculum development
through the 14-19 partnership as well as external networks and forums such as
CYDAG (who promote Welsh-medium & Bilingual education) and will review
opportunities to develop further work-based links.

3. Improve Impartial Advice and Guidance — The awareness of pupils, staff,
parents/carers of Labour Market Intelligence and Local Economy and job market will
be raised in order that pupils can make informed choices in their 16-19 curriculum.
Careers advice provided by Careers Wales will be up to date, accurate and reflective
of the Welsh speaking economy. Higher Education and Welsh Speaking Alumni will
be utilised to highlight and raise awareness of professions that utilise Welsh in order
to raise aspirations of young people who wish to follow a Welsh Language career path.
The three Welsh-medium secondary schools will raise awareness of professional
people who use the Welsh language daily in their professional careers to raise the
aspirations of learners to follow a Welsh language career path.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in EdEc)gcg ér)agﬁ Plan 2017-2020_March 2017



Outcome 5:

More students with advanced skills in Welsh

The fifth strategic outcome of the WESP focusses on increasing the number of students with
advanced skills in Welsh. The Outcome is split into three main areas:

e Improve provision and standards in Welsh First Language — Raising the percentage of
learners at Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2, Key Stage 3 and Key stage 4 achieving
the expected outcomes in Welsh (first language)

e Improve provision and standards of Welsh Second Language - Raising the percentage
of learners at Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2, Key Stage 3 and Key stage 4 achieving
the expected outcomes in Welsh (second language).

e Increase the number of learners with higher-level Welsh language skills - Raising
standards and improving attainment in Welsh and Welsh second language at
Advanced level.

Therefore, the measures that will be used for achievement of Outcome 5 are spilt into the 3
areas outlined above as follows: -

Improve provision and standards in Welsh First Lanquage

Foundation Phase

It is clear that over the last four years there has been an increase in attainment outcomes at
Welsh first language at the end of each key stage. At the end of the Foundation Phase,
currently some 93% of pupils are achieving outcome 5 in Welsh-medium schools. This has
been a rise of 3 percentage points in the last four years and demonstrates that the majority of
pupils are achieving well at foundation phase. Therefore, the target for 2020 is to increase this
percentage to 95%.

Measure 5.1: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of the Foundation
Phase who reach at least Foundation Phase Outcome 5 in Language, Literacy
and Communication Skills in Welsh-medium schools to 95% by 2020.

Table 9 below shows that Cardiff is performing above the Wales average.

Table 9: Foundation Phase — L5

FP L5 2013 2014 2015 2016 2020
target
Cardiff 86.9% 90.5% 92.8% 93.1% 95%
Wales 86.7% 89.8% 91.3% 90.7% tbc
Key Stage 2

At the end of Key Stage 2 in Welsh first language currently some 96.1% of learners are
reaching level 4+ in Welsh first language. This has increased significantly over the past four
years by 6.6 percentage points from a figure of 89.5% in 2013. Whilst this is a much improved
picture overall, it is acknowledged that a 96% achievement rate is a realistic target to maintain
for the future.

Measure 5.2: Maintain the percentage of learners at the end of Key Stage 2 who
reach at least Level 4+ in Welsh first language at 96% by 2020.

Table 10 below shows that Cardiff is performing above the Wales average.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educa%r@a%gggan 2017-2020_March 2017



Table 10: Key Stage 2 — Level 4+

KS2 L4+ 2013 2014 2015 2016 2020
target

Cardiff 89.5% 90.1% 93.7% 96.1% 96%

Wales 86.7% 88.1% 90.5% 90.8% tbc

However, the City of Cardiff Council would like to see an increase in the number of pupils
attaining a level 5+ at the end of Key Stage 2. In 2015/16, the city performed above the national
average for pupils attaining above the expected level.

Table 11: Key Stage 2 — Level 5+, 2015/16

KS2 L5+ 2016
Cardiff 47.6%
Wales 38.0%

Key Stage 3

At the end of Key Stage 3 currently some 93.1% of learners are reaching a level 5 in teacher
assessment in Welsh. This again has increased over the past four years by 4.6% from a figure
of 88.5% in 2013. This is a much improved picture overall however the target for 2020 is to
increase this percentage further to 95%, acknowledging that those small number of pupils with
statements of special educational needs may not reach this outcome.

Measure 5.3: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of Key Stage 3 who
reach at least Level 5 in teacher assessment in Welsh to 95% by 2020.

Table 12 below shows that Cardiff is performing above the Wales average.

Table 12: Key Stage 3 — Level 5+

KS3 LS 2013 2014 2015 2016 2020
Cardiff 88.5% 94.0% 92.8% 93.1% 95%
Wales 87.6% 90.1% 90.9% 92.4% tbc

The City of Cardiff Council would like to see an increase in pupils attaining a L6 and L7 at Key
Stage 3 to help support higher targets at Key Stage 4.

Key Stage 4

Currently some 79% of learners in 2016 achieved A*- C in GCSE Welsh first language. This
has increased over the past four years from 75% in 2012; however, the trend is not consistent.
In 2014 and 2015, the percentage was 83% and 84% respectively, therefore, compared to last
year there has been a drop in achievement of 5%. Taking this into account the target for 2020
is to increase the percentage of learners achieving A*- C in GCSE Welsh first language to
85%. This will then exceed the position achieved in 2015.

Measure 5.4: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of Key Stage 4 who
achieve grades A*- C in GCSE Welsh first language to 85% by 2020.

Table 13 below shows that Cardiff is performing above the Wales average.

Table 13: Key Stage 4 — A* - C GCSE

KS4 A*-C 2013 2014 2015 2016 2020
Cardiff 81.6% 83.0% 84.1% 79.8% 85%
Wales 73.6% 73.7% 75.2% 75.1% tbc

City of Cardiff, Welsh in EdEc)gcg é%agcgl Plan 2017-2020_March 2017




Improve provision and standards of Welsh Second Language

The standards of Welsh second language at the end of Key Stage 2 and 3 are at 76% and
80% respectively, the ambition is to improve on these figures by 2020. Currently the
percentage of learners at the end of Key Stage 4 who achieve grades A*-C in GCSE Welsh
second language full course is 83.2%.The current percentage of pupils who are achieving
grades A*-C in GCSE Welsh second language short course is only 49%.

The Welsh Government are changing the way Welsh second language qualifications are
obtained. The existing Welsh second language qualifications, both full course and short
course, will be assessed for the last time in summer 2018 and only one qualification in Welsh
second language will be available from September 2018.

The Welsh second language short course qualification will run concurrently with the new Welsh
second language full course from September 2017 and only one Welsh second language
qualification will be available from September 2018.

In terms of teaching Welsh in the curriculum, schools have a statutory expectation to teach
Welsh to all pupils until the end of KS4. However, Welsh Government’s guidance does not
state that the exam for the new full course will be statutory. In terms of qualifications, the Welsh
Government would like all English-medium secondary schools to deliver the new Welsh
language full course.

Currently pupils in English-medium secondary schools are able to complete the Welsh Second
Language courses in year 10 or split the courses 50/50 across year 10 and year 11. New
guidance from Welsh Government specifies that pupils can only do 25% of the new full course
in year 10 with 75% in year 11, removing the option to complete a Welsh second language
qualification early. As the new full course requires 120 hours to deliver the qualification, this
could reduce the choice of options evoking a possible negative reaction from pupils. This may
affect the achievement of targets for Welsh second language qualification in the strategy.

To mitigate any negative impacts of these changes, the three Welsh Second Language Hubs
within Central South Consortium (Cardiff High, Treorchy and Cowbridge) as well as Welsh
representatives from the Central South Consortium (CSC) and Education Achievement
Service for South East Wales (EAS) will be meeting in February 2017 to discuss the best way
forward. Following this, the City of Cardiff Council will work in partnership with English-medium
secondary schools and the Central South Consortium to monitor the impact of the changes to
the curriculum and the entries for Welsh second language GCSE and an annual progress
update will be provided via the WESP. More information can be found at the following link:
http://qualificationswales.org/development/changes-to-gcse-welsh-second-
language/?lang=en&

Measure 5.5: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of Key Stage 2 who
reach at least Level 4 in the teacher assessment of Welsh Second Language to
80% by 2020.

Measure 5.6: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of Key Stage 3 who
reach at least Level 5 in the teacher assessment of Welsh Second Language to
83% by 2020.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educa%fﬁa%gg.gran 2017-2020_March 2017


http://qualificationswales.org/development/changes-to-gcse-welsh-second-language/?lang=en&
http://qualificationswales.org/development/changes-to-gcse-welsh-second-language/?lang=en&

Measure 5.7: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of Key Stage 4 who
achieve grades A*-C in GCSE Welsh Second Language Full Course to 85% by
2020.

Measure 5.8: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of Key Stage 4 who
achieve grades A*-C in GCSE Welsh Second Language Short Course to 50% by
2018.

Increase the number of learners with higher-level Welsh language skills

Currently the percentage of pupils that are studying for “A” level Welsh First language as a
percentage of those who studied it at GCSE stands at 4.8%. This shows a marginal increase
over the last three years of less than 1% and this may be reflective of the fact that only 15%
of pupils in Welsh-medium education are from Welsh speaking homes. It is acknowledged
that whilst the number and percentages of pupils is low, the data does nevertheless
demonstrate an increased take-up of A Level Welsh (first language). The Council is committed
to working in partnership with schools to ensure the continuing uptake of this advanced
qualification with a target to increase the numbers to 5.5% of the cohort by 2020.

In addition, the number of pupils who are studying for “A” level Welsh Second Language as a
percentage of those who studied GCSE second language full course currently stands at only
0.4%. It is recognised that this qualification is not currently a prominent choice amongst young
adults and one of the reasons for the very low take up could be that they may not be as
confident in using the language to achieve an advanced level qualification. Nevertheless, it is
a shared ambition of the council and schools to look to improve this take up, with a target of
1% by 2020.

Measure 5.9: Increase the total A Level Welsh first language entries (as a
percentage of GCSE Welsh first language entries two years earlier) to 5.5% by
2020.

Measure 5.10: Increase the total A Level Welsh second language entries (as a

percentage of the full course GCSE Welsh second language entries two years
earlier) to 1% by 2020.

Actions to address Qutcome 5

1. Improve Welsh Literacy — Raising standards in Welsh literacy/Welsh is a specific
improvement priority in the Central South Consortium’s business plan. This means that
achieving improvement in learner outcomes in Welsh is a key factor when the
consortium plans hub school training provision and all other aspects of its school
improvement activity. Outcomes for Welsh have improved dramatically across the
region since 2012, with particularly significant increases in outcomes at above the
expected levels in the Foundation Phase to KS3. The percentage of pupils achieving
an A*-C grade in Welsh at GCSE across the consortium has jumped almost 9
percentage points since 2012/13 to 85.9%. Further improvement will be secured by,
for example, continuing to develop professional learning programmes for practitioners
designed to:

- Enhance practitioners’ own language skills

- Improve teaching by e.g. providing training on the NAID scheme (assessment for
learning, progress lunch, developing interdependent learning, enquiry based
learning, developing activities)

- Improve leadership by providing Welsh-medium leadership programmes for new
head teachers and middle leaders.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in EdEc)gcg §a§% Plan 2017-2020_March 2017



- Embed successful Welsh teaching practice in English medium schools across the
region (programmes offered by schools whose current Welsh second language
provision is good).

2. Consider the Welsh Language within the wider City Development - Inward and
outward migration has a profound effect on areas across Cardiff. Many Welsh
speaking, and non-Welsh speaking young people have moved from their communities
to seek work in the city. Cardiff needs to be able to offer opportunities for all Welsh
speakers, whatever their fluency level, to use the language in every sphere of life and
to encourage them to do so.

Cardiff is a multi-cultural city and has an ambition to be Europe’s most liveable capital
city. Over the last few years, Cardiff has attracted a significant amount of inward
investment in sectors such as Financial, Professional and Business Services; Creative
and Digital Sectors; Advanced Manufacturing and Life Sciences. The majority of these
companies serve national and international markets and their recruitment priority is to
secure an employee base with the right skills and technical knowledge for their sector,
which may include language capability. An important consideration for companies
serving local markets in and across Wales are employees that have higher level Welsh
language skills. Sectors that have a higher interface in Cardiff with local markets
include: Leisure and Hospitality, Government Departments and Local Regeneration
Projects. The City of Cardiff Council anticipate a continuing high level of investment
and regeneration in the city. For those companies which may have an interest in
serving Wales or parts of Wales the council will continue to promote various language
capabilities, including the Welsh language, to attract inward investment opportunities.

The Council has also been preparing sector reports on the Cardiff economy to help
schools understand changes in the local labour market and to identify new career
opportunities. These will be shared with schools so that a stronger emphasis is placed
on workforce planning and skills, as the Council recognise the Welsh Governments
aspiration in Successful Futures Strategy that the needs of employers and the
workplace are seen as vital if young people are to move smoothly and successfully into
employment.

3. Increase exposure to the Welsh language outside school hours — Anecdotal
feedback from Welsh-medium school practitioners suggests that following a summer
holiday period from school, a number of pupils who don’t speak Welsh during this time
require short term intensive language exposure. To ensure that Welsh becomes a living
language in Cardiff the Council will continue to provide opportunities for learners to use
and practise their Welsh language skills in formal and non-formal settings through, for
example, promoting out of school Welsh-medium childcare provision through the
Family Information Service. All providers need to adopt a multi-agency approach to
promote what’s available and when as this should allow a larger audience to access
the services.

Through the Council’s corporate communications team and individual schools, we will
promote facilities available across the city where opportunities to use the Welsh-
language are available, such as Yr Hen Lyfrgell offering clubs such as animation and
dance workshops and Bwrlwm, Welsh-medium Open Access Play Sessions, organised
in partnership between Menter Caerdydd, Urdd Gobaith Cymru's Sport Department
and Cardiff Council.

Of significance importance is that the City of Cardiff are hosting the National Eisteddfod
for Wales in 2018 and the Urdd Eistedfordd in 2019, giving numerous opportunities for

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educa%rﬁa%ggg?an 2017-2020_March 2017



families and young people to use their Welsh language skills outside of school hours
in a stimulating and culturally diverse environment.

If pupils attending a Welsh-medium school are from non-Welsh speaking families, they
tend to revert to English once they leave school for the day and it will be important for
schools to increase their work and engagement with Menter Caerdydd and Urdd to
increase the social use of the Welsh language.

Foster Partnerships between English-medium and Welsh-medium schools — As
well as providing new Welsh-medium primary school places, the Council will also
further opportunities for pupils within English-medium primary schools to receive
increased exposure to the Welsh language. This could be achieved by introducing pilot
schemes to further develop Welsh primary school to English primary school
partnerships, to increase the interaction between pupils and teachers through the
medium of Welsh.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in EdEc)gcg é?aggl Plan 2017-2020_March 2017



Outcome 6:

Welsh-medium provision for learners with additional learning needs (ALN)

The sixth strategic outcome of the WESP is to ensure Welsh-medium provision for learners
with additional learning needs (ALN). The City of Cardiff Council will measure this outcome
through the number of places available in the Welsh-medium SRB. It is recognised that with
an increase in diverse population within the city there will be a need for additional SRB places
in Welsh-medium secondary schools.

Table 14 below shows the number of places that are available, or planned, in the Welsh-
medium primary and secondary SRB’s including Early Intervention Classes (EIC’s).

Table 14: Number of places in the Welsh-medium SRB’s and the planned capacity increase

_Nr places Nr places Nr Nr places Total
Year Primary SRB & Secondary places | Secondary Places
EIC’s SRB KS2 EIC BESD

Current 2015/16 8 10 - - 18
2016/17 — (Jan 2017) 8 12 8 - 28
2017/18 — (Jan 2018) 8 16 8 2 34
2018/19 — (Jan 2019) 8 20 8 4 40
2019/20 — (Jan 2020) 8 20 8 6 42

Source: CCC — Senior Achievement Leader — Inclusion.

Therefore, the measures that will be used for achievement of Outcome 6 are as follows: -

Measure 6.1: Increase the number of places available in Welsh-medium primary
& secondary SRB’s from 18 places to 42 by September 2020.

Actions to address Qutcome 6

1. Review the Primary SRB and increase take up of places from 50% to 100%.

In 2016-17 the number of pupils attending the SRB has fallen to 4. There are pupils in
the sector who would meet the criteria to attend, but parents have chosen support in
mainstream as their preferred provision. The local authority will work with schools and
the parent partnership service (SNAP) to identify the reasons for this choice and identify
how to make maximum use of the SRB places. Depending on the findings of a review,
options for future development may include:

a. Raising the profile of the SRB to attract more parents; or

b. Changing the mode of operation to a Welsh outreach SRB, providing specialist

support to SRB pupils in their own local school, if this is parental preference.

2. Establish a long term location for the Primary Early Intervention Class and
increase take up of places from 60% to 100%.

This class was opened summer term 2016, to provide 8 time limited places for KS2
pupils experiencing behaviour social and emotional difficulties. The class is temporarily
located on a secondary site but will need to transfer to a permanent primary school
location in 2017. The class is under-subscribed at present, with 5 out of 8 funded places
filled, giving scope to meet demand as this increases.

3. Extend capacity at the Secondary SRB (at Ysgol Glantaf) from 12 places to 20,
with space for further expansion after 2020.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educa%rﬁa%gggan 2017-2020_March 2017



Although the majority of pupils with complex learning needs attend their local Welsh
primary school, by parental preference, the majority of families opt for an SRB place at
secondary phase. Funded places have increased from 7 in 2012, to 12 in 2016. The
demand is projected to reach 20 by 2018-19. Accommodation is being reviewed with a
view to extending places, including flexibility for further growth in subsequent years.

Establish secondary places for pupils with Behaviour emotional social needs
(BESD) with an admission number of 1-3 places per year.

The SRB at Glantaf specialises in support for complex learning needs, but there is also
a growing need for specialist places for pupils presenting with long term, severe BESD.

A working group of Welsh-medium Head teachers, SENCOs and specialist staff has been
established to review current ALN provision and will include consideration of pupil data.
This process is being implemented with a view to agreeing appropriate levels of provision
for children with ALN in the Welsh-medium sector going forward. As part of this a needs
mapping exercise is being carried out which will inform plans for future specialist provision,
for BESD and ASD. Appropriate ways to implement agreed levels of provision will be
developed out of this working group, with input from stakeholders.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in EdEc)gcg ééagﬁ Plan 2017-2020_March 2017



Outcome 7:

Workforce planning and continuing professional development

The seventh strategic outcome of the WESP focuses on three areas:

Development of Welsh language skills and the ability to teach through the medium of
Welsh of the teaching workforce.

The identification and development of future school leaders of Welsh medium schools.
The further development of school to school support through hub and pioneer school
structures

The Central South Consortium (CSC) will play an instrumental role in the delivery of Welsh
language skill audits and the planning and delivery of workforce planning and continuing
professional development in the Welsh-medium sector.

Actions to address Outcome 7

1.

Develop the teaching workforce - The number of teachers/level of skill required to
implement the new curriculum for Welsh effectively is not yet clear. However, the
Consortium will use workforce data to continue to design professional learning
programmes which reflect regional workforce needs. The Consortium is also working
closely with Initial Teacher Training and Education (ITET) providers to develop jointly-
delivered (by schools and Higher Education Institutions) programmes for newly
qualified teachers. These are being designed to reflect the requirements of the new
curriculum and will include the development of a suitably qualified workforce to deliver
the Welsh continuum.

In the shorter term, recruitment to particular teaching posts in Welsh-medium schools
remains a challenge. Mathematics, Sciences and English are particularly challenging.
This is being addressed by ‘hub’ provision which offers training for non-specialists to
enable them to teach subjects other than their main specialism effectively. The number
of teaching assistants/level of language skills required to implement the new curriculum
for Welsh effectively is not yet clear. However, the consortium will use workforce data
to continue to design professional learning programmes which reflect regional
workforce needs. School governing bodies and Head teachers work with officers in the
Education and HR departments in the LA in order to comply with the Council’s Welsh
Language Scheme and recruitment policy when advertising posts for practitioners to
support teaching through the medium of Welsh.

The Local Authority and CSC will work with schools in order develop the workforce:

o Head teachers to ensure that there are sufficient numbers of practitioners
to deliver Welsh-medium education.

e Governing bodies to ensure that they comply with the Council’'s Welsh
language scheme and recruitment policy when advertising for practitioners
to support teaching through the medium of Welsh.

e Central South Consortium to promote middle level leadership programmes
throughout the Welsh-medium sector.

e Central South Consortium to promote the aspiring leader programmes with
middle level leaders and Deputy Head teachers in Welsh-medium schools.

¢ Cardiff schools to ensure capacity is built within to up skill potential future
leaders.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educa%rﬁa%g§Zan 2017-2020_March 2017



e Schools to ensure that all newly appointed teaching assistants are skilled
linguistic practitioners.

e Schools to support training opportunities to develop the linguistic skills of
classroom assistants.

e Central South Consortium to analyse workforce development needs in
order to plan future leadership and teaching development programmes.

2. Ensure Effective Welsh-medium Leadership - Recruitment to headship in Welsh-
medium schools is challenging. Identifying, developing and supporting school leaders
is also a strategic priority for the region more broadly. The support, development and
recruitment strategy includes increasing the number of training programmes for school
leaders in the Welsh-medium sector. It has also offered to make the programmes
available to other regions. These include:

e An accredited ‘New to Headship’ programme to be delivered through the
medium of Welsh during the 2016/17 academic year;

e The ‘Headship Now’ programme (for middle leaders looking to pursue a career
as head teachers) is currently being piloted.

e The Welsh-medium secondary ‘hub’ schools will deliver a ‘middle leadership’
programme during this academic year.

Other initiatives include: -

e A Senior Leader in Education (SLE) is currently being recruited to develop and
support leadership in schools facing challenge.

e The Welsh-medium primary schools are being funded to work in a School
Improvement Group (SIG) on leadership: developing middle leaders, sharing
good practice, identifying future leaders.

¢ A recruitment campaign aimed at attracting leaders to work as head teachers
in Wales, including current head teachers who are Welsh speaking practitioners
currently working elsewhere.

e The consortium is rolling out a support programme for schools who wish to
federate. This is open to all schools. The schools selected for the support
programme will be required to demonstrate that federating will:

o Impact positively on learners
o Increase leadership capacity in the schools

Note: Evaluating the impact on practitioners and learners of the programmes, hubs and SIG
activity are part of the consortium’s ongoing research programme undertaken in conjunction
with Cardiff University.

3. Develop Hub / Pioneer work - Schools are moving increasingly to a model where they
identify their support needs and commission that support from effective providers within
the sector. Welsh-medium secondary schools in Cardiff (Ysgol Glantaf, Ysgol Bro
Edern and Ysgol Plasmawr) are providing curriculum and professional learning
programmes for schools across the region. This is part of the ‘hub’ model where the
schools analyse their development needs and source/offer the required support based
on an evaluation of best practice.

Welsh-medium primary schools across the region have also formed a federation to
which they all belong. The federation, supported by CSC will increasingly drive the
region’s support offer by identifying the sector’s support needs. Welsh-medium primary
schools in Cardiff are very active in school improvement group work specifically

City of Cardiff, Welsh in EdEc)gcg é(r)agﬁ Plan 2017-2020_March 2017



designed to respond to sector need. The work on school leadership development, for
example, is led by Ysgol Treganna.

The Consortium has four Challenge Advisors that are aligned to Welsh-medium
schools to ensure schools are equipped to drive and sustain improvements in raising
standards and providing high quality educational provision.

The Welsh Secondary Hub at Cardiff High has prepared a series of programmes for
Welsh second language practitioners. They are also offering free bespoke support for
schools, which are in the red or amber categories. Improving staff language skills,
particularly in English-medium schools in Cardiff will be vital in implementing the
Successful Futures vision. English-medium primary schools have access to a wide and
diverse programme of CPD through the EAS programme of language and methodology
training.

The consortium will also:

o Continue to support networks of Welsh-medium schools to share and
develop good practice.

o Work with the hub/pioneer network to develop the Welsh continuum and
ensure that the consortium’s professional learning programme is designed
to respond to workforce development needs in relation to the new
curriculum.

The Central South Consortium has appointed a Welsh standards and policy officer to
support the Welsh Language Charter and Supporting Young People’s Practices
project.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educa%ra@a%gggan 2017-2020_March 2017



3.0

Moving Forward

Cardiff's Welsh in Education Strategic Plan covers a three-year period commencing April
2017 — March 2020. The Council recognise that the education system is a key element
in ensuring that children are able to develop their Welsh skills, and for creating new
Welsh speakers.

Cardiff, as the capital city of Wales has a key role in ensuring that Welsh continues to
be a vibrant, living language and that bilingualism is celebrated throughout the education
of our children and young people in our dynamic city.

The City of Cardiff Council recognises the importance of the WESP to contribute towards
achieving Welsh Government’s vision of a million speakers by 2050 as well as one of
the aims of the Future Generations Act 2015 where “Wales has a vibrant and thriving
Welsh language”.

Cardiff's WESP 2017-2020 is also an integral part of the Councils 5-year Bilingual Cardiff
strategy with both documents sharing an ambition to create a bilingual Cardiff where the
Welsh language is protected and nurtured for future generations to use and enjoy. The
first year of the implementation of the Bilingual Cardiff Strategy will be 2017. As such,
annual progress of the WESP will also be supported by the interventions and actions
provided in the citywide strategy.

This three year WESP sets out clear targets towards contributing to the above visions
and includes 19 measures to effectively track and monitor how Cardiff is delivering its
commitment to ensuring access to the best quality Welsh-medium education for all.
These are outlined throughout the document and are summarised in Appendix D.

This WESP acknowledges the improvements made in recent years but it states that
more needs to be done, and can be done. There is a strong appetite within the school
system and organisations across Cardiff to ensure that children and young people are
able to develop their Welsh skills and for new speakers to be created. This means that
opportunities for speaking and using Welsh throughout childhood and into adult life
must be wide and varied in order to achieve this. It is important to recognise that
resources are limited, so there is a real focus on ensuring effective and efficient use of
resources, and in developing strong partnerships, which enable us to deliver improving
outcomes from a reducing resource base.

The Welsh Government’s draft Welsh language strategy identifies Education as one of

the six strategic areas for increasing the number of speakers, and the use of the
language.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in EdEc)gcg é%aé'cgl Plan 2017-2020_March 2017



Appendix A — Supporting Information for Qutcome 1:

More seven-year old children being taught through the medium of Welsh

Provision of Welsh-medium Education

The majority of Welsh schools in the city deliver education through the medium of Welsh
(Welsh-medium streams only). This means that all pupils who attend these schools receive all
of their lessons in Welsh. There are two schools in the city, Gwaelod y Garth and Creigiau,

that offer dual stream entry. Cardiff has no bilingual schools.

Table 15 below shows Welsh-medium schools across the city, the Published Admission

Number for each school, the numbers of pupils enrolled and total school capacities.

Table 15: Schools that deliver Welsh-medium education across Cardiff:

Name of School Ward PAN Reception Total NOR
Sept 2016 Pupils Capacity (October 2016)
(Oct 16)
Creigiau Primary Creigiau & St Fagans 29 26 210 182
(WM Stream)
Ysgol Bro Eirwg Llanrumney 60 60 411 397
Ysgol Coed-Y-Gof Fairwater 60 59 389 355
Ysgol Glan Ceubal Llandaff North 30 23 147 95
Ysgol Glan Morfa Splott 30 29 210 181
Ysgol Gwaelod Y Garth Pentyrch 26 30 184 194
(WM Stream)
Ysgol Hamadryad Grangetown / Butetown 30 17 30 17
Ysgol Melin Gruffydd Whitchurch & 60 59 420 412
Tongwynlais

Ysgol Mynydd Bychan Gabalfa 30 29 192 204
Ysgol Nant Caerau Caerau 30 31 210 200
Ysgol Pwll Coch Canton 60 59 510 440
Ysgol Pen y Groes Pentwyn 30 27 169 96
Ysgol Pen Y Pil Trowbridge 30 31 210 170
Ysgol Pencae Llandaff 30 30 186 210
Ysgol Y Berllan Deg Pentwyn 60 61 420 393
Ysgol Treganna Canton 90 90 540 528
Ysgol Y Wern Llanishen 75 84 525 493
Welsh medium primary places/ pupils (Reception) 760 745
Welsh medium primary pupils (Age 4-11) 4,567
Ysgol Bro Edern Penylan 180 133 900 513
Ysgol Glantaf Llandaff North 240 193 1,500 850
Ysgol Plasmawr Fairwater 180 176 1,140 885
Welsh medium secondary places/ pupils (Year 7) 600 502
Welsh medium secondary pupils (Age 11-16) 2,248
Welsh-medium pupils (Age 4-16) 6,815

*Source: NOR October 2016 (PAN = Published Admission Number; NOR = Number On Roll)

Currently there is 2% net surplus capacity at entry to the Welsh Primary Sector; with 31 places
still available at entry to Reception at 9 schools across the city. However, the surplus across
the Welsh-medium primary sector amounted to 8% in September 2016. This compares with
5% surplus capacity in the English-medium primary sector. There is also some 16% net

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educa%faﬁa%gégran 2017-2020_March 2017




surplus at entry to the secondary sector with 98 places available at year 7 across the three
Welsh-medium secondary schools

School Organisation

The Published Admission Number at Ysgol y Wern was increased to 75 (2.5FE) and
permanently established in September 2015. Construction works to accommodate the
physical increase were completed in August 2016.

As set out in the Welsh Governments School Organisation Code an enlargement of the
premises of a school, which would increase the capacity, is permissible up to an increase of
25% additional capacity, or 200 additional pupils as compared with the schools capacity on
the appropriate date. The temporary expansion of Ysgol y Wern met this requirement.

The Published Admission Number at Ysgol y Wern was temporarily exceeded to allow up to
an additional 15 places at entry to Reception for the 2016/17 intake. This is because
projections for the local area indicated that, at entry to Reception in September 2016, there
would be a significant uplift in demand for places in both the Welsh-medium and English-
medium sectors compared to the previous three intakes. City wide pre-school population
data obtained from the NHS since 2014 has indicated that the cohort entering primary school
in 2016 was a population ‘spike’ year in the Llanishen/ Thornhill area, rather than a
continuing increase in population. The proportionate demand for Welsh-medium primary
school places in the Ysgol y Wern catchment area will therefore be kept under review, and
new proposals to balance the supply of and demand for places brought forward where
necessary.

Cabinet approved the establishment of a new 2FE Welsh-medium school in Butetown, named
Ysgol Hamadryad. A starter class of this school opened in September 2016 at the previous
site used by Ysgol Tan yr Eos. The intake of Reception aged pupils in September 2016 was
17. A new permanent head teacher took up her post from September 2016 to provide
continuity whilst the new school at Hamadryad Park is being developed. The appointed head
teacher was from an already established Welsh-medium primary school in the city. Ysgol
Hamadryad will transfer from its temporary site to its permanent site in Spring 2018. The
Published Admission Number will be increased to 60 from September 2017 along with new
nursery provision.

Cabinet also approved a scheme to consolidate Ysgol Glan Ceubal at 1FE to serve the
Llandaff North area of the city and to increase the age range by providing a new nursery with
48 Part Time Equivalent (PTE) places at Glan Ceubal from September 2016. Forty-six of the
forty-eight full time nursery places have already filled. Plans for a new back to back building
for Ysgol Glan Ceubal and Gabalfa Primary have been approved at the Councils Planning
Committee in February (2017). In addition to the expansion at Ysgol Glan Ceubal, Ysgol Glan
Morfa will increase by 1FE, an additional 30 children admitted per year at Reception, in a new
build school on a site in Splott. These building schemes are subject to Full Business Case
approval being received from Welsh Government at the beginning of 2017.

In the three new build Welsh-medium community primary schools (Ysgol Hamadryad, Ysgol
Glan Morfa, Ysgol Glan Ceubal) there will be a nursery unit attached to each school
(dependant on site constraints). This will help younger pupils to develop their language skills
at the outset of their statutory education as Cardiff Council recognise the critical importance of
developing strong partnerships with pre- and post-compulsory education and aim to provide
seamless transition (Rewriting the Future, June 2014).

By September 2017, there will be an extra 60 places available at entry to Reception (in Ysgol

Hamadryad and Ysgol Glan Morfa) which will increase the total number of places at Reception
entry into Welsh-medium education from 760 to 820 places.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in EdEc)gcg éﬁaﬂ% Plan 2017-2020_March 2017



Band B is the next tranche of funding for schools investment and will run from 2019 - 2024.
Cardiff is starting to investigate priorities for the Local Authority's Band B Programme. The
needs analysis and planning process for the Band B Programme will highlight priorities and
pressures across the city.

Catchment Area Changes

The change to Welsh-medium high school catchment areas of Ysgol Plasmawr and Ysgol
Glan Taf through transfer of Ysgol Pencae catchment from Ysgol Plasmawr to Ysgol Glan Taf
catchment has been consulted on and agreed for implementation by the Council’'s Cabinet in
order to better match supply and demand and to secure consistently high standards of
education provision. This change is due to take effect from September 2017.

The Council recognise that setting a catchment area for the newly established Ysgol
Hamadryad is needed as soon as possible. Initial analysis suggests that the Council would
consult on a catchment area to include Butetown and parts of Grangetown. However data
from the primary admissions round for the academic year intake 2017/18 will need to be
reviewed to see if there is any effect on surrounding schools as well as analysing boundaries
of catchment areas surrounding Ysgol Hamadryad. This will ensure that relationships
between the organisation of existing schools and catchment areas are fully considered
before any proposals are considered. In this context, it would be prudent that the Council
does not consult on changes to catchment areas during the current consultation period for
admissions arrangements (from 1st September 2016 to 1t March 2017). Any proposals will
be subject to discussion and agreement. There are no current proposals to amend
catchment areas of other Welsh-medium primary schools but changes would be considered
as additional provision is brought forward.

Promotion of Welsh-medium Education

To target the growth of Welsh-medium education Cardiff Council aim to drive demand from
the bottom up. This means that before children reach statutory schooling age, their parents
have been given enough information for them to make an informed choice for the language
medium they would prefer their child to receive. If this is to be successful, the LEA would need
to work with colleagues in the Health sector to ensure correct information is available for health
visitors to be briefed to allow staff to discuss education options with pre-natal and post-natal
clients.

The City of Cardiff Council will also explore the opportunity to develop partnerships with Health
Bodies to further develop opportunities for collaboration and shared working. This could
include publicising information about what Welsh-medium education is and the benefits of
getting children education through another medium in Welsh newspapers, staff at Maternity
wards and through health visitors.

The transfer rates at the Cylch Meithrins have been monitored and show a decrease in the
percentage of children transferring to a Welsh-medium provision between 2014/15 and
2015/16, from 85% to 84%. Of the 14 Cylch settings, 8 show lower numbers attending the
settings compared to the previous year with 5 settings showing increased attendance
numbers. See Appendix C for Mudiad Meithrin Transfer Rate data.

Welsh-medium education is promoted to parents/carers through Cardiff's Family Information
Service. This team maintain a database of all registered childcare provision including Welsh-
medium providers. In addition, details of providers who are not required to register with the
Care and Social Services Inspectorate for Wales (CSSIW), as they operate for less than two
hours, are also maintained if they have provided their details to the Family Information Service.
These include after school, breakfast, lunch and holiday clubs. The Family Information
Service website provides information on the free nursery education entitlement for 3 and 4

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educa%ra@a%gé'g?an 2017-2020_March 2017



year olds as well as a range of information on Family Support Services and Activities through
online directories at www.cardiff-fis.info. In addition, the Family Information Service can
effectively signpost parents to the Cardiff Flying Start programme where appropriate.
Promotional literature including posters and information leaflets produced by the Family
Information Service are bilingual as is the Family Information Service website and online
directories of Childcare, Family Support Services and activities.

Childcare Business Support Services help to sustain existing provision and improve the quality
of childcare in Cardiff. Services can include: - help with policies and procedures, CSSIW
applications, marketing, staff recruitment, income generation and grant-funding applications.
Childcare Business Support Services are available to new and existing childcare providers,
officers are available to work with schools, playgroups, day nurseries, after school and holiday
clubs, Cylch Meithrin, Créche’s and Childminders. All support services are available through
the medium of English and Welsh.

Cymraeg i blant is a new project Managed by Mudiad Meithrin and funded by Welsh
Government that focuses on increasing the number of nursery age children that are able to
speak Welsh. It shares information, advice and support to parents on the benefits of being
bilingual, the importance of introducing Welsh to children as early as possible and the
advantages of Welsh medium childcare and education. Cymraeg i blant sponsors the all Wales
maternity notes folder, the scan card and the Child Heath Record book which is delivered to
every new parent in Wales.

The local Cymraeg i blant officer runs weekly bilingual baby massage, baby yoga and Welsh
rhymetime sessions for parents and young children across the county working alongside the
local Midwifery and Health Visiting teams to ensure that parents receive these key early
messages during the ante-natal and post-natal period and are made aware of the bilingual
pathway available for their child. In addition, parents are signposted over to Mudiad Meithrin’s
Ti & Fi groups and to the ‘Cylchoedd Meithrin’ the Welsh medium playgroups as well as
receiving information about regular family events that are held in partnership with the Mentrau
laith and other local early years partners.

Cymraeg i blant / Cymraeg for kids will therefore contribute towards the Welsh Government’s
target of achieving a million Welsh speakers by 2050.

Assessing demand for Welsh-medium education

Under the Childcare Act 2006, all 22 Local Authorities in Wales have a statutory duty to secure
sufficient childcare for the needs of working parents/carers in their area for children up to the
age of 14, or until they reach the age of 18 in the case of children with a disability. The Council
undertook a childcare sufficiency assessment survey in 2013/14 to assist in developing
childcare provision and assessing the demand for English-medium, Welsh-medium and faith
school education. There was a low response rate of 268 replies and the percentage split of
parents/carers preferring their child/children to be taught in English-medium and Welsh-
medium schools was 60% English and 40% Welsh.

As part of the 2016/17 Childcare Sufficiency Assessment, a new parental / carer questionnaire
was undertaken in September/October 2016 in order to identify levels of demand and gaps in
insufficiency. There were 482 responses, a significant increase on the number of respondents
from the previous survey. When asked what language respondents want provided for their
future childcare provision 22% replied Welsh, 21% Bilingual and 57% English.

Table 16 below shows the breakdown of the language respondents use and want for current
and future childcare provision:

City of Cardiff, Welsh in EdEc)gcg é?aé’gl Plan 2017-2020_March 2017


http://www.cardiff-fis.info/

Table 16: Respondents who use and want different language provision for their current and

future childcare provision:

Welsh Bilingual English
. 57 54 291
Use for current childcare 14% 13% 72%
. 91 89 235
Use for future childcare 299, 21% 57%

Source: CSA 2016 Raw Data Tables.

The CSA survey had a specific section relating to the Welsh language. When respondents
were asked whether they were intending to send their child/children to a Welsh-medium
education setting 34% said yes and 57% said no and 9% were unsure.

The Council’s preferred methodology for projecting the demand for places uses individualised
pre-school health service population data to project at individual school catchment area level,
using a standard cohort survival model and taking account of recent proportionate take-up of
places supplied by schools. The Education Service also works in close partnership with
Strategic Planning officers to ensure that its methodologies for projecting pupil yields from new
housing developments are adequately catered for, and that the supply of additional Welsh-
medium school places to serve new communities (at a proportion of 20% Welsh-medium /
80% English-medium places) are in excess of existing demand in neighbouring areas.

Under the Welsh in Education Strategic Plans (Wales) Regulations 2013 Welsh ministers have
the power to inform the local authority that a Welsh-medium education assessment must be
carried out as a means to assess the demand for Welsh-medium education if an assessment
has not been undertaken in the 3 years immediately preceding the assessment year. As Cardiff
has not conducted a Welsh-medium education assessment for at least five years, the Schools
Planning team will work with the Family Information Service and Mudiad Meithrin to conduct a
Welsh-medium education assessment during the lifetime of this plan.

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educa%raﬁa%gégan 2017-2020_March 2017



Appendix B: Supporting Information for Qutcome 2:

More learners continuing to improve their lanquage skills on transfer from
primary to secondary school

Welsh Immersion Unit

The Local Authority welcomes latecomers to the Welsh Immersion Unit, which was established
in July 2010 and is based in Gabalfa. Cardiff has continued with the commitment to support
and sustain this city-wide scheme.

Pupils who attend the unit are latecomers to Welsh-medium education and include pupils who
have lived outside Wales, transfer from English-medium education or are being fostered or
adopted. The unit receives pupils when they have been registered at a Welsh-medium primary
or secondary school.

Pupils spend a term at the Welsh Immersion Unit (i.e. when they become fluent Welsh
speakers) and receive support at their registered school for a term after leaving. The majority
of pupils are of Foundation Phase age, but many KS2 pupils have attended, some during their
last term at primary school and have successfully integrated into Welsh-medium secondary
education. At the end of 2015/16 academic year there were 7 pupils who transferred into the
Welsh Immersion Unit, from English-medium primary schools and 1 pupil was from Newport.

KS3 pupils have received support in Secondary schools in specific circumstances where pupils
have returned to Welsh-medium education.

The Welsh Immersion Unit transfer rate has been continuously high for the last four years and
the Council aim for this high transfer rate to continue.

Table 17: Pupil admissions to the unit and the transfer rate:

2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2019/20

Pupils in Foundation Phase 17 14 10 11 tbc
Pupils in Key Stage 2 5 4 11 12 tbc
Pupils in Key Stage 3 1 3 1 1 tbc
Total pupils 23 21 22 24 tbc
Pupils transferred to 23 21 21 20 tbc
Welsh-medium education

% of Pupils transferred to 100% 100% 95% 83% 100%
Welsh-medium education target

Source: Welsh Immersion Unit

City of Cardiff, Welsh in EdEc)gcg ééaé@ Plan 2017-2020_March 2017




Appendix C: Mudiad Meithrin 2015-16 Caerdydd Data

: . Number of .
o, o
Name of Cylch Meithrin / Cylch Numbers Nunri'betr g cfhlltiren % ?f puflls V;ho Numbers children who e :)f pu:nls v;ho
Ti a Fi /non-maintained Welsh attending a who transter to ransierred attending a transferred ransierred
. . : Welsh Medium to Welsh Medium ] to Welsh Medium
Medium childcare setting Cylch Cylch to Welsh Medium
schools schools schools
schools
2014/15 2015/16

Creigiau 39 32 82.1% 20 20 100.0%
Caerau (Trelai Yr Ail Gynt) 11 9 81.8% 22 16 72.7%
Dechrau’n Deg Blodau Bychain 2 2 100.0% 6 6 100.0%
Glan Morfa 19 19 100.0% 17 14 82.4%
Grangetown a’r Bae 12 6 50.0% 26 19 73.1%
_@n Lleucu 27 16 59.3% 26 16 61.5%
I%ntrebaen 15 15 100.0% 15 13 86.7%
Pl Pala 60 50 83.3% 41 36 87.8%
Rhiwbina 45 42 93.3% 39 34 87.2%
Trelai 25 13 52.0% 39 24 61.5%
Ty’r Cymry 12 9 75.0% 4 3 75.0%
Y Coed 11 11 100.0% 20 17 85.0%
Y Parc 38 36 94.7% 32 30 93.8%
Eglwys Newydd 60 59 98.3% 58 58 100.0%
City Wide Transfer Rate 376 319 84.8% 365 306 83.8%
National Transfer Rate tbc tbc 85.2% tbc tbc 86.4%

39
City of Cardiff, Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2017-2020_March 2017




Appendix D: Summary of WESP Measures

Outcome 1: More seven-year-old children being taught through the medium of Welsh

Expanding Provision ‘236‘1’;71“(: 2016-17 | 2017-18 | 2018-19 | 2019-20
Measure 1.1: Increase the number of
seven year olds taught through the
modium of Welsh by 2% to 16.4% py | 192% | 15.9% | 153% | 162% | 16.4%
2020.
Measure 1.2: Increase the number of
children entering Welsh-medium 690 745 720 738 767
education each year

Source: NHS GP registration data 2016, PLASC 2013 — 2016, NOR October 2016, PLASC based projections

January 2016

* 2016 has a peak year of pupils entering reception classes across the city. The projections for future years
indicate that fewer children will be admitted to primary education from 2017-2019 and this trend is reflected in
the above projections. The projections do not take into account the strategic housing sites proposed within the

LDP.

Outcome 2: More learners continuing to improve their language skills on transfer from

primary school to secondary school

Current
2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Numbers of Year 9 pupils in WM 422 456 470 479 534
Measure 2.1: To increase the number
of year nine learners who are assessed
in Welsh (First Language) by 1.5% to 12.9% 13.5% 14.0% 13.2% 14.4%
14.4% by 2020.
Source: PLASC Data — January 2016 & PLASC based projections
Effective transfer and linguistic continuity
Current
2015-16 2016-17 | 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Cylch Meithrin nursery education to
funded. community Welsh nursery 84% tbe tbe tbe tbe
education
Foundation Phase (age 4/5 - Reception)
to Key Stage 2 (7/8 — Year 3) 96% 96% 95% 96% 97%
Key Stage 2 (age 7/8 — Year 3) to
Key Stage 3 (age 11/12 — Year 7) 91% 89% 94% 89% 94%
Key Stage 3 (age 11/12 — Year 7) to
Key Stage 4 (age 14/15 — Year 10) 97% 99% 98% 97% 98%
Measure 2.2: To maintain or improve
the city wide average transfer rate
between Foundation Phase to KS2, 95% 95% 96% 95% 96%
KS2 to KS3 and KS3 to KS4 of 95%
by 2020.
Measure 2.3: To maintain 100%
transfer from the Welsh Immersion
Unit to Welsh-medium schools by 83% 100% 100% 100% 100%

2020.

Source: Mudiad Meithrin Data 2016, PLASC NOR & Welsh Immersion Unit

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Edﬁgwaé]g Plan 2017-2020_March 2017




Outcome 3: More learners aged 14 -16 studying for qualifications through the medium

of Welsh

Current

2015-16 2016-17

201718

2018-19

2019-20

Measure 3.1: Maintain the percentage of
learners entered for GCSE Welsh (first
language) who are studying for at least two
further level 1 or level 2 qualifications
through the medium of Welsh at 100% by
2020 (Please note that this does not
include those children with particular
statements of SEN).

99.7% 100% 100%

100%

100%

Measure 3.2: Increase the percentage of
learners entered for GCSE Welsh (first
language) for at least five further level 1 or
level 2 qualifications though the medium of
Welsh to by 3% to 95% by 2020 (Please
note this does not include those children
with particular statements of SEN).

92% 93% 94%

95%

95%

Source: CSC - Provisional KS4 data supply 2016 (Welsh language and Welsh literature qualifications are

excluded from the calculations.

Outcome 4: More learners aged 16-19 who study subjects through the medium of Welsh

in schools

Current

2015-16 2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

Measure 4.1: Increase the percentage of
learners aged 17 who study 2 or more
subjects through the medium of Welsh by
4% by 2020.

90.9% | 92.6%

93.3%

94.2%

95.0%

Source: CCC - Provisional KS4 data supply 2016

Outcome 5: More students with advanced skills in Welsh

Improving provision and standards of Welsh First Language

Current
2015-16

2019-20

Measure 5.1: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of the
Foundation Phase who reach at least Foundation Phase Outcome 5 in
Language, Literacy and Communication Skills in Welsh-medium
schools to 95% by 2020.

93.1%

95%

Measure 5.2: Maintain the percentage of learners at the end of Key
Stage 2 who reach at least Level 4 in teacher assessment in Welsh at
96% by 2020.

96.1%

96%

Measure 5.3: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of Key
Stage 3 who reach at least Level 5 in teacher assessment in Welsh to
95% by 2020.

93.1%

95%

Measure 5.4: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of Key
Stage 4 who achieve grades A*- C in GCSE Welsh first language to 85%
by 2020.

79.8%*

85%

Source: Welsh Government All Wales Core Data Set Jan 2016

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Educat’(?négggiﬂ‘-%n 2017-2020_March 2017




Improving provision and standards of Welsh Second Language

language entries two years earlier) to 1% by 2020.

Current
2015-16 2019-20
Measure 5.5: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of Key
Stage 2 who reach at least Level 4 in the teacher assessment of Welsh 76% 80%
Second Language to 80% by 2020.
Measure 5.6: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of Key
Stage 3 who reach at least Level 5 in the teacher assessment of Welsh 80% 83%
Second Language to 83% by 2020.
Measure 5.7: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of Key
Stage 4 who achieve grades A*-C in GCSE Welsh Second Language Full 83.2% 85%
Course to 85% by 2020.
2015/16 2017/18
Measure 5.8: Increase the percentage of learners at the end of Key
Stage 4 who achieve grades A*-C in GCSE Welsh Second Language | 49.3% 50%
Short Course to 50% by 2017/18.
Source: CSC provisional data 2016
Entries for Welsh Second Language Current
2015-16
Percentage of the cohort entered for GCSE Welsh second language Full Course 37.89%
Percentage of cohort entered for GCSE Welsh second language short course 43.77%
Percentage of cohort not entered for either WSL full course or short course 18.38%
Source: CSC Provisional KS4 Data Supply 2016
More learners with higher level Welsh language skills
2015-16 2019-20
Measure 5.9: Increase the total A Level Welsh first language entries (as
a percentage of GCSE Welsh first language entries two years earlier) to 4.8% 5.5%
5.5% by 2020.
Measure 5.10: Increase the total A Level Welsh second language
entries (as a percentage of the full course GCSE Welsh second 0.4% 1.0%

Source: CSC KS4 Data Supply 2014 and Provisional KS5 Data Supply 2016

Outcome 6: Welsh-medium provision for learners with additional learning needs (ALN)

Current

2015-16 2016-17 | 2017-18 | 2018-19 2019-20
Measure 6.1: To increase the number of
places available in Welsh-medium
primary & secondary SRB’s from 18 18 28 34 40 42
places to 42 by September 2020

Source: Senior Achievement Leader Inclusion

City of Cardiff, Welsh in Edﬁgﬁalgygﬂan 2017-2020_March 2017




Appendix 2 - WESP Consultation Responses Summarised

Appraisal of Views Expressed

The common consensus across consultation responses welcomed the Council’s intention and
commitment to support developing, expanding, and promoting provision for Welsh education
in the city.

The most significant number of responses related to ensuring sufficient Welsh-medium
provision across the city at all stages, particularly in relation to the LDP as well as ensuring
plans are created for secondary provision within the lifetime of the WESP and improving the
provision of ALN in the Welsh-medium sector. A number of shortcomings of the report were
mentioned including the emphasis of the plan being on improvement actions rather than
describing recent developments.

As a result of the consultation a mission statement has been added and the vision has been
strengthened to capture the Council’s ambition to develop the Welsh language within the city.

(Responses received are summarised below in italic text).

Outcome 1: More 7 Years old children being taught through the medium of Welsh
1.1 Additional Provision of Welsh-medium Education
Consultation Responses

A significant number of stakeholders mentioned the need to ensure there is suitable
capacity at pre-school, primary and secondary sectors. Respondents highlighted the
need to include plans for additional provision, as well as the already approved schemes
for Ysgol Hamadryad and Ysgol Glan Morfa, in the 2017-2020 WESP. Respondents
also included specific suggestions for schemes involving individual schools.

Appraisal of Views

Any capital investment, for expanding or creating new schools, will need to be met from within
the funding envelope for the Welsh Government’s 215t Century Schools programme. Cardiff is
currently delivering schemes that were identified as priorities to be included within the 21st
Century Schools Band A Programme. Cardiff has fully committed all capital funding within
Band A.

Band B is the next tranche of funding for schools investment and will run from 2019 - 2024.
Cardiff is starting to investigate priorities for the Local Authority's Band B Programme. The
needs analysis and planning process for the Band B Programme will highlight priorities and
pressures across the city.

All qualitative and quantitative evidence, including specific suggestions through this process
will inform the ongoing needs analysis for Band B. A Stakeholder Reference Group (SRG) has
been compiled to ensure stakeholder views are considered during the Band B needs analysis
process.
1.1.1 Pre-School Provision
Consultation Responses

Responses mentioned that provision for early years is crucial and there is a need to

increase childcare and nursery Welsh-medium provision, which will affect positively on
the number of children accessing Welsh-medium primary education. As well as

Page 51



increasing the number of Welsh-medium Flying Start places to ensure access to
Welsh-medium places in deprived areas.

Appraisal of Views

The City of Cardiff Council acknowledge that engaging at the earliest opportunity with early
year’s children is critical to grow the Welsh-medium education sector. Through working in
partnership with Mudiad Meithrin the Council aims to give every young child in Wales the
opportunity to benefit from early years services and experiences through the medium of
Welsh. Mudiad Meithrin specialises in Welsh-medium early years provisions. The Welsh
Government appointed Mudiad Meithrin to deliver the Cymraeg | Blant (Cymraeg for Kids)
project. Cymraeg for Kids Programme is to increase the number of Welsh speakers amongst
young children. The Cymraeg for Kids programme reinforces Mudiad Meithrin’s work to ensure
that a clear pathway from birth to school age is available in Welsh. Cymraeg | Blant and
Mudiad Meithrin use Twitter, Facebook and websites to increase engagement with young
parents through social media. A recommendation from the consultation was to review
available information sources to assist with an increase in targeted marketing to new parents
(and expectant parents).

Staff across Flying Start have a very proactive approach to encouraging families to take up
Welsh-medium Flying Start provision. All staff receive CPD on children's language
development and this includes advice on the benefits for children’s development of bi and
multi-lingualism. Staff are encouraged to pro-actively promote access to Welsh-medium
services.

All Flying Start families are asked by their Health Visitor very early on and then again just
before entry into childcare, if they would like their child to attend Welsh-medium childcare.
The Health Visitors also encourage parental participation in Ti a Fi’s, to help parents make
their choices about childcare, in addition, Flying Start parenting groups such as Stay and Play
and courses such as Its Child Play and Language and Play, all promote bilingualism and
provide Welsh language resources as part of the service.

Flying Start currently purchases 108 Welsh-medium places out of a total of 1,029. This
equates to 10% of all childcare places offered for eligible 2-3 year olds. The 108 places
available meets the demand made by Flying Start parents who state Welsh-medium childcare
as their preference. Where there is a perceived gap in provision within a specific locality,
Flying Start and the Cardiff Council Childcare Business Support Team are proactive in
supporting new developments.

1.1.1.2 Cylch Meithrin and Statutory Education
Consultation Responses

There were also comments relating to the provision of Cylch Meithrin’s within education
buildings and in particular the new Ysgol Hamadryad and Ysgol Glan Morfa buildings.

Appraisal of Views

As stated on page 14 of the WESP, the City of Cardiff Council and Mudiad Meithrin will work
together to capture the operational requirements and the feasibility of these arrangements and
they will be considered in the future Welsh-medium place planning across the city.

The consultation for the increase and relocation of Ysgol Glan Morfa took place from the 12nd
October 2015 and completed the 23rd November 2015, noting the audience for the Welsh-
medium primary school places in the Adamsdown & Splott area, included local childcare
providers. As stated, a Cylch Methrin (Cylch Meithrin Glan Morfa) currently operates from
Ysgol Glan Morfa offering non-maintained nursery places, Flying Start childcare and wrap
round care in the nursery facility during the afternoon. It is intended that the development of

Page 52



the new school will allow for Cylch Meithrin services to continue to operate from the school
premises once transferred to the new site, led by the Governing Body.

The consultation for the establishment of Ysgol Hamadryad took place from the 7th September
2015 and completed the 19th October, noting the audience for the Welsh-medium primary
school places in the Grangetown and Butetown area, included local childcare providers. Ysgol
Hamadryad subsequently was established in September 2016 and is temporarily located on
the Ninian Park Primary School site noting the School Governing Body has responsibility for
the further development and any subsequent enquires. In developing the new school build
element any good practice including wrap around care will be considered as appropriate.

The scheme has been submitted to planning, where the design can be viewed on the following
link http://planning.cardiff.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=  CARDIFF DCAPR 11851
5 with feedback welcomed via this portal.

1.1.2 Primary Provision
Consultation Responses

Responses relating to additional primary provision mainly related to the:
South West of the city and the West of the city.

The response from the Welsh language society called to create ten new Welsh-
medium primary schools across the city within the next five years and gave their
opinions of Welsh-medium education available across the city.

Appraisal of Views

The Council acknowledge that there is demand in excess of supply for some Welsh-medium
schools in the West of the city. This is being monitored along with the impact of additional
provision available from September 2017 at the newly established Ysgol Hamadryad and the
expansion of Ysgol Glan Morfa. All issues specific to supply and demand patterns across all
sectors is being taken into account as part of the 215t Century Schools Band B capital
programme and will include input from representatives from the Welsh-medium sector
(schools and WEF) as part of this.

1.1.2.1 Published Admission Numbers
Consultation Responses

It was noted that the “emergency” expansion of Ysgol y Wern by a further 15 places to
increase the total admission number to 90 has not gone through the full statutory
procedure but nonetheless ... is illustrative of increase in the demand for Welsh-
medium places in North Cardiff.

Appraisal of Views

As set out in the Welsh Governments School Organisation Code an enlargement of the
premises of a school, which would increase the capacity, is permissible up to an increase of
25% additional capacity, or 200 additional pupils as compared with the schools capacity on
the appropriate date. The temporary expansion of Ysgol y Wern met this requirement.

The Published Admission Number at Ysgol y Wern was temporarily exceeded to allow up to
an additional 15 places at entry to Reception for the 2016/17 intake. City wide pre-school
population data obtained from the NHS since 2014 has indicated that the cohort entering
primary school in 2016 was a population ‘spike’ year in the Llanishen/ Thornhill area, rather
than a continuing increase in population. Places were increase in both English-medium and

Page 53


http://planning.cardiff.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_CARDIFF_DCAPR_118515
http://planning.cardiff.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_CARDIFF_DCAPR_118515
http://planning.cardiff.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_CARDIFF_DCAPR_118515

Welsh-medium to accommodate the increased number of children in the locality. The
proportionate demand for Welsh-medium primary school places in the Ysgol y Wern
catchment area will therefore be kept under review, and new proposals to balance the supply
of and demand for places brought forward where necessary.

1.1.2.2 Capacities
Consultation Responses

Respondents commented that a 2% net surplus capacity at entry to the Welsh Primary
sector across the city is a small surplus, which demonstrates that many parents do not
always have access to Welsh medium education within their communities. It would be
useful if the Plan concentrated on Welsh-medium schools where the number of empty
places are fewer than 10%. The growth of the Welsh-medium sector will be more
accurate by looking at entry to reception rather than 4-18 year olds. Even though there
is surplus capacity, in Cardiff, it is not immediately obvious whether the surplus places
are located in the right areas and there should be local provision available for local
children.

Appraisal of Views

For clarity, the percentage of surplus places at entry to primary (Reception) in 2016 was 2%,
with 31 places available at entry to Reception at 9 schools across the city (October 2016).
However, the surplus across the Welsh-medium primary sector amounted to 8% in September
2016. This compares with 5% surplus capacity in the English-medium primary sector. A further
two forms of entry will be available at entry to Reception in the Welsh-medium primary sector
from September 2017. The Council accept that Reception intake numbers would provide
another method to illustrate the growth within the Welsh-medium sector. As such, the data will
be added into the WESP document.

The reference to 10% surplus is one taken from the School Organisation Code: “It should not
normally be necessary to provide additional places at schools when there are others of the
same type with surplus places within reasonable distance. However, proposals to increase
the number of places in response to demand for a particular type of provision, e.g. Welsh
medium, may still be appropriate; particularly if effective provision of school places is planned
for the local authority area.”

There is no Welsh Government target to supply at least 10% surplus in any school provision,
at individual school level nor on an area basis. It is specifically a reference to a point beyond
which a Local Authority should take steps to reduce surplus.

The Council’'s Admission to Schools policy and oversubscription criteria is predicated on a
geographical basis giving priority to those living within a school catchment area and also
considering proximity of school to home address. This seeks to maintain, where possible,
children attending a local school.

1.1.3 Secondary Provision
Consultation Responses
There was a common view expressed by consultees that whilst acknowledging
additional secondary provision would not be needed within the lifetime of this plan,
there is a need to ensure effective planning for expanding secondary provision is
undertaken in a timely manner (before 2020). There was also a suggestion of a 3-18

model that could be considered.

Appraisal of Views

Page 54



The Council has noted that additional secondary provision will not be required until after 2022.
This is based on 21FE requiring Welsh-medium secondary education in 2020 and 2021, which
is over and above the 20FE that is currently available. This should not create a problem, as
capacity is available through appropriate curriculum planning according to the numbers
throughout the existing Welsh-medium high schools in the short term.

The Council does take on board the views to prepare thorough plans for Welsh-medium
secondary provision at the earliest opportunity and will ensure that Band B planning considers
the needs of the Welsh-medium sector. Cardiff will need to adopt a creative approach
regarding schools investment going forward as the Council needs to achieve best value from
its limited financial resources, which will need to involve new ways of working and innovative
solutions.

1.2 Existing Provision & Monetary Resources
Consultation Responses

The plan mentions new buildings and developments in Cardiff but there should be a firm
focus on existing facilities in well-established schools to ensure existing facilities and
provision are fit for purpose.

One school Governing Body asked if there would be more monetary resources for Welsh
schools whilst there were two responses that were concerned about the money being
allocated equally and sustainably between Welsh-medium and English-medium schools.

Appraisal of Views

Education has an annual asset maintenance capital budget that can be allocated to address
issues within the existing estate. As referenced in the Council’s Corporate Asset Management
Plan 2016/17, Cardiff schools had a maintenance backlog of circa £71.5m (April 2016). An
annual maintenance budget for educational establishments totalling £18.760m over the five
year period between the 2017/18 and 2021/22 financial years, subject to approval of the
Council’s 2017/18 budget. This allocation is for use in undertaking both asset renewal and
suitability works. Therefore, works at existing schools across the city need to be prioritised.
The City of Cardiff Education Catering team are also assessing school kitchens on a rolling
programme of refurbishment through capital bids with limited spend available.

Any additional provision, larger scale reshaping of provision will need to be included in the
Band B capital investment programme; however, this funding will not cover the amount of
issues relating to sufficiency and condition that exist. To note, Welsh Government General
Capital Funding allocated to the Council has reduced by 35% since 2010/11. The Council is
working in partnership with Welsh Government and has allocated significant resources to fund
the 215t Century Band A schemes as part of a £164m investment programme. The need to
determine a viable financial model for any Band B proposals put forward by the Council for
Welsh Government approval from 2019/20 will also need to be considered.

Existing schools receive an amount of funding for repairs and maintenance within their annual
formula revenue budget and, as this is delegated funding, decisions on how they spend this
allocation is at the discretion of the Governing Body and Head Teacher of each school. The
Council recognise that there is a priority to set out clear responsibilities in relation to the
management of Cardiff's schools property estate. Additional Council investment in existing
schools and all other Council priorities can only come from either the disposal proceeds of
land or from additional borrowing. Borrowing has revenue budgets implications, which needs
to be affordable, now as well as in the future.

Therefore, the ambitions and aims within the WESP will need to be shared across all partners
and stakeholders to implement and deliver making this a truly partnership approach to
developing the Welsh language across the city.

Page 55



Revenue funding provided to schools is distributed on a formula basis, largely driven by pupil
numbers. Any increases in the overall amount of funding available for delegated schools will
be distributed between Welsh and English medium schools on an equitable basis. As such,
no separate allocations will be made in respect of this initiative; however, Welsh medium
schools will receive an appropriate share of the overall increase in funding available for
delegated schools on an annual basis.

1.3 Implications of the Local Development Plan (LDP) and Welsh-medium Demand
Consultation Responses

A range of stakeholders expressed the importance of Welsh-medium provision needing to
be planned within the additional 22 forms of entry that will be required as a result of the
LDP areas. Adopting the approach of responding to demand alone is not going to be
enough and the opportunity to take an aspirational approach by offering an equitable
language choice within each community should be adopted. There were questions
received that asked how the 22 additional forms of entry had been calculated, what
percentage of the provision will be Welsh-medium and English-medium, associated
timescales and whether the LDP could change, affecting the number of additional forms
of entry required.

There were also concerns expressed that responding to demand alone will not realise the
Welsh Governments vision of creating 1m speakers by 2050 and that there needed to be
a more proactive approach to not only meet demand but create demand. Research and
Surveys were suggested to provide a solid basis for planning demand. To support this, a
number of respondents stated that being able to track pupils through the education system
who are initially refused a place in Welsh-medium education would be useful.

Appraisal of Views

It is not possible to complete the statutory processes that would be required to establish new
school provision within the lifespan of the WESP (2017-2020). During the lifespan of the
WESP, 2017-2020, it is not expected that the total number of pupils entering education (either
English-medium or Welsh-medium) from new housing developments, including Ely Mill and
Plasdwr, would significantly exceed the fall in the pre-school population compared to recent
intakes. Developer contributions are sought where the demand for additional school places
cannot be met within existing school provision and additional provision will be brought forward
as appropriate. SOP will continue to monitor the housing development dates and projections
and will give due strategic consideration to these.

The Council’s preferred methodology for projecting the demand for places uses individualised
pre-school health service population data to project at individual school catchment area level,
using a standard cohort survival model and taking account of recent proportionate take-up of
places supplied by schools. The Education Service also works in close partnership with
Strategic Planning officers to ensure that its methodologies for projecting pupil yields from new
housing developments are adequately catered for.

However, all community school places, regardless of the language medium are open to all
residents within Cardiff. Parental choice confirms the preferred school, as well as the language
medium; in which their children will receive their education.

The Council has to demonstrate demand to ensure success with any funding applications (e.g.
s106 or Welsh Government schools capital investment).

The City of Cardiff Council as well as the Family Information Service will discuss the
implementation of a Welsh-medium demand assessment further with Welsh Government.

Page 56



Cardiff University have also highlighted they would like to undertake research around demand,
and the causes and reasons of Welsh-medium choice and availability so there are possibilities
of joining with them to investigate further as well as using the Ask Cardiff panel that is
administered by Cardiff Research Centre to assist with planning the Welsh-medium
continuum.

1.4 Welsh-medium Promotion
Consultation Responses

Numerous respondents expressed strong beliefs that more effort is needed to improve
information about what Welsh-medium education offers and increase the promotion of
the Welsh language and Welsh-medium education provision available; especially at
the earliest opportunity and within Flying Start areas. More information is needed in
the handbook ‘Derbyn i Ysgolion’ (Schools Admissions Handbook), which has 114
pages and less than half a page on Welsh-medium education (except for the list of
schools at the end of the document). Respondents note that considerable numbers of
prospective parents have misconceptions about Welsh-medium education.

Appraisal of Views

The Council already works with a number of partners to promote Welsh-medium education
and Welsh-medium pre-school childcare. Welsh Immersion provision was included for the
first time in 2017/18 admissions booklet. The Education team acknowledge that the Schools
Information Booklet could benefit from having an expanded Welsh-medium section and it is
proposed that a task and finish group be established to consider the best way to dispel myths
about accessing Welsh-medium education and more information about the processes
associated with accessing the Welsh Immersion Unit provision for inclusion within the 2018/19
Schools Admission Booklet. Cardiff's Welsh Education Forum, under their remit to contribute
to the development and promotion of Welsh-medium education, will review a draft of this text
before inclusion within the final document.

1.5 Data & Projections
Consultation Responses

A number of respondents queried the methodology for the projections, the basis for
the statistics and why some projections appear to be low. In particular, concern was
expressed within a number of responses relating to the target for more seven year old
children. A number of respondents said the targets were not ambitious or challenging
enough, disappointing and a thorough underestimation. The projections made by the
Council need to reflect the accurate picture.

Appraisal of Views

Area based projections follow a standard cohort survival model which takes account of
population data (supplied annually by the NHS) and PLASC data provided by and verified by
schools annually. The most recent verified PLASC dataset available for analysis is from the
January 2016 at which time 690 pupils were enrolled in Welsh-medium Reception classes.

In recent years, the number of pupils entering Welsh-medium education city-wide has
increased steadily and in broadly in proportion with the growth in population. NHS data
indicates that there will be fewer children admitted to primary education from 2017 to 2019,
compared with the 2016 peak, and projections which indicate a growth in percentage terms
(but fall in numbers) therefore reflect this population trend.

Cardiff's WESP sets out a baseline of how, if population trends and the proportionate take up
of places were to follow recent patterns, the take up of places in year 2, i.e. projections, would

Page 57



increase to 16.4% by 2019/20 and to 16.7% by 2022/23. However, an additional column has
been added that reflects targets for year 2 pupils.

The targets for pupils assessed at seven years old are ordinarily limited by the format of the
WESP to the three year period 2017-2020. Clearly, there is limited influence that the Council
may exert on parents to educate children through the medium of Welsh when pupils have
already commenced statutory full-time education, save for targeting of pupils who have
submitted a transfer of school request and working closely with schools to reduce the number
of pupils opting to transfer.

Pupils assessed at age seven in 2017-18 and 2018-19 would have commenced primary
education in September 2015 and 2016 respectively; pupils assessed at age 7 in 2019-2020
have submitted application forms to enter primary education in September 2017. Statutory
processes that could be undertaken to increase the number of places available for the cohort
of seven year olds in 2019/20, such as the consultation on and determination of admission
arrangements would also have been completed. The WESP is therefore able to provide detail
of measures already taken to increase the number of seven year olds that have recently
entered primary education, and those who would be enrolling in September 2017 and 2018.

Cardiff's WESP sets out aspirational targets that significantly exceed the projected take up,
by 5 pupils in 2020/21, by 29 pupils in 2021/22 and by 67 pupils in 2022/23.

1.6 Training for Front Line Staff
Consultation Responses

Front line staff e.q. Health Visitors, midwives, Information for Families should have the
opportunity to be trained regarding the advantages of Welsh-medium education and
the benefits of bilingualism.

Appraisal of Views

A lot of work is undertaken through working with the childcare sector to encourage the
workforce to take up Welsh language CPD and legal and regulatory courses to encourage the
market. In context however, the Councils Childcare Workforce and Accredited Centre team
have experienced major setbacks in filling the Welsh Language courses that have been on
offer to the sector.

During 2016/17 the team offered 4 Welsh language taster sessions delivered through
Campiaith, of which 2 had to be cancelled due to low bookings. Of the 2 courses that did go
ahead, only 19 of the 40 spaces available were filled. The team also offered a 1 day Advanced
Welsh Language course, as the feedback from childcare providers was that they wanted more
than an introductory session. However, this course had to be cancelled as only 3 bookings
were received.

The team arranged to run two Legal & Regulatory courses (2 x Food Hygiene and 2 x
Understanding Child Protection) courses through the medium of Welsh, however all 4 of these
courses were cancelled as only 1 booking was received.

It appears that although the annual training needs consultation for the sector indicates that
there is demand for Welsh language courses, or courses delivered through the medium of
Welsh, when it comes to actually booking and paying for a place on such a course, the demand
isn’t there. The consultation is sent out to the childcare workforce in Cardiff and this year, the
response received showed that only 13% of respondents indicated they would attend training
through the medium of Welsh.

As a result of this information, the Council propose to identify possible reasons for the lack of
take up and follow up with more specific actions.

Page 58



The Welsh Government is to invest an extra £3m in the National Centre for Learning Welsh to
improve and increase the use of Welsh in the workplace. The National Centre for Learning
Welsh is responsible for providing strategic leadership to the Welsh for Adults sector. This role
includes the development and provision of Welsh for Adults courses in the workplace,
particularly for bodies that fall under the language standards regime. The Welsh Government
has worked closely with the National Centre to develop a plan for the additional money
earmarked in the 2017-18 budget agreement with Plaid Cymru. The Plan includes five strands
and one strand specifically relates to courses for the early years workforce ‘Cymraeg
Cynnar/Early Welsh. The Achievement team, including Childcare Services, will progress the
strand for early years workforce courses on behalf of the Council by signposting and promoting
the ‘Cymraeg Cynnar/Early Welsh’ opportunities available through the ‘Cymraeg Gwaith —
Work Welsh’ scheme.

1.7 Catchment Areas
Consultation Responses

There was a range of responses that emphasised the need for a catchment area for
Ysgol Hamadryad and the need for early consultation with stakeholders if there are to
be any changes to catchment arrangements in the city.

Appraisal of Views

The establishment of each individual school catchment area requires the Council to undertake
a formal consultation. The Council, in its role as admission authority, consults with schools
annually in respect of school admission arrangements, including school catchment areas.

Any amendments to admission arrangements for schools such as the revision of catchment
areas could not be implemented until September 2019 at the earliest, in accordance with the
requirements of the Welsh Government's School Admission Code. It is expected that,
following further analysis of the take-up of Reception places in September 2016 and 2017,
any proposed changes to school catchment areas would be consulted on in early 2018 or
2019, for arrangements to be implemented in September 2019 or September 2020.

1.8 Multicultural Communities and Welsh-medium education
Consultation Responses

Respondents strongly encouraged the Council to reference the numbers of children
from minority backgrounds who access Welsh-medium education and noted that
participation in Welsh-medium education is lower in ethnic communities.

Appraisal of Views

The Council’s mission statement and values within the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan
(2017-2020) relates to every child feeling confident in Welsh with Welsh-medium education
and childcare available to all and Welsh-medium education being inclusive. Parents across
the city are able to apply for community school places regardless of whether the school places
are English-medium or Welsh-medium, and regardless of their ethnic backgrounds.

An overview of statistics show that there is a lower percentage of children from minority
backgrounds that take advantage of Welsh-medium education however to provide a fuller
picture, specific research and investigations would have to take place to understand the city
wide picture and the take up of Welsh-medium from pupils with a minority ethnic background.

The Council is working with RhAG, Welsh-medium partners including Menter Caerdydd,
Mudiad Meithrin, Refugee Council for Wales and other members of the community on a project

Page 59



supported by Welsh Government funding to spread the message of Welsh-medium education
within multicultural communities, particularly in Butetown, in support of the establishment of
Ysgol Hamadryad. The Council’s Ethnic and Traveller Service is acting as a link between the
project and families and pupils. Following discussions with stakeholders, the project will
produce a short film to promote Welsh-medium education. As the city population becomes
more diverse, this film could become a valuable resource for supporting the development of
Welsh-medium education within multilingual communities.

The Council has worked closely with the Governing Body of Ysgol Hamadryad to ensure that
the school is seen as a meaningful choice to the local communities. The head teacher and
governors of the school also attended a number of community events with the aim of reaching
the diverse communities of Butetown and Grangetown.

Cardiff is also able to offer newcomers to the city a fantastic provision in the form of a Welsh
immersion unit. The Welsh immersion unit provides intense Welsh language learning enabling
children to gain a level of fluency to support their transfer to education in a Welsh-medium
school.

1.9 Learner Travel
Consultation Responses

Respondents expressed the need to ensure that every parent and every child has an
equitable choice between Welsh-medium and English-medium schools. Other
responses mentioned a need to distinguish between Welsh community schools with faith
schools, due to some parents being under the impression that admission criteria
involving the ability to speak Welsh are considered when admitting children to Welsh-
medium school in the same way that religious conditions are relevant to admission
processes at faith schools.

There were comments about buses needed for Welsh-medium pupils to access their
Welsh-medium catchment high schools and a disagreement with the wording that in the
Learner Travel section “[...] there is no statutory requirement for Cardiff Council to
provide free transport to any Welsh medium school...."

Appraisal of Views

Cardiff Councils current home to school transport policy states that there are 4
categories/types of the nearest appropriate school, these are:-

1. The nearest English-medium Community School

2. The nearest Welsh-medium Community School

3. The nearest Church in Wales School

4. The nearest Roman Catholic School

Extracts from the Leaner Travel Code of Guidance issued in June 2014, frequently asked
guestions statement:-

12. Is it a legal requirement for local authorities to provide free transport to
Welsh medium primary and secondary schools?
Under current school transport legislation, a learner is entitled to free transport
to a Welsh Medium school if that school is considered by the local authority to
be the learner's nearest suitable school and the Ilearner meets the distance
criteria specific to their age. Primary pupils are entitled to free transport if they
live 2 miles or further from the nearest suitable school whilst secondary pupils
are entitled to free transport if they live 3 miles or further from the nearest
suitable school.

Page 60



Section 1 - 1.40 states that: parents and learners may express a preference for a particular
school, a particular type of language provision or faith school, but the Measure does not confer
on those parents and learners any rights to free transport to their preferred school and or
location, unless that school is determined by the local authority to be the learners nearest
suitable school and the learner meets the distance criteria.

Page 61



Outcome 2: More Learners continuing to improve their language skills on transfer
from primary to secondary schools.

2.0 Transfer Rates
Consultation Responses

Cardiff should be aspirational and aim for 100% transfer rates across all phases and
increase transfer rates from the Cylchoedd Meithin from which there are low transfer
rates. What specific actions will the Local Authority take to improve the transfer rate
between KS2 and KS3?

Appraisal of views

The Local Authority will work with schools to identify groups of pupils who choose to transfer
out during Welsh-medium primary education and on transition from primary to secondary
school. The Council will ensure more regular communications with head teachers takes place
to identify transfers and recognise the reasons why. The average citywide transfer rate has
been increased from 95% to 96%. This is because the Council want to show ambition whilst
recognising that the city population has a high level of mobility and parental choice is an
important aspect of a pupil’s education, therefore setting an ambitious, but realistic, target as
requested by Welsh Government.

Transfer rates from the Cylchs were 86% in 2013, 85% in 2014 and 84% in 2015. The transfer
rates from Cylch Meithrin Grangetown a’r Bae have been:

2013-14 19%
2014-15 50%
2015-16 73%

The data above shows that the transition rate from Cylch Meithrin Grangetown a’r Bae has
increased substantially over the last 3 years. However, Mudiad Meithrin will review the transfer
rates in more detail to understand why the rates are dropping and will work with the Childcare
Business Support Team to continue to improve the transfer rates from Grangetown a’r Bae to
correspond with the arrival of Ysgol Hamadryad. Mudiad Meithrin could also look at Cylch's
with higher transfer rates and partner with Cylch's that have lower rates to see if lessons can
be learnt to build successes and sustainability whilst ensuring that each Cylch is a meaningful
choice for communities.

The City of Cardiff Council will investigate the trends in transfer rates between different ages
and stages of the Welsh-medium language continuum. The results of this work will lead to
further research however; it is too early to say what might be done, as this will depend on the
outcomes of investigations. The Welsh Language Commissioner has advised that evidence
shows that concentrating on strengthening Welsh-medium education in one key stage will be
unsuccessful in terms of creating a significant number of new and fluent Welsh speakers.
Instead, Welsh medium provision must be strengthened from the outset and in all the
subsequent key stages in order to ensure a greater number of individuals complete a whole
journey of Welsh-medium provision during their care and education. This will be taken into
account when planning further actions.

2.1 In Year Transfers
Consultation Responses

There was a mention of whether the Council was pro-active in offering Welsh-medium
provision to in year transfers.

Appraisal of Views

Page 62



With regards to in year transfers, all refusals receive a generic list of places available in all
Welsh-medium and English-medium schools that have limited places available and applicants
are told they can apply for their preferences from the list. For in year applications, if parents
state a preference of English or Welsh-medium provision the team will assist with information
on schools relating to the medium that they have requested. If parents say they are moving
into Cardiff, all schools in the local area that have spaces will be highlighted, regardless of the
language medium.

2.2 Welsh Immersion Unit
Consultation Responses

The City of Cardiff Council should be praised in ensuring that this provision exists and
the emphasis on early immersion is to be welcomed however, there is a need for more
publicity about its existence and how to get a place. The 100% transfer rate is very
ambitious.

Appraisal of Views

To assist with planning places across the city, the Admissions team will improve the sharing
of information with the Welsh Immersion Unit. Pupils from across the city can attend the unit
where they attend for a term or longer to upskill them in the Welsh Language.

In September 2016, there was a requirement for a secondary immersion class to be set up for
pupils attending Ysgol Bro Edern but not from a Welsh primary education background. This
was set up to run in parallel with the primary class, to enable a sharing of resources. The
Council are planning the establishment of permanent Welsh immersion provision.

The target transfer rate for the Welsh Immersion Unit will remain at 100% however; there is a
need to target pupils who may consider this provision as an option at an earlier stage, for
example, before the beginning of year 6, as opposed to leaving it until a secondary school
decision is to be made. Immersion programmes in North East Wales are offered to pupils in
year 3 as a “golden opportunity” or “last chance” to become bilingual and are told of all the
advantages of bilingualism and Welsh-medium education. The Council will strive to deliver the
100% transfer rate and will track the success of the current year 7 group.

Page 63



Outcome 3 and 4: More students aged 14-16 studying for qualifications through the
Medium of Welsh and More students aged 14-19 studying subjects through the
medium of Welsh in schools, colleges and work based learning.

3.1 GCSE Qualifications
Consultation Responses

There were comments that Glantaf cannot achieve 100% for Welsh First Language
because it has a special unit for children with severe disabilities who cannot be entered
for GCSE.

Appraisal of Views

The target for 2020 is set at 100%, however, it is recognised that this will not include those
children with particular statements of special educational need. This is stated on p17.

3.2 Welsh Second Language
Consultation Responses

One respondent noted that the Welsh second language curriculum was changing and the
Welsh second language target for 2020 needed to be reviewed. Another highlighted that the
strategy did not contain any data about the English language attainments of pupils in Welsh
medium schools.

Appraisal of Views

The Welsh Government are changing the way Welsh second language qualifications are
obtained. The existing Welsh second language qualifications, both full course and short
course, will be assessed for the last time in summer 2018. The Welsh second language short
course qualification will run concurrently with the new Welsh second language full course from
September 2017 and only one Welsh second language qualification will be available from
September 2018.

More information about the changes can be found at the following Ilink:
http://qualificationswales.org/development/changes-to-gcse-welsh-second-
language/?lang=ené&. The strategy has been updated to reflect these changes.

In Welsh-medium schools, the English language is introduced in year 3 and assessed
throughout Key Stage 2. This continues into the secondary phase where pupil progress and
outcomes in English are tracked and evaluated along with the other core subjects - Maths and
Science. The WESP is a strategy for the Welsh language.

Page 64


http://qualificationswales.org/development/changes-to-gcse-welsh-second-language/?lang=en&
http://qualificationswales.org/development/changes-to-gcse-welsh-second-language/?lang=en&

Outcome 5: More students with advanced skills in Welsh
Consultation Responses
5.1 A’ level Provision
Consultation Responses

Respondents identified a national trend of decreasing A ‘level take up and as such
views were expressed that the goal of increasing A Level Welsh first language
entries (as a percentage of GCSE Welsh first language entries two years earlier) to
6% by 2020 is too ambitious due to decreasing numbers opting to follow WFL A’
level. The role of Further Education providers was queried in relation to helping the
city to achieve A’ level targets and emphasised the need for promotion of
opportunities to learn through the medium of Welsh amongst pupils choosing
careers.

Appraisal of Views

The Council recognise the decrease in Welsh first language A’ level students is a national
phenomenon and will work with Central South Consortium and Welsh Government on
strategies to reverse this trend. Following the consultation feedback the A’ level target in 2020
has been reduced from 6% to 5.5% (see Appendix D).

The secondary schools will investigate why Welsh first language A ‘level is not an attractive
choice within their student populations and will provide the outcomes of this research to the
Council to help with identifying further actions that could be taken to increase the cohort
choosing Welsh first language at A ‘level.

Central South Consortium provide data to measure outcome 3 and 4 to all local authorities.
This data relates to schools that have a year 13 and, to provide regional consistency, has
been used to calculate these measures.

5.2 Extra-curricular Provision
Consultation Responses

The majority of pupils in Welsh-medium education are from non-Welsh speaking homes so
it is essential that the extracurricular services are an integral part of Cardiff's Welsh
Education Strategy. Opportunities for pupils of all ages to practice speaking Welsh outside
the classroom in Welsh medium and English medium schools, as well as increasing the
formal and informal provision in Welsh in English medium schools should be progressed.

Appraisal of Views

The Council already works in partnership with a number of organisations including Menter
Caerdydd to promote and expand the use of the Welsh language by creating opportunities for
communities to access extra-curricular activities, holiday clubs and after school care through
the medium of Welsh. The services delivered in partnership with these organisations are
specific to ensuring that children and young people have the opportunity to practice using
Welsh outside the classroom/workplace in a range of locations across the city. However, all
schools lead on extra-curricular activities and will need to link with their partners to ensure a
wide range of extra-curricular activities can be delivered.

However the aim is to further this to deliver a broader strategy more akin to the ‘Welsh
Language Charter’ developed by Gwynedd in 2014. The Welsh Language Charter has the
overall objective of providing a framework which can be used to promote and increase the use
of Welsh in a social context by children in Welsh-medium schools. By celebrating the use of

Page 65



Welsh on the school yard, with parents and in the wider context of the school community, the
aim is to develop the number of children speaking Welsh on a daily basis. The Charter is
based on the principle that every individual school may set its own challenging and attainable
vision in connection with promoting the use of the Welsh language. This recognizes that
circumstances may vary from school to school and provides an opportunity for every school
to implement its own programme and achieve its own vision.

There is a Second Language version for English-medium schools that follows the same
guidelines and has been designed by ERW called Cymraeg Campus, but at this point it is not
supported by Welsh Government. The Central South Consortium will work with stakeholders
to investigate whether this is a project that could be replicated within the Central South
Consortium area as there will be a need for all stakeholders to support its development.

The City of Cardiff Council are aware that Cardiff University offer Welsh for Adults Cardiff
provision (https://welshforadults.cardiff.ac.uk/cy) which includes 'Welsh for the Family'
courses and Cardiff University has expressed interest to develop schools partnerships further.

5.3 Higher Education Sector

Requests to develop opportunities with the Higher Education sector, particularly with
Cardiff University and Coleg Cymraeg Cenedlaethol, were made to promote learning
pathways in the Higher Education sector.

Appraisal of Views

Cardiff University has highlighted that they would like to form further partnerships with the
Schools, Council and Central South Consortium to develop plans to increase numbers
further, including offering workshops in schools and conferences/study days on the
University campus. As the increased population progresses through the Welsh language
continuum, partners will review their role towards developing suitable provision.

Page 66



Outcome 6: Welsh-medium provision for learners with ALN
Consultation Responses

There were a range of issues raised regarding ALN provision delivered through the
medium of Welsh including BESD, Nurture and ASD. The common themes identified
included higher numbers of students with BESD needs in the Welsh-medium sector,
BESD provision being needed in addition to the Revolving door provision, a need for
BESD provision at secondary level, nurture classes needed for Foundation Phase
pupils, permanent accommodation needed for BESD provision as well as ASD
provision and SRB provision for learning needs being needed.

Questions were asked about the fairness and parity of ALN in the Welsh-medium
sector compared to the English-medium sector and the numbers of pupils who leave
WM education due to ALN. A common view emphasised was the need to include
stakeholders in discussions and plans before decisions are made. There were also
comments that identified the need for more specialist teachers and a call for a thorough
revision of the sector to get a complete picture and options for appropriate
interventions.

Appraisal of views

In both English-medium and Welsh-medium sectors, the local authority takes steps to develop
provision in response to emergent needs. The level of SEN in Welsh-medium schools is
significantly lower than in English-medium schools and this accounts for the different pattern
of provision. As the sector grows, it is clear that the level of SEN is rising, and that this justifies
the development of additional specialist places. Places have been increased over the last two
years and there is a commitment to further growth over the next 3-4 years.

The Local Authority will take steps to identify whether pupils with SEN transfer from Welsh-
medium to English-medium and seek information from parents as to their reasons. Any issues
identified will inform future planning and support for pupils in the Welsh-medium sector.

The local authority will undertake a review of primary SRB provision for learning needs in
partnership with the Welsh-medium schools and seek views of parents to inform any changes
that may be needed to increase the take up of places. The local authority is working closely
with Ysgol Glantaf to develop secondary SRB accommodation for learning needs and to
ensure this will be sufficient for future growth.

A working group of Welsh-medium Head teachers, SENCOs and specialist staff has been
established to review current ALN provision and will include consideration of pupil data. This
process is being implemented with a view to agreeing appropriate levels of provision for
children with ALN in the Welsh-medium sector going forward. As part of this a needs mapping
exercise is being carried out which will inform plans for future specialist provision, for BESD
and ASD. Appropriate ways to implement agreed levels of ALN provision will be developed
out of this working group, with input from stakeholders.

There is Welsh speaking capacity in the majority of specialist teams and this is proportionate
to the level of need in the Welsh-medium sector. Where there are gaps, this is due to the loss
of Welsh speaking staff through retirement etc. Where there is a shortage of Welsh speaking
teachers with specialist qualifications, posts are advertised as training opportunities to Welsh
speaking teachers who wish to develop their careers as specialists. Further work will be done
to audit current and projected needs, as well as skills of the staff and teachers, to plan for
future workforce development in partnership with the schools.

Regional partnerships will be built on in order to share good practice and specialism and to
investigate opportunities for collaboration.

Page 67



Outcome 7: Workforce planning & continuing professional development
71 Leadership Roles
Consultation Responses

Respondents acknowledged that to grow Welsh-medium education it is extremely
important that the Central South Consortium promotes “the aspiring leader programmes
with middle level leaders and Deputy Head teachers in Welsh-medium schools” and
develops the skill potential of future leaders. Ensuring a supply of head teachers for the
future is a key priority.

Appraisal of Views

The City of Cardiff Council accept that developing leadership is a key future priority hence the
inclusion of Welsh-medium leadership within Outcome 7. In addition to this, Melin Gruffydd
run a middle leaders course for Welsh-medium Primary Schools. All the Head Teachers of the
Secondary Schools have come together to create ‘Gyda’n Gilydd’, as part of the programme
of support they have created a ‘Middle leaders course’ aimed at Department leaders and also
Aspiring Senior Leadership. Both the above are Welsh Medium.

Within the Consortium, a new leadership pilot is being held for Deputy Head Teachers,
‘Improving Leadership skills for Deputy Head Teachers’. This is not through the medium of
Welsh but will be open to all schools after the success of the pilot. The NPQH programme is
being run and we are continually aware of the need of developing the leadership capacity
further within Welsh-medium settings.

7.2 Teaching Practitioners
Consultation Responses

There is a need to develop Welsh medium courses for teachers, particular attention
was drawn to the National Sabbatical Scheme for Welsh Language Training. This
scheme is funded by Welsh Government to increase the number of practitioners who
can educate through the medium of Welsh or bilingually and to offer specialised
continuous professional development opportunities in education. It provides an
opportunity for existing practitioners in education to learn Welsh by taking advantage
of the sabbatical courses on offer as well as offering intense refresher courses for
those teachers willing to transfer to Welsh education.

All newly joined practitioners to the workforce should be able to teach through the
medium of Welsh — whatever educational establishment they are to work in - to ensure
the greater use of Welsh as a means of communication in English-medium schools.

Appraisal of Views

The Central South Consortium are creating an ITE Mentoring Course and a GTP Course with
different Universities and both have a Welsh-medium focus.

The Sabbatical scheme is run by Cardiff University and the Sabbatical courses are to support
practitioners that are already within Schools such as TA’s and Teachers. The courses are free
of charge and Welsh Government pays supply costs as well as travel costs. The training is
provided in Cardiff: http://www.cardiff.ac.uk/cy/welsh/courses/professional-courses-and-
welsh-for-adults/sabbatical-scheme. The University has welcomed a number of practitioners
on the courses and are keen to work with the Council and Central South Consortium to
promote this exciting scheme further.

Page 68



7.3 Student Involvement
Consultation Responses

Cardiff University is developing new undergraduate provision in procurement and
teaching Welsh, which will provide students the opportunity to spend a period on
location at a school (primary or secondary). The aim of the module is not to provide
formal training as teachers, but to look at the Welsh-education system from ac
academic perspective and the aim is for this to encourage them to develop original
ideas when they are in the schools. Cardiff University would like to cooperate with
Welsh-medium schools and Welsh teachers in the English sector.

Appraisal of Views
The City of Cardiff Council acknowledge this provision and the Local Authority would be willing

to co-ordinate discussions between the University and the Consortium to progress this
scheme, if deemed appropriate to progress.

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3

Changes made to Cardiffs WESP following consultation

Please find the changes that have been made to the previously approved draft WESP as a
result of consultation listed below:

Reception numbers admitted each year have been added to illustrate growth in the
Welsh medium sector.

A reference to the temporary expansion of PAN at Ysgol y Wern has been added to
increase transparency.

A paragraph about Band B capital investment funding has been added to illustrate the
schools capital investment cycle.

A Mission Statement has been added to the strategy to capture the Council’s ambition
and the Vision has been changed to reinforce the Welsh Governments vision of 1m
speakers by 2050.

Added references to childcare and holiday care into the Values section.

Added references and statistics in WESP for Cardiff to play its part in achieving Welsh
Government vision, aligned with the content of the Bilingual Cardiff strategy.

4-18 year old projections have been extended until 2021/22 to align with the
timescales of Bilingual Cardiff Strategy.

A graph to illustrate the number of children entering Welsh-medium education has
been added to reflect growth in the Welsh-medium sector.

Updated new nursery provision at Ysgol Glan Ceubal.

Updated Terms of Reference proposed for the Welsh Education Forum.

Updated Learner Travel section

Added the Council will investigate trends of transfer rates between:

the start of Foundation Phase (Reception) and the start of KS2 (year 3),

the start of KS3 (year 7) and start of KS4 (year 10) and

the end of KS3 (year 9) and the end of KS4 (year 11).

Increased citywide average transfer rate to reflect aspirations.

Wales-wide attainment figures for Welsh first language have been added to the data in
Outcome 5 to illustrate Cardiff’s position against the national position.

Welsh second language short course target has been changed to 2018 due to
curriculum changes and wording has been added to clarify the Welsh second
language changes.

Reduced A ‘level target from 6% to 5.5%.

Added Council ambition to achieve higher levels within each key stage in Welsh first
language.

Stated surplus capacity across the Welsh-medium education sector in addition to
surplus at entry to Reception in Welsh-medium primary schools.

Clarified additional capacity of ALN provision by breaking down numbers in the table to
specific provisions.

Changed additional ASD provision to BESD provision.

Updated Outcome seven — Workforce Planning and CPD

Revised conclusion to moving forward to align more closely with Cardiff 2020
ambitions.
Added national transfer rates for the Cylch Meithrins.

The total capacity of each school has been added to Table 15.
Added additional measure to Outcome 1 to monitor the number of children entering
Welsh-medium education each year.

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



~ \_,é
Appendix 4 D\

CARDIFF

Welsh in Education Strategic Plan CAERDYDD

Cardiff Council
Statutory Screening Tool Guidance

If you are developing a strategy, policy or activity that is likely to impact people, communities or
land use in any way then there are a number of statutory requirements that apply. Failure to
comply with these requirements, or demonstrate due regard, can expose the Council to legal
challenge or other forms of reproach.

For instance, this will apply to strategies (i.e. Housing Strategy or Disabled Play Strategy),
policies (i.e. Procurement Policy) or activity (i.e. developing new play area).

Completing the Statutory Screening Tool will ensure that all Cardiff Council strategies, policies
and activities comply with relevant statutory obligations and responsibilities. Where a more
detailed consideration of an issue is required, the Screening Tool will identify if there is a need
for a full impact assessment, as relevant.

The main statutory requirements that strategies, policies or activities must reflect include:

e Equality Act 2010 - Equality Impact Assessment

¢ Welsh Government’s Sustainable Development Bill

e Welsh Government’s Statutory Guidance - Shared Purpose Shared Delivery
¢ United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child

e United Nations Principles for Older Persons

¢ Welsh Language Measure 2011

e Health Impact Assessment

e Habitats Regulations Assessment

e Strategic Environmental Assessment

This Statutory Screening Tool allows us to meet all the requirements of all these pieces of
legislation as part of an integrated screening method that usually taken no longer than an hour.

The Screening Tool can be completed as a self-assessment or as part of a facilitated session,
should further support be needed. For further information or if you require a facilitated session
please contact the Policy, Partnerships and Citizen Focus Team on 2078 8563 e-mail:
siadavies@cardiff.gov.uk. Please note:

— The completed Screening Tool must be submitted as an appendix with the Cabinet report.
- The completed screening tool will be published on the intranet.

Page 73


http://cmsweb.cardiff.gov.uk/cardiff/content.asp?nav=3026,3050&parent_directory_id=3094
http://cmsweb.cardiff.gov.uk/cardiff/content.asp?nav=3026,3050&parent_directory_id=3094
http://cmsweb.cardiff.gov.uk/cardiff/content.asp?nav=3026,3050&parent_directory_id=3094
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/sustainabledevelopment/sdbill/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/sustainabledevelopment/sdbill/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/improvingservices/publicationsevents/publications/sharedpurpdel/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/improvingservices/publicationsevents/publications/sharedpurpdel/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/improvingservices/publicationsevents/publications/sharedpurpdel/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/childrenyoungpeople/rights/uncrc/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/childrenyoungpeople/rights/uncrc/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/childrenyoungpeople/rights/uncrc/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/childrenyoungpeople/rights/uncrc/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/childrenyoungpeople/rights/uncrc/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/childrenyoungpeople/rights/uncrc/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/childrenyoungpeople/rights/uncrc/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/childrenyoungpeople/rights/uncrc/?lang=en
http://www.olderpeoplewales.com/en/about/UN-principles.aspx
http://www.olderpeoplewales.com/en/about/UN-principles.aspx
http://www.olderpeoplewales.com/en/about/UN-principles.aspx
http://www.cardiff.gov.uk/content.asp?nav=2872,3259,5018&parent_directory_id=2865&id=2477&d1p1=1
http://www.cardiff.gov.uk/content.asp?nav=2872,3259,5018&parent_directory_id=2865&id=2477&d1p1=1
http://www.cardiff.gov.uk/content.asp?nav=2872,3259,5018&parent_directory_id=2865&id=2477&d1p1=1
http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sites3/home.cfm?orgid=522
http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sites3/home.cfm?orgid=522
http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sites3/home.cfm?orgid=522
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/1843/introduction/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/1843/introduction/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/1843/introduction/made
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/environmentcountryside/consmanagement/sea/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/environmentcountryside/consmanagement/sea/?lang=en
mailto:siadavies@cardiff.gov.uk
mailto:siadavies@cardiff.gov.uk

CARDIFF Statutory Screening Tool

CAERDYDD

Name of Strategy / Policy / Activity:
Welsh in Education Strategic Plan

Date of Screening:
January 2017

Service Area/Section: Education & Lifelong Learning

Lead Officer: Janine Nightingale

Attendees: Self-assessment

What are the objectives of the Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/
Service/Function

Please provide background information on the
Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function and any research done
[e.g. service users data against demographic statistics, similar EIAs done etc.]

A Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) is a plan that details the
strategic direction for the planning and delivery of Welsh-medium and
Welsh-language education in the authority.

v/ abed

This Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) is for the period 2017-2020
and builds on the momentum and commitments from the predecessor WESP
from 2014. Whilst based around the 7 key outcomes it will further develop the
Council’s vision and enhance the delivery of the growth and provision of
Welsh-medium education throughout the city.

The City of Cardiff Council is committed to developing a bilingual Cardiff.
This Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) 2017-2020 will help Cardiff
to support the Welsh Government’s vision to see one million Welsh speakers
across Wales by 2050.

This WESP is an integral part of the Councils 5-year Bilingual Cardiff
Strategy. The Council recognise that a strong and inclusive Welsh medium
education sector is vital if Cardiff is to develop as a truly bilingual city where
Welsh is a vibrant living language.

The Bilingual Cardiff Strategy aims to increase the number of Welsh
speakers within Cardiff and to promote the use of the language throughout
the city. Cardiff Council recognise that the education system is a key element
in ensuring that children are able to develop their Welsh skills, and for
creating new speakers.

The WESP will also contribute to the seven national well-being goals within
the Well-being of Future Generations Act, in particular to a prosperous Wales

2




providing high quality education and training to children and young people
with a view to opening up employment, training and further/higher education
opportunities in the language of their choice as well as contributing towards
Wales having a vibrant culture and a thriving living Welsh language.

Part 1: Impact on outcomes and due regard to Sustainable Development

Please use the following scale when considering what contribution the activity makes:

+ Positive Positive contribution to the outcome
- R Negative contribution to the outcome
ntrl Neutral Neutral contribution to the outcome
Uncertain Not Sure Uncertain if any contribution is made to the outcome

Has the Strategy/Policy/Activity considered how it will

Please Tick

- Ntrl

Un-

Evidence or suggestion for improvement/mitigation

U | impact one or more of Cardiff’s 7 Citizen focused Outcomes? e
@. People in Cardiff are healthy; The WESP 2017-2020 will focus on ensuring all learners,
M | Consider the potential impact on regardless of their socio-economic background have an equal
~ |« the promotion of good health, prevention of damaging chance of ac?hieving their gxpectations_ through the delivery of the
o behaviour, promote healthy eating/active lifestyles etc, highest quality Welsh-medium education.
* Vumemb.le C.Itlzens and areds of .mq/tlp le deprivation The WESP 2017-2020 includes references to Flying Start areas,
e Addressing instances of inequality in health o e
areas of deprivation, and specifically looks at the number of
places available in Welsh for early year’s provision. All Flying
Start families are asked if they would like their children to take up
a place in a Welsh medium childcare setting. The number of
places available meets the demand made by FS parents who
state Welsh Medium childcare as their preference.
1.2 | People in Cardiff have a clean, attractive and sustainable n.a

environment;

Consider the potential impact on

e the causes and consequences of Climate Change and
creating a carbon lite city

e encouraging walking, cycling, and use of public transport

n.a




Has the Strategy/Policy/Activity considered how it will
impact one or more of Cardiff’s 7 Citizen focused Outcomes?

Please Tick

Ntrl

Un-
Crtn

Evidence or suggestion for improvement/mitigation

and improving access to countryside and open space

e reducing environmental pollution (land, air, noise and water) X n.a
e reducing consumption and encouraging waste reduction, n.a
reuse, recycling and recovery X
e encouraging biodiversity X n.a
1.3 | People in Cardiff are safe and feel safe; n.a.
Consider the potential impact on
e reducing crime, fear of crime and increasing safety of
individuals X
e addressing anti-social behaviour
e protecting vulnerable adults and children in Cardiff from
harm or abuse
1.4 | Cardiff has a thriving and prosperous economy; The fourth strategic outcome of the WESP is to increase the
U | Consider the potential impact on number of Iearnqrs aged 14-19_ that are studying subjects
g e economic competitiveness (enterprise activity, social through the .medlum of Welsh, in schools, colleges and work-
® enterprises, average earnings, improve productivity) based learning.
C\Dl * ASS'Stm,g those NOt,m, Education, Employment or Training Outcome five relates to a thriving economy and the strategy
* attracting and retaining workers (new employment and mentions that the Council has been preparing sector reports on
training opportunities, increase the value of employment,) the Cardiff economy to help schools understand changes in the
e promoting local procurement opportunities or enhancing the local labour market and to identify new career opportunities.
capacity of local companies to compete These will be shared with schools so that a stronger emphasis is
placed on workforce planning and skills, as the Council recognise
the Welsh Governments aspiration in Successful Futures
Strategy that the needs of employers and the workplace are seen
as vital if young people are to move smoothly and successfully
into employment.
1.5 | People in Cardiff achieve their full potential; Outcome four in the strategy relates to raising the attainment of

Consider the potential impact on

e promoting and improving access to life-long learning in
Cardiff

e raising levels of skills and qualifications

14-16 year olds whilst Outcome five relates to raising attainment
levels from Foundation Phase to A ‘level.




Has the Strategy/Policy/Activity considered how it will
impact one or more of Cardiff’s 7 Citizen focused Outcomes?

Please Tick

- Ntrl

Un-
Crtn

Evidence or suggestion for improvement/mitigation

giving children the best start

improving the understanding of sustainability

addressing child poverty (financial poverty, access poverty,
participation poverty)

the United Nations Convention on the Rights of a Child and
Principles for Older persons

1.6 | Cardiff is a Great Place to Live, Work and Play The whole ethos of the WESP is to contribute to promoting the
Consider the potential impact on cultura! diversity of the city, and .has the vision: Ca.rdiff’s
e promoting the cultural diversity of Cardiff education system will act as a key driver to ensure that children
« encouraging participation and access for all to physical are able to develop their Wels’h sl_<|l_ls, and create nev_v _speakers,
. , to support Welsh Government’s vision of having a million Welsh
activity, leisure & culture speakers by 2050
e play opportunities for Children and Young People )
e protecting and enhancing the landscape and historic
heritage of Cardiff
o promoting the City’s international links
Y | Cardiff is a fair, just and inclusive society. See Equality Impact Assessment below and attached.
L(% Consider the potential impact on
d e the elimination of discrimination, harassment or

victimisation for equality groups

has the community or stakeholders been engaged in
developing the strategy/policy/activity?

how will citizen participation be encouraged (encouraging
actions that consider different forms of consultation,
through more in depth engagement to full participation in
service development and delivery)?

As a citywide strategy, stakeholders responsible for promoting
and facilitating the use of Welsh across the city will share the
responsibility to deliver a cross cutting Welsh education strategy.

The Welsh Education Forum meets on a termly basis and has
members that represent the development of Welsh Language
across the city including Mudiad Meithrin, Meter Caerdydd,
Bilingual Cardiff, RhAG, Central South Consortium and Welsh
head teachers. There were also meetings and workshops held
with Welsh head teachers across the city. Both of these forums
were engaged and fed into the development of the WESP. These
forums will also monitor the delivery of the WESP.

Consultation of the WESP was for an 8-week statutory period




Has the Strategy/Policy/Activity considered how it will
impact one or more of Cardiff’s 7 Citizen focused Outcomes?

Please Tick

Ntrl

Un-
Crtn

Evidence or suggestion for improvement/mitigation

between 2" December 2016 and 27t January 2017.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT (This is attached on page XX)

1.8 | The Council delivers positive outcomes for the city and its

citizens through strong partnerships

Consider the potential impact on

e strengthening partnerships with business and voluntary
sectors

e the collaboration agenda and the potential for shared
services, cross-boundary working and efficiency savings

g, abed

As a citywide strategy, the implementation and delivery of the
WESP will be shared with numerous stakeholders including
Governing Bodies and Head Teachers of Welsh-medium
schools, Mudiad Meithrin, Menter Caerdydd, the Family
Information Service, the Central South Consortium and the
Welsh Education Forum who share the responsibility for
promoting and facilitating the use of Welsh across the city. As
such, this strategy was consulted on widely with stakeholders
during its development.

SUMMARY OF APPRAISAL (highlight positive and negative effects of the policy / plan / project being assessed, demonstrating how
it contributes to the economic, social and environmental sustainability of the city):

The Welsh in Education Strategic Plan is a plan that details the strategic direction for the planning and delivery of Welsh-medium and Welsh-language
education in the authority. The Welsh language is one of Wales’ treasures. The aim of the Welsh Government Strategy will be to almost double the number of
Welsh speakers by the middle of the century. It is commonly accepted that the education system is a key element in ensuring that children are able to

develop their Welsh skills, and for creating new speakers.

Economic

The effects of the strategy will have a positive effect on the number of children entering Welsh-medium provision as well as improving the awareness of
secondary school children to the careers available in the Welsh language. This should prompt an increase of GCSE and A ‘level take up and contribute

towards developing a thriving and prosperous economy.




Social

It is recognised that ensuring there is sufficient provision available for early year’s children and through ensuring increased and clear promotion of the Welsh
language and Welsh-medium education sector this will ensure children have the earliest opportunity to develop their Welsh language skills. This strategy will
contribute towards enriching the culture of our city making Cardiff a great place to live, work and play.

WHAT ACTIONS HAVE BEEN IDENTIFIED OR CHANGES BEEN MADE TO THE POLICY / PLAN / PROJECT AS A RESULT OF THIS
APPRAISAL:

N/A

6/ abed




Part 2: Strategic Environmental Assessment Screening

Yes No
2.1 | Does the plan or programme set the framework for future
development consent?
2.2 | |s the plan or programme likely to have significant, positive or
negative, environmental effects?

Is a Full Strategic Environmental Assessment Screening | Yes No
Needed?
= |f yes has been ticked to both questions 2.1 and
2.2 then the answer is yes X
= |f a full SEA Screening is required then please
contact the Sustainable Development Unit to
arrange (details below)

If you have any doubt on your answers to the above questions regarding SEA then please consult
with the Sustainable Development Unit on 2087 3228 sustainabledevelopment@cardiff.gov.uk

Part 3: Habitat Regulation Assessment (HRA)

Yes No Unsure

3.1 | Will the plan, project or programme results in an activity,
which is known to affect a European site, such as the Severn X
Estuary or the Cardiff Beech Woods?

3.2 | Will the plan, project or programme which steers
development towards an area that includes a European site,
such as the Severn Estuary or the Cardiff Beech Woods or
may indirectly affect a European site?

3.3 | Is a full HRA needed? X

Details of the strategy will be sent to the County Ecologist on completion of the process to determine if a Habitat
Regulation Assessment is needed. For further information please phone 2087 3215 or email biodiversity@cardiff.gov.uk

Page 80
8


mailto:sustainabledevelopment@cardiff.gov.uk

Cardiff Council

"\’ %
Equality Impact Assessment (/
BN
Corporate Template CARDIFF
CAERDYDD

Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function Title:

Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP)

New

Who is responsible for developing and implementing the Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function?

Name: Job Title:
Janine Nightingale Head of Schools Organisation, Access & Planning
Service Team: Service Area:
Schools Organisation, Access & Planning Education and Lifelong Learning
(SOAP)
Assessment Date: 08/02/17
1. What are the objectives of the Policy/Strategy/Project/ Procedure/
Service/Function?
A Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) is a plan that details the strategic direction for
the planning and delivery of Welsh-medium and Welsh-language education in the authority
up to the year 2020.
2. Please provide background information on the Policy/ Strategy / Project / Procedure /

Service / Function and any research done [e.g. service users data against demographic
statistics, similar EIAs done etc.]

Every three years each local authority in Wales is required to submit a three-year Welsh in
Education Strategic Plan (WESP). Cardiff's first WESP was produced in 2014 and covered
the period 2014-2017.

Cardiff has a refreshed Welsh in Education Strategic Plan that covers the period 2017-2020.
The Plan is underpinned and informed by Welsh Government’s current Welsh-medium
Education Strategy (April 2010) and policy statement for 2015-16 (March 2016) as well as
being an integral part of Cardiff’s five year Bilingual Cardiff Strategy (2017-2022).

The Welsh Government's guidance on producing the 2017-2020 Welsh in Education
Strategic Plan was issued to Cardiff's Education department in August 2016 based on
guidance issued by Welsh Ministers under section 87 of the School Standards and
Organisation (Wales) Act 2013. The guidance provides a standard template for the plans
with standard measures specified.

There are seven outcomes that are stipulated by the Welsh Government that need to be
included (five of which continue to focus on the five outcomes of the Welsh-medium
Education Strategy 2010):

* Outcome 1

More seven-year-old children beiftd@@ghBHrough the medium of Welsh.

9



3.1

3.2

* Outcome 2

More learners continuing to improve their language skills on transfer from primary
school to secondary school.

* Outcome 3

More learners aged 14-16 studying for qualifications through the medium of Welsh.
* Outcome 4

More learners aged 16-19 studying subjects through the medium of Welsh.

* Outcome 5

More learners with improved skills in Welsh.

* Outcome 6

Welsh medium provision for learners with additional learning needs (ALN).

* Outcome 7

Workforce planning and continuing professional development (CPD).

The aspirations within Cardiff's WESP are in line with Bilingual Cardiff five year strategy and
this is reflected through aspirations reflected in both documents.

Assess Impact on the Protected Characteristics
Age

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact
[positive/negative/] on younger/older people?

Yes No N/A
3 to 11 years X
11 to 18 years X
18 - 65 years X
Over 65 years X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting evidence, if any.

The WESP is mainly aimed at children aged 2-18 years. The first outcome of the WESP is
to increase the numbers of seven-year-old children being taught through the medium of
Welsh.

Outcome 2 focusses on maintaining and increasing transfer rates from Welsh-medium
primary schools to Welsh-medium secondary schools (pupils aged 11).

Outcome 3 and 4 covers attainment and qualifications for pupils aged 14-19 in both Welsh
first and second language.

The WESP mentions Welsh for adults’ courses, which could be accessed by older age
groups however, the WESP is an integral part of the Bilingual Cardiff strategy 2017-2022
that covers the development of the Welsh language across all age groups.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

n/a

If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:

Disability and Access

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact
[positive/negative] on disabled people?

Page 82

10




Yes No N/A
Hearing Impairment X
Physical Impairment X
Visual Impairment X
Learning Disability X
Long-Standing lliness or Health Condition X
Mental Health X
Substance Misuse X
Other X X
Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting evidence, if any.
The strategy proposes to provide more ALN provision in the Welsh-medium education
sector during the lifetime of the plan.
What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?
If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:
3.3 Gender Reassignment
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact
[positive/negative] on transgender people?
Yes No N/A
Transgender People X
(People who are proposing to undergo, are undergoing, or have undergone a
process [or part of a process] to reassign their sex by changing physiological
or other attributes of sex)
Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting evidence, if any.
What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?
If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:
n.a.
3.4. Marriage and Civil Partnership
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact
[positive/negative] on marriage and civil partnership?
Yes No N/A

Marriage X
Civil Partnership X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting evidence, if any.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:

n.a.

3.5 Pregnancy and Maternity

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact
[positive/negative] on pregnancy and maternity?
PLGE 83

11



3.6

3.7

Yes

No

N/A

Pregnancy

Maternity

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting evidence, if any.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:

n.a.

Race

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project//Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact

[positive/negative] on the following groups?

Yes No N/A
White X
Mixed / Multiple Ethnic Groups X
Asian / Asian British X
Black / African / Caribbean / Black British X
Other Ethnic Groups X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting evidence, if any.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:

medium which would be beneficial.

for all.

The proposal would not have a differential impact upon one particular ethnic group, as the
provision would be available to all. However, an overview of statistics show that there is a
lower percentage of children from minority backgrounds that take advantage of Welsh-
medium education and it is acknowledged that if pupils are from a Welsh-speaking
background they would be able to access a greater range of services through Welsh-

The Council ensures that there is a Welsh Language Immersion Centre for pupils who need
to improve their Welsh skills before accessing a Welsh-medium school, ensuring fair access

Religion, Belief or Non-Belief

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact

[positive/negative] on people with different religions, beliefs or non-beliefs?

Yes

N/A

Buddhist

Christian

Hindu

Humanist

Jewish

X [X [X | X | X

Muslim

x

Sikh

x

Other

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting evidence, if any.

Page 84
12




3.8

3.9

3.10

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:

The proposal would not have a differential impact upon faith, as the provision would be
available to all. There are no proposals to introduce Welsh-medium faith schools because
these would be voluntary aided schools, which would not be proposed by the Council, they
would need to be proposed by the relevant Diocesan Authority.

Sex

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact
[positive/negative] on men and/or women?

Yes No N/A
Men X
Women X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting evidence, if any.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:

The proposal would not have a differential impact upon gender, as the provision would be
available to all.

Sexual Orientation

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact
[positive/negative] on the following groups?

Yes No N/A
Bisexual X
Gay Men X
Gay Women X
Heterosexual X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting evidence, if any.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:

n.a.

Language

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact
[positive/negative] on Welsh Language?

Yes No N/A
Welsh Language X
Other languages X

Please give details/consequences of the diﬁere@&@@@@nd provide supporting evidence, if any.

13



This strategy provides a strategic direction for the planning and delivery of Welsh-medium
and Welsh-language education in the authority up to the year 2020. An increase of Welsh-
medium provision resulted from proposals during the lifetime of the first Plan (2014-17).
Targets are included in the WESP 2017-2020 to improve attainment in Welsh language
qualifications and as such the WESP 2017-2020 will have a positive impact on the
development of the Welsh language.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:

Consultation and Engagement

What arrangements have been made to consult/engage with the various Equalities Groups?

Meetings and workshops held with Welsh Head teachers from May 2016 - January 2017
and meetings with the Welsh Education forum took place from June 2016 - January 2017
where opportunities for discussion and development of the WESP was a main agenda item.

There were also individual meetings held with Flying Start, Family Information Service,
Childcare Business Support, internal council departments such as Education and Economic
Development, Mudiad Meithrin, Bilingual Cardiff and the Welsh language Society.

A draft of the strategy was also sent to the Equalities Team for circulation to the chairs of all
equality networks.

Summary of Actions [Listed in the Sections above]

Groups Actions

Age

Disability

Gender Reassignment
Marriage & Civil
Partnership
Pregnancy & Maternity
Race

Religion/Belief

Sex

Sexual Orientation
Language

Generic Over-Arching The WESP 2017-2020 will have a positive impact on the
[applicable to all the development of the Welsh language.
above groups]

Further Action

Any recommendations for action that you plan to take as a result of this Equality Impact
Assessment (listed in Summary of Actions) should be included as part of your Service Area’s
Business Plan to be monitored on a regular basis.

Authorisation
The Template should be completed by the Lead Officer of the identified
Policy/Strategy/Project/Function and approved by the appropriate Manager in each Service

Area.
Page 86

14



Completed By: Angela Withey Date: February 2017

Designation: Strategic Project Manager, School
Organisation, Access & Planning

Approved By: Janine Nightingale

Designation: Head of School Organisation, Access &
Planning

Service Area: Education and Lifelong Learning

Page 87

15




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5
CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD
CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

7 March 2017

SCHOOL ADMISSION ARRANGEMENTS 2018/2019 AND CO-ORDINATED
SECONDARY SCHOOL ADMISSION ARRANGEMENTS 2018-2020 -
DRAFT CABINET REPORT

Purpose of Report

1. To provide Members with the opportunity to consider and review the Draft
Cabinet Report for School Admission Arrangements 2018/19 and co-
ordinated secondary schools admission arrangements 2018 - 2020 (copy

attached at Appendix A).

2. This report is to inform the Cabinet of responses received following

consultations on:

» the Council’s School Admission Arrangements 2018/18
» the proposed implementation of Co-ordinated Secondary School

Admission Arrangements for the period 2018-2020

Background
School Admission Arrangements 2018/19

3. The Council is required to annually review its School’s Admission Policy, to
ensure that the Council meets its statutory responsibilities. In order to
comply with the legislation, the School Admission Arrangements for
implementation in the 18/19 academic year (ie. From September 2018)

must be determined on or before 15 April 2017.

4. The Council’s draft School Admissions Policy 2018/19, (see Appendix 1),
was issued for consultation on 5 December 2016 and closed on 23
January 2017. There was minimal change to the policy for 2018/19. The

change made was as follows:

Page 89



» Clarification of the proximity measurement of pupils living in the same
building i.e. flats/apartments. In such instances, the route assessment

will be determined from the front entrance of each dwelling.
Coordinated Admission Arrangements Pilot

5. In conjunction with the consultation on the School Admission
Arrangements 2018/19, a public consultation on the proposed introduction
of co-ordinated admission arrangements for the Year 7 age group for
intakes in September 2018, September 2019 and September 2020 was
undertaken This change does not constitute a change to policy but
proposes a revised system for administering the admissions process in

conjunction with other admission authorities operating in Cardiff.

6. There are currently no formal co-ordinated admission arrangements in
Wales despite the Welsh Government recognising Cardiff has 30
Admissions Authorities (far more than any other Local Authority in Wales)
of which 23 are Primary School Governing Bodies, 6 are Secondary

School Governing Bodies and 1 is the Council.

7. At present parents, apply for secondary education places by submitting a
school admission form to the Admission Authority of their preferred school.
Any request for admission to a Faith or Foundation school must be made
directly to the Governing Body of that school. Requests for admission to

any Community school must be made to the Council.

8. Whilst parents may apply for multiple schools and inform the Council of
which community schools are their preferred option(s), they are not
required to confirm whether they have made applications to other
admission authorities nor which non-community school is their higher or
lower preference. As a result, parents could be offered more than one
school place for their child with some parents choosing to ‘hold’ offers for
more than one school, preventing other children being offered these

places.

9. As a result of this, whilst some parents receive offers for their child at
multiple schools, other parents have been unsuccessful in securing a

place at any of their school ple@@@c8€) Consequently, there is uncertainty



as to which pupils will start at which schools as the order of parental
school preferences is unclear at the time of application and some pupils

remain unallocated after the first round of allocations.

10. The aim of this proposal is to create a fairer, more equitable system of

allocating school places in Cardiff.
Previous Scrutiny

11. The Committee was previously informed of the idea of a co-ordinated
school admissions plan at its meeting on 15 March 2016. The Members
agreed to write to the Diocesan Officers to gauge their views on the
possibility of having an informal co-ordinated admissions process. The

Committee subsequently received positive responses from all three letters.
Draft Cabinet Report

12.The draft Cabinet report sets out details of the consultation, which was
been undertaken between 5 December 2016 and 23 January 2017. A total
of 47 responses were receive, however the views largely related to

Marlborough Primary School and Cardiff High School.

13. The draft Cabinet report recommends that :

¢ note that the attached Council’s draft School Admission Arrangements
2018/19 have been determined and to agree the Admission Policy
2018/19.

¢ authorise officers to consider further the Council’s school admission
oversubscription criteria including wider research to be undertaken into
alternative options and the impact of each, in advance of consultation
on the Council’s School Admissions Policy 2019/20.

¢ note that prior to consultation on the Council’s School Admissions
Policy 2019/20, a further report will be provided to the Cabinet
providing details of any proposed changes to the Council’s school

admission oversubscription criteria.

Page 91



e agree the implementation of Co-ordinated Secondary School
Admission Arrangements for the Year 7 age group intakes in
September 2018, September 2019 and September 2020.

Scope of Scrutiny
14.The scope of this scrutiny is for Members to:

o To provide the Committee with the opportunity to review and assess
the school admission arrangements, together with the pilot co-
ordinated admissions arrangements with Faith or Foundations
schools for a period of three years;

o Pass on any observations, comments or recommendations to the
Cabinet Member for Education prior to the consideration of the Draft

report by Cabinet.

Way Forward

15. Councillor Sarah Merry (Cabinet Member for Education), and Nick
Batchelar (Director of Education and Lifelong Learning), will present the
report to the Committee, and will be available to answer any questions

Members may have.

16. This report will also enable Members to provide any comments,
concerns or recommendations to the Cabinet Member prior to its

consideration by Cabinet.

Legal Implications

17.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in
this report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal
implications. However, legal implications may arise if and when the
matters under review are implemented with or without any modifications.

Any report with recommendatlggaafé)réiﬁcision that goes to Cabinet/Council



will set out any legal implications arising from those recommendations. All
decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be within the legal
powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement
imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person exercising
powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the
procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure
Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be
taken having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h)

be reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

Financial Implications

18. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. However,
financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are

implemented with or without any modifications.

RECOMMENDATIONS
The Committee is recommended to:

Review the information contained in the draft Cabinet Report, attached at
Appendix A, together with information provided at the meeting and provide
any recommendations, comments or advice to the Cabinet Member and / or
Director of Education and Lifelong Learning prior to the report’s consideration
by Cabinet.

Davina Fiore
Director of Governance and Legal Services and Monitoring Officer
1 March 2017

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

THIS REPORT MUST BE ACCOMPANIED BY THE
REPORT AUTHORISATION FORM 4.C.214

CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL
CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD

CABINET MEETING: 16 March 2017

SCHOOL ADMISSION ARRANGEMENTS 2018/2019 AND CO-

ORDINATED SECONDARY SCHO ADMISSION
ARRANGEMENTS 2018-2020
REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF EDUCAT

A A ITEM: 11

O

PORTFOLIO: EDUCATION (COUNCILL HXERRY)

Reason for this Report

1.
2.

Agmission Aryalhgements for the period 2018-2020
Background

School AdmissioRArrangements 2018/19

3. In order to comply with the legislation above, School Admission
Arrangements for implementation in the 18/19 academic year (i.e. From
September 2018) must be determined on or before 15 April 2017.

4. The Education (Determination of Admission Arrangements) (Wales)
Regulations 2006 and the School Admissions Code set out the
procedure which admission authorities should follow when determining
their admission arrangements, including that proper consultation must be
carried out and that the arrangements should be determined by 15" April
in the school year beginning two years before the school year which the
arrangements will be for. The reason for this is to give all stakeholders

Page 95 Page 1 of 35


c067985
Typewriter
Appendix A


the opportunity to comment fully in the consultation and then for parents
to have certainty from the 15" April in making their arrangements for their
child’s education. If the Council does not carry out appropriate
consultation and/or delays the determination of the admission
arrangements there is a possibility that a legal challenge by way of
judicial review could be brought. The Council also has to show that the
admissions arrangements are lawful, in that they comply with all relevant
legislation and School Admissions Code, in response to each appeal
brought before the Independent School Admissions Appeal Panel. If the
Council cannot show that the arrangements are lawful and that a pupil
has been affected by the failing, then an appeal will be successful,
meaning that the pupil has to be admitted to an already full school. As
the Council has approximately 500 appeals per year, if a large number
are successful because the admission arrangeménts are considered to

high standards of education.
5. The Council’s draft School Admi [ see\Appendix 1)
was issued for consultation on Q ’ slosed on 23
January 2017.

was as follows:

e Clarificatio
building

In stch instances, the route
{ned from the front entrance of each

Pilot

the consultation on the School Admission
a public consultation on the proposed

en (a copy of the consultatlon document can be seen
./’ This change does not constitute a change to policy but
proposes aXegvised system for administering the admissions process in
conjunction with other admission authorities operating in Cardiff.

8. Co-ordinated admission arrangements were introduced in England under
the terms of the School Admissions (Co-ordination of Admission
Arrangements) (England) Regulations 2007.

9. There are currently no formal co-ordinated admission arrangements in
Wales despite the Welsh Government recognising Cardiff has 30
Admissions Authorities (far more than any other Local Authority in
Wales) of which 23 are Primary School Governing Bodies, 6 are
Secondary School Governing Bodies and 1 is the Council.

Page 96 Page 2 of 35



10.

11.

12.

13.

16.

At present parents apply for secondary education places by submitting a
school admission form to the Admission Authority of their preferred
school. Any request for admission to a Faith or Foundation school must
be made directly to the Governing Body of that school. Requests for
admission to any Community school must be made to the Council.

Whilst parents may apply for multiple schools and inform the Council of
which community schools are their preferred option(s), they are not
required to confirm whether they have made applications to other
admission authorities nor which non-community school is their higher or
lower preference. As a result, parents could be offered more than one
school place for their child with some parents choosing to ‘hold’ offers for
more than one school, preventing other children being offered these
places.

As a result of this, whilst some parents re offers for their child at

of application and some pupils rema
allocations.

Diocesan Directors,

G (Headtegchers, = Governing Bodies,
neigkbduring Logal |Education Authorities).

Additiona e/Policy was published on the Council website which
provided the/opportunity for parents and other interested parties to
comment. Responses were requested to be returned by 23 January
2017.

Responses received regarding the policy during the consultation period

17.

18.

In total 47 responses were received, including a response from the
Governing Body of Marlborough Primary School and a joint response
from the Local Members for Penylan.

The views expressed were largely related to the Marlborough Primary

School catchment area and demand for places/ oversubscription at
Cardiff High School.

Page 97 Page 3 of 35



19. The points of view received as part of the consultation are set out in
italics below and have been grouped according to the issues raised
where appropriate. The Council’'s response to each point can be seen
underneath, under the heading “Appraisal of views expressed.”

Marlborough Primary School Governing Body response

20. A response from the Marlborough Primary School Governing Body
included the following points (a copy of the full response can be seen at
Appendix 3):

21. Following a meeting with parents, the Governing Body are concerned
that the current oversubscription criteria unfairly penalises families
resident in the primary school catchment by virtue of their
geographic distance to Cardiff High School A compared with the
other three primary schools.

22.

23. The Governing Body also expre

proposed school admissioR

Appraisal of views expréssed

24,

25.

26.

gynment’s School Admissions Code 2.63, which refers to
feeder primary schools and states that if Admission Authorities use this
criterion, to do so with caution, as such arrangements can unduly
disadvantage children who move into an area at a late stage and should
consider the impact that such arrangements have on the ability of a
school to serve its local area. The same caution and potential
disadvantage would apply to a “length of catchment area residence”
criterion.

27. Under Section 19 of The Equality Act 2010, indirect discrimination is
prohibited and under Section 85 discrimination in relation to School
Admissions is also prohibited. The Council is also bound by the Public
Sector Equality Duty in all of its decisions. A “length of catchment area

Page 98 Page 4 of 35



residence” criterion is an example of a potentially indirect discrimination
as those who would be disadvantaged by this criterion are more likely to
come from vulnerable social groups with protected characteristics; for
example, Gypsy and Traveller children, Asylum Seekers/Refugees and
some other Foreign pupils.

28. The Welsh Government’s School Admissions Code regarding prohibition
of undesirable oversubscription criteria, 2.29 states: “In setting
oversubscription criteria admission authorities must not: Expressly
exclude applicants from a particular social or religious group.” In relation
to Gypsy and Traveller children, the Welsh Government’s School
Admissions Code 3.26 states that “Arrangements must be in place for
Gypsy and Traveller children to be registered quickly at a school whether
residing permanently or temporarily in the apga) Guidance on best
practice in relation to access to education for group of learners can
be found in Welsh Assembly Governme \lar 003/2008 ‘Moving
Forward - Gypsy Traveller Education”.

29. The proposed change to oversubg€ription criteria being proposed by
fi S School is

clearly in response to oversubscryti dardi [ ohool. The
Council, as the Admissions AuthontyNog/all-Community schools within
Cardiff, must consider the entire Sardf area and impact on the
population therein. The Js¢ distance Yetween home and school is as
g issions Code (2.48) “a

ond is useful as a tie-

e annual round of applications has
gants for the 2016-17 academic year,

inated against by the implementation of a “length
gnce” criterion:

o 26% of (61) pupils have moved address within the Cardiff county
boundary.

31. Therefore, potentially, (127) 54% of all In-Year in-catchment area
applicants for the 2016-17 academic year thus far, would have been
adversely affected by the implementation of this criterion. In terms of
which of these applicants may claim to have been indirectly discriminated
in relation to a protected characteristic (as per the Equality Act 2010),
please see information below:

e Religion - the cohort most differentially impacted would have been
those of the Islamic faith (35%) [39 pupils].

Page 99 Page 5 of 35



¢ Race - the cohort most differentially impacted would have been White
British (35%) [39 pupils]. While the second most differentially
impacted cohort would have been Arabic (13%) [14 pupils].

32. Given the potential for indirect discrimination under a “length of
catchment area residence” criterion, it is not recommended for inclusion
within the Council’s School Admissions Policy.

33. Inclusion of such a criterion would require a ‘cut-off point to be
established i.e. satisfactory evidence of residency over a set period,
would be required. This would impose upon applicants a requirement to

retain and present original documentation over an extended period such

as the entirety of a child’s primary phase education in order to prove
longevity of residence, which many parents have difficulty with.

Such a criterion would disadvantage parents "have lived within the

are unable to produce

draft School
“length of

34.

35. Y icyR018/19 was consulted on

36. i ere minimal changes to the Council’s

ulted with on proposed school admission
er the policy was published on the Council website

37. sed itroduction of co-ordinated admission arrangements is a
significant ckange and parents were advised of the consultation in order
to ensure awareness of the proposed change.

Local Members’ response

38. A joint response from the Penylan Councillors (Clir Joe Boyle, Clir Tricia
Burfoot and CliIr Bill Kelloway), included the following points (a copy of
the full response can be seen at Appendix 3):

39. The current system of allocation of places on the basis of proximity as a
tie-breaker in the case of over-subscription is unfair. The use of
proximity relies on one arbitrary measure, enshrines unfairness and is
open to abuse.

Page 100 Page 6 of 35



40. The consultation on co-ordinated admissions makes reference to the
need for a fairer, more equitable system of allocating school places in
Cardiff without impacting on the community. This is an
acknowledgement the Council needs to deal with broader problems
within the current process, with the proximity criteria being the most
glaring example of how unfairness is built into the system.

41.  As set out in the WG Admission Code, admissions must not be based on
criteria that are 'arbitrary in nature’. We would argue that distance
(proximity to school) is an arbitrary measure and certainly not more or
less arbitrary than another fundamental measure, namely time (length of
residence). Para 2.29 of the Code makes no mention of time nor for that
matter distance. To give preference to one over the other is therefore an
arbitrary decision. Paras 2.48 - 2.5 of the code g6ujd easily be rewritten
as 'length of residence in a catchment areg a clear and objective
oversubscription criteria and is useful as z tige-breaker' as opposed to

42.  We suggest the council rewrites the/aol€y and includs either a length of
residence in a catchment area crjteriz breaker (see

f anyl does not

fr admissions policy. We
that could help remove

meet the council's own stated ains
believe we have prese
unfairness from the admi§

Appraisal of views expressed

43.

OtheiNgesponses recel

Length of residency criteri

45.  Of the 4Nresporses received, the majority asked for length of residency
within the high school catchment area criterion ahead of ‘proximity’ to be
included in the policy albeit that several recognised that this may not be
possible for 2018/19.

46. The views expressed included the following.

47. The current use of proximity as a criteria has resulted in a number of
families taking up temporary residence (“parachuting into”) in the Cardiff
High School catchment area in order to secure a place at the school.
This is to the detriment of those children living within the Marlborough
Primary School catchment area who have been resident within the high
school catchment area over a longer period.

Page 101 Page 7 of 35



48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

Evidence from the Council EMS One Live Database (07 December 2016
Pupils in Each Year Group at CHS who are resident in CHS catchment
area), provides evidence that on the basis that the Cardiff High intake
was 240, 10 families moved out before their child started at CHS and
during the Year 7 a further 31 left the catchment area giving a total of 41.

Year Pupils in Catchment Area
7 230

8 199

9 192

10 200

The numbers are significant and clearly correlate to parachuting in and
out practice to close proximity to Cardiff High/Sshool by those with
means from outside the Cardiff High School ¢ ment area. The data
for years 8,9,10 also helpfully show typical x Al movement in and out
in each year show
the actual numbers at Cardiff High Sche stically lower than the

The present admissions system 1§ nNqt fi ; isgdvantages
children living in Penylan as they {
than those who attend

where the s¢hool is oversubscribed, they would have some choices. If
viable, they could remain at their original school; they could go on the
waiting list for their catchment school and wait to be offered a place. The
proposed longevity criteria would actually serve this family better as the
current policy would mean that this family may be living in the area and
on the waiting list for longer while another family could move in closer
and be offered a place sooner.

It has been suggested that the introduction of a longevity criteria would
impact on families moving in however the number of such families are
small in number (‘miniscule’) when compared to the huge number of
families who are now in limbo wondering whether their child will securing
a place at the catchment high school.

Page 102 Page 8 of 35



55. There is likely to be a positive impact on other communities beyond
Marlborough/CHS catchment areas by employing length of residence
criteria.

Appraisal of views expressed

56. The number of pupils in the current Year 7 age group at Cardiff High
School that have been resident in the Cardiff High School catchment for
3 years and over is 86% and 77% for 5 years and over.

57. This compares with an average for all Cardiff Community English-
Medium Secondary (CEMS) Schools of pupils that have been resident in
their respective catchments for 3 years and over of 85% and 76% for 5
years and over.

58.  Therefore, this does not suggest that the High School catchment

59. admission
psidents in

60. , ils i q who have been resident in
\ 3 less than 1 year is 1.36%

61. ] ifi 3 fment in the EMS One Live

ed on a~Statement of Special Educational Needs.
Rat these pupils are admitted and given the highest

62. pils are parachutlng into the Cardlff ngh School

63. e numbers of pupils in older curriculum years, it is
misleading Y¢”Interpret the differential between numbers on roll (NOR)
and the number of pupils attending Cardiff High School from within
catchment, as an indication of adoption of transient addresses of

convenience.

64. Historically, Cardiff High School has been able to accommodate all of the
demand for places from within its catchment area and additionally
provide places (based on the published admission criteria), for some out-
of-catchment area pupils.

65. The number of pupils admitted to Cardiff High School based on the
catchment area criterion who are currently on roll at Cardiff High School

Page 103 Page 9 of 35



for curriculum Years 7-11 who are no longer living within the school
catchment area averages 10 per year.

66.  With reference to the recent oversubscription from within the Cardiff High
School catchment area, it should be noted that being resident within a
catchment area is neither an eligibility requirement, or a guarantee of a
place at any school. There are sufficient places available within the
secondary school sector in Cardiff with some pupils who were refused
admission into Year 7 at Cardiff High School from September 2016, who
were resident in the catchment areas of Cardiff High School and
Marlborough Primary School, residing in closer proximity to Cathays High
School and/or Willows High School.

p7 December 2016
within the Cardiff High
e tqtal number of pupils in

67. The EMS One Live Database information frgr
referred to relates to the number of pupils fro
catchment area attending the school and not
each individual group.

68. The suggestion regarding the incl

Timescales
69. If changes to the poli
implemented for the 18/1%
19/20.

Appraisal of view e

70. AsS set ou

taragraph 33, the iNclysion of such a criterion as ‘length of
catchmen i i

e sidence g draft School Admissions Policy
rgRifieant change and would require further
ould not be possible within the timeframe for

71. ' tion including wider research into the oversubscription

2019/20 poliey.

Cardiff High School

72.  The Council was aware of increased demand for Cardiff High School and
committed to addressing this but have failed to do so. Increased intakes
at three of the four partner primary schools will impact further on pupils
ability to access a place at the school.

73.  Over time the pupils from community primary schools closer to Cardiff

High School than Marlborough Primary School will start to find
themselves locked out of places there.

Page 104 Page 10 of 35



Appraisal of views expressed

74. The Council has been aware of the increased numbers of pupils from
within the Cardiff High School catchment area primary schools’, however
it is the case that there are sufficient school places within the secondary
school sector in Cardiff. Those pupils who were refused admission to
Cardiff High School from September 2016, who are resident in the
catchment areas of Cardiff High School and Marlborough Primary
School, reside in closer proximity to Cathays High School and / or
Willows High School.

75. As part of the process for the planning of school places, the Council
continually reviews secondary school capacity and the evolving need for
places. Proposals will be brought forward to eaSure there is sufficient
capacity to meet the demand for English-ppeédidm secondary school
places from within the Cardiff High Schog ent area. However,
the current demand for English-mediux an be met within
existing school provision, as suffi€ie are available in
neighbouring, and in some cases mg

76.  As set out in the resolution at theNCot
issue of school places across the ci ddressed (via appropriate
consultation) by expandi isti Ision, the building of new schools

77. This curre
Marlboroug

whether” children resident in the
ment area is causing a detrimental

: tel_will break up peer groups. There is
Rat sustaining peer groups is an important source of
therefore academic development (NFER 2006,
Foundation 2005, Pratt and George 2005).

78.
yen in terms of admissions to Cardiff High School but
1 at a disadvantage when applying for a non-catchment
IS a real risk children will be allocated whatever is left after
everyone else has been accommodated, potentially at some
considerable distance from their home and community.

79.  This uncertainty is impacting on community cohesion. Children who
have lived their whole lives within the local community are being denied
places at Cardiff High School which is neither fair nor consistent with the
goal of creating sustainable communities as per Local Development
Plans.

80. Families will not want to live in Penylan and the reputation of
Marlborough Primary School will suffer.

Page 105 Page 11 of 35



Appraisal of views expressed

81.

82.

83.

84.

85.

It is acknowledged that there is research such as the study of 30 children
conducted by Pratt and George (2005) which highlights the impact of
social networks in supporting transition. There is also a wide and varied
wealth of research including other reports cited by the respondent, which
show that there are a number of factors that have equal or greater
importance in terms of supporting effective transition from primary to
secondary education.

Other research (Weller, S. 2006), suggests that acquaintances from the
peer group can also provide the required familiarity when starting in
secondary education and could function well as transitional support

Marlborough Primary
School, it is not expected that children need to transfer to an

alternate secondary school alone and

found to be more frequent 2
than children i

fully suppQr

eAntegration of all pupils into their new surroundings.

The admissions criteria is predicated on a geographical basis giving
priority to those living within a school catchment area and also
considering proximity of school to home address. This seeks to maintain
where possible children attending a local school.

Travel arrangements

86.

The practice of families moving in to the Cardiff High catchment area on
a temporary basis in order to secure a place at the school results in
children travelling across the city to get to schools outside their
catchment areas.

Page 106 Page 12 of 35



Appraisal of views expressed

87.  The suggestion that families are moving into the Cardiff High Catchment
area on a temporary basis in order to secure a place at the school is
addressed at paragraphs 56 - 67.

88. The number of pupils admitted to Cardiff High School based on
catchment criteria who are currently on roll at Cardiff High School for
curriculum years 7-11, who are no longer living within the school
catchment area averages 10 per year. It is not expected that the number
of out-of-catchment pupils attending the school are likely to have a
significant impact on the transport network.

Three Year Pilot

ASa

89. As with the co-ordinated admissions prop
‘length of residency’ criteria could be const

8 three year pilot of a
ed tQ eqable a review.

Appraisal of views expressed

90. The suggested introduction of a addlressed at

paragraphs 24 - 34.

esidency’ is

Sibling Criteria

91.

93.

arrangememts”based upon aptitude. The Council believes sixth forms
are best placed to manage the planning for and delivery of the range of
subject options available at Further Education level.

94. If the Council were minded to consider a change to its draft School
Admissions Policy 2018/19, to include a ‘sixth form sibling’ criterion, this
would constitute a significant change which would require further
consultation, which would not be possible within the timeframe for
consideration of the 2018-19 school admission arrangements.

Page 107 Page 13 of 35



Residency within catchment

95.

There are insufficient checks to ensure residency within catchment. The
admissions criteria should be amended to state that documentary
evidence must be provided.

Appraisal of views expressed

96.

97.

98.

99.

100.

101.

102.

Documentary evidence of residency is not routinely sought i.e. in respect
of preferences for schools which are undersubscribed (where the number
of applications is fewer that the number of places available).

Where parental preferences for a school exceed the number of places

of information. If there is a
the Council and information
3 around the validity of this
arried out and additional

of a frauduylényor intentionally misleading application from a parent or
young persovt (for example, a false claim to residence in a catchment
area) which effectively denied a place to a child with a stronger claim.”

Every effort is made to determine residency within the catchment area for
oversubscribed schools prior to offers being made. However should the
Council receive evidence of fraudulent information having been provided
to gain a place at a school to which the pupil would not have been
entitled, the place will be withdrawn. This was the case during the
second round of allocations to Cardiff High School for admission to the
Year 7 age group in September 2016, when a place was withdrawn and
reallocated to a child who would have been allocated the place in the first
round of allocations.

Page 108 Page 14 of 35



Prioritising pupils from English-medium community primary schools for places at
Caurdiff High School

103. A number of parents who chose Welsh-medium or Faith primary school
education are choosing to switch to English-medium community
secondary which makes it very difficult for the Council to plan places for
the four English-medium community primary schools within the Cardiff
High catchment. An alternative to a length criteria would be to prioritise
continuity of education for those who have chosen English-medium
community primary school with the same being true for those who chose
Welsh-medium or Faith based education.

104. There are no other catchment options available to Marlborough pupils as
they don’t speak Welsh. The policy is potentig iscriminating white,
non-religious pupils i.e. if a pupil has attended grigrary religious or Welsh
schools, these should be offered as their ghoice in the event of

Appraisal of views expressed

105. W.ithin the maintained education tor in Cafdijf, types of pol include
English-medium Community; Foundationy Bgman Catholic; Church-in-
Wales and Welsh-mediysm_Communit any point during a child’s

3 S ce for the type of education

106. As per the ‘ \th Pawb: A National Action Plan for a
Bilingual W i
a country

pse to live their lives through the
QrEnglish and where the presence of the
Qurce of pride and strength to us all,” parents of all

107. Ovex the last fiye Jintakes into Year 7 in September, only 9% of all
childrer
schools haveé bhéen admitted into a non-religious secondary school in
Cardiff. Simiafly, over the last five intakes into Year 7 in September, less
than 9% of all children from Cardiff's Welsh-medium primary schools
have been admitted into an English-medium secondary school in Cardiff.

108. As set out in the Welsh Government's School Admissions Code (E.10),
‘the Human Rights Act 1998 confers a right of access to education. This
does not extend to securing a place at a particular school. Admission
Authorities, however, do need to consider parents reasons for expressing
a preference when they make decisions about the allocation of school
places, to take account of the rights of parents under the Act, though this
may not necessarily result in the allocation of a place’.

Page 109 Page 15 of 35



109. The Council cannot implement priority based criteria with respect to an
applicant’s religious or non-religious background or preference for
medium of education as to do so would introduce an unlawful
discrimination against those with the opposing characteristics (as per the
Equality Act 2010). While this applies to the determining of admissions
criteria for English-Medium and Welsh-Medium Community Schools, an
exception applies under Welsh Government’s School Admissions Code
2.29 which states: “In setting oversubscription criteria admission
authorities must not: Give priority to children based on religious faith
except where the school has been designated as having a religious
character (Equality Act 2010).” Thus, it is only the Admission Authorities
of faith-based schools, which may choose to prioritise the admission of
children on religious faith.

Consideration should be given to proximity of a centrm@

110. Consideration should be given to proxi toNa central point in the
catchment area and/or length of attepdaycCe at on the four primary

111. /i criterion that is measured to

ool (such as from a central

112. 3 Admissions Code 2.48 states that
4 is a clear and objective

Appraisal of views expressed

114. The school appeals process is independent of the Council’s process for
admissions to schools.

115. The Appeals process in Cardiff is transparent and complies with the
Welsh Government’'s School Admissions Appeals Code, which sets out
the legal tests which the Independent School Admissions Appeals Panel
applies when considering appeals. The process itself involves 3
independent panel members hearing directly from parents about their
family’s personal circumstances for each appeal and a legal adviser
(Clerk to the Panel) is always present throughout. The Panel recently

Page 110 Page 16 of 35



updated its FAQs which are sent to every appellant to try to assist
parents with the process; this included details of common grounds put
forward by other parents, however as each appeal is individual it is not
possible to give a “success criteria.”

116. The City of Cardiff Council is fortunate to have almost 20 independent
panel members who receive regular training about the legal tests they
have to apply and they are very experienced in determining whether an
appeal is successful or not. They also provide a view entirely
independent of the Council and use their own judgement in applying the
principles of natural justice when considering appeals. Parents have the
right to complain to the Public Services Ombudsman if they are unhappy
with the Appeals process and despite the City of Cardiff Council
facilitating almost 1500 appeals in the last full school years
(2013/14 to 2015/16), no complaints were uphéld By the Public Services
Ombudsman regarding the Appeals process«

Clearer quidance on medical and social compefing groun

117. There needs to be clearer guidange as to what would coQstitute medical
and social compelling grounds.

Appraisal of views expressed

118. NPPRQIMTIRG |nfo ation are assessed on an
criterion “Pupll ' ’ uNCil judges that there are

compelling social grounds for their
admissio where there is a clear written

Fee

1109. ncil is creating a property bubble which can be averted by de-

those living in the catchment area and attending a
partner pri school will be given priority over others living in the
catchment area or a test of the child’s length of residency in the
catchment area.

Appraisal of views expressed

120. The suggestion introduction of a ‘feeder school’ system/length of
residency’ is addressed at paragraphs 24-34.

Sixth Form Provision

121. s there a possibility of bringing sixth from applications into the Council so
that numbers can be capped, tracked, managed in a similar way to that

Page 111 Page 17 of 35



that is being proposed under co-ordinated admission arrangement to
help with post 16 education planning city wide.

Appraisal of views expressed

122. The suggestion relating to sixth form provision is addressed at
paragraphs 92 — 94.

Alternative Options

123. It does not follow that a reasonable alternative would be to change the
Marlborough Primary School catchment secondary school as some
council members have suggested. Any such review would surely need
to consider the alternative secondary schools fo areas in the current
Cardiff High School catchment: Roath Park’s e ment is, for example,
relatively close to Cathays High School.

124. Given the pressure on places, cor
establishing an all through 3-16 schd
appropriate site sizes being availa®

geration ould be given to
6n the Howardjan, site subject to

Appraisal of views expressed

125. i ol place planning across the

126. ity i Qking at needs across the city relating
s, which includes considering the
and  Welsh-medium primary school

jght forward would be subject to full public

Catchment area arrangements

128. ConsideMould be given to removing areas of dual catchments
which seem to benefit those living in those particular areas above others.

Appraisal of views expressed

129. All secondary school-aged pupils resident in Cardiff live in the catchment
area of one English-medium secondary school and one Welsh-medium
secondary school.

130. The majority of primary school-aged pupils resident in Cardiff live in the

catchment area of one English-medium primary school and one Welsh-
medium secondary school, with the following exceptions:

Page 112 Page 18 of 35



e Shared English-medium primary catchment area arrangements were
implemented in Llanishen, Lisvane and Thornhill, as part of a
reorganisation of provision, to alleviate localised concerns raised by
stakeholders including Schools, Governors and Parents within the
area.

e A longstanding shared English-medium primary catchment area
arrangement exists in Canton. Consultation on changes to catchment
areas, including removing the shared arrangement, took place in
2016 but in response to concerns raised by stakeholders including
Schools, Governors and Parents within the area, the existing
arrangements were retained.

Cardiff, where some
English-medium and

e Dual stream schools serve parts of north we
addresses are served by a single school fg
Welsh-Medium provision.

131. There are no current proposals to améng these ca
proposed changes to catchment a«egg” would be sul
consultation.

ent areas. Any
st to full public

Support for schools

132. Consideration should bg “given_to aIIo g additional resources to
support schools that rece ; or at least increase the
promotion of what school s can make informed

Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

135. The Wellbeing for Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires the
Council to take into account the interests of children and young people.
The current policy is at odds with this.

Appraisal of views expressed

136. The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires public
bodies to make sure their decisions take into account the impact they
could have on people living in Wales in the future. The Council has done
so in relation to its proposed school admission arrangements. All

Page 113 Page 19 of 35



Admission Authorities in Wales are legally bound to Section 84 of the
School Standards and Framework Act (1998) (the Welsh Government’s
School Admissions Code) and the Council has also complied with that
legislation. Account is also taken of the Council responsibility to provide
and promote high standards of Education under the Education act 1996.

Waiting Lists

137. In the event of parents accepting a lower preference school, will pupils
stay on the waiting list for their higher ranked school?

Appraisal of views expressed

seference has been
withdrawn. Where a
the applicant will
their higher school

138. In circumstances where an applicant’s highe
offered, lower preferences will be automaticé
second or lower preference has been

preference(s). Unless a parent choosé [ ; eir child from a
waiting list or a waiting list has reaché o\earlier than 30
September in relation to the normé per the Welsh
Government’s School Admission an only be

proposed Co-ordinated
he period 2018-2020

Summary of the Consultai
Secondary School Admission A

139.

140.

141

access the Consultation Document online (a copy of the
letter can be seen at Appendix 4);

e Six public drop-in sessions where officers were available to answer
guestions;

e A consultation response slip for return by post or e-mail, attached to
the Consultation Document;

e An online response form at
www.cardiff.gov.uk/admissionarrangements

142. The views expressed at Council organised drop-in sessions and received
on paper or electronically through the appropriate channels, have been
recorded.

Page 114 Page 20 of 35


http://www.cardiff.gov.uk/admissionarrangements

Responses received regarding the proposed introduction of co-ordinated
admission arrangements during the consultation period

143. In total 149 responses were received. The majority view expressed at
drop-in sessions and in written correspondence was one of support for
the proposed implementation of a co-ordinated secondary school
admissions process for the Year 7 age group intakes.

144. Formal responses were received from the six Admission Authorities with
responsibility for admissions to secondary provision within Cardiff: St
Teilo’'s CW High School, Bishop of Llandaff CW, St llityd’s Catholic High
School, Corpus Christi RC High School, Mary Immaculate High School,
Whitchurch High School,

gommunity schools for
Qrity. These included,:

145. Responses were also received from a humbe
whom the Local Authority if the Admission A
Radyr Comprehensive School, ,
School, Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Plasms pringwood Primary
School.

146. A joint response was submitted by tR enylan.
147. The points of view recei

grouped Nacesording to the issues raised
' 0 each point can be seen

150. The Council acknowledges the view expressed.

Bishop of Llandaff CW High School

151. A response from the Bishop of Llandaff High School included the
following points (a copy of the full response can be seen at Appendix 4).

152. It is the governors’ view that the proposed admissions process will add
another level to a process that is unnecessary for the school. There are
processes in place for the admissions to the school that are effectively
managed. The governors understand the complications around the

Page 115 Page 21 of 35



admissions process but at present do not feel the new format would be
beneficial.

153. On page 5 it states that the local authority already has an online system
for applications but you will be aware that The Bishop of Llandaff High
School does not. Consequently, it is a bigger step for the school thanit
would be for many others to change to the co-ordinated online system.
Would there be a shared online system? Who would maintain the system
and who would pick up the cost?

154. It is difficult to follow the logic on page 7 that more pupils would be
offered their preferred school as a consequence of the co-ordinated
system. The school is limited in the number of Foundation and
Community places it can offer which cannot be affected by the
application system. Similarly, knowing whic dren will be admitted
does not assist the school to plan its budgeti\class organisation or
staffing arrangements.

increase the
is proposal

155. As for resources, ranking all applica
workload of the admissions staf
would result in fewer appeals as
unsuccessful applicants due to th
application, as acknow section on Transport which
recognises there is no change i the supply sf school places.

would significq
also not clear

156.

g prefererice is for the pilot to be
onsider the situation again once the
gem have been ironed out.

St llityd’s Catho

158. A respOMSt llityd’s Catholic High School included the following
points (a copy of the full response can be seen at Appendix 4).

159. St llityd's would like to be part of this admission pilot scheme.

Appraisal of views expressed

160. The Council acknowledges the view expressed.

Corpus Christi RC High School

161. A response from Corpus Christi High School included the following points
(a copy of the full response can be seen at Appendix 4).

Page 116 Page 22 of 35



162.

In the interests of trying to make the whole system fairer for everybody
concerned, the decision has been made to support the pilot. It was also
agreed, however, that if the new system does not work well, Governors
will reassess the situation when discussing the school's Admissions
Policy before the end of the pilot.

Appraisal of views expressed

163.

The Council acknowledges the views expressed.

Mary Immaculate High School

164.

165.

166.

167.

168.

A response from Mary Immaculate High Schog luded the following

opportunity has meant this is
beginning to the situation;

A three year trial period
such length because o
assessment of progress.

and time-limite

hat ‘192 parents are holding 205 places’; we felt
rther explanation — for example could this be

. P.7 ~what'eyidence can you cite to support the comment ‘Children
would hayve“a better experience and more effective start to school”? If
parents are unhappy with the current system, can you please outline
the number and type of complaints you have received?

c. What would happen if a pupil were noted as a category 1 entrant in
multiple schools — who would define where they would go? When
and how would the successful school be notified? We feel it would be
necessary to have a transparent approach so that schools could see
where they were ranked by parents.

d. Where is parental choice if they are only offered one option? (p.8)
How could you be sure that they would be offered their preferred
school — what data can you use to support this assumption?

Page 117 Page 23 of 35



e. What would happen if a parent only expressed a choice for one
school and no other? What would then happen if they did not gain
admission to that school?

f. You say that continuing the current system would lead to an increase
in inequality; at our school the number of appeals has reduced (even
though the number of unsuccessful applications has remained the
same) as our systems have become more efficient in supporting
parents.

g. What would happen if parents filled in the common form but did not fill
in the school form? What does the common form look like (we should
have sight of this prior to any decision), how does it operate and is
the ICT system sufficiently robust to cope with this demand. Can
parents only choose a VA school?

h. If you say ‘there is little or no effect on the

hers on roll’ (p.8), what

do you presume the effect would be — % evidence?
I. How would the system be affected Rils from another
borough?
169. These are key points that wou prior to the

Governors allowing Mary Immaculate
We do feel that there A&

fiicipate in any new system.
knowns and too many un-
decision. We certainly feel

there needs to be a narrowe Bse assumptions could be
tested.

170. The points yaise ponded to and currently waiting on a
final decigfo i

Appraisal of views e

WhitchGrel High“Scheol

ves the rights of parents to apply to more than one
admissiom\authority and thereby affects the rights of children. The
consultationdocument does not make this clear and whilst the majority of
parents already know which school they wish to apply to, there are
parents and children who do not know in the Autumn Term which school
their child is going to want/need in the following autumn. In particular
families who may wish to change the nature of the school involve e.g
currently in a Welsh-medium school but the family and child need to
decide whether this is still the best option for secondary school; move to
faith education in the secondary sector, etc. Such families are not
catered for in a system asking them to list three school choices.

173. The governors concern is that the proposal seem to have lost sight of the
needs of certain children and is focused upon making the admission
process easier for admission authorities.

Page 118 Page 24 of 35



174. The on-line consultation response form lack relevance. It would have
been useful to have targeted parents of Years 3, 4 & 5 in primary
schools, those who would take part in the pilot scheme as there is no
way of knowing whether any of the respondents have children in these
year groups and likely to be affected.

175. Many of the authority’s challenges around admission appeals are due to
planning of school places issues (there are insufficient places for pupils
in the right areas of Cardiff). Coming together as a shared admission
service will not solve this and although the authority has indicated its
strategic plans to enhance secondary school places in the East and West
of the City these are unlikely to be in place for 2018 so that appeal are
likely to be at current levels, if not greater.

176. The governors would have liked to cons \ith their parents and

this.
177. The governors are concerned tha yment indicates
that the governing body would be hree year

period. As the school is an Admi ority it is felt that the local
authority cannot remove by any written contract nor
would the govering body\requ 3 | of Officers of the authority
to carry out such functions. xWould be happy to sign an

178. It is uncl
school a
admission
arrange

Ap aimp

document whether the co-ordinated
proceed if some of the secondary
p to the co-ordinated admission

ave been responded to and currently waiting on a
he Governing Body. *MDH meeting with school on

Community Schools’tesponses

180. The responses received from community schools indicated support for
the proposal and included the following points:

181. The proposal would make things a lot easier for schools and remove the
fears that some parents have with other children holding more than one
place.

182. For Cathays High School who admit pupils from all over the city and from
a large number of primary schools we currently suffer from the situation
where parents apply to us for places and to other secondary schools,
therefore our admission number in March is never the same as the pupils

Page 119 Page 25 of 35



that turn up in September. The new arrangements will mean that we can
use the list that is supplied in March and can plan accordingly.

183. Fitzalan High School have struggled for many years to seek a
coordinated approach and so this new proposal would go a long way to
achieving this. At present we have to request from parents via our close
links with primary schools as to which school they wish to take up and
even then this often turns out not to be the case in September.

184. Fitzalan High School does however still have a concern across different
authorities as the number of our cluster pupils who hold places in the
Vale will still continue. The major concern that we still have is that our
cluster is still too large. Even with increasing our pupil numbers to 300

185. Fitzalan High School also believe that

speak English and do not have an
internet at home. The new Hup
challenging this year and so aR
mindful off this.
186. issions Officers this year to
be_ pilot or consult on the

187. Smawr approve the proposal to co-

ons for the Year 7 age group.

188.

189. The HeadtsaCher of Springwood Primary indicated support for the
proposal.

Appraisal of views expressed

190. The Council acknowledges the views expressed.
Local Members’ response
191. A joint response from the Penylan Councillors (Cllr Joe Boyle, Clir Bill

Kelloway and ClIr Tricia Burfoot) included the following points (a copy of
the full response can be seen at Appendix 4).

Page 120 Page 26 of 35



192. We are writing as elected members for Penylan, to support the council’s
proposal for co-ordinated secondary admissions. They may reduce
some of the pressure being faced by many residents in our ward in their
efforts to secure a place for their children at their catchment school,
Cardiff High

193. We are confident the proposals will not have an adverse impact on any
one particular group and therefore do not fall foul of any equality
requirements.

194. Many children in Penylan still look likely to miss out on a place at their
catchment school and Penylan residents need a longer term solution
particularly as greater numbers come through the system.

Appraisal of views expressed

195. The Council acknowledges the view expr

196. The points raised around deman
please see paragraphs 7 — 76.

foy” places at High School

Other responses received

197. Concerns surrounding c@@h&the cur dmission process to pilot a

co-ordinated secondary séthI\adﬁTissions\sy%n

198.

199.

200

201.

Appraisal of viewsexpressed

202. As set out in the Consultation Document (pages 6 & 7), the Council
believes the current system is inefficient as some parents applying for
their child’s admission to secondary education have been offered places
at multiple schools, whilst other parents have been unsuccessful in
securing their child a place at any one of their school preferences.

203. Based on the initial allocation for transfer into Year 7 from September
2016, a total of 192 children were holding a total of 397 places. That
means 192 families were holding 205 places they were not planning to
take up and preventing their allocation to others. At the same time 360
other children received no school place offer.

Page 121 Page 27 of 35



204.

205.

206.

Therefore, many families missed out on their higher school preference(s)
or received no school place offer at all for their child.

Some parents choose to ‘hold’ offers for more than one school,
preventing other children being offered these places, which causes
undue stress upon families but also difficulties for both primary and
secondary schools planning for the children’s transition.

A co-ordinated secondary school admission arrangements process
would provide more parents with a single school place offer for their
child, which would be a fairer, more equitable system of allocating school
places in Cardiff. Children would have a better transitional experience
and more effective start to their secondary school@dgication.

2009.

210.

211.

As refexed, to/in the Consultation Document (page 9), Voluntary Aided
schools and the Foundation school would determine which applicants
qualify for “heir admissions criteria by ranking all applicants in
accordance with their admissions criteria, confirming their decisions
having prioritised their list of applicants and detailing each pupil’'s
grounds for admission.

It is acknowledged that under the present system, parents have the
option of applying for a number of school places over and above three
community school places. In recognition of this, subject to
implementation, parents will have the opportunity to apply for up to five
places and will be encouraged to do so.

It is acknowledged that the terminology used can be confusing and in
response to this a number of drop-in sessions where officers were

Page 122 Page 28 of 35



available to explain the proposal and answer queries were held.
Additionally contact details were provided for further clarification as
required.

212. The suggestion that there are not enough English medium schools, with
the majority of funding going to Welsh medium schools is addressed at
paragraph 74 - 76.

213. All Local Authority maintained schools (including English-Medium and
Welsh-Medium) are funded within the requirements of the School
Standards and Framework Act 1998. Under this legislation, the Individual
School Budget (an amount directly delegated to schools) is achieved
through a funding formula of which at least 70% is based on the number
of pupils enrolled at the school and is assegsed through the Age

to cover factors such as:

e The size of the premises;

e The extent of special needs in th& s¢

e Support services needed (legz [ governor
support etc);

e Ongoing implementation of the s

Impact of proposals on Welsh-m

214.

216. The plannn
consideration t

of/and take-up of places in schools is a separate
he determination of admission arrangements.

217. The Council is committed to ensuring that any child wishing to be
educated through the medium of Welsh would be offered a place in a
Welsh-medium school.

218. There are, at present, c15% surplus places in the Welsh-Medium
secondary sector. As the pupil population is growing, the level of surplus
will reduce in future years.

219. Officers are monitoring birth rates, the yield from proposed new housing
and the patterns of take-up in English-medium community schools,
Welsh-medium community schools, Whitchurch High (Foundation)
School and Faith schools at primary and secondary school-age, with a

Page 123 Page 29 of 35



view to bringing forward appropriate plans to meet any increased
demand. Proposals will be brought forward in good time to ensure that
there are sufficient places to meet the demand for English-medium and
Welsh-medium school places within each catchment area.

School Places

220. If none of the high schools are oversubscribed, a unified application
system should not disadvantage anyone. In the event of
oversubscription, this system creates and perpetuates unfairness to
certain groups of persons (i.e. those who have attended an English-
medium community primary school) by limiting their catchment options to
as few as zero.

221. A child could end up without a school plac
schools; this is just a ploy to get the numbe
schools.

ny of their preferred
Cardiff’s less popular

222. Concern for popular school place ' f High School

223. Concerns around children attending dls yiho do not live in the local
catchment area, and of g Q¢al and integrated within the
community) who have n access places at their preferred

school.

224. Certain some children are

to school in prioritising

schog

225 ' ANON 8 area outside of catchment who speak Welsh are

Appraisal of view e

226. The Council is committed to meeting the parental demand for both
English-medium and Welsh-medium school places across the city. As
such, school capacities and local demand for places are reviewed
regularly to ensure the best possible match with every effort made to
ensure school places are available within a reasonable distance of the
pupil’s home as set out in the Council’'s Welsh-Education Strategic Plan.

227. The Local Authority is currently looking at needs across the city relating
to availability and sufficiency as part of the 21st Century Schools
Programme Band B planning process, which includes considering the
provision of English-medium and Welsh-medium primary school
provision.

Page 124 Page 30 of 35



228. Catchment areas are operated as one of the oversubscription criteria
within the Council’'s School Admissions Policy. This policy meets the
requirements of the Welsh Government’s School Admissions Code.

229. Parents are entitled to state a preference for any school. In the event of a
school being oversubscribed, applications are assessed against the
oversubscription criteria. Whilst children who are resident in the
catchment area of a school have priority for admission to that school over
those who are not, children outside the catchment area cannot be denied
a place if there are sufficient places available.

230. The suggestion to include ‘longevity of residence within catchment area’
as an oversubscription criterion is addressed in 3

231. The concern around children who dg
disadvantaged is addressed paragraphs X0

Allocation of places

232. It is not clear exactly how places Will be alldcgted after the Jirst choice

has been exhausted.

Appraisal of views expressed

233.

Admissions
Foundatior

234

235. Notification™gF'the result of the application is made available from the
Welsh Government’'s Secondary Offer Day, 1st March or the next
working day.

236. It is therefore crucial parents are entirely satisfied with the order in which
they rank their school preferences upon submission of their common
application form, as while each preference is treated equally, the parents’
school preference order will determine, subject to qualifying for
admission, which school the child will be allocated.

Page 125 Page 31 of 35



Extending the period for acceptance of a school place

237. The time period in which school places must be accepted should be
extended to allow parents more time in which to respond to the offer of a
school place for their child.

Appraisal of view expressed

238. The request to extend the acceptance period from 2 weeks to allow
parents additional time to respond to offers was made a number of times
during the consultation period. This request has been noted. Subject to
implementation, the time allowed for acceptance/refusal will be extended
to 3 weeks.

Summary

239.

242. All Members*have been consulted as part of the consultation process.

Reason for Recommendations

243. The Council is required to review its school admission arrangements
annually and to agree the arrangements following appropriate

consultation.

Financial Implications

244. There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.
Potentially subject to change following confirmation of licencing
arrangements.

Page 126 Page 32 of 35



Legal Implications (including Equality Impact Assessment where

appropriate)

245.

246.

247.

248.

The Council has a statutory obligation under the Education Act 1996 to
promote high standards of education for primary and secondary schools
in its local authority area. Section 89 of the School Standards and
Framework Act 1998 as amended by the Education Act 2002 determines
that the Admission Authorities must carry out consultation before
determining the admission arrangements which are to apply.

The Education (Determination of Admission Arrangements) (Wales)
Regulations 2006 set out the procedure which the Admission Authorities
should follow when determining their admission afrgngements, including
the consultation and notification process gg well as timescales. In
particular, the Admission Authority must de \e arrangements in the
school year beginning two years befor€ schQol year which the
arrangements will be for, take all steps/hecessary toehsure that they will
have completed the consultation
March and determine the admjg arrangements by 25 April. The

the methodology for Local
hmission arrangements.

nding the specific Welsh public sector
these legal duties, Councils must in making
pegard to the need to (1) eliminate unlawful

means that no pupil or group of pupils may be treated
based on a protected -characteristic. Protected

e Age

e Gender reassignment

e Sex

¢ Race - including ethnic or national origin, colour or nationality

Disability

Pregnancy and maternity

Marriage and civil partnership

Sexual orientation

Religion or belief — including lack of belief

Page 127 Page 33 of 35



249. The Equality Impact Assessment (see Appendix 5) specifically considers
how the proposals may affect pupils with protected characteristics. The
purpose of the Equality Impact Assessment is to ensure that the Council
has understood the potential impacts of the proposal in terms of equality
so that it can ensure that it is making proportionate and rational decisions
having due regard to its public sector equality duty.

250. In accordance with the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and the
Welsh Language standards, the Council also has to consider the impact
upon the Welsh language any decision that it makes and in accordance
with the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, the Councll
must consider the impact upon future generations of its decisions. This
report reflects those requirements.

HR Implications

251. As a consequence of the pilot admissio
impact on school admissions posts w
applies to school admissions stz

school admissions. If change Y
required these will need to be dealt™witk, i gordance with the Council’s
agreed arrangements and the grades of roles
determined in line with S

Equality Impact Assessment

252. (CT K eqt on this proposal has been carried out.

Assessment (SEA) of the proposal has been
rmed out in agcqrdance with European Legislation. The assessment
' that the/proposal is compatible with the environmental objective
Cardjff's 21%' Century: A Strategic Framework for a School
rovement Programme. (Details of the Sustainability
n be seen at Appendix 5)

identified
Building
Assessmen

Transport Matters

254. Under these proposals there are no plans to change the Council’s policy
on the transport of children to and from schools. The Council’s transport
policy for school children can be viewed on the Council's website
(www.cardiff.gov.uk).

Community Impact

255. There is a need for a fairer, more equitable system of allocating school
places in Cardiff without impacting adversely on the community. It is the

Page 128 Page 34 of 35



Council’s view that this proposal is unlikely to negatively impact on any
community in Cardiff. Officers would work with any community group to
ensure that the proposal avoids negative impacts wherever possible. The
schools subject to the proposal are existing schools which offer a range
of after school activities and may have community organisations offering
services from the school facilities. It is not anticipated that there would be
a negative impact on any of these activities.

RECOMMENDATIONS
The Cabinet is requested to:

1. determine the attached Council’s draft School Admission Arrangements
2018/19 and to agree the Admission Policy 2018/49.

September 2019 and Sep

Nick Batchelar
Director
March 2017

Page 129 Page 35 of 35



Appendix 1

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn

Gymraeg.

CARDIFF
CAERDYDD

DRAFT
SCHOOL
ADMISSIONS
POLICY
2018/2019

THE CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL

EDUCATION & LIFELONG
LEARNING

Page 130




THE CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL
EDUCATION & LIFELONG LEARNING

SCHOOL ADMISSIONS

The City of Cardiff Council is committed to equality of opportunity and to
eliminating unlawful discrimination. In respect of admissions to schools, all
pupils and prospective pupils are treated equitably, regardless of gender, race,
ethnicity, culture, nationality, language, ability/disability or religious belief. Steps
are taken to ensure that admission procedures do not unfairly advantage or
disadvantage any groups through the application of rules or conditions that
cannot be complied with equally by all.

RELEVANT AREA FOR CONSULTATION

In accordance with the Education (Relevant Areas for Consultation on
Admission Arrangements) Regulations 1999, the relevant area for community
schools in Cardiff is the administrative area of the County Council for the City
and County of Cardiff (the County Council). The relevant area for voluntary
aided and voluntary controlled primary schools in Cardiff is the radius of 3 miles
from. the school, and for voluntary aided secondary schools in Cardiff, the
relevant area is the administrative area of the County Council for the City and
County of Cardiff (the County Council).

Admission Number

All maintained schools must admit pupils up to their published admission
number. An admission may not be refused to any school until the

admission number has been reached. The published admission number has
been calculated in accordance with the Welsh Government's school capacity
calculation methodology “Measuring the Capacity of Schools in "Wales”. As this
number is based on the physical capacity of the school to accommodate pupils
it should not be exceeded in normal circumstances.

Page 131



THE CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL
EDUCATION & LIFELONG LEARNING

SCHOOL ADMISSIONS POLICY: 2018/2019

ADMISSIONS TO NURSERY SCHOOLS AND CLASSES

The Council is the Admissions Authority for all maintained Community Nursery
Schools and for Nursery Classes in Community Schools.

Children are entitled to a part-time nursery place from the start of the term
following their third birthday and must attend for five half days. There is a facility
on the Cardiff Council website for parents to provide their child’'s details in order
to receive information on how to apply for a nursery place at the appropriate
time in accordance with the Council’'s admissions timetable.

In the case of children looked after by the Local Authority (as defined by Section
22 of the Children Act 1989) or previously looked after children (as defined by
the Welsh Government School Admissions Code document no. 005/2-13)
following consultation on the appropriateness of the named school in light of the
child’s background and needs, the Council has a duty to admit the child to the
school.

PUBLISHED DATE: Reference to the published date means the date set out
in this Policy, in the Notes for the Guidance of Parents and in the Information for
Parents Booklet 2018/2019.

The Council will consider each individual application received by the published
closing date for a child who must be three years old on its merits, applying the
criteria in the following order of priority up to the approved capacity:

1. For applications received by the published closing date of 19 February
2018 for children born between 1 September 2014 and 31 August 2015:

(a) Children who are looked after by the Local Authority (as defined
by Section 22 of the Children Act 1989) or previously looked after
children (as defined by the Welsh Government School Admissions
Code document no. 005/2-13)

(b) children allocated nursery funding by the Early Years Assessment
Panel, or the Case Advisory Panel. These multi agency panels
allocate funding to an Early Years child with identified significant
and/or complex needs, through an Individual Development Plan in
order that the child may access their nursery entittement in a
maintained setting.

Page 132



(c) children who have a brother and/or sister who will be on register
at the school at which the nursery class is based when they are
admitted. Any sibling connection must be clearly stated in the
application. Where preferences exceed places available,
criteria d, e and f will then be applied to decide which other
pupils are admitted. For admission purposes a sibling is a child
permanently resident at the same address as the
pupil applying for a place who is the brother/sister, half
brother/sister (children who share one common parent), step
brother/step sister where two children are related by virtue of their
parents being married, co-habiting or in a civil partnership. This
definition also includes adopted or fostered children living at the
same address.

(d) children in respect of whom the Council judges that there are
compelling medical grounds or compelling social grounds for their
admission to a specified nursery school/class.

Written recommendations from a medical consultant, a social
worker or similar professional will be required giving detailed
reasons for the child’s admission to a particular nursery
school/class. Where preferences exceed places available, priority
will be given to mulitiple birth siblings.

(e) other children with priority to children living nearest the nursery
school/class, as measured by the shortest practicable walking
route. The Council uses a Geographical Information System (GIS)
to calculate home to school distances in miles to the nearest 2
decimal places. The shortest walking route is calculated using
Ordnance Survey (OS) customised route data from an applicant’s
home address to the nearest open school gate. The co-ordinates
of an applicant’'s home address are determined using the Local
Data. The starting point for a route assessment is determined as
the nearest point on the walking route network to the main front
entrance of a property. Private driveways and paths are not
included in the distance measurement. All routes within the
walking network must be publicly accessible and available 24
hours. Cardiff Council has developed a computerised walking
route network based on the Welsh Learner Travel Measure
Statutory Provision and Operational Guidance June 2014 and this
is used to ensure that every pupil is assessed as consistently as
possible. Where there is no safe walking route available, the
Council will calculate the shortest driving distance from the home
address to the nearest open school gate by use of the same
Geographical Information System (GIS) used to measure the
shortest practicable walking route.

Page 133



(f) In determining applications for admission in respect of other

pupils the Council gives priority to children living furthest away
from the alternative school offered by the Council as measured by
the shortest practicable walking route as a tie break. The Council
uses a Geographical information System (GIS) to calculate home
to school distances in miles to the nearest 2 decimal places. The
shortest walking route is calculated using Ordnance Survey (OS)
customised route data from an applicant’'s home address to the
nearest open school gate. The co-ordinates of an applicant’s
home address are determined using the Local Land and Property
Gazetteer (LLPG) AND OS Address Point Data. The starting point
for a route assessment is determined as the nearest point on the
walking route network to the main front entrance of a property.
Private driveways and paths are not included in the distance
measurement. All routes within the walking network must be
publicly accessible and available 24 hours. Cardiff Council has
developed a computerised walking route network based on the
Welsh Learner Travel Measure Statutory Provision and Operational
Guidance June 2014 and this is used to ensure that every pupil is
assessed as consistently as possible. Where there is no safe
walking route available, the Council will calculate the shortest
driving distance from the home address to the nearest open school
gate by use of the same Geographical Information System (GIS)
used to measure the shortest practicable walking route.

In the case of flats the route assessment is determined from the
front entrance to each flat.

2. For applications received by the published closing date of 2 July
2018 for children born between 1 September 2015 and 31 December
2015: (a) to (f) as above

3. For applications received by the published closing date of 3 July
2017 for children born between 1 January 2016 and 31 March 2016:
(a) to (f) as above

In all cases evidence of permanent residence of the pupil at time of application
must be supplied if required. Any place approved on the basis of residence will
be withdrawn if the pupil is no longer permanently resident at the address at the
beginning of the school term to which the application relates (term dates as
published in the Admission to Schools Booklet). The home address is
considered to be the child’s along with their parent’'s main and genuine principal
place of residence on the relevant published closing date i.e. where they are
normally and regularly living. If a child is resident with friends or relatives (for
reasons other than guardianship) the friends or relative’s address will not be
considered for allocation purposes.

Following the first round of allocations, late applications will be considered in
accordance with the Council’s published admissions criteria.

Page 134



Applications from the first round of allocations and any subsequent late
applications will be considered together for any subsequent available places
that may arise.

The processing of late applications will normally be done on a monthly basis.

The address of UK service personnel will be accepted if their application form is
accompanied by an official Ministry of Defence (MOD) letter declaring a definite
return date and confirmation of the new address.

Where parents have shared responsibility for a child, and the child lives with
both parents for part of the school week then the home address will be
determined as the address where the child lives for the majority of the school
week (i.e. 3 out of 5 days available). Parents will be required to provide
documentary evidence to support the address they wish to be considered for
allocation purposes.

No account is taken of the particular infant or primary school the child is likely to
attend subsequently or to the length of time the school has been aware of the
parental intention to apply for a place at the school.

Only applications received by the relevant published closing date for receipt of
preference forms will be considered in the initial round of allocation of places.
Other preference forms received will be considered as late applications.

As nursery education is non-statutory provision, parents have no statutory right
of appeal under the School Standards and Framework Act if they are
unsuccessful in gaining a nursery place.

Earlvy Years Funding

Where places are unavailable in local community nursery schools or nursery
nursery education place funding with a recognised provider designated by the
Cardiff Early Childhood Group.

Where places are available in local community nursery schools or nursery
classes within two miles of a child’s place of residence, the Council will only
approve applications for nursery education place funding with a recognised
provider designated by the Cardiff Early Childhood Group, where there are
compelling medical or compelling social grounds which make it inappropriate for
the child to attend the nursery provision offered by the Council. Written
recommendations from a medical practitioner or social worker or similar
professional will be required.

Applications for Early Years Funding should be made in the Term prior to when
the child becomes eligible for funding or in the case where a child starts in a
nursery with a recognised provider at a later date, applications should be
submitted in the term when the admission takes place. The Council will not
accept retrospective claims for funding where a place within a Community
Nursery would have been available within 2 miles of the child’s home address
but is no longer available because the parent has delayed in making a claim.

Page 135



In addition the Council will not approve applications for Early Years Funding
where a place in a Community Nursery School or Class was previously offered
by the Councit at the time of application but refused by a parent.

Attendance at a Nursery Class does not automatically entitle a child to a
reception class place in the same school. A new application must be
made for Reception Class Places.

Page 136



THE CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL
EDUCATION & LIFELONG LEARNING

SCHOOL ADMISSIONS POLICY: 2018/2019
ADMISSIONS TO PRIMARY SCHOOLS

The Council is the Admissions Authority for all maintained Community Infant,
Junior and Primary Schools and the Council is committed to providing local
schools for local children where possible.

All admissions are approved by the Director of Education & Lifelong Learning.

Children are admitted to reception classes in the September following their
fourth birthday. There is a facility on the Cardiff Council website for parents to
provide their child’s details in order to receive information on how to apply for a
nursery place at the appropriate time in accordance with the Council’s
admissions timetable. Parents who have registered their child’s details with the
Council will be advised to apply for a place in their preferred schools during the
Autumn Term by using the Council's On- Line Application Service or by
completing a preference form. Parents who submitted an application by the
published closing date of Monday 8" January 2018 will be notified of the fesult
of their application on Monday 16™ April 2018.

Attendance at a Nursery Class does not automatically entitle a child to a
reception class place in the same school. A new application must be made for
Reception Class Places.

Parents have the right to express a preference for their preferred schools which
will be considered individually and complied with wherever possible. Some
schools have more requests for places than there are places available. Where a
school is oversubscribed preferences will still be considered but the priorities
set by the Council will be applied. In deciding which children to admit to a
school, the Council applies the criteria set out below in the order of priority
shown (1. being the highest priority) and examines the merits of each case by
considering any reasons put forward supporting any expressed preference. The
Council will not normally exceed the school’s Admission Number or breach the
limitations imposed by statutory maximum class size (30) where this applies.

Where a school is named in a statement of special educational needs, where
the Council is the admissions authority the Council has a duty to admit the child
to the school.

In the case of children looked after by the Local Authority (as defined by Section
22 of the Children Act 1989) or previously looked after children (as defined by
the Welsh Government School Admissions Code document no. 005/2-13)
following consultation on the appropriateness of the named school in light of the
child’s background and needs, the Council has a duty to admit the child to the
school.

Page 137



PUBLISHED DATE: Reference to the published date means the date set out
in this Policy, in the Notes for the Guidance of Parents and in the Information for
Parents Booklet 2018/2019.

il

Children who are looked after by the Local Authority (as defined by
Section 22 of the Children Act 1989) or previously looked after children
(as defined by the Welsh Government School Admissions Code
document no. 005/2-13)

Children allocated nursery funding by the Early Years Assessment
Panel, or the Case Advisory Panel. These multi agency panels allocate
funding to an Early Years child with identified significant and/or complex
needs, through an Individual Development Plan in order that the child
may access their nursery entitlement in a maintained setting.

(a) Where an older sibling was directed by the Council to an alternative
school because the alternative school was previously the catchment
area school, if the parent desires, the Council will admit younger siblings
to the alternative school. This applies only where the older sibling is in
attendance at the alternative school during the academic year to which
the application relates. In addition the younger sibling must be residing in
the same address (or an address within the catchment area that was the
subject of the change before it was implemented) that the older sibling
was living at the time of the original application.

(b) Where an older sibling was directed by the Council to an alternative
school because no places were available at the catchment area school, if
the parent desires, the Council will admit younger siblings to the
alternative school. This applies only where the older sibling is in
attendance at the alternative school during the academic year to which
the application relates

Pupils who are permanently resident within the defined catchment area*
of the school on the published closing date of 8" January 2018 for
receipt of preference forms. Evidence of permanent residence of the
pupil must be supplied if required. Where preferences exceed places
available, priority will be given to multiple birth siblings resident within the
defined catchment area. Criteria 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 will then be applied to
decide which other pupils are admitted.

Pupils in respect of whom the Council judges that there are compelling
medical grounds or compelling social grounds for their admission to a
specified school. Written recommendations from a medical consultant or
a social worker or similar professional will be required giving detailed
reasons for the pupil’s admission to a particular school. Where
preferences exceed places available, Criteria 6, 7, 8 and 9 will then be
applied to decide which other pupils are admitted.

Pupils who have a brother and/or sister of statutory school age who will
be on register at the school when they are admitted. In considering
siblings first priority will be given to applications from multiple birth

Page 138



siblings. Where preferences exceed places available, Criteria 7, 8 and 9
will then be applied to decide which other pupils are admitted. For
admission purposes a sibling is a child permanently resident at the same
address as the pupil applying for a place who is the brother/sister, half
brother/sister (children who share one common parent), step brother/step
sister where two children are related by virtue of their parents being
married, co-habiting or in a civil partnership. This definition also includes
adopted or fostered children living at the same address.

In determining applications for admission in respect of other pupils the
Council gives priority to children living nearest the school as measured
by the shortest practicable walking route. The Council uses a
Geographical Information System (GIS) to calculate home to school
distances in miles to the nearest 2 decimal places. The shortest walking
route is calculated using Ordnance Survey (OS) customised route data
from an applicant’s home address to the nearest open school gate. The
co-ordinates of an applicant’s home address are determined using the
Local Land and Property Gazetteer (LLPG) AND OS Address Point Data.
The starting point for a route assessment is determined as the nearest
point on the walking route network to the main front entrance of a
property. Private driveways and paths are not included in the distance
measurement. All routes within the walking network must be publicly
accessible and available 24 hours. Where preferences exceed places
available, Criteria 8 will then be applied to decide which other pupils are
admitted. Cardiff Council has developed a computerised walking route
network based on the Welsh Learner Travel Measure Statutory Provision
and Operational Guidance June 2014 and this is used to ensure that
every pupil is assessed as consistently as possible. Where there is no
safe walking route available, the Council will calculate the shortest
driving distance from the home address to the nearest open school gate
by use of the same Geographical Information System (GIS) used to

. measure the shortest practicable walking route.

In determining applications for admission in respect of other pupils the
Council gives priority to children living furthest away from the alternative
school offered by the Council as measured by the shortest practicable
walking route as a tie break. The Council uses a Geographical
Information System (GIS) to calculate home to school distances in miles
to the nearest 2 decimal places. The shortest walking route is calculated
using Ordnance Survey (OS) customised route data from an applicant’s
home address to the nearest open school gate. The co-ordinates of an
applicant’s home address are determined using the Local Land and
Property Gazetteer (LLPG) AND OS Address Point Data. The starting
point for a route assessment is determined as the nearest point on the
walking route network to the main front entrance of a property. Private
driveways and paths are not included in the distance measurement. All
routes within the walking network must be publicly accessible and
available 24 hours. Cardiff Council has developed a computerised
walking route network based on the Welsh Learner Travel Measure
Statutory Provision and Operational Guidance June 2014 and this is
used to ensure that every pupil is assessed as consistently as possible.

Page 139



Where there is no safe walking route available, the Council will calculate
the shortest driving distance from the home address to the nearest open
school gate by use of the same Geographical Information System (GIS)
used to measure the shortest practicable walking route.

In the case of flats the route assessment is determined from the front
entrance to each flat.

9 Pupils whose premature admission to the school has been approved by
the Council.

Only applications received by the published closing date of 9 January 2017 for
receipt of preference forms will be considered in the initial round of allocation of
places. Other preference forms received will be considered as late applications.

Any place approved on the basis of residence will be withdrawn if the pupil is no
longer permanently resident at the address at the beginning of the school term
to which the application relates (term dates as published in the Admission to
Schools Booklet). The home address is considered to be the child’s along with
their parent’'s main and genuine principal place of residence on the published
date of 8" January 2018 i.e. where they are normally and regularly living. If a
child is resident with friends or relatives (for reasons other than guardianship)
the friends or relative’s address will not be considered for allocation purposes.

Where parents have shared responsibility for a child, and the child lives with
both parents for part of the school week then the home address will be
determined as the address where the child lives for the majority of the school
week (i.e. 3 out of 5 days available). Parents will be required to provide
documentary evidence to support the address they wish to be considered for
allocation purposes.

Children of UK service personnel will be treated as in catchment if their
application form is accompanied by an official Ministry of Defence (MOD) letter
declaring a definite return date and confirmation of the new address.

A child is not required to start school until the start of the term following the
child’s fifth birthday. Where a parent is offered a place in a reception class
before their child is of compulsory school age, the parents have the option of
deferring their child’s entry until later in the same school year. The effect is that
the place is held for that child and is not available to be offered to another child.
The parent would not however be able to defer entry beyond the beginning of
the term after the child’s fifth birthday, nor beyond the academic year for which
the original application was accepted. It is recommended that any deferment of
a place is discussed with the relevant Headteacher.

Waiting Lists

Where a place has been refused, the application will be placed on a waiting list.
Applications received in the annual allocation of places will remain on the
waiting list until the end of the Autumn Term 2018. Applications received
outside of the annual allocation of places for in year admissions will remain on
the waiting list until the end of the term in the academic year to which the

11

Page 140



application relates. After this time parents will be expected to make a further
application for admission.

Late Applications
Following the first round of allocations, late applications will be considered in
accordance with the Council’s published admissions criteria.

Applications from the first round of allocations and any subsequent late
applications will be considered together for any subsequent available places
that may arise.

The processing of late applications will normally be done on a monthly basis.

In Year Applications

In the event of the Council receiving more applications for an age group than
the number of places available, places will be filled by using the Admissions
criteria above. (Deadline dates refer to the annual allocation of places to the
Reception age group in September 2018).

Statutory Appeals

If parents are dissatisfied with the result of an application for a particular
Community primary school, an appeal may be submitted to the independent
Statutory Appeal Panel, any decision made by the Panel being binding on the
Council. If the appeal is not successful, further applications for a place at the
same school will not be considered for the same academic year unless the
Director of Education & Lifelong Learning determines there are significant and
material changes in the circumstances of pupil/parents or school.

Voluntary Controlled Primary School

In the case of St Mellons Voluntary Controlled Church in Wales Primary School,
the Council has agreed to delegate responsibility for admissions to the
Governing Body. Application should be made therefore directly to the school.

* Catchment area information is available on the Council website.

Page 141



THE CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL
EDUCATION & LIFELONG LEARNING

SCHOOL ADMISSIONS POLICY: 2018/2019
ADMISSIONS TO SECONDARY SCHOOLS

The Council is the Admissions Authority for all maintained Community
Secondary Schools. All admissions are approved by the Director of Education &
Lifelong Learning.

Children transfer to secondary education in the September following their
eleventh birthday.

In the Autumn Term parents of Year 6 pupils in Community Primary Schools are
invited to nominate their preferred Secondary Schools either by using the
Council's On Line application Service or by completing a preference form.
Parents are also informed of their catchment area school. Parents who
submitted an application by the published closing date of Monday 4 December
2017 will be notified of the result of their application on Thursday 1 March 2018.

Parents have the right to express a preference for their preferred schools which
will be considered individually and complied with wherever possible. Some
schools have more requests for places than there are places available. Where a
school is oversubscribed preferences will still be considered but the priorities
set by the Council will be applied. In deciding which children to admit to a
school, the Council applies the criteria set out below in the order of priority
shown (1. being the highest priority) and examines the merits of each case by
considering any reasons put forward supporting any expressed preference. The
Council will not normally exceed the school’'s Admission Number.

Where a school is named in a statement of special educational needs, where
the Council is the admissions authority the Council has a duty to admit the child
to the school.

In the case of children looked after by the Local Authority (as defined by Section
22 of the Children Act 1989) or previously looked after children (as defined by
the Welsh Government School Admissions Code document no. 005/2-13)
following consultation on the appropriateness of the named school in light of the
child’s background and needs, the Council has a duty to admit the child to the
school.

PUBLISHED DATE: Reference to the published date means the date set out
in this Policy, in the Notes for the Guidance of Parents and in the Information for
Parents Booklet 2018/2019

13

Page 142



. Children who are looked after by the Local Authority (as defined by
Section 22 of the Children Act 1989) or previously looked after children
(as defined by the Welsh Government School Admissions Code
document no. 005/2-13)

. (a) Where an older sibling was directed by the Council to an alternative
school because the alternative school was previously the catchment area
school, if the parent desires, the Council will admit younger siblings to
the alternative school. This applies only where the older sibling is in
attendance at the alternative school during the academic year to which
the application relates. In addition the younger sibling must be residing in
the same address (or an address within the catchment area that was the
subject of the change before it was implemented) that the older sibling
was living at the time of the original application.

(b) Where an older sibling was directed by the Council to an alternative
school because no places were available at the catchment area school, if
the parent desires, the Council will admit younger siblings to the
alternative school. This applies only where the older sibling is in
attendance at the alternative school during the academic year to which
the application relates

Pupils who are permanently resident within the defined catchment area*
of the school on the published closing date of 4 December 2017 for
receipt of preference forms. Evidence of permanent residence of the
pupil must be supplied if required. Where preferences exceed places
available, priority will be given to multiple birth siblings resident within the
defined catchment area. Criteria 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 will then be applied to
decide which other pupils are admitted.

Pupils in respect of whom the Council judges that there are compelling
medical grounds or compelling social grounds for their admission to a
specified school. Written recommendations from a medical consultant or
a social worker or similar professional will be required giving detailed
reasons for the pupil’'s admission to a particular school. Where
preferences exceed places available, Criteria 5, 6, 7 and 8 will then be
applied to decide which other pupils are admitted.

Pupils who have a brother and/or sister who will be on register at the
school, in Years 8 to 11, when they are admitted. In considering siblings
first priority will be given to applications from multiple birth siblings. Any
sibling connection must be clearly stated in the application. Where
preferences exceed places available, Criteria 6, 7 and 8 will then be
applied to decide which other pupils are admitted. For admission
purposes a sibling is a child permanently resident at the same address
as the pupil applying for a place who is the brother/sister, half
brother/sister (children who share one common parent), step brother/step
sister where two children are related by virtue of their parents being
married, co-habiting or in a civil partnership. This definition also includes
adopted or fostered children living at the same address.

Page 143



In determining applications for admission in respect of other pupils the
Council gives priority to children living nearest the school as measured
by the shortest practicable walking route. The Council uses a
Geographical Information System (GIS) to calculate home to school
distances in miles to the nearest 2 decimal places. The shortest walking
route is calculated using Ordnance Survey (OS) customised route data
from an applicant’s home address to the nearest open school gate. The
co-ordinates of an applicant's home address are determined using the
Local Land and Property Gazetteer (LLPG) AND OS Address Point Data.
The starting point for a route assessment is determined as the nearest
point on the walking route network to the main front entrance of a
property. Private driveways and paths are not included in the distance
measurement. All routes within the walking network must be publicly
accessible and available 24 hours. Where preferences exceed places
available, Criteria 7 will then be applied to decide which other pupils are
admitted. Cardiff Council has developed a computerised walking route
network based on the Welsh Learner Travel Measure Statutory Provision
and Operational Guidance June 2014 and this is used to ensure that
every pupil is assessed as consistently as possible. Where there is no
safe walking route available, the Council will calculate the shortest
driving distance from the home address to the nearest open school gate
by use of the same Geographical Information System (GIS) used to
measure the shortest practicable walking route.

In the case of flats the route assessment is determined from the
front entrance to each flat.

In determining applications for admission in respect of other pupils the
Council gives priority to children living furthest away from the alternative
school offered by the Council as measured by the shortest practicable
walking route as a tie break. The Council uses a Geographical
Information System (GIS) to calculate home to school distances in miles
to the nearest 2 decimal places. The shortest walking route is calculated
using Ordnance Survey (OS) customised route data from an applicant’s
home address to the nearest open school gate. The co-ordinates of an
applicant’'s home address are determined using the Local Land and
Property Gazetteer (LLPG) AND OS Address Point Data. The starting
point for a route assessment is determined as the nearest point on the
walking route network to the main front entrance of a property. Private
driveways and paths are not included in the distance measurement. All
routes within the walking network must be publicly accessible and
available 24 hours. Cardiff Council has developed a computerised
walking route network based on the Welsh Learner Travel Measure
Statutory Provision and Operational Guidance June 2014 and this is
used to ensure that every pupil is assessed as consistently as possible.
Where there is no safe walking route available, the Council will calculate
the shortest driving distance from the home address to the nearest open
school gate by use of the same Geographical Information System (GIS)
used to measure the shortest practicable walking route.

Page 144



In the case of flats the route assessment is determined from the
front entrance to each flat.

8. Pupils whose premature admission to the school has been approved by
the Council

Only applications received by the published closing date of 4 December 2017
for receipt of preference forms will be considered in the initial round of allocation
of places. Other preference forms received will be considered as late
applications.

Any place approved on the basis of residence will be withdrawn if the pupil is no
longer permanently resident at the address at the beginning of the school term
to which the application relates (term dates as published in the Admission to
Schools Booklet). The home address is considered to be the child’s along with
their parent’s main and genuine principal place of residence on the published
date of 4 December 2017 i.e. where they are normally and regularly living. If a
child is resident with friends or relatives (for reasons other than guardianship)
the friends or relative’s address will not be considered for allocation purposes.

Where parents have shared responsibility for a child, and the child lives with
both parents for part of the school week then the home address will be
determined as the address where the child lives for the majority of the school
week (i.e 3 out of 5 days available). Parents will be required to provide
documentary evidence to support the address they wish to be considered for
allocation purposes.

Children of UK service personnel will be treated as in catchment if their
application form is accompanied by an official Ministry of Defence (MOD) letter
declaring a definite return date and confirmation of the new address.

Waiting Lists

Where a place has been refused, the application will be placed on a waiting list.
Applications received in the annual allocation of places will remain on the
waiting list until the end of the Autumn Term 2018 Applications received outside
of the annual allocation of places for in year admissions will remain on the
waiting list until the end of the term in the academic year to which the
application relates. After this time parents will be expected to make a further
application for admission.

Late Applications

Following the first round of allocations, late applications will be considered in
accordance with the Council’s published admissions criteria.

Applications from the first round of allocations and any subsequent late
applications will be considered together for any subsequent available places
that may arise.

The processing of late applications will normally be done on a monthly basis.

In Year Applications

Page 145



In the event of the Council receiving more applications for an age group than
the number of places available, places will be filled by using the Admissions

criteria above. (Deadline dates refer to the annual allocation of places to the

Year 7 age group in September 2018).

Statutory Appeals

If parents are dissatisfied with the result of an application for a particular
Community secondary school, an appeal may be submitted to the independent
Statutory Appeal Panel, any decision made by the Panel being binding on the
Council. If the appeal is not successful, further applications for a place at the
same school will not be considered for the same academic year unless the
Director of Education & Lifelong Learning determines there are significant and
material changes in the circumstances of pupil/parents or school.

ADMISSIONS TO SIXTH FORMS

The Council has agreed to delegate to the Governing Body of Community
Schools responsibility for the determination of admission arrangements for sixth
forms. Application should therefore be made directly to the school.

»  Catchment area information is available on the Council website. The catchment areas for schools providing
primary education are grouped together to form the catchment areas of maintained secondary schools in
Cardiff.

The Council is also consulting on the co-ordination of secondary school
admission arrangements which will apply to Community Schools and Own
Admission Authority Schools (Faith/Foundation Schools) in Cardiff whose
Governing Bodies adopt the scheme from October 2017 for admission to
Secondary education in September 2018.

The regulations require consultation to be completed by 1 March 2017 and
arrangements determined by Admission Authorities by 15 April 2017.

The consultation document can be accessed at
www.cardiff.gov.uk/admissionarrangementsconsultation

Page 146



Admission Numbers, September 2018 (Red font proposed / potential

change)

Community Primary Schools

Admission Number

Adamsdown Primary School 60
Albany Primary School 60
Allensbank Primary School 45
Baden Powell Primary School 60
Birchgrove Primary School 58
Bryn Celyn Primary School 30
Bryn Deri Primary School 30
Bryn Hafod Primary School 60
Coed Glas Primary School 75
Coryton Primary School 30 ¥
Creigiau Primary School 29
Danescourt Primary School 60
Fairwater Primary School 40
Gabalfa Primary School 30
Gladstone Primary School 30
Glan Yr Afon Primary School 41
Glyncoed Primary School 60
Grangetown Primary School 60
Greenway Primary School 30
Gwaelod-y-Garth Primary School 7
Hawthorn Primary School 30
Herbert Thompson Primary School 60
Howardian Primary School 60
Hywel Dda Primary School 60
Kitchener Primary School 60
Lakeside Primary School 60
Lansdowne Primary School 60
Llanedeyrn Primary School 55
Llanishen Fach Primary School 60
Llysfaen Primary School 60
Marlborough Primary School 60
Meadowlane Primary School 45
Millbank Primary School 30
Moorland Primary School 90 @

Community Primary Schools

Admission Number

Page 147

18




Mount Stuart Primary School

60

Ninian Park Primary School 90
Oakfield Primary School 60
Pencaerau Primary School 30
Pentrebane Primary School 30
Pentyrch Primary School 20
Pen-y-Bryn Primary School 30
Peter Lea Primary School 45
Pontprennau Primary School 60
Radnor Primary School 45
Radyr Primary School 60
Rhiwbeina Primary School 75
Rhydypenau Primary School 60
Roath Park Primary School 58
Rumney Primary School 60
Severn Primary School 60
Springwood Primary School 60
Stacey Primary School 30 M
Thornhill Primary School 60
Tongwynlais Primary School 28
Ton-yr-Ywen Primary School 60
Trelai Primary School 60
Trowbridge Primary School 30
Whitchurch Primary School 90
Willowbrook Primary School 60
Windsor Clive Primary School 60
Ysgol Bro Eirwg 60
Ysgol Coed-y-Gof 60
Ysgol Creigiau 29
Ysgol Glan Ceubal 30
Ysgol Glan Morfa 60
Ysgol Gwaelod-y-Garth 26
Ysgol Hamadryad 60
Ysgol Melin Gruffydd 60
Ysgol Mynydd Bychan 30 W
Ysgol Pencae 30 @
Ysgol Pen Y Groes 30

Page 148




Ysgol Pwll Coch 60
Ysgol Treganna 90
Ysgol y Berllan Deg 60 M
Ysgol Y Wern 75
Ysgol Nant Caerau 30
Ysgol Pen Y Pil. 30

Voluntary Controlled Primary Schools

Admission Number

St Mellons C.W. Primary School 15
Voluntary Aided Primary Schools Admission Number
All Saints C.W. Primary School 30
Bishop Childs C.W. Primary School 30 W
Christ The King R.C. Primary School 30
Holy Family R.C. Primary School 35
Llandaff C.W. Primary School 60
St Alban’s R.C. Primary School 30
St Bernadette’s R.C. Primary School 30
St Cadoc’s R.C. Primary School 45
St Cuthbert’s R.C. Primary School 22
St David’s C.W. Primary School 30
St Fagans C.W. Primary School 30
St Francis R.C. Primary School 55
St John Lloyd R.C. Primary School 45
St Joseph’s R.C. Primary School 30
St Mary The Virgin C.W. Primary School 60
St Mary’s R.C. Primary School 37
St Monica’s C.W. Primary School 20
St Patrick’s R.C. Primary School 45
St Paul's C.W. Primary School 30 W
St Peter’s R.C. Primary School 75
St Philip Evans R.C. Primary School bR
Tredegarville C.W. Primary School 30
Community Secondary Schools Admission Number
Cantonian High School 181
Cardiff High School 240
Cardiff West Community High School 240
Cathays High School 165

Page 149

20




Eastern High 240
Fitzalan High School 300
Llanishen High School 300
Radyr Comprehensive School 210
Willows High School 224
Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Glantaf 240
Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Plasmawr 180
Ysgol Bro Edern 180
Foundation Secondary Schools Admission Number
Whitchurch High School 390
Voluntary Aided Secondary Schools Admission Number
Bishop of Llandaff C.W. High School 180
Corpus Christi R.C. High School 186
Mary Immaculate R.C. High School 159
St llityd’s R.C. High School 176
St Teilo’s C.W. High School 240

It should be noted that in progressing school reorganlsatlon proposals, some
admission numbers may need to change.

Dtis proposed to maintain the current admission number for 2018 as allowed by WG
regulations, pending extensive discussions with Head and Governors to agree an
appropriate way forward within the context of demand for places and the capacity of
the premises.

2) Approved proposal to enlarge the school to 630 places deferred from September
2017 to September 2018.

2 Subject to publishing of statutory notice and approval by the Council's Cabinet of
the proposal to enlarge Radyr Primary School from September 2017.

NB. It should be noted that some of the above proposals are subject to receiving
the relevant planning consent.

21

Page 150



Page 151

22



Appendix 2

R

CARDIFF

CAERDYDD

Co-ordinated Secondary School
Admission Arrangements
2018-2020

Consultation Document 2016

A fairer, more equitable system of allocating school places in Cardiff

Consultation Period:
5 December 2016 — 23 January 2017

This document can be made available in Braille.
Information can also be made available in other community languages if needed.
Please contact us on 029 2087 2720 to arrange this.

Page 152




Table of Contents

1. Introduction

2. What is the Proposal?

3. Your Views Matter

4. Explanation of Acronyms and Terms Used

5. Background to the Proposal

6. School Admissions

7. What are the Current Arrangements & Issues with the Current Allocations System?
8. Why is the Change Proposed?

9. What are the Benefits of the Proposal?

10. What are the Disadvantages of the Proposal?

11. If nothing changes, what happens?

12. If the proposal is implemented, how would schools be affected?
13. What are the Proposed Arrangements and how would they work?
14. Quality & Standards

15. How would SEN and EAL provision be affected?

16. Admissions and Catchment Area Arrangements

17. Financial Matters

18. Human Resources Matters

19. Transport Matters

20. Learner Travel Arrangements

21. Impact of the Proposal on the Welsh Language

22. Equality Matters

23. Considering Community Impact

24. Frequently Asked Questions

25. What Happens Next?

26. Consultation Response Form

Page 153



Introduction:

This consultation is an opportunity for people to learn about the proposed introduction of co-
ordinated secondary school admission arrangements for Cardiff. It is your chance to ask
guestions and make comments that will be considered when the Council decides how to
proceed.

What is the Proposal?

The proposal is to:

* Pilot the implementation of a co-ordinated secondary school admissions process for
the Year 7 age group for intakes in September 2018, September 2019 and
September 2020.

The proposal to pilot a coordinated admissions system would not remove the rights of
Admission Authorities to control their own admissions and therefore which children would
be offered places at their schools. It would not have any impact upon the admissions policies
currently being operated by the various Admission Authorities, nor impose any change to
schools’ governance.

Co-ordinated secondary school admission arrangements are to be kept under review.
Subject to a decision to make the arrangements permanent, a further consultation would
be undertaken. In the event a decision is made not to make co-ordinated secondary school
admission arrangements permanent, existing arrangements would continue.

Your Views Matter:

Your views matter and we want you to tell us what you think about the proposal. You can
do this by:

» attending one of the drop in sessions:

Date/Time Venue

Tuesday, 13" December 2016 Llanishen Leisure Centre
9:00am — 11:00am
Tuesday, 10" January 2017 Grangetown Hub
4:00pm — 6:00pm
Wednesday, 11 ™ January 2017 | Llanrumney Hub
4:00pm — 6:00pm
Thursday, 12 ™ January 2017 Fairwater Hub
4:00pm — 6:00pm
Tuesday, 17 " January 2017 Central Library Hub
4:00pm — 6:00pm

» completing the online response form at www.cardiff.gov.uk/admissionarrangements or

» contacting the School Organisation Planning Team on (029) 2087 2720, by e-mail to
schoolresponses@cardiff.gov.uk or by post to Room 422, County Hall, Atlantic Wharf,
Cardiff, CF10 4UW.

The closing date for responses to this consultation is 23 January 2017 . Unfortunately
responses received after this date will not be considered by the Council.

Page 154 3



Explanation of Acronyms & Terms used:

Admission Authority — The body responsible for setting and applying a school’s
admission arrangements.

Admission Forum — A statutory local body charged with co-ordinating the effectiveness
and equity of local admission arrangements. The Forum comprises representatives of
admission authorities and schools, dioceses, the local community and parent governors.
Governing Bodies — The body corporately responsible for conducting schools with a view
to promoting high standards of educational achievement; through setting strategic
direction, ensuring accountability, monitoring and evaluation.

Community Schools — a maintained primary or secondary school for which a Local
Authority has staffing, premises, and admissions responsibilities.

Foundation & Voluntary Aided Schools  — a maintained primary or secondary school for
which the school’'s Governing Body has staffing, premises and admissions responsibilities.

Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) — a process designed to ensure that a policy, project
or scheme does not discriminate against any disadvantaged or vulnerable people.

CW — Church in Wales

EAL - English as an Additional Language
HS — High School

RC — Roman Catholic

SEN - Special Educational Needs

Page 155 4



Background to the Proposal:

Co-ordinated admission arrangements were introduced in England under the terms of the
School Admissions (Co-ordination of Admission Arrangements) (England) Regulations
2007.

There are currently no formal co-ordinated admission arrangements in Wales despite there

being recognition of the challenges of implementing effective arrangements for admissions
in Cardiff which has 30 Admission Authorities.

School Admissions:

Admission Authorities in Cardiff are committed to equality of opportunity and to eliminating
unlawful discrimination. In respect of admissions to schools, all pupils and prospective
pupils are treated equitably, regardless of gender, race, ethnicity, culture, nationality,
language, ability/disability or religious belief. However, there are various exceptions for
schools of a religious nature. Steps are taken to ensure that admission procedures do not
unfairly advantage or disadvantage any groups through the application of rules or conditions
that cannot be complied with equally by all.

What are the Current Arrangements & Issues with the Current Allocations
System?

At present, parents apply for their child to transfer from primary to secondary education by
submitting a school admission form to the Admission Authorities of their preferred schools.
Parents applying for a community school can complete and submit their application online,
while parents applying to other schools complete and submit a paper application form.

Following consideration by the Admission Authorities for each preference school, parents
receive the result of their application from each Admissions Authority.

Whilst parents inform the Council of which community schools are their preferred option(s),
they are not required to confirm which community; voluntary aided or foundation school is
their higher preference. As a result, parents could be offered more than one school place
for their child.

Consequently, there is uncertainty as to which pupils will start at which schools as the order
of parental school preferences is unclear at the time of application:

* Foundation and Voluntary Aided schools provide the Council with their admission
decisions by a date agreed by the Cardiff Admissions Forum, but the Council is
unable to use the information to reallocate places at community schools before offer
date as Admissions Authorities do not know the order of parents’ preferences.

» The Council cannot provide reciprocal information to Governing Bodies regarding the
allocation of community school places under the current arrangements due to Data
Protection Act constraints. Furthermore, allocation lists for every school would have
to be sent, which is impractical.

Page 156 5



Admission Authorities continue to administer statutory waiting lists and arrange statutory
appeal hearings, many of which are time consuming, costly and unnecessary for parents.

Table 1 below indicates the number of Year 7 appeals that proceeded to an Independent
School Admission Appeal Hearing for the September 2016 intake. Based on calculations
for cases against the Local Authority, it is estimated that each appeal costs approx. £650
and 9 hours of officer time.

Table 1: Number of Appeal Hearings for Admission
into Year 7 from September 2016

Community Schools 100

St Teilo's CW HS 42
Bishop of Llandaff CW HS 32
St llityd's RC HS 18
Corpus Christi RC HS 16
Whitchurch HS 15
Mary Immaculate RC HS 11
Total 234

Why is the Change Proposed?

Some parents applying for their child’s admission to secondary education have been offered
places at multiple schools, whilst other parents have been unsuccessful in securing their
child a place at any one of their school preferences.

Based on the initial allocation for transfer into Year 7 from September 2016, a total of 192
children were holding a total of 397 places. That means 192 families were holding 205 places
they were not planning to take up and preventing their allocation to others. At the same time
360 other children received no offer.

Many families therefore missed out on their higher preferences or received no place at all.

Page 157 6



Table 2 below indicates the number of successful applicants per school, who were also
offered an additional one or more school places elsewhere:

Table 2: Number of Successful Year 7 Applicants
Issued at least 2 School Place Offers (1 per Admiss ions Authority)

Bishop of Llandaff CW HS 52

Corpus Christi RC HS 53

) Mary Immaculate RC HS 27
Governing Body

St llityd’'s RC HS 35

St Teilo’s CW HS 22

Whitchurch HS 47

Local Authority Community Schools 161

Some parents choose to ‘hold’ offers for more than one school, preventing other children
being offered these places, which causes undue stress upon families but also difficulties for
both primary and secondary schools planning for the children’s transition.

A co-ordinated secondary school admission arrangeme nts process would provide
more parents with a single school place offer for t heir child, which would be a fairer,
more equitable system of allocating school places i n Cardiff. Children would have a
better experience and more effective start to their secondary school education.

What are the Benefits of the Proposal?

The Council aims to offer a co-ordinated admissions process with the voluntary aided and
foundation sectors, which provides parents/carers with a clear picture of the school place
choices available to them and the likelihood of securing first preferences. This proposal
would contribute towards this aim.

The following benefits would be expected to result from this proposal:
* More pupils would secure a higher school preference;
« More pupils would have peace of mind having secured a secondary school place;
* More parents would be able to plan work and childcare commitments much earlier;
* Fewer would need to worry about their child being on multiple school waiting lists;

* Fewer families would need to submit further admission applications or undertake the
Independent Appeal process and

» Children going into Secondary School for their first time will have a better experience
as a result of the staff being able to maximise on the efficiencies of the admissions
process to provide a more effective start for children to allow them to realise their
maximum potential earlier rather than later.

Page 158 7



What are the Disadvantages of the Proposal?

The current system allows for parents to apply to multiple Admission Authorities with the
potential for their child to be offered multiple school places. This system provides those
families that apply to and secure offers for more than one school, with a further decision
stage at which they can choose which school offer to accept.

Implementing a co-ordinated secondary school admission arrangements system between
all Community; Foundation and Voluntary Aided schools would reduce the number of school
offers to one; the advantage being that more pupils would be offered their preferred school
as a consequence. A minority of parents may feel disadvantaged as a result, albeit they still
would retain the right to parental preference and the opportunity to rank order their school
preferences.

If nothing changes, what happens?

Retaining existing arrangements would further increase the inefficiencies within the current
pupil allocation system. Many pupils would receive multiple offers of places whilst others
may receive lower preference offers or none at all.

Continuing this would mean Admission Authorities are unable to allocate more places to
children in the initial allocation round.

If the proposal is implemented, h  ow would schools be affected?

The proposal, which allows for parents to express their community/voluntary
aided/foundation school preference on a Common Application Form, does not have any
impact upon a school’s admissions policy nor impose any change to its governance.

It is therefore anticipated that the proposed co-ordinated secondary school admission
arrangements would have little or no effect on the number of pupils that will be on roll at
English-medium community/voluntary aided/foundation schools or Welsh-medium
community schools in the city.

It is the Council’'s view that this proposal will assist schools to plan their budgets; class
organisation and staffing arrangements, as all schools will have a clearer idea of which
pupils they will be admitting.

Page 159 8



What are the Proposed Arrangements and how would th ey work?

Co-ordinated secondary school admissions for the Year 7 age group would follow the
timetable as outlined below (for the September 2018 intake):

October 2017 — Monday, 4 December 2017

» Parents would complete a Common Application Form and would express up to three
preferences for Community and/or Voluntary Aided and/or Foundation Schools.

» Parents applying for a Voluntary Aided or Foundation school would also complete a
supplementary application form for the individual school, which is returned direct to
the school’'s Governing Body along with references; documentary evidence and any
other information required.

Monday, 4 December 2017
» Closing date for submission of the Common Application Form.

December 2017 — February 2018
» Voluntary Aided schools and the Foundation school would determine which
applicants qualify for their admissions criteria by ranking all applicants accordingly,
confirming their decisions having prioritised their list of applicants and detailing each
pupil’s grounds for admission.
» The Central Admissions Database would then allocate a single school place at the
highest preference to which the child qualifies for admission.

Thursday, 1 March 2018
» A single offer or notification refusing all preferences, is communicated from the
Council on behalf of Admissions Authorities to the parents.
» Decisions are made available online and posted (if required) 1st class on Thursday,
1 March 2018.

Friday, 16 March 2018
» Parents respond to the Council regarding the offer of a school place or decision to
refuse all preferences; these responses being accessible to the schools.
» Parents who have not responded to an offer of a school place by this date, will have
the offer withdrawn for reallocation to another pupil.

Page 160 9



Further Information

Quality and Standards:

The Council has in place policies to support school improvement e.g. ‘High Achievement for
All' and ‘Achievement for Inclusion.’” It is working to respond to the key principles of the
‘School Effectiveness Framework’ to secure better learning outcomes and well-being for all
children.

It is not anticipated that there will be any negative impact on the quality of standards of
education or the delivery of Key Stage 3 and above curriculums as a result of this proposal.

The Council would continue to work with the leaderships of all schools to continue to ensure
a rigorous whole school approach to improvement planning and secure good relationships
with parents and other partners in order to ensure pupils receive a high quality education.
It is anticipated that there will be little to no risk of distraction or disruption to leadership and
governance that could impact on educational outcomes.

How would SEN and EAL provision be affected?

A child has Special Educational Needs (SEN) if he or she has a learning difficulty which
requires special educational provision. A learning difficulty means the child has significantly
greater difficulty in learning than most children of the same age or that the child has a
disability that needs different educational facilities for those that the school generally
provides for children.

Schools in Cardiff receive delegated funding to enable them to provide extra support and
focussed interventions for pupils who have SEN.

There is no information available that suggests that the proposals would have a negative
effect on SEN provision at the schools and the schools would continue to provide SEN
support for pupils appropriate to the level of need.

There is also no information available that suggests that the proposals would have a
negative effect on provision for any group including those who are from minority Ethnic
groups or in receipt of Free School Meals and the schools would continue to provide support
appropriate to the individual needs of each pupil.

Admissions and Catchment Area Arrangements:

There are no proposed changes to catchment areas as part of this proposal.

There are no plans to change any Admission Authority’s policy (over-subscription criteria)
on the admission of children to schools as a result of this proposal.

Detailed information regarding admission arrangements is contained in the Council’s
Admission to Schools booklet, which can be downloaded from the Council’'s website
(www.cardiff.gov.uk).

Page 161 10



Financial Matters:

It is the Council’'s view that schools will be better able to plan their school budgets for
forthcoming academic years as they will have a clearer idea of which pupils they will be
admitting. It is also the Local Authority’s view that as a result of implementing this proposal,
there would be fewer Independent School Admission Appeal Hearings than if the
arrangements were not implemented, saving approx. £650 per case.

Human Resources Matters:

It is the Council’s view that this proposal is unlikely to impact on school staffing. Working
practises would change, not reduce.

Transport Matters:

It is the Council’s view that this proposal is unlikely to impact on traffic as it does not relate
to any change with respect to supply of school places nor any change to school catchment
areas.

Learner Travel Arrangements:

Under these proposals there are no plans to change the Council’s policy on the transport of
children to and from schools. The Council’s transport policy for school children can be
viewed on the Council’'s website (www.cardiff.gov.uk).

Impact of the Proposal on the Welsh Language:

It is not anticipated that there will be any differential impact on the Welsh Language as a
result of this proposal.

The teaching of Welsh within an English-medium setting is subject to the requirements of
the National Curriculum. This would not change.

This proposal does not seek to change the number of Welsh-medium school places
available in the city.

Officers are monitoring birth rates; the yield from proposed housing and the patterns of take

up in Welsh-medium provision at primary and secondary age with a view to bringing forward
appropriate plans to meet any increased demand.

Page 162 11



Equality Matters:

An initial Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out. The assessment concluded
that this proposal would not adversely affect a particular group in society. The assessment
will be reviewed following consultation.

The proposal will have a positive impact on children in Cardiff achieving their full potential
by promoting and improving access to learning in the city; giving children the best start by
providing a better experience for children going into Secondary School for their first time.
This will be as a result of school staff being able to maximise on the efficiencies of the
admissions process to provide a more effective start for children to allow them to realise
their maximum potential earlier than later.

The Council (Admissions Authority for Community Schools) and Governing Bodies
(Admissions Authority for Voluntary Aided and Foundation Schools) will continue to
strengthen its partnership in delivering positive outcomes for the city and its citizens; working
collaboratively with a shared agenda to achieve significant cost and efficiency savings.

The consultation process is compliant with the Welsh Government’s School Admissions

Code intended to engage stakeholders with the views put forward as part of the decision
making specific to the proposed change.

Considering Community Impact:

There is a need for a fairer, more equitable system of allocating school places in Cardiff
without impacting adversely on the community. It is the Council’s view that this proposal is
unlikely to negatively impact on any community in Cardiff. Officers would work with any
community group to ensure that the proposal avoids negative impacts wherever possible.

The schools subject to the proposal are existing schools which offer a range of after school
activities and may have community organisations offering services from the school facilities.
It is not anticipated that there would be a negative impact on any of these activities.

What Happens Next?

Consultation Period — 5 December 2016 to 23 January  2017:
Please see page 3 for further details of how to respond and make your views known.

The feedback from consultees will be collated, with issues summarised and the Council’s
responses. This will form part of the Admission Arrangements Consultation Report that will
be published on the City of Cardiff Council website for all persons to view prior to
consideration by the Council’s Cabinet. Hard copies of the report can be obtained on request
by using the contact details in this document.

Determination of the Proposal & Decision Notificati on:
The City of Cardiff Council Cabinet will consider the Admission Arrangements Consultation
Report at its March 2017 meeting and decide whether or not to proceed with the proposal.

Following determination of the proposal all interested parties will be informed of the decision,
which will be published electronically on the City of Cardiff Council’'s website.

Page 163 12



CONSULTATION RESPONSE FORM
(Proposed Co-ordinated Secondary School Admission A rrangements)

Your views matter, please tell us what you think about the proposal by:

» Completing and returning this questionnaire to the address given at the bottom of the
form or;

« Completing the online response form, which can be found at
www.cardiff.gov.uk/admissionarrangements or;

* E-mail your views to: schoolresponses@cardiff.gov.uk

Please note that all comments sent in writing or by e-mail must contain the full name
and full postal address of the person making the co mments.

The closing date for responses to this consultation is 23 January 2017. Unfortunately
responses received after this date are unable to be considered by the Council.

Responses received from consultees will be considered as part of the Admission
Arrangements Consultation Report.

Any responses received can be requested under the Freedom of Information Act and may
have to be made public, however any information that would identify an individual such as
an e-mail address, name or postal address would be removed.

Do you support the proposal to co-ordinate secondary school admissions for the Year 7 age
group?

Yes No

If you do not support the proposal, please give your reasons together with any changes or
alternatives that you would like to suggest.

Do you wish to make any other comments?

Page 164 13



NP2 1 1 1
Yo [0 | (=TT T

P OS I OO ... e

Eomall AU S, ... e e

Your status: Governor

Pupll

[]
Parent |:|
[]
[]

Staff
Other (please specify)

If Pupil/Parent: What year group are you/is your child in currently? ......................

Thank you for your comments.

Please tick the box below if you wish to be notified of publication of the consultation report:

Please return this form to arrive by 23 January 2017 to:
School Organisation Planning Team

Room 422

County Hall

Atlantic Wharf

Cardiff

CF10 4UwW

Page 165 14



Phillips, Rosalie

Appendix 3

of
19 -]

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Importance:

Dear Sir,

Andrew Skinner (G

21 January 2017 13:52
School Responses
Response to the Council's proposed schools' admission arrangements for 2018/19

High

| write on behalf of the Governing Body in response to the council’s consultation on proposed school
admission arrangements for 2018/19. Specifically the section on admissions to secondary schools.

Following a meeting with parents, we are concerned that the current oversubscription criteria unfairly
-penalises families resident in the partner secondary school catchment area who live in the primary school
catchment area around the school by virtue of their geographic distance to the secondary school when

~ . compared with the other three partner primary schools who are closer to the secondary school.

We would propose that in advance of proximity from home to the secondary school (proposed
oversubscription criteria 6) that family longevity of residence (or other similar criteria that removes the
unfairness of proximity) should take precedence to proximity.

Further we are also concerned that whilst parents attention was drawn to the consultation on Co-ordinated
Secondary School Admission, they were not equally advised by, the Local Authority of the consultation on
proposed school admission arrangements for 2018/19. ( ) )

| would welcome your feedback on this e-mail.

Regards,
Andrew Skinner

Chair of Governors
Marlborough Primary School

Blenheim Road
Roath

Cardiff

CF23 5BU

Tel: 029 20492564
Fax: 029 20470072

website: marlboroughprimary.com

twitter: @marlboroughpri

email: marlboroughprm@cardiff.gov.uk

Page 166



Page 167



Phillips, Rosalie W - lake ‘33

From: Boyle, Joe (Clir)

Sent: 23 January 2017 16:07

To: School Responses

Cc: Kelloway, Bill (ClIr); Burfoot, Patricia (Clir)
Subject: Admissions policy 2018/19 consultation

Re. Response to the School Admissions Policy 2017/18
We are writing, as elected members for Penylan, to request an amendment to the School Admission Policy 2017/18.

We believe that the current system of allocating places on the basis of proximity as a tie-breaker in the case of over-
subscription is unfair. :

Our opinion is shaped by the current over-subscription problem faced by many Penylan residents as they seek a place
for their children at Cardiff High School. However, this is not a unique problem and is one faced elsewhere in the city.

| The use of proximity alone means relying on one arbitrary measure, enshrines unfairness and is open to abuse. There is
enough evidence to show that parents play the school admissions system by moving into the catchment area of a
popular school late in their child’s time at primary school. Although this may not break any current rules, it is unfair on
families who have lived in a community all their lives and who have an expectation that their child will be able to attend
their local community school.

In the current consultation regarding a co-ordinated secondary school admissions process, the council makes the
following, valid point in justifying those proposals:

Considering Community Impact:
There is a need for a fairer, more equitable system of allocating school places in Cardiff without impacting
adversely on the community.

We agree with this. However, this is an acknowledgement that the council needs to deal with broader problems within
the current admissions process, with the proximity criteria being the most glaring example of how unfairness is built
into the system.

/ In addition, one of the guiding principles of the Welsh Government’s School Admissions Code is that admissions must
not be based on criteria that are ‘arbitrary in nature’. We would argue that distance (proximity to school) is an arbitrary
measure and certainly no more nor less arbitrary than another fundamental measure, namely time (length of
residence). There is nothing inherent in the concept of ‘distance’ that makes it more or less arbitrary than ‘time’.

For those who would argue that distance is a better measure than time, paragraph 2.29 of the Code, relating to
undesirable over-subscription criteria, makes no mention of time or, for that matter, distance. To give preference to one
or the other is, therefore, an arbitrary decision. The Code, it could be argued, presents a skewed argument by giving
added weight to distance in paragraphs 2.48 — 2.50. The claim that ‘distance between home and school is a clear and
objective oversubscription criterion and is useful as a tie-breaker’ could easily be rewritten as ‘length of residence in a
catchment area is a clear and objective oversubscription criterion and is useful as a tie-breaker’.

If this argument is accepted, then it is surely right to reconsider the use of distance as the tie-breaker in cases of over-
subscription. Returning to the council’s own words, the key factor should be the matter of fairness. The point is a

Page 168



familiar one: is it fair that families who have lived in a catchment area all their lives should be ‘gazumped’ by a family
that moves in a week before the cut-off point for submitting an admission? We believe it is not fair.

Therefore, we suggest the council rewrites the admissions policy ahead of its ratification by the council’s cabinet. We
believe there are two options:

1. Length of residence in a catchment area becomes the tie-breaker in the case of over-subscription.

2. Recognising that, on the basis of the argument above, time is as arbitrary a measure as distance, the council
could introduce a points-based tie-breaker, based on an aggregate of both proximity to the school and length of
residence. Mathematically, this is not complicated. In crude terms, it might look something like this (the
gradations would, of course, have to be a great deal finer):

Distance from school {metres)
500m | 1000m | 1500m | 2000m | 2500m | 3000m | 3500m | 4000m

- 0 93 57 91 50 85 88 87 86
g 1 54 93 92 91 90 89 88 87
5 _ |2 55 2% 93 92 31 90 89 88
8T 3 96 35 94 93 92 51 90 89
55 | 97 96 95 9 93 92 91 50
£ 5 98 97 96 35 9 93 92 51
Ef 6 99 98 97 26 95 94 93 92

72 100 99 98 97 96 95 vy 93

So, for example, Family A lives 1000m away and has been there for 5 years. They would accrue 97 points. Family
B lives 500m away and has lived there for two years. They would accrue 95 points. In the situation of a tie-
break, the place would be given to Family A. [This is purely illustrative.]

A system such as this could deter families from parachuting into a catchment area, while avoiding the trap of
replacing one arbitrary measure with another.

In conclusion, we believe the policy as currently stated is not fit for purpose. We believe it does not meet the council’s
own stated aims of a fair admissions policy. We are therefore asking for amendments to be made to the policy before it
is presented to cabinet for approval, removing the reliance on proximity alone as a tie-breaker in cases of over-
subscription. We believe we have presented two options that could help remove unfairness from the admissions
process.

Regards,

Joe Boyle, Bill Kelloway, Tricia Burfoot
Councillors for Penylan

Page 169



Appendix 4
@/ANS I |G

St Teilo’s CIW High School

1. In principle the Governing Body supports the process that you are consulting
upon. Representatives of the Governing Body and school attended your recent
meeting and conveyed this view.

2. With regard to comments upon individual school Admissions Policies, the Full
Governing Body is currently reviewing the St. Teilo’s Admission Policy for 2018
Year 7 Entry and may make minor adjustments as it seeks fit, but will be unable

to do so before the prescribed 27t January date. We would hope to be in a
position to confirm this by the end of February.

On behalf of the Chair of Governors of St. Teilo’'s CIW High School
Kind regards
Andy Lewis

Clerk to the Governing Body

Page 170



Chls [ 4g
The Bishop of Llandaff
Church-in-Wales High School

Roakwiood Close » Llandaff » Carchif « CFS 2HR
Tel « 029 20%6 2485 Fax » (129 2057 862
Emait » schooloffeembishopolllandall. cry

UL LLLEL T Headteacher » Marc Belli

Mr Denton-Smith

School Organisation Team Project Officer
School Organisational Planning

City of Cardiff Council

County Hall

CF10 4UW

6% February 2017

Dear Mr Denton-Smith,
Re: Response to the consultation on Co-ordinated Secondary School Admission Arrangements

I refer to your correspondence with the Clerk to the Governors on this matter. The Governors of The Bishop
of Llandaff Ciw High School have discussed this at a Full Governing Body meeting and again at the most
recent Admissions Committee meeting on 11% January. It is the governors’ view that the proposed
admissions process will add another level to a process that is unnecessary for the school. There are
processes in place for the admissions to the school that are effectively managed. The governors understand
the complications around the admissions process but at present do not feel the new format would be
beneficial.

On page 5 it states that the local authority already has an online system for applications but you will be
aware that The Bishop of Llandaff High School does not. Consequently, it is a bigger step for the school than
it would be for many others to change to the co-ordinated online system. Would there be a shared online
system? Who would maintain the system and who would pick up the cost?

It is difficult to follow the logic on page 7 that more pupils would be offered their preferred school as a
consequence of the co-ordinated system. The school is limited in the humber of Foundation and Community
places it can offer which cannot be affected by the application system. Similarly, knowing which children will
be admitted does not assist the school to plan its budget, class organisation or staffing arrangements.

As for resources, ranking all applicants would significantly increase the workload of the admissions staff. It is
also not clear why this proposal would result in fewer appeals as there will still be significant numbers of
unsuccessful applicants due to the limit on places, not the system of application, as acknowledged in the
section on Transport which recognises there is no change in the supply of school places.

The Governors do not wish to be part of a pilot for such an important process, given the disruption and
uncertainty of making the change in a live admissions environment. The preference is for the pilot to be
conducted and the school would consider the situation again once the problems of a new county-wide
system have been ironed out.

Yours sincerely,

Ian Phillips
Chair of Admissions Committee/Vice Chair of Governors

Page 171



CALL | 1us

From: Brian Gray [mailto:brigcardiff@aol.com]

Sent: 17 January 2017 15:50

To: Services, Governor <G.Services@cardiff.gov.uk>

Subject: Re: REMINDER: Co-ordinated Secondary School Admission Arrangements Consultation

Dear Michell,

Just to inform you that S llityd's would like to be part of this admission pilot scheme.
If you need any further details, lease let me know.

Many thanks

Fr Brian Gray
Chair of Gvernors
St lltyd's Catholic High School

Sent from my iPad

Page 172



C’N(o{ -

From: Mullins, Barbara

Sent: 17 lanuary 2017 14:40

To: Sambell, Julie <).Sambell@cardiff.gov.uk>
Cc: Kath Brown <SAK41@hotmail.co.uk>
Subject: Co-ordinated Admission Arrangements

Dear Julie

Further to our telephone conversation, | write to confirm that the matter of Co-ordinated Admission
Arrangements was discussed at our Governors’ Meeting on 10 January 2017.

In the interests of trying to make the whole system fairer for everybody concerned, the decision has
been made to support the pilot. It was also agreed, however, that if the new system does not work

well, Governors will reassess the situation when discussing the school’s Admissions Policy before the
end of the pilot.

Hopefully, everything will go well. We look forward to learning of further training in the new
system.

Yours sincerely

ngelw Fhomas
Sondveachor

CORPUS CHRISTI HIGH SCHOOL YSGOL UWCHRADD CORFUS CHRISTI
Ty Draw Road Heol Ty Draw

Lisvane Llysfaen

CARDIFF CF23 6XL CAERDYDD CF23 6XL

Tel : 029 20761893 Tel : 029 20761893

Email : bmullins@cardiff.sov.uk Ebost : bmullins@@cardiff.eov.uk
www.corpuschristihs.co.uk www.corpuschristihs.co.uk

Page 173



(Bl [of

Mary Immaculate RC High School

Notes for Admissions Consultation

The Governors Admissions Committee met Wednesday January 11t at 10am. Members
had had sight of the proposals prior to the meeting.

General Points

1. We felt that the current window to comment on this proposal is too narrow and has
therefore not allowed a full discussion at Governors. Most Governors meet every
half term, meaning, depending on the deadlines set, Governors should be able to
meet to discuss. The narrow window of opportunity has meant this is not possible
and is a discouraging beginning to the situation;

2. We feel that a three year trial period is much too long; pilot programmes are rarely
of such length because of the need to supply a more immediate assessment of
progress. We would suggest a more limited geographical and time-limited approach; -

3. We would like to know what the proposed monies are set aside for additional

' staffing or technical demands, given the expansion of the ex{sting system.

Notes from Admissions Proposal document

a. P.6—where you say that ‘192 parents are holding 205 places’; we felt this phrase
needed further explanation — for example could this be resolved by having a stricter
approach to accepting places as apportioned within a narrower time window?

b. P.7 —what evidence can you cite to support the comment ‘Children would have a
better experience and more effective start to school”? If parents are unhappy with
the current system, can you please outline the number and type of complaints you
have received?

c. What would happen if a pupil were noted as a category 1 entrant in multiple schools
— who would define where they would go? When and how would the successful
school be notified? We feel it would be necessary to have a transparent approach so
that schools could see where they were ranked by parents.

d. Where is parental choice if they are only offered one option? (p.8) How could you
be sure that they would be offered their preferred school — what data can you use to
support this assumption? )

€. What would happen if a parent only expressed a choice for one school and no other?
What would then happen if they did not gain admission to that school?

Page 174



f.  You say that continuing the current system would lead to an increase in inequality;
at our school the number of appeals has reduced (even though the number of
unsuccessful applications has remained the same) as our systems have become more
efficient in supporting parents.

g. What would happen if parents filled in the common form but did not fill in the school
form? What does the common form look like (we should have sight of this prior to
any decision), how does it operate and is the ICT system sufficiently robust to cope
with this demand. Can parents only choose a VA school?

h. If you say ‘there is little or no effect on the numbers on roll’ (p.8), what do you
presume the effect would be —what is your evidence?

i. How would the system be affected if we accepted pupils from another borough?

These are key points that would need to be addressed prior to the Governors allowing Mary
Immaculate to participate in any new system. We do feel that there are too many
unknowns and too many un-evidenced assumptions to make a definitive decision. We
certainly feel there needs to be a narrower trial to ensure these assumptions could be
tested.

We look forward to your consideration of these points
H.J.Powell

Headteacher

On behalf of the Governors Admissions Panel

Page 175



A6 [ -

Whitchurch High School
Penlline Road
Whitchurch

Cardiff

23" January 2017

Dear Mr Batchelar
CO-ORDINATED SCHOOL ADMISSIONS ARRANGEMENTS

I am responding on behalf of the governing bedy of Whitchurch High School
to the local authority’s consultation regarding the proposed co-ordinated
secondary school admissions with effect from 2018.

The governing body wishes to give full consideration to this proposal but there
are some concerns and queries arising from the consultation. These will also
need to be discussed before a final decision is made.

1. The proposal removes the right of parents to apply to more than one
admission authority and thereby affects the rights of children. The
consultation document does not make this clear and whilst the majority of
parents already know which school they wish to apply to, there are parents
and children who do not know in the Autumn Term which school their child is
going to want/need in the following Autumn. | am thinking particularly of
families who may wish to change the nature of the school involved eg
currently in a Welsh-medium school but the family and child need to decide
whether this is still the best option for secondary school; move to faith
education in the secondary sector, etc. Such families are not catered forin a
system asking them to list three school choices.

‘The process of starting school or tfransferring between schools can be a time
of uncertainty and anxiety therefore it is essential that the principles of
fairness and openness are applied to all aspects of school admissions.’
(School Admissions Code)

The governors concern is that the proposal seems to have lost sight of the
needs of certain children and is focused upon making the admission process
easier for admission authorities.

2. The on-line consultation response form lacks relevance. It would have
been useful to have targeted parents of Years 3, 4 &5 in primary schools,
those who would take part in the pilot scheme. As far as | can see there is no
way of knowing whether any of the respondents have children in these year
groups and likely to be affected.

3. Many of the authority's challenges around admission appeals are due to
planning of school places issues (there are insufficient places for pupils in the
right areas of Cardiff). Coming together as a shared admission service will
not solve this and although the authority has indicated its strategic plans to

Page 176




enhance secondary school places in the East and West of the City these are
unlikely to be in place for 2018 so that appeals are likely to be a current
levels, if not greater.

4. The governors would have liked to consult with their parents and
particularly parents in feeder schools but the timescale does not allow for this.

5. The governors are concerned that the consultation documents indicates
that the governing body would be required to sign up for a three year period.
As the school is an Admission Authority it is felt that the local authority cannot
remove this statutory right by any written contract nor would the governing
body require the approval of Officers of the authority to carry out such
functions. The governors would be happy to sign an agreement, in the right
circumstances, but this seems heavy-handed and lacks the respect we would
like to see in partnership working.

It is ‘unclear from the consultation document whether the co-ordinated

school admission arrangements will proceed if some of the secondary
admission authorities do not sign up to the co-ordinated school admission

afrangements.
7
e g W
Joyce Sldck :
Chair » LkAd) LDty

Yours faithfully

Page 177




R [L9
Radyr Comprehensive School

The proposal would make things a lot easier for schools and remove the fears that
some parents have with other children holding more than one place.

Andrew Williams
Headteacher _
Radyr Comprehensive

Page 178



Cdlo ’03

Phillips, Rosalie

From: TStephens <TStephens@cathays.cardiff.sch.uk>
Sent: 06 December 2016 08:50

To: School Responses

Subject: Admissions arrangements

| agree with the proposal for the admissions arrangements to change from 2018/19. For Cathays High School who admit
pupils from all over the city and from a large number of primary schools we currently suffer from the situation where
parents apply to us and to other secondary schools, therefore our admission number in March is never the same as the
pupils that turn up in September. The new arrangements will mean we can plan using the list that is supplied in March
and plan accordingly.

Page 179



OMb( 149
Fitzalan High School

We have struggled for many years to seek a coordinated approach and so this new
proposal would go a long way to achieving this. At present we have to request from
parents via our close links with primary schools as to which school they wish to take
up and even then this often turns out not to be the case in September. We do however
still have a concern across different authorities as the number of our cluster pupils who
hold places in the Vale will still continue. The major concern that we still have is that
our cluster is still too large. Even with increasing our pupil numbers to 300 (which we
do not have space for) there are still over 600 pupils in our 9 cluster schools — this still
will pose a very large problem for our parents. We also believe that more needs to be
done to accommodate the high numbers of families that we have who do not speak
English and do not have an email address let alone access to the internet at home.
The new Hub/online system has proved particular challenging this year and so any
future changes would need to be mindful off this. We have met with Julie Samball this
year to address these concerns and have offered to pilot or consult on the impact of
any proposed changes.

Best wishes
Yvonne Roberts-Ablett
Head of KS2 (transition) and KS3

Fitzalan High School, Cardiff.
Ysgol Uwchradd Fitzalan, Caerdydd.

Page 180



Phillips, Rosalie Ch\b[0%

From: John Hayes <JDH@plasmawr.cardiff.sch.uk>

Sent: 15 January 2017 17:14

To: School Responses

Cc: Catrin Redknap

Subject: Consultation response re Secondary School Admission Arrangements

Response by: John Hayes, Headteacher, Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Plasmawr on behalf of the school's governing
body. ’

Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Plasmawr

Pentrebane Rd

Fairwater

Cardiff

CF5 3Pz

The Governing Body approve the proposal to co-ordinate secondary school admissions for the Year 7 age
group.

Other comments: Members of the Governing Body are pleased to know that officers are monitoring birth
rates; the yield from proposed housing and the patterns of take up in Welsh medium provision at primary and
secondary age with a view to bringing forward appropriate plans to meet the increased demand. The
Governing Body would wish to be consulted with at an early stage of any proposal that would have an impact
on the admission number or existing catchment of Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Plasmawr.

Page 181



Phillips, Rosalie

From: Boyle, Joe (Cllr)

Sent: 23 January 2017 15:40

To: School Responses

Cc: Kelloway, Bill (ClIr); Burfoot, Patricia (Cllr)

Subject: Coordinated secondary school admissions proposals

Re. Coordinated secondary school admissions arrangements, 2018-20

We are writing, as elected members for Penylan, to support the council’s proposals for co-ordinated secondary school
admissions. We believe these are sensible proposals. They may reduce some of the pressure being faced by many
residents in our ward in their efforts to secure a place for their children at their catchment school, Cardiff High.

We are confident the proposals will not have an adverse impact on any one particular group and therefore do not fall
foul of any equality requirements.

Finally, we note that many children in Penylan still look likely to miss out on a place at their catchment area, irrespective
( of these proposals. There is no guarantee that a co-ordinated admissions policy will have any impact on that pressure,
as many families may simply choose to list Cardiff High School as their preferred choice and opt out of the non-

community route altogether.

Penylan residents need a longer term solution. With additional year groups in three of Cardiff High’s partner primary
schools beginning to rise through the system, that solution is needed in short order.

Regards,

Joe Boyle, Bill Kelloway, Tricia Burfoot
Councillors for Penylan

Page 182



Appendix 5

School Admission Arrangements 2018/2019 and Co- ,\{g\_fé
ordinated Secondary School Arrangements 2018-2020 (ﬁ'(.}\lsl__l__
CAERDY DI

Statutory Screening Tool Guidance

If you are developing a strategy, policy or activity that is likely to impact people, communities or
land use in any way then there are a number of statutory requirements that apply. Failure to
comply with these requirements, or demonstrate due regard, can expose the Council to legal
challenge or other forms of reproach.

For instance, this will apply to strategies (i.e. Housing Strategy or Disabled Play Strategy),
policies (i.e. Procurement Policy) or activity (i.e. developing new play area).

Completing the Statutory Screening Tool will ensure that all Cardiff Council strategies, policies
and activities comply with relevant statutory obligations and responsibilities. Where a more
detailed consideration of an issue is required, the Screening Tool will identify if there is a need
for a full impact assessment, as relevant.

The main statutory requirements that
strategies, policies or activities must reflect include:

e Equality Act 2010 - Equality Impact Assessment

e Welsh Government’s Sustainable Development Bill

e Welsh Government’s Statutory Guidance - Shared Purpose Shared Delivery
¢ United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child

¢ United Nations Principles for Older Persons

¢ Welsh Language Measure 2011

¢ Health Impact Assessment

¢ Habitats Regulations Assessment

e Strategic Environmental Assessment

This Statutory Screening Tool allows us to meet all the requirements of all these pieces of
legislation as part of an integrated screening method that usually taken no longer than an

hour.

The Screening Tool can be completed as a self assessment or as part of a facilitated session,
should further support be needed. For further information or if you require a facilitated session
please contact the Policy, Partnerships and Citizen Focus Team on 2078 8563 e-mail:
siadavies@cardiff.gov.uk. Please note:

- The completed Screening Tool must be submitted as an appendix with the Cabinet report.

s ’& — The completed screening tool will be published on the intranet.
CARDITE Statutory Screening Tool
CAERDYDD
Name of Strategy / Policy / Activity: Date of Screening:
February 2017
Service Area/Section: Education & Lifelong Lead Officer: Michele Duddridge Hossain
Learning

Attendees: Self assessment rage los



http://cmsweb.cardiff.gov.uk/cardiff/content.asp?nav=3026,3050&parent_directory_id=3094
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/sustainabledevelopment/sdbill/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/improvingservices/publicationsevents/publications/sharedpurpdel/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/childrenyoungpeople/rights/uncrc/?lang=en
http://www.olderpeoplewales.com/en/about/UN-principles.aspx
http://www.cardiff.gov.uk/content.asp?nav=2872,3259,5018&parent_directory_id=2865&id=2477&d1p1=1
http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sites3/home.cfm?orgid=522
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/1843/introduction/made
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/environmentcountryside/consmanagement/sea/?lang=en
mailto:siadavies@cardiff.gov.uk

What are the objectives of the
Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/
Service/Function

Please provide background information on the
Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function
and any research done [e.g. service users data against

demographic statistics, similar EIAs done etc.]

This EQIA is regarding the City of Cardiff
Council School Admission Arrangement’s
2017/2018 and Co-ordinated Secondary
School Admission Arrangements 2018-
2020.

The aim of both these proposals is to
create a fairer, more equitable system of
allocating school places in Cardiff.

The School Admission Arrangements must be
determined for implementation in September 2018. The
draft School Admissions Policy 2018/19 was issued for
consultation on 05 December 2016.

There were minimal changes for 2018/19, and these
were regarding clarification of the proximity measurement
of pupils living in the same building i.e. flats/apartments.
In such instances, the route assessment will be
determined from the front entrance of each dwelling.

In conjunction with this, a public consultation on the
proposed introduction of co-ordinated admission
arrangements for the Year 7 age group for intakes in
September 2018, September 2019 and September 2020
was undertaken.

Page 184




Part 1: Impact on outcomes and due regard to Sustainable Development

Please use the following scale when considering what contribution the activity makes:

+ Positive | Positive contribution to the outcome

Negative

Negative contribution to the outcome

ntrl Neutral Neutral contribution to the outcome

Uncertain Not Sure | Uncertain if any contribution is made to the outcome

Has the Strategy/Policy/Activity Please Tick Evidence or suggestion for
considered how it will impact one or " : improvement/mitigation
more of Cardiff’s 7 Citizen focused + -0

Outcomes? tn

1. | People in Cardiff are healthy; n/a

1 | Consider the potential impact on

e the promotion of good health,
prevention of damaging behaviour,
promote healthy eating/active
lifestyles etc,

e vulnerable citizens and areas of
multiple deprivation

e Addressing instances of inequality in

health
1. | People in Cardiff have a clean, n/a
2 | attractive and sustainable

environment;

Consider the potential impact on

e the causes and consequences of
Climate Change and creating a carbon
lite city

e encouraging walking, cycling, and use n/a
of public transport and improving
access to countryside and open space

e reducing environmental pollution n/a
(land, air, noise and water)
e reducing consumption and n/a

encouraging waste reduction, reuse,
recycling and recovery

e encouraging biodiversity n/a
1. | People in Cardiff are safe and feel n/a
3 | safe;

Consider the potential impact on

e reducing crime, fear of crime and
increasing safety of individuals

e addressing anti-social behaviour

e protecting vulnerable adults and
children in Cardiff from harm or
abuse

=

Cardiff has a thriving and prosperous n/a
4 | economy;

Consider the potential impact on

e economic competitiveness (enterprise

Page 185




Has the Strategy/Policy/Activity

Please Tick

Evidence or suggestion for

considered how it will impact one or " : improvement/mitigation
more of Cardiff’s 7 Citizen focused + |-
Outcomes? tn
activity, social enterprises, average
earnings, improve productivity)
e Assisting those Not in Education,
Employment or Training
e qttracting and retaining workers (new
employment and training
opportunities, increase the value of
employment,)
e promoting local procurement
opportunities or enhancing the
capacity of local companies to
compete
People in Cardiff achieve their full The draft School Admissions Policy and the
.. co-ordinated admissions arrangements
potential; . .
. Lo proposal seek to ensure fair, more equitable
Consider the potential impact on system of allocating school places in Cardiff.
e promoting and improving access to | x
life-long learning in Cardiff
e raising levels of skills and
qualifications
e giving children the best start
e improving the understanding of
sustainability
e addressing child poverty (financial
poverty, access poverty, participation
poverty)
e the United Nations Convention on the
Rights of a Child and Principles for
Older persons
Cardiff is a Great Place to Live, Work Please see 1.5
and Play
Consider the potential impact on
e promoting the cultural diversity of
Cardiff
e encouraging participation and access
for all to physical activity, leisure &
culture
e play opportunities for Children and Young
People
e protecting and enhancing the
landscape and historic heritage of
Cardiff
e promoting the City’s international
links
Cardiff is a fair, just and inclusive X Please see 1.5
society.
Consider the potential impact on
e the elimination of discrimination,
harassment or victimisation for
equality groups

Page 186




Has the Strategy/Policy/Activity Please Tick Evidence or suggestion for
considered how it will impact one or vl improvement/mitigation

more of Cardiff’s 7 Citizen focused = n e

Outcomes? tn

e has the community or stakeholders X The draft School Admissions Policy was

been engaged in developing the
strategy/policy/activity?

e how will citizen participation be
encouraged (encouraging actions that
consider different forms of
consultation, through more in depth
engagement to full participation in
service development and delivery)?

issued for consultation on 05 December 2016
to all those the Council are required to consult
with as set out in the Welsh Government
School admissions code (headteachers,
governing bodies, diocesan directors,
neighbouring local education authorities).

Additionally the Policy was published on the
Council  website  which  provided the
opportunity for parents and other interested
parties to comment. Responses were
requested to be returned by 23 January 2017.

The Co-ordinated Admission Arrangements
consultation process ran from 05 December
2016 to 23 January 2017 and involved:

e Publication of a Consultation Document
on the Council website (a copy of the
consultation document can be see
Apppendix 2).

e Distribution of a letter via schools to
parents of all pupils in maintained
nursery and primary schools outlining the
proposal and giving details of how to

access the Consultation Document
online. (a copy of the letter can be seen
at Appendix 3);

e Six public drop in sessions where officers
were available to answer questions;
e A consultation response slip for return by

post or e-mail, attached to the
consultation document;
e An online response form at

www.cardiff.gov.uk/21st Century Schools

The views expressed at Council organised
drop in sessions and on paper or electronically
through the appropriate channels, have been
recorded.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT (This is
attached on page 12)

=

The Council delivers positive

outcomes for the city and its citizens

through strong partnerships

Consider the potential impact on

e strengthening  partnerships
business and voluntary sectors

e the collaboration agenda and the
potential for shared services, cross-
boundary working and efficiency

with

N/A

Page 187



http://www.cardiff.gov.uk/21st

Has the Strategy/Policy/Activity Please Tick Evidence or suggestion for
considered how it will impact one or vl improvement/mitigation
more of Cardiff’s 7 Citizen focused + - o
Outcomes? tn

savings

SUMMARY OF APPRAISAL (highlight positive and negative effects of the policy / plan / project b
it contributes to the economic, social and environmental sustainability of the city):

School Admission Arrangement’s 2017/2018 -
To equitably administer the admission of eligible children to nursery, primary and secondary classes/schools based
accordance with the admissions criteria detailed in the City of Cardiff Council's School Admissions Policy.

Co-ordinated Secondary School Admission Arrangements 2018-2020-
There are currently no formal co-ordinated admission arrangements in Wales despite there being recognition of the
arrangements for admissions in Cardiff, which has 30 Admission Authorities.

A c-ordinated secondary school admission arrangements process would provide more parents with a single school
fairer, more equitable system of allocating school places in Cardiff.

WHAT ACTIONS HAVE BEEN IDENTIFIED OR CHANGES BEEN MADE TO THE POLICY / PLAN / PROJ
APPRAISAL:

None.

Part 2: Strategic Environmental Assessment Screening

Yes No

2.1 | Does the plan or programme set the framework for future X

development consent?
2.2 | |s the plan or programme likely to have significant, positive or X

negative, environmental effects?
Is a Full Strategic Environmental Assessment Screening | Yes No
Needed? X

= |f yes has been ticked to both questions 2.1 and An SEA has been
2.2 then the answer is yes undertaken
(attached)

= |f a full SEA Screening is required then please
contact the Sustainable Development Unit to
arrange (details below)

If you have any doubt on your answers to the above questions regarding SEA then please consult
with the Sustainable Development Unit on 2087 3228 sustainabledevelopment@cardiff.gov.uk

Part 3: Habitat Regulation Assessment (HRA)

Yes No Unsure

3.1 | Will the plan, project or programme results in an activity X
which is known to affect a European site, such as the Severn

Page 188


mailto:sustainabledevelopment@cardiff.gov.uk

Estuary or the Cardiff Beech Woods?

3.2 | Will the plan, project or programme which steers X
development towards an area that includes a European site,
such as the Severn Estuary or the Cardiff Beech Woods or
may indirectly affect a European site?

3.3 | Is a full HRA needed? X

Details of the strategy will be sent to the County Ecologist on completion of the process to determine if a Habitat
Regulation Assessment is needed. For further information please phone 2087 3215 or email biodiversity@cardiff.gov.uk

Page 189



Appendix 1 — Statutory Requirements

It is possible that the Impact Screening Tool will identify the need to undertake specific statutory
assessments:

e Equality Impact Assessment: This assessment is required by the Equality Act 2010 and Welsh
Government’s Equality Regulations 2011.

e Sustainable Development Bill: The Bill, when it comes into effect, will require sustainable
development (SD) to be a central organising principle for the organisation. This means that there is a
duty to consider SD in the strategic decision making processes.

e Shared Purpose Shared Delivery- The Welsh Government requires local authorities to produce a single
integrated plan to meet statutory requirements under a range of legislation. Cardiff Council must
therefore demonstrate its contribution towards Cardiff’s own integrated plan; “What Matters”.

¢ United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child: The Children Act 2004 guidance for Wales
requires local authorities and their partners to have regard to the United Nations Convention on the
Rights of a Child.

¢ United Nations Principles for Older Persons: The principles require a consideration of independence,
participation, care, self-fulfillment and dignity.

e The Welsh Language Measure 2011: The measure sets out official status for the Welsh language, a
Welsh language Commissioner, and the freedom to speak Welsh.

¢ Health Impact Assessment: (HIA) considers policies, programmes or projects for their potential effects

on the health of a population

e Strategic Environmental Impact Assessment: A Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) is an
European Directive for plans, programmes and policies with land use implications and significant
environmental effects.

o Habitats Regulations Assessment: The Conservation (Natural Habitats, &c.) (Amendment) Regulations
2007 provides a requirement to undertake Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) of land use plans.

PHfEoroD

8


http://cmsweb.cardiff.gov.uk/cardiff/content.asp?nav=3026,3050&parent_directory_id=3094
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/sustainabledevelopment/sdbill/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/improvingservices/publicationsevents/publications/sharedpurpdel/?lang=en
http://www.cardiffpartnership.co.uk/content.asp?nav=260&parent_directory_id=2
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/childrenyoungpeople/rights/uncrc/?lang=en
http://www.olderpeoplewales.com/en/about/UN-principles.aspx
http://www.cardiff.gov.uk/content.asp?nav=2872,3259,5018&parent_directory_id=2865&id=2477&d1p1=1
http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sites3/home.cfm?orgid=522
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/environmentcountryside/consmanagement/sea/?lang=en
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/1843/introduction/made

\
N

Corporate Template _CARDIFF
CAERDYDD

Equality Impact Assessment

~\\

Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function Title:
School Admission Arrangements 2017/2018 and Co-ordinated Secondary School Arrangements 2018-2020

New

Who is responsible for developing and implementing the Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function?

Name: Job Title: Operational Manager, Planning & Provision
Michele Duddridge Hossain

Service Team: Service Area:

Schools Organisation, Planning (SOAP) Education

Assessment Date: February 2017

1.

2.

3.1

What are the objectives of the Policy/Strategy/Project/ Procedure/
Service/Function?

The aim of both these proposals is to ensure there is a fair, more equitable system of

allocating school places in Cardiff.

Please provide background information on the Policy/ Strategy / Project / Procedure /
Service / Function and any research done [e.g. service users data against demographic
statistics, similar EIAs done etc.]

Admission Authorities in Cardiff are committed to equality of opportunity and to eliminating
unlawful discrimination. In respect of admissions to schools, all pupils and prospective
pupils are treated equitably, regardless of gender, race, ethnicity, culture, nationality,
language, ability, disability or religious belief.

However, there are various exceptions for schools of a religious nature. Steps are taken to
ensure that admission procedures do not unfairly advantage or disadvantage any groups

through the application of rules or conditions that cannot be complied with equally by all.

Assess Impact on the Protected Characteristics
Age

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact
[positive/negative/] on younger/older people?

Yes No N/A
3to 11 years X
11 to 18 years X
18 - 65 years X
Over 65 years X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting evidence, if any.

The nature of the policy is such that it will inherently apply to the up-to-18 years age
group as it targets school and nursery aged children and young adults.

Whilst implementation of this policy would therefore have a differential impact, it

would not be regarded as prejudicial Patger p9g groups as they are not part of this

9




educational place provision process.

A co-ordinated secondary school admission arrangements process would provide
more parents with a single school place offer for their child, which would be a fairer,
more equitable system of allocating school places in Cardiff, and therefore be
unbiased across the protected characteristic groups to which it applies.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

A clear communication strategy would be developed to ensure that parents fully
understood the process and the need to use all available preferences.

If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:

N/A

3.2 Disability and Access

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact
[positive/negative] on disabled people?

Yes No N/A

Hearing Impairment X

Physical Impairment X

Visual Impairment X

Learning Disability X

Long-Standing lliness or Health X
Condition

Mental Health X
Substance Misuse X
Other X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting evidence, if any.

The Admissions Policy and the co-ordinated admissions arrangements proposal
have been developed in accordance with the requirements of the Equality Act 2010
throughout and in compliance with the Welsh Government's School Admissions
Code E.3 which states:

“An admission authority must not discriminate on the grounds of disability; gender
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; or sexual
orientation, against a person in the arrangements and decisions it makes as to who
is offered admission as a pupil.”

Differential impact could occur as the implementation of the School Admissions
Policy would allow for priority to be given to applicants for whom compelling medical
and/or compelling social grounds could be evidenced indicating particular needs.
This would be a positive impact if the degree of need was such that preferential
placement were to apply.

No differential impact would occur as the implementation of co-ordinated secondary
school admissions arrangements would not affect this protected characteristic. The
Education Act 1996 already gives preferential admission to pupils who have a
statement of Special Educational Needs (SEN) and the Council’s admission
arrangements which give a priority within the oversubscription criteria for pupils with
compelling medical grounds would remain unchanged by this proposal. All schools
have a statutory duty under the Equality Act 2010 to make provisions for pupils with
both physical, mental and learning disabilities within their SEN provision. The

Council devolves funding to schgeolsyiQ grgble them to comply with this obligation
T Mu\-’ e T

10



and provides additional county-wide provision in other areas.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:

N/A

3.3 Gender Reassignment

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact
[positive/negative] on transgender people?

Yes No N/A

Transgender People X
(People who are proposing to undergo, are
undergoing, or have undergone a process [or
part of a process] to reassign their sex by
changing physiological or other attributes of
sex)

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting evidence, if any.

The Admissions Policy and the co-ordinated admissions arrangements proposal
have been developed in accordance with the requirements of the Equality Act 2010
throughout and in compliance with the Welsh Government's School Admissions
Code E.3 which states:

“An admission authority must not discriminate on the grounds of disability; gender
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; or sexual
orientation, against a person in the arrangements and decisions it makes as to who
is offered admission as a pupil.”

No differential impact would occur as the implementation of the Schools Admissions
Policy or co-ordinated secondary school admission arrangements would not affect
this protected characteristic.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

N/A

If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:

. N/A

3.4. Marriage and Civil Partnership

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact
[positive/negative] on marriage and civil partnership?

Yes No N/A
Marriage X
Civil Partnership X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting evidence, if any.

No differential impact would occur as the implementation of the Schools Admissions
Policy or co-ordinated secondary school admission arrangements would not affect
this protected characteristic. Page 193

11



3.5

3.6

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

N/A

If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:

N/A

Preghancy and Maternity

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact
[positive/negative] on pregnancy and maternity?

Yes No N/A
Pregnancy X
Maternity X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting evidence, if any.

The Admissions Policy and the co-ordinated admissions arrangements proposal
have been developed in accordance with the requirements of the Equality Act 2010
throughout and in compliance with the Welsh Government's School Admissions
Code E.3 which states:

“An admission authority must not discriminate on the grounds of disability; gender
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; or sexual
orientation, against a person in the arrangements and decisions it makes as to who
is offered admission as a pupil.”

No differential impact would occur as the implementation of the Schools Admission
Policy or co-ordinated secondary school admission arrangements would not affect
this protected characteristic.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

N/A

If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:

N/A

Race

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project//Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact
[positive/negative] on the following groups?

Yes No N/A
White X
Mixed / Multiple Ethnic Groups X
Asian / Asian British X
Black / African / Caribbean / Black British X
Other Ethnic Groups X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting evidence, if any.

The Admissions Policy and the co-ordinated admissions arrangements proposal
have been developed in accordance with the requirements of the Equality Act 2010
throughout and in compliance with the Welsh Government's School Admissions
Code E.3 which states:

“An admission authority must nqLd

iscrimigate on the grounds of disability; gender
age 19

12




reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief, sex; or sexual
orientation, against a person in the arrangements and decisions it makes as to who
is offered admission as a pupil.”

No differential impact would occur as the implementation of the Schools Admission
Policy or co-ordinated secondary school admission arrangements would not affect
this protected characteristic.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

N/A

If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:

The proposal would not have a differential impact upon one particular ethnic group as the
provision would be available to all.

3.7 Religion, Belief or Non-Belief

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact
[positive/negative] on people with different religions, beliefs or non-beliefs?

Yes No N/A

Buddhist

Christian

Hindu

Humanist

X | X | X [X [X

Jewish

Muslim

x

Sikh

X | X

Other

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting evidence, if any.

The Admissions Policy and the co-ordinated admissions arrangements proposal
have been developed in accordance with the requirements of the Equality Act 2010
throughout and in compliance with the Welsh Government's School Admissions
Code E.3 which states:

“An admission authority must not discriminate on the grounds of disability; gender
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; or sexual
orientation, against a person in the arrangements and decisions it makes as to who
is offered admission as a pupil.”

Church Schools are their own admissions authority and will not be impacted by
implementation of the Local Authority’s Schools Admission Policy.

The Schools Admission Policy does not differentiate between applicants of differing
belief systems who apply to attend Community funded Schools and hence no
differential impact would occur.

The current system allows for parents to apply to multiple Admission Authorities with
the potential of their child to be offered multiple school places. Within the Cardiff
county area there are two secondary school Admission Authorities which are Church
in Wales Schools and three secondary school Admission Authorities which are
Roman Catholic Schools, these are all Voluntary Aided Schools.

Applicants who meet the higher admissions criterion for Voluntary Aided Schools i.e.
baptised and/or dedicated/contributor to the life and work of either the Church in
Wales or Roman Catholic Church are allocated above other applicants within their
oversubscription criteria in accordan@a@t@ theSchool Admissions Code. Pupils of

13



3.8

these faiths are therefore more likely to be currently offered a place at more than
one school, only one of which they could take upfrom the beginning of term.

Where a child has received a multi school offer consequently this means another
child has not been allocated the school place. Where this multi school offer relates
to a Voluntary Aided School, unsuccessful applicants for this school are
disadvantaged and where this relates to a Community School, unsuccessful
applicants for this school are also disadvantaged.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

The Council will remain sensitive to the needs of religious communities seeking faith
place provision.

The communication strategy would be emphasised in Church in Wales and Roman
Catholic Primary Schools to ensure that applicants to Church in Wales and Roman
Catholic Secondary Schools are not disadvantaged.

If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:

N/A

Sex

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact
[positive/negative] on men and/or women?

Yes No N/A

Men

Women

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting evidence, if any.

The Admissions Policy and the co-ordinated admissions arrangements proposal
have been developed in accordance with the requirements of the Equality Act 2010
throughout and in compliance with the Welsh Government's School Admissions
Code E.3 which states:

“An admission authority must not discriminate on the grounds of disability; gender
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief, sex; or sexual
orientation, against a person in the arrangements and decisions it makes as to who
is offered admission as a pupil.”

All schools to which the Admissions Policy applies are non-gender specific in
relation to their admissions criteria.

All schools to which their Admissions Authority is proposing to co-ordinate
secondary school admission arrangements are non-sex specific in relation to the
admissions critieria.

No differential impact would occur as implementation of the Schools Admissions
Policy or co-ordinated secondary school admission arrangements would not affect
this protected characteristic.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

N/A

If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:

N/A
Page 196

14




3.9

3.10

Sexual Orientation

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact
[positive/negative] on the following groups?

Yes No N/A
Bisexual X
Gay Men X
Gay Women X
Heterosexual X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting evidence, if any.

The Admissions Policy and the co-ordinated admissions arrangements proposal
have been developed in accordance with the requirements of the Equality Act 2010
throughout and in compliance with the Welsh Government's School Admissions
Code E.3 which states:

“An admission authority must not discriminate on the grounds of disability; gender
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; or sexual
orientation, against a person in the arrangements and decisions it makes as to who
is offered admission as a pupil.”

No differential impact would occur as the implementation of the Schools Admission
Policy or co-ordinated secondary school admission arrangements would not affect
this protected characteristic.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

N/A

If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:

N/A

Language

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential impact
[positive/negative] on Welsh Language?

Yes No N/A
Welsh Language X
Other languages X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting evidence, if any.

Currently Welsh-medium (WM) provision across Cardiff is proportionate to the city
wide demand. Implementation of the Schools Admission Policy does not
discriminate against applicants requiring WM provision.

As a consequence of the current demand being lower for WM than that for English-
medium (EM) provision, there are less WM schools than EM schools. The result of
this is that more of the population inevitably live closer to an EM school than a WM
school.

This is not a differential impact as a consequence of discrimination against or
different treatment of WM education, but the effect of a fewer number of WM

schools distributed across the city thgPdlpgse]® EM. The Local Authority’s transport

15




4.

policy by providing free transport for primary pupils living over 2 miles, and
secondary pupils living over 3 miles from their respective schools of attendance,
treats both EM and WM equally.

Details of the transport policy can be found at:
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/resident/Schools-andlearning/
Schools/School-transport

The current system allows for parents to apply to multiple Admission Authorities with
the potential of their child to be offered multiple school places. Where a child has
received a multi school offer, this consequently means another child has not been
allocated the school place. Where this multi school offer relates to a Community
Welsh-Medium School, unsuccessful applicants for this school are disadvantaged
and where this relates to an English-Medium School, unsuccessful applicants for
this school are disadvantaged.

As all of the alternative Admission Authorities, that is all Voluntary Aided and
Foundation Schools, operate through the medium of English, the impact of this
proposal is unlikely to have a substantial impact upon the Welsh-medium sector. As
implementing a co-ordinated secondary school admission arrangements system
between all English-Medium and Welsh-Medium schools would reduce the number
of school offers to one per pupil, applicants of any language preference would be
equally impacted by this proposal.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

N/A

If no differential impact, explain the reason(s) for this assessment:

N/A

Consultation and Engagement

What arrangements have been made to consult/engage with the various Equalities Groups?

Page 198

16




The draft School Admissions Policy was issued for consultation on 05 December
2016 to all those the Council are required to consult with as set out in the Welsh
Government School admissions code (headteachers, governing bodies, diocesan
directors, neighbouring local education authorities).

Additionally the Policy was published on the Council website which provided the
opportunity for parents and other interested parties to comment. Responses were
requested to be returned by 23 January 2017.

The Co-ordinated Admission Arrangements consultation process ran from 05
December 2016 to 23 January 2017 and involved:

e Publication of a Consultation Document on the Council website (a copy of the
consultation document can be see Apppendix 2).

e Distribution of a letter via schools to parents of all pupils in maintained nursery
and primary schools outlining the proposal and giving details of how to access
the Consultation Document online. (a copy of the letter can be seen at
Appendix 3);

e Six public drop in sessions where officers were available to answer questions;

e A consultation response slip for return by post or e-mail, attached to the
consultation document;

e An online response form at www.cardiff.gov.uk/21st Century Schools

The views expressed at Council organised drop in sessions and on paper or
electronically through the appropriate channels, have been recorded.

Summary of Actions [Listed in the Sections above]

Groups Actions

Age Communications strategy to support applicants
Disability None

Gender Reassignment None

Marriage & Civil Partnership None

Pregnancy & Materinity None

Race None

Religion/Belief The Council will remain sensitive to the needs of religious

communities seeking faith place provision
Communication strategy to include focus on Voluntary
Aided primary schools

Sex None
Sexual Orientation None
Welsh Language None

Generic Over-Arching (applicable to | None
all the above groups)

Further Action

Any recommendations for action that you plan to take as a result of this Equality Impact
Assessment (listed in Summary of Actions) should be included as part of your Service Area’s
Business Plan to be monitored on a regular basis.

Authorisation
The Template should be completed by the Lead Officer of the identified
Policy/Strategy/Project/Function and approved by the appropriate Manager in each Service

Area. Page 199

17



http://www.cardiff.gov.uk/21st

Completed By: Rachel Willis Date: February 2017
Designation: : School Organisation, Access & Planning
Approved By: Michele Duddridge Hossain
Designation: School Organisation, Access & Planning
Service Area: Education

Environmental Report: Sustainability Appraisal (SA) Incorporating Strategic Environmental
Assessment (SEA) of the School Organisation Planning proposal to provide additional
English-medium primary school places in the Radyr and Morganstown area of the city.

Background

In 2008, a retrospective Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) of Cardiffs 21% Century: A
Strategic Framework for a School Building Improvement Programme (published in 2006) was carried
out based on the guidance that supports the European SEA Directive 2001/42/EC.

The retrospective approach to assessment was quality assured by an external consultant and their
independent compliance review determined that the report detailing the assessment on the strategic
framework met the key requirements set out for reporting the SEA process as required by the SEA
Directive.

The retrospective assessment provides the basis for assessing current and future school organisation
proposals at a strategic level.

To request a copy of the assessment on the Strategic Framework please contact Rachel Willis,
029 2087 3946, RWillis@cardiff.gov.uk

Proposals:

School Admission Arrangements 2017/2018 and Co-ordinated Secondary
School Arrangements 2018-2020

An SEA is not applicable for the above proposals as involves neither the building or adaptation of
accommodation.

Page 200

18



Key:

XX

=very incompatible; very negative effect

=incompatible; negative effect

v

= compatible; positive effect

vv

=very compatible; very positive effect

0

=no links; neutral effect

? and/or mitigation

= uncertain effects

DNA

= data not available

See table headers below: * Comparison of the preferred option to a possible alternative option(s) are required in

a SA/SEA.

SEA objective Proposal

Meet demand by directing pupils to
area or neighbouring schools and/c

areas

Rating Commentary/ explanation of compatibility with SEA objective

Rating

Commentary/ explan
with SEA objective

1. Promote a
greener economy
by delivering a
sustainable pattern
of schools across
Cardiff

2. Reduce
greenhouse gas
emissions through:

a)

Energy efficient
building design and
disposing of poor
quality surplus
accommodation

b)

Promoting
sustainable modes
of transport and
integrated transport
systems

Mitigation

X

N/A (See comments n
above)

Page 201

19



SEA objective

Proposal

Meet demand by directing pupils to
area or neighbouring schools and/c

areas

Rating

Commentary/ explanation of compatibility with SEA objective

Rating

Commentary/ explan
with SEA objective

3. Promote health
and wellbeing by
protecting and
enhancing Public
Open Space (POS)
and improving
access to POS

n/a

N/A

N/A (See comments n
above)

4. Minimise air, light
and noise pollution
associated with
building
development and
traffic congestion

X
Mitigation

n/a

N/A

N/A (See comments n
above)

5. Protect and
enhance
biodiversity, flora
and fauna

?
Mitigation
required?

n/a

N/A

N/A (See comments n
above)

6. Protect and
enhance the
landscape
(habitats/visual
amenities)

?
Mitigation
required?

n/a

N/A

N/A (See comments n
above)

7. Conserve water
resources and
increase water
efficiency in new
developments and
promote sustainable
urban drainage
systems

n/a

N/A

N/A (See comments n
above)

8. Promote
regeneration by
delivering inclusive
schools that will
improve equality of
opportunity and
access for all

n/a

N/A

N/A (See comments n
above)

9. Protect and
enhance designated
historic assets

n/a

N/A

N/A (See comments n
above)

Page 202

20



Agenda Item 6

CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
7 March 2017

QUARTER 3 CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT AND CARDIFF 2020:
PERFORMANCE BASELINE UPDATE

Reasons for the Report

1. The first part of this report provides the Committee with the Education and
Lifelong Directorate’s Corporate Performance report for Quarter 3 2016/17,
following its consideration by the Cabinet on 16 February 2017. The Corporate

Performance Report Quarter 3, is attached at Appendix A.

2. The report also provides this Committee with an updated performance position
against the desired outcomes attached at Appendix B and key goals with the final

published 2015/16 examination results at Appendix C.

3. The report also outlines how performance against the strategy is being governed

and monitored.
Revised Corporate Performance Reports

4. In light of recommendations made in the WAOQO’s latest report, the Framework
element of the Performance Management Strategy has been updated to include
guidance around timelines that support current processes. A significant aspect of
this refresh will be embedding it into the organisation’s culture. Ensuring that the
Council’'s Performance Management Strategy is acknowledged, understood and
used will require the Central Performance Team to engage and work proactively

with service managers and performance leads.

5. The Council’s Performance Management Framework includes the regular
reporting of Quarterly Performance by Directorate. The Quarter 3 Education

Performance report, attached at Appendix A, and covers:

Page 203



. Council Overview Score Card
o Directorate Performance report

o Priority 1 Better Education and Skills for all (Every Cardiff School is
a good school)

o Priority 3 Creating more jobs and Better paid jobs (All young people
make a successful transition into employment, education or
training)

o Priority 2 Supporting Vulnerable People (People at risk in Cardiff
are safeguarded)

o Summary of Corporate Plan PI results

o Summary of progress — Commitments and Actions

o Other Challenges and Achievements.

6. The report provides the Committee with information on the Directorate
commitments as set out in the Delivery Plan together with the progress, issues
and mitigating actions that the Directorate has undertaken to ensure that the
Quarter 3 commitments are achieved. Overall progress is highlighted through the

use of the red/amber/green status format.

Cardiff 2020 Strategy

Background

7. The Cardiff 2020 strategy was launched with partners on 29th June 2016,
including head teachers, school governors, young people, business leaders,
representatives of creative, cultural and sporting organisations, community
leaders, regulators and more. Cardiff 2020 is a partnership strategy and its

success will be dependant upon a shared commitment to action.

8. Our vision is that all children and young people in Cardiff attend a great school
and develop the knowledge, skills and characteristics that lead them to become
personally successful, economically productive and actively engaged citizens.

9. Our desired outcomes for children and young people are that:

Page 204



All children and young people will be able to access an appropriate, high
quality education place that meets their individual needs.

Educational attainment at the end of each key stage will be the best in
Wales and in line with top quartile performance in the core cities of the UK.
Every child will leave primary school literate and numerate in line with age
related expectations.

Pupils from low-income families will achieve at the same level as their
peers — we will close the attainment gap.

Children and young people with additional learning needs will be able to
access an improved system designed to ensure that their needs are
assessed, and the provision necessary to meet those needs is planned for
in a more collaborative, consistent and equitable way.

All young people will have achieved a recognised qualification at the end
of statutory schooling.

All young people will complete statutory schooling equipped with a menu
of skills for life and make a successful transition to education, employment
or training.

All young people are safe and their emotional well-being is high.

Children and young people will be aware of their right to participate and for
their opinion to be heard, and will be involved in decision-making about

education policies and services which affect their lives.

10.To deliver these outcomes are key goals are:

Excellent outcomes for learners

A high quality workforce

21st Century learning environments
A self- improving school system

Schools and Cardiff in partnership

11.In December 2016, the Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Committee

considered the baseline position against the ‘Desired Outcome’ statements and

the five ‘Key Goals’ of the Cardiff 2020 Strategy. The performance indicators

selected aim to provide a measure of our performance in each of these areas,

using the most recent, available information.

Page 205



Performance Management

12. Appendix B to this report provides a performance update against the ‘Desired
Outcome’ statements and the success measures stated against the five ‘Key
Goals’ of the Cardiff 2020 Strategy copy attached at Appendix C.

13.The actions to deliver the ambitions of Cardiff 2020 are integral to the Council’s
Corporate Plan, Education and Lifelong Learning Directorate Delivery Plan, the
Consortium Business Plan, School Improvement Plans and partner agencies
plans as appropriate. Performance against the Corporate Plan and Directorate
Delivery Plan is reported quarterly as part of the Council’s quarterly reporting

process.

14.The Education Development Board is maintaining an overview of progress
against the stated outcomes and goals of Cardiff 2020 and are receiving regular
updates on performance throughout each year. An important aspect of this is the
Director’s Annual Performance of Schools report, which was presented to the
committee in January 2017. The Terms Of Reference and Work Programme of

The Education Development Board is attached to Appendix D for information.
Previous Scrutiny

15. The Committee last reviewed the report “Cardiff 2020 - Aiming for Excellence”
Strategy at its meeting in December 2016. The Committee understood that the
achievement of the five key goals was dependent on the actions of a number of
agencies working in partnership, however they expressed some concern that
there was not a partnership coordinating body in place to ensure that everyone
was working towards the achievement of the five key goals. The Committee
therefore recommended that the Council, through something like, the Public
Services Board, organise a partnership monitoring body for the implementation of
the Cardiff 2020 actions, thereby ensuring that all partners work effectively to

achieve the five key goals and desired outcomes identified in the strategy.

Page 206



16. The Cabinet Member subsequently informed the Committee that the Education
Development Board will providing the required governance of progress against
Cardiff 2020.

Scope of Scrutiny

17.The scope of the scrutiny of this report is to enable Committee to review, assess
and challenge the implementation of actions to improve education for Cardiff’s
pupils through the Quarter 3 Corporate Performance Report and 2020 baseline
position report, and to provide any comments, concerns or recommendations to

the Cabinet Member or the Director of Education and Lifelong Learning.

18. At this meeting Committee can review and question:

(i) the progress being made in achieving the Performance Indicator targets for
2016/17;

(i) the resources available to deliver the Corporate Plan priorities and
Directorate priorities;

(iii) any identified project risks (red status) and the appropriateness of the
proposed countermeasure;

(iv) the quality and analysis of the performance framework in addressing the
implementation and monitoring of the Cardiff 2020 strategy.

(v) the Terms of Reference and future work programme of the Education

Development Board.

Way Forward

19. At the meeting Councillor Sarah Merry (Cabinet Member for Education), Nick
Batchelar (Director of Education and Lifelong Learning) and Suzanne Scarlett,
(Performance Manager), will be in attendance to present the information and

answer any questions Members may wish to ask.
20.Members are invited to consider the information set out in the report and attached

Appendices A, B, C and D and identify any issues which require more detailed

scrutiny.

Page 207



Financial Implications

21.There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. However,
financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are
implemented with or without any modifications. These financial implications will

need to be considered before any changes are implemented.

Legal Implications

22.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this
report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications.
However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are
implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations
for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising
from those recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council
must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural
requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person
exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with
the procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure
Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken
having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be

reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

RECOMMENDATION
The Committee is recommended to:
¢ Review the information provided in the Education Quarter 2 Performance
report, copy at Appendix A and provide any comments, concerns or

recommendations to the Cabinet Member and Director of Education and

Lifelong Learning.

Page 208



¢ Review and assess the information provided in the Cardiff 2020 baseline,
copy attached at Appendix B, C & D and provide any comments, concerns
or recommendations to the Cabinet Member and Director of Education and

Lifelong Learning.

DAVINA FIORE NICK BATCHELAR

Director Governance and Legal Services Director of Education and
Lifelong Learning

1 March 2017

Page 209



This page is intentionally left blank



ik @ — € Jauenp Jo} puads adeluadlad ayl sjuasaidal anoqe 3|qel mﬁ_
s '
‘€ 1anenb ul 95/6 01 T Jonenb ul %18 shep 0z ulyiim o3 papuodsai Sulaq . T ——
wiody pasestoul sysanbas uoyauny-Bnw %¥6 UNM ‘g 1934enD woJj syuie|duiod ] . . . ] ] . . .
yam aoueldwo) 9%/ T°Z6 Sem sisanbay Ul 3SB3IIUI %ET B SI SIY) “E JNeNy e e o & e e o T
sisanbay uoyewJoju| sjutejdwo) BT snomy
a 8 Iu 9 [314 58] sMas1 8D
[314 065] uoEINp3
( 4 Jeak um.m/ S S S, 314 002] #3q w023
$3JAeQ 19|qeL | [314 524] (59295 wop | Aag w023
/ 31190IN YSn0JY) SPEU 33ISGAM 33 O3 SHSIA JO %09 J9AD pouad suwes a4 10} (%0v) (214 0807152 8 H ‘50
£9€TOT'T woyj dn sisiyy | 1314 266] 590 413
auljuo apew sSeq ea1xd / saipped Joj sysanbal Jo %E v/
"A31D ay3 ssoloe ‘
auljuo apew mou suopedijdde jiwiad Supjied Jo %S 1/ ’ Rouasy g auiang 1a3png yeis
\_ sgnH 13 AJeiqi] 01 s1ISIA
Qm.v.._mmwrn 2Jam alayl Jeak LT-9TOZ |[esuoys s uines paidafold Jo % LT9T07 SBupnes jo % papaloid m
\ / 2y3 JO Jjey 1sT ay1 Suung %00T %06 %08 %0L %09 %05 %0% %0E %0z %0T %0

|\ L i Il 1 1 i i Il 1 1 1
SS

5334n053Yy

Ys|aM Ul uaaq aAeY % Mews /
U3y Yyum dn 19s sjUNOIZE 099°€6 AY3 JO

—
SAI95178 9
‘qnH JIApY 2.3u3) A1) 9 Z 0 m. aw = w m > Po— n1/__
ay1 01 SUdID J0j Sjuawalinbal a8ensue| m. M. H 00 H L H H, (snias wod) Asg rm.Wu
Jejndod 3sow ayj aJe (%1°T) @sandnyiod @0 0 a0 00 a0 o foa 1o (@)
, ! ] Ve b ] = | 0 [0l ounod (g
uayl pue (%z's) aigesy ‘ysijdu3 ueyl 18yio 18 sreiodioy ()
00007 528 H ‘swo)
21SGIM §,]12UNOD Y] MIIA 03 YdIym o i
uj sa8en8ue| iejndod 3sow ay3 aie asand f 0000f _
-n}i0d pue ueleSunH ‘yYsijod ‘asauiy) ===— (0009 L1-9T0Z S3uines pajaaloid jo adejuadiad
. 00008
S{ERI0) D43 0007 128p08 m 50003 Uolpalaid w
40 9%89°0 40} JUN0JJE JZJ 01 S||eD YS|aM t._t._mu OH Huwccou OH m__mu 000081 00009T 000OVT 0000ZT 000'00T 00008  000'03  000'Ov  000'0Z 0
/ ssgengue] lswoisn) ' e ——————————————————————
\ I 90nossy
B 5MeS139
%68 : aur] Sunsoday Jieday sayI] jooqadeq 6928 S — %HMH“E —
%L6 - USIPM %96 - Ys18u3 : 2D 01 S13]jeD PpApiseoduia siamofjo) 8112 | #eq ooz
[IPUNOIYIPIEID SIOMO|0} SS0'89 e s Bty
%66 : SQNH 03 SIONSIA P SO H SW0)
spimy SE— 590 A3
€0 s|9A37 uohdejshes Jawolsn) BIP3IA |B120S £1-9T0Z wN\NQ 138png pasafoid

L1-9T0Z € 4914enD PJe3ai0dS MIIAIBAQ |12UNno)

V XIANAddV



— uopesiuesio ayj ss040e palajduwiod Uaag aABY SMAIAIBIU] 3JOAN O3 UINIY JO *Nm—

BEEA0iw EDm 195IEL m

i 8

[314 006] - 5§

[314 145 seunasay

[314 58l 5189

314 065] SI0LPS UoN - uoieanp3

[314 00E'S] Hooyas - uoneNpl

[314526] Aag w023

|34 080T] 52 '8 H ‘swo3

1314 z66] sdo A

(314 tpv'ot] 2iesodio)

uosiad 434 1507 sAeq 314 - 20UIsqY SSAUNIIS

|ej0) 3esndion
[314 (314 [ETE] [314 (314 osot]
el aesodiod  [314006]-55 TS sewnosay 8] sWAS1®D  OpSjuoneanpl  sZglAeguool SDBH Swod  [3ld Z66]sdo Aud
: - - %08
| i i * %78
— %P8
—_— %98
| LI 4]
— %06
—_ ! %16 ! ! 576
%E6 %6 %E6
HEE W6
%6
%96
%96
%86
%001

aaue||dwo) Malnay Jeap J|BH - Yadd

(argelewm) /T-9T €0 m  LT-9T 152 m
0O0'000'8 000000 0O00'000'9  0OO'000'S  0OO0'000°F  OOO'000°E 000’000 000'000'T -
61897
{ybs) eauy |ewially ssoug U LoRNpaY
159'52€
182'TF8'S
(3) Bopgoeg acueualuE | LORINPaY
000°005'y
FLT'6S0'E
ryepr (3) 1502 Buuny 2101 uj vopanpay
000009t
0T1'7€8'7
(3) sudiaoay |eyded
000°00€"L
L1-9T0Z Juawaseueyy Jassy ajesodio)

usaunfiaquy £

"a30Wi2 [ppupuly YBNo3 ayj UIYUM 3/GDuUIDISNS o))

3.p A3y1 10y 43PI0 Ul JSOI PIINP3IL D 10 S3IIAIAS JBAI[IP PUD ‘SOJIS 3IIAI3S JO J3GUINU D S5O0 PIIaniap Al
~1N3 21D 10Y3 SUOPIUNS PUD S33IAJ3S UBI|D-31 PUDWIAP JWOISNI 3BDUDWI PUD PUDISI3PUN 153G 03 51 Wip D

*[12uno) ay3 ssoade s301A13s Ay Jo Suideysal ay3 ael|de)

03 sasdead Supjiom dojanap pue saiSojouyaal Sujjqeua Jojdxa |im sadinias Suideysay

S30IAIDS duideysay

uaainfiaquy 9

*$9184039341p || SSOJOB UORINpPaI
1500 pue AJaAI|ap 3ARI3YA Joddns 03 SANSEIW IPIM-|IDUNOD YSI|qeISa ||Im oljojiiod SiyL

S9JIAIRS UIUOISSIWIWO)) g Buljqeu]

LT-9T0¢C € 493enD pP4eI3102S MIIAIDAQ [12UNn0)




(0T) %€T
lquiy

(b¥) — LT-9T0Z €O

yodaJ syl ui papnjaul S1I03eI1PU| IUBWI0JIId JsuleSe 3duew.ioidd

(6) %St (vT)%ET
Jaquiy/pay uldain/Iaquiy

LT-9T0Z Ue|d 31e10d0) 3y} Ul SJU3WWWO) JsuieSe aduew.04ad

(09) — LT-9T0Z €O

LT1-910¢ Moday asuewo}iad pue Alanallag €0



76 Jo vz @8ed

‘S3[BAN SS0J0E
ueyy a3eaus s| jypaed u sieak ] ) ) i ) ] (0z07) 103821pU| BWOINQ 3SEYd UOIIEPUNOY
] 5o ol fono MSWEAGIAI daa 91-ST07 4 %€9°'88 1%6°88 4%6°88 d%85'88 | %0098 %EL 98 S il s Silos G BRI ESIING JO S BiL
JO 1Bl BY3 3seYd UOIIEpUNO4 3y} U]
1eaA
SIY1 pasealoul sey Juswanosduwy . i . i ) e
40 2121 943 pue Juinosduwi ||as dd 91-9T10Z 4 %88 4%9°98 4%9'98 d%09'98 %0058 %07 €8 (d0) € 98e3s A9y Jo pud ay3 Je Joreatpu
SI 1SD @y3 ul asuew.opad €S 1Y 193lgns 3107 ay3 Suinaiyoe spdnd jo 9% aylL
‘eale 9/gD[IDAD
buiaq jou
Ajusoud e sulewal pue agesane — ) ) o —
[eUOIEU 3Y3 MOJ3q [|13S SI T [9AST dd SO ¥, e 4%0t'6 d%P6 SO%0T°S6 %18 L6 %STC6 =
1B JusWuUle1Ie Ul JuUdWaAoIdW| ! d)'¥ 1S A9 1€ (D -V 9peiD 3509
Mau uo S) ploysaays T [9A@1 Suiaalyoe sjidnd jo ¢ ayl
‘o478 JO 28eJIaAR |BUOIIRU aouppinb
3U3 YyHm aul| ul s1 duewogiad 9M 031 anp ) ) ) )
18 3PR BT ) MO IBS SET 1913 dd S pdnap 1%E¥8 d%V8 SO%6L'ES |  %80°L8 %90°18 T R N——
1B Juawuielle ul Juawanolduw| sjabiny S) ploysaayi z [9a@1 Suiaaiyoe sjidnd jo %pul
'9T-5107 —
Joj sjidnd |NS42 Jo @duewlopiad dd S %08 1%E°6€ d%¥'SE | SO%S6'SE | %St'SY %ECTE (0207 8 dD) ¥ @8e3s Aa)y 1e pjoySsliyy
ul Juawanoidwi 3ddy e sem aiay] +Z [9A97 3yl Suinaiyoe spdnd AIS49 jo syl
%09 J0 a3eJane (0z07 ® dD) ¥ @8e3s A3y 1e au:meww%_\,_
ys|aM 2yl saoqe st pue 1ddg g . ) i ) ) pue a3en3due| 341§ Ys|3M 40 Ys!|Fy3 ul
Aq 3504 3dueWLIOpAd S gyipIey dd )] %88°L9 4%S°79 d%¢9 SO%0v'19 %0059 %0€°6S -,V 9peIS 3579 & SUIPNPUI ‘D -,V 18 53579 §)
‘18w jou sem 1a81e3 ayl yanoyyy ploysaiyi +z [2na1 Suinaiyoe spdnd jo 9 ayl
(otozo2a) | (9toz3das) | (9toz aunr) : e
(£10Z Yoren) 91-S102 S8UNly A [eay = Y
totazaeay | LVSTOT AL 91-S102 91-5102 91-S10Z e STYTOZB3A | joak siiapese doj yynsay (euld =4
Jlwapedy Jtwispedy 1E9A 183A 183\ Jjwapeay ey JeaA J1WBpEeIe J0J JNSaJ |BUDISIADIG = d
ENHEWEEOU 224nos uspely HUapeIy AHIBPEIY (4234 u1) saundiy jooyds 31N23s ApUaLIND = 5D
103e21pU| 0ZOZ HIPIED = 0Z0T
uonisod 8T-L1 €0 rde} O LT-9T 9T-S1 JIEDIRY) LRI MBITIUAD = D
0 1981e) [enjoy [enyy [enyoy 198181 jnsay 4NENPU| SIuBULIOJIS

S10ledipuj 2duewlioliad ‘T

|OOY2S POOD B S [00Y2S ipJe) AIaAT :T'T aARI3lqo uawanoidw) e

IV 103 S|[DjS PUE UOREINP3 193139 T Aniold

AlId N YeleS Jj|D 1SJIaqWIBIA J2UIge)

066 :(314) seaAojdwz saquiny

Jde|ayaleg }2IN :4032341a

Sujuiea Suojay] pue uoieanpy :ajel033a4iq

10day aouew.0}iad 33e40323.1q £LT-9T0Z € J2MenpD




76 Jo gz @3ed

duewJopad siidnd NS4 1BYI MOYS S)|Nsad 9T-STOT [euly ‘(SYIBAl pue Ys|a/ys!iSu3 Sulpnjaul -, $3S09 ) PIOYSJY) +Z [9A7] Y3 Ul i 23e1S Ad) 1Y
'S9|e /M 01 paJedwod uaym sagels
A3 9Y3 Jo ||e sS04De JJIp4e) Ul Jojjews S| Juawulene ul ded ay) pue panoidwi sey sjidnd (NS49) S|EaN [00Y2S 2244 40} 3|qI8I|2 Jo Ssuewlopad ay

‘7 98e15 A3)| 01 9seyd uOIIePUNOS dY] WO} SI01RIIpUl
2ouew.oiad Jo aduel apim e ul sadelane |euolleu ay3 anoge Suiwaogiad Ao 3yl Yum ST-TOT Ul sSjuswanoidwl uo pjing s3nsal |ooyas 9T-STOZ |euld |ooyds poos e
ssa450.4d Jo Arewiung — 9dUBWI0JI3d |00Y3S | 51 [00YIS JjipJe) AlBA] T°T

(sawo23nQ Juawwwo) Sunensdesud) ssaidoad jo Atewwing | sannaalqo uawanosdw|

[|e 404 S[|1S pue uojjeanp3 191139 ‘T Ajiold

sanliolld ue|d ajelodio)

ssa130.d jo Aiewwing 'z

L0
—i
‘JuawaAosduwl 5 (q\|
Jayunj smoys £T-9T0C 404 dd d %5796 H%EVE 4%S°V6 d%8T1'176 %S6 %98°€6 (0z0Z%8 d2) |00yds Azepuodas e sduepuaxgy %
3duepuale |euoisiAoid awiy [eay m
"Juawanosdwl U P(

Jayuny smoys £1-910¢ 404 dd Y %S'S6 GE d%S6 d%80'S6 %¥'S6 %1'S6 (0207 78 d2) |ooyds Adewiad je duepUINY %
9ouepualie [euoisinoid awil [eay
"Aj|euoneu
1ddog T 031 paiedwod Jipied

u11ddT9’eT st @ouewdopad ul | ¢ dd S2 %58 41%8'8L d%06'98 d%9T°6L %VT'18 %L 9L (0z0zZ 8 dD)

ded ay] "1ead siyy J03edIpul SIyl ul Z 28e1s A9y Jo pua ayj 1e s03e21pu] 13[gns

juswanoadw) 1ddy/ T e sem auay| 910D ay3 Suiasiyoe sjidnd NS O % 2yl

‘S9|BAN SS040€ URY] J21eaJ3 (0zoz

SI J4ip4e) Ui siedh unoj ise| ayi Jano |y dd SJ %60°E6 1%5°68 1%S°68 d%€S'68 %968 %9L°L8 '8 dJ) Z 98e1s Aa) Jo pus 3y 1e J03BdIpU|

Juswanoadwi Jo 1.l ayl zsH u| 102[qns a10) ay3 Suinaiyoe spdnd jo o ay |

(9toz23a) | (910ZId3s) | (91OZ aunr) -
(£10T Yaiew) 91-5102 sa.ndly aw [eay = Y
1-970z Jea), | LTITOTIE2A 91-510¢ 91-ST0¢ 91-ST0Z 1eal STYTOZIBOA | 1oas 5 iapese Joy ynsay (euld =4
D Jlwapeny JMUSPEIY 183l ki AES J|Wwapeay USRI Jeah J1Wwapede 1o) 1Nsal |BUOISINDId = d
2 JlWwapeay Jlwapedy Jlapedy b o ' =
_?_mu_._.._wEEOU v | @aanos (4884 u1) saunBiy |ooyas aindas Ajualing = s
J01BJIPU| OZOZ HIPIED = 0Z0T
d uonisod 8T-L1 0} [de} TO LT-9T 91-ST Aavalpy) Ueid Sesodiag =43
0 198.1e) |enjoy |enoy [eny 19818 jnsay A0JEIpuUl IUEINLIA
ALIaIN Yyeaes J||D :siaquiaN JBulge) 066 :(3.14) seaAo|dw3 sequinn Jejaydleg }2IN :40322410 Sujusea 3uojayl pue uolneanpy :a3elo3raa1a

10day aouew.0}iad 33e40323.1q £LT-9T0Z € J2MenpD




76 Jo 9z @3ed

‘UOIIU}a4 pue 2 eidn asIWIXeW 0} B1IS}IJI [BJID)34 3y} UO Je3|d 3Je A3yl ainsuad 03 S|ooyds Yyum A|aso|d Suisiom sty ayL

‘WwnI1Josuo) pue 1 ayl
Aq @2e(d ui s 3eY) Woddns aAISUIIUI BY1 JUSWNIOP YIIYM UOI1Ie JO Sjuawalels Alloyine |edo| aaey Alo8s31ed Sulioliuow uAls3 |ewloy e Ul S|ooyds ay |
‘910z 4200320 Ul miag uA|9 pue uois|aeydilA Jo uoildadsul ayl UIMO||0} ,SaiNseay |e1aads, ul mou ale sjooyds Alepuodas ujwiopad aaiy) 1Samo| 3yl

‘apew uoisiaold 0} syuawiIsnipe pue paljizuapl Uaag aAeY UOIIUSAIDIUL JO PaauU Ul s|idnd "1a32e41 |BNUIA B BIA IndU| PASNI0) 10§ PaIHIIUIPI USSQ aAeY
sdnoJg o1uy3a Aysouiw Suiasiyoesapun 'ssalfoud Jo Suliojluow 350|2 94NsuUa 0} Wea} (JD1) UoeINP3 S,UaIp|(IYD Ja1Y PaX00T 3yl Ul paysi|qelsa usaq
aABY SM3IA3J ssaiSo.d 'AjSuipiodoe Bujuue|d aie pue 3J1om Jo ease 419y} ul sjidnd |AS43 Jo aduewioiad BY) UO SNJ0) 0} PIaU 3Y} JO IEME BJe SWea|

‘Adenuer uj 1uige) 01 $908 YyaIym S|ooyds JIpJe) JO 99UBWI0NId 9yl uo 1oday
[ENUUY 3yl Ul pajuaWNIop aJe Juawanosdwll Jo) seale ay| '2402s sjujod padded pue T |9A37 ‘Z [9A97 Y1 Ul papaau Juawanoidwl Jayuny ||13s sI aiayl
sda1S IXeN/SuoidY JunedniN/Sanss| — 9dUBWJI0H3 [00Y2S

'sjooyas Atepuodas 03 JuawAojdap 10} 15414 Y23l Y}m sieah r%u_
OM] 1Xau 3y} JaA0 Sajenpeid 0g 4O JuUaWliNIa) 9y) paslde sey Wnijuosuo) Yyinos [esjua) ay| "padojaasp Suiaq SI Juawiiniiad Jo swwesdosd jeuolieu (QV
B ‘e1140su02 Jaylo a3yl ayl yum diysiaulled ul uppiop 's10algns asayl 4oj S|0oYIas gny winjnaLng 3ysia ayl wouj sonewaylew pue ysijgua ul suiyoesl 8)
uo 3uisndoy sawwes3oad ayl 01 UOIHUPPE Ul S| SIY] “SGNY Wn[nN314nd ay3 jo auo Aq padojanap uaaq sey awwesSoid sozewayie|A 4o speay AJepuodas w
ol
‘JaMenb Ixau ay}
JO PUD Y3 }e paua3Jds a4 ||IM DXelul 1XauU ay) Jo) S|eddaa. pue awwesdoud sdiysasnualddy Joiunf ayl yum padedua sisulea| zg Ajjualind ale aiayl
"JeaA 1se| JoJ
a8eJane |euoljeu ay3l anoqge pue aindiy 9T-STOZ Y} UO JUSWAA0IA W] UB S YdIYM %1'S6 SI JB) 05 JEDA djWapede 3y) 404 34ndly souepualie Alewsd syl
*Wed) a4e}j9\ uolleanp3 ayl Ag pasAjeue s
B)ep ay3 Se $10393s Yjog ul anosdwi o3 Ajay1| aJe saunsi4 awi] |eay "a8elane |euolleu ayl aAoge pawJojlad pue sajeAn Ul Salllioyine |ed0| ZZ @Y} 4O Ino
6 P92€[d SeMm JJIpJe) pue %G'6 SBM 1Nsal pusd JedA ay3 ‘9T-GTOT 104 "%E 16 S! Jej OS JedA dlwapede £T-9TOZ Y3 404 3.n3ly aduepualle Alepuodas ay |
'SW021n0 uondadsul uA1s3 pue (Alenuer Jo pua ay) 1e 3|ge|leAe aq [|IM LT-9T0Z 10J
S|00Y2S JO UOoIles1I08a1e) |eul4) uollesiogale) |euoiieN ‘@duewJsoylad jidnd AQ paduspiAg se “4a3U0J1s SI S|ooYds JjipieD SsoJde ||esano diysiapea| |00Yy2s
3wl 35414 ay3 404 1ddog mojaq o3 sjidnd |AIS4-uou 03 pasedwod duewuoydad ul ded ayy Bupnpads 1ddT z Aq panoiduwl
AN Yeues 1D :s1aquaAl 18ulge) 066 :(314) seaAojdw3 Jaquiny Jejayaleg }IIN 40323410 guiuiea Suojayln pue uoneanpy :ajeso3a.1q

10day aouew.0}iad 33e40323.1q £LT-9T0Z € J2MenpD




76 Jo £z @3ed

121]3U02 BuIpIOAR/UOIIN|OSA JUDWAAISESIP 10) S3SS9204d -
sjooyds Joddns 03 S321A43S 3si|edads pue yoeasino jooyds |edads Suidopaaq -
gz-T 9|doad BunoA 1o} s8ssa204d uonisuedy Aouade-inw Suimalngy -
Suiuueid Juswdo|anap |enpiaipul dojoAsp 01 S101eulpJ0-0) NTV/(N3IS) spasN [euoneanp] [e1pads yum Supjopn -
:s308/04d 9A11RI0GR||0D JNOJ Joddns 03 pasn aq ||IM JUBID uoljeAouU| NV 9YL
sdais AN /suondy 3unedni/sanss| — JIpJed Ul SadlAIas uoIsnu|
'slaulded Jayjo pue yijeay ‘sjooyds yiim uoiieioqge||od
uj uoneyuawadwi Joj siedaud 03 8T-9T 07 IUBID UOIIBAOUU| NTV 2yl J9pun pig |[nJSS922NS B 9pELW IABY WNIHOSUO) YINOS [B41Ud) 9yl JO ST 9yl
"asuodsad e uliedaud s) ] 2yl pue 910z Joqwaaq ul Alquiassy ay3 03 pajuasald Sem |[Ig [eungld] uoneonpd pue (N7Y) spaeN Suluieat |euoiippy syl
ssaJg04d Jo ATewiwing — JJIpJe) Ul S2JIAIaS UoISnu|
‘sjooyas 01 Asuow 104 anjea panoiduwi 18440 03 pauue|d s|
340M J3YLiN4 ‘S13J0 11 9503 JO SSUIAIILD pue AdU3I214a 3Y] pue ‘sjooyas 01 papiaoid sa21A19s Jo 28ued ay) anoidwi 01 SuiNUIUOI S| 9181012UIP YL N~
sda1S IXaN/SuodY SUiESIHIAI/SaNSS| — S9JIAISS PUE S92IN0SaY 'BoUBWIOHSd n1/__
)
‘uonesadQ 3uliale) |00YIS 9yl 4O M3IA3J B Pala|dwod os|e sey wea | juawdojaaaq |euorlesiuesiQ ay] "auljuo sujuiesl (@)]
pue sa21A19s 3seyaand o1 sjooyas 3ujjgeus ‘@de|d U] g p|nOYS S|O0YIS 03 140 1l S9IAIS 9Y1 JO Yyoea 104 |erod auljuo ue £ Tz 491se3 Aq pue siapiaouad %
9DIAI3S |BUJDIUI Y3IM 20e|d UM E] SeY JOM JO Junowe Juediiudis ¥ ‘91eJ4012aJ1p 3yl o} Aliioud e g 03 SanuUjluU0d Juawadeuew 324n0sal Suinoldw)
ssa1530.1d JO AlBWIWING — S3JIAI2S PUE S32JN0Say '9JUBlIOH
"40M SIY3 03 2INqLIU0D 0} paysi|qelsa Sulaq st dnoisd adualajal Japjoyayess i "8uipuny jooyds Ainjua) 17 jo uoissiwgns g pueg Aue Joj sajjiiold
2y} 9248e 0] JopJO Ul 9183152 UOIIEINPS 3Y3 JO UOI}IPUOI pue AJuaidiyns Jo SISAjeue spaau pajle}ap 1je}3pUN 01 S| SYUow ZT Xau a2y3 Jo} Ajuond ayy
sda3S IXaN/suody unednin/senss| — suluue|d pue ssaJdy 'uoiesiuesiQ |00yds
'sjooyas
Y3SIH 01 suoIss|wpy 6T-8T0Z 104 101295 UOIlepuUNOd /ylie4 ayl Ylim SUuoissipe paleulpio-0) Juswa|dwi 01 uayenspun 3uiaq s uoljeljnsuod Aloniels y
‘06 AQ winipaw ys|apn ul pue 0g Ag sjooyas winipaw ysij8uj ul saoejd Atewd aseasoul |Im Y pueg jo Jed se pale|dwod 3ulaq S|ooyds mau ay|
‘lenosdde Sujuueld Joj pa3ywigns uaaq aney pue paugdisap aJe |eqna) ue|n/ejjeqen
pue sjooyas Alewid mau 334yl ayj pue [jam 3uissaidoud si ySiH uiaise] Jo uonansisuod ay| ‘jj@m 3uissasdoud s1 awwesSoud Juswilsanul ¥ pueg ay|
ssaJdoad jo Arewwing — Juluue]d pue ssa323y ‘uonesiuesiQ [0oyds
"[2A3] AJepuod3s 1e siayoea] sojtewaylew Jo Ayluenb pue Alljenb jo swual uj sa1nouip Juawiintoal Bulo8uo ale aisy|
AN Yeues 1D :s1aquaAl 18ulge) 066 :(314) seaAojdw3 Jaquiny Jejayaleg }IIN 40323410 Sujusea 3uojayl pue uolneanpy :a3elo3raa1a

10day aouew.0}iad 33e40323.1q £LT-9T0Z € J2MenpD




76 Jo gz @3ed

o ul (133N (133N (133N (0207 8 dD) “Buiuiesy so juawAhojdwa
a1qe|IEAR 3G [[IM SNSAS _m:_L Y d 9%¢€) / / / %G°€) %S'17) ‘uoneanpa o3 8uljooyds Ados|ndwod woly uolysues
: ; : %6 %5'96 %G'S6 |NJsS220NS B SulEW SIBABI| TT IBIA JO % 3y
unoa (9t0z 3das) | (910Z 2Unf) UN0d 5T0Z
(£LT0Z Yasew) } $ 2 91-5102 sa.ngy awi esy = o
i atos iRk L1-9T0T 9T0C 4240120 91-5T0T 91-ST0C o) 1agopo 185K 5| ISPEDE 104 S| 844 =4
Jeap 91-510T Jeaj leap ST-HT0Z 4234
JlWwapeay JlWwapedy Jead JlWapeDe Joj 1 nsad |BUDISIADLd = d
JlWwapeay Jea) Jlwapeay JlWwapeay Jlwapedy JlWwapeay
EMHEUEEDU oYY | 224nos (422 U1) saun8ly |jooyas aundas Ajjuannd = )
Joje3alpu| DZOZ H1P4eD = 070
uopisod | 8I-LT uonisod | uonisod | uonisod | LI-9T QT-GT | ‘OWIPUI URld 2100103 = d)
Jojedipu] 22UBWI0MID
0 19818 €0 20 TO | 398ieL | ynsay Lok e 58

Sloledipuj 2duewiollad °f

Sujuiesy Jo uoneanpa ‘quawAiojdwa ojul uollisues] [nyssaddns e jew ajdoad SunoA ||y :€°€ 2A1323[qO Juawanoidw) e
SqO[ pied 131339 pue sqof 3JolA 3uneal) g Aniolld
—

v/4|v/4|9/v sjidnd |AIS4® 4O JUdWUIRIIR BY] Ul S|00YIS UBaM]aq SUOIIBLIBA PayJew 3y} pue Juawuielie uo Auanod Jo 1pedwi jualsisiad ayy mmmunwnd.
v/4|v/4|v/y S|9A3) ||e 18 Suiuiea| pue Suiydeal ui Aydeded uiseasoul ‘ysiSug pue so1ewaylew Ul SJooyds Hipied Jo asiiiadxa ayl uieisns pue w>o@:_
v/d|v/d|v/d 8102 AInr Aq u132u03 Suisned aJe 1Byl 5|o0YIS Alepuodas Jo AllJoulw ay3 Jo aduewlopad ay) n::ohmﬂu:._.

1202 Aq “SjJJomawely

2A13e[S183| 8yl YIm 2ouepiodde ul ‘spasu Sululed| [euonippe yum aidoad SunoA pue uaip|iyo Suipoddns Joy) yiomawely ASa1e.41s mau ayl Juawajdw)

9107 Jaqwaldas Aq sjooyas JipJe) [|e Ul jJomawel adualadwo)
(23181 @y} JO uonINPOIIUI 3Y3F YIm SuidUsWIWOD ‘Tz0z Jaquaidas Ag -,$31nIn4 |NjSSaIINS, - SI|BAA JOJ WN|NILLIND MU 33 O Sjuawalinbal ayy Juswajdw

Suiusea| pue Suiyoea) ‘diysiapes| jo Alijenb ayy ul syuawanosdul
uo pasndo} ‘410z Joquaidas Joj sjooyas Aq unu ‘ Ajjunwiwod Sujulea| payJomiau sa|BAA YInos [esiud), |euoidal e jo Juawdo|aAap ay3 03 2nquuo)

6T0Z Y24BIN T€ Aq s109foad Juawiisanul y pueg Jo uoia|dwod ay3 Suipnjaul swwelso.d uoljesiuesiQ sj0oyds ayl 1aA12a

(sueld Asanjaqg ul T Hed) siuawpwwo)

Sjuswlijiwwo) -¢

AlId N YeleS Jj|D 1SJIaqWIBIA J2UIge)

066 :(314) seaAojdwz saquiny

Jde|ayaleg }2IN :4032341a
10day aouew.0}iad 33e40323.1q £LT-9T0Z € J2MenpD

Sujuiea Suojay] pue uoieanpy :ajel033a4iq




7S Jo 6T @3ed

‘papinoid aq ||Im 2durWIOHSd JO MIIAIBAO PI|IEIBP J0W B Julod YdIym 18 — {7 JAJBNY Ul 3|qe|IeAR 3] [|IM 9T-GTOZ 404 sa4ndl} 13IN [euld
‘siauiied ym suoissas Juawagesua pue UoIIeINSUOI SulNp PaLIluSpl UOIIde 10}
sa1jlo1d 9y} pJemIO) SALIP 0} [2pOW AISAIISP pue 9JueuldA0S Jea|d e 1no Sul33as pue aiep 03 ssadoad Suirepljosuod aq ||Im am “4a3ienb Ixau ay3 Sulung

" JUBWHWWOD Jip4e] aYL, JaA1ap 03 1ay}a803 yJom 0} siaupied ||e uaamiaq ssausuljim pue ay3adde Jea)d e s| aiayl

-28e1s SIY1 1B SBNSS| OU 3Je UYL
5d931S IXaN/SU0ndY SUNESHIA/Sanss|

"S92IAJDS |1DUNO0) ulyum sdiysadijuasdde pue sdiysasuied) eia JuawAojdwa o3 sanol

24n2as pue s||pjs dojpAap 03 ajdoad SunoA 03 saijunlioddo jo a8ueds Japeoid e pualxa 03 suondo aJojdxa 03 Aemiapun S| JJOM ‘[12UN0D 3y UIYIIM
*J9quiaaaq ul siaAojdwia Jolew yim doysy4om paj-|1aunod) e pue JaqUISAON Ul 333\ ssaulsng

HipJed 1e indui eia ‘ajdoad SunoA Joj sswodino anoidwi pue aleaouul 01 saljiunyioddo paljlluapl pue suolliquie Jno paleys aaey am ‘1ayenb 1se|

2y1 SulnQ * Juswiiwwio) Jipied ayl, el ‘uoissatdoud s,a|doad 8unoA o1 Juawiwiwod Asuade-;3nw SulNdas Ul apew aq 01 $aNUIIU0 ssai8oud aA13ISOd
" lo4en ul 3|ge|IBAR 34 ||IM S} Nsal |BN1DY “133N 31 oym ajdoad

8unoA jo Jaquuinu 3y} ul uoildnpal anilsod B Moys eaA JiWapede gT-STOZ Yl 104 SiaAea| TT JeaA 404 saindiy anlzedipu| AjJe3 -133N Suiwodaq jo ysu

1€ SE Y 941 10 S3|eA\ S434eD) ‘S|ooyas Aq paiiauapl sjidnd pue (9]1304d 1Uswssassy AM|Igeiaunp) dVA @Y1 uo paiiauapl sjidnd Jo paisisuod 14oyod SiyL
‘9|qedrdde aisaym 1ioddns dn moj|o) yiim J2132] pue ||ea auoyd Ysin swoy e yum ‘aeah djwapede 1se| 3yl Sulinp pajoejuod 219m SI9Ae3| TT JBIA 0§/
*A312 9y1 ssoude Ssia21y40

YINOoA 101Uuas g pue SI101UaWl YINoA £ SeYy mou JIpieD "papualxa pue pauayidualls uaaq sey |apow Jaxiom pea| Sunsixs ay| ‘paluswajdwl uaaq

sey g7 1s0d SujuieJy 4o JuawAojdwsa ‘uoizeanpa olul ssaudoid 03 siaAed| TT 4834 s 1e Sujnioddns pue Suinadie) o1 yoeoidde pajeuiplo-0d panosdwi uy

age 219

Suuidl Jo

uoneanpa ‘quawAdojdwa
0jul uonisuels)
|N4sS230NS e yew
9|doad BunoA ||y €€

(sawoo3no Juawywwod upejnsdedua) ssai8o4d jo Atewwing

saAalqo uawanoidw

sqor pied 1331ag pue sqor 3107l Sunneau) g Ajuond

sanlold uejd ajesodio)

ssa130.d jo Aiewwing °g

(133N (133N (133N (0202 78 dD) "Suluresy Jo JuswAoldwad

d %¢€) / / / %¢) %96°C) ‘uojzeanpa o} Sujjooyds Alos|ndwod wolj uolIsues)

%L6 %L6 %v0°'L6 [N}ssa20ns e Supjew S1aAea| €T 1B3A JO % 3yl

ALIaIN Yyeaes J||D :siaquiaN JBulge) 066 :(3.14) seaAo|dw3 sequinn Jejayaleg yIIN 40333410 Sujusea 3uojayl pue uolneanpy :a3elo3raa1a

10day aouew.0}iad 33e40323.1q £LT-9T0Z € J2MenpD




26 Jo 0€ @3ed

(sewo23no Juawiiwwod Suniejnsdesua) ssaidoad jo Atewwins annaafqQ uawanoidwi | saanaalg uawanoidw)

a|doad ajqesaujna Suipioddns *z Ajond

saljliolld ueld ajesodio)d

SJ10}ledipuj @duewJioliad °/

papiengajes a.e jjipae) uldsu je 3jdoad :1°z 2A1123[qO uawanosdwy e m
9|doad a|qesaujnp Sunaoddns :g 3_._2%.1

©
v/d|v/d|o/v JipJed ul JuawAojdwa a1n23as pue s|is AlljiqeAojdwa dojaaap o1 ajdoad BunoA Jo4 saijiuniioddo jo aues ayl muc@n:m
/4 |v/4|9/¥| ‘910z 1oqwaidas Ag siaules) [|e 104 sa1nod uolssalfoud aleldoidde aunsua 03 JUSWILWWO) J4IpJe) pue 9aluelens YInoA JU3WUIBA0D Ys|a/ 2yl Juawa|dw

v/4

910z Joquaidas Aq 91-1s0d pue -a.d ajdoad SunoA 1o} siaulied uaamilaq swalsAs Suppesl pue ulieys uorewloul aaosdw|

/v

'sieaA € 1xau ay3 Joj Ajoeded puaixa 01 $824n0sal
pun4 |eios ueadouny 3uisijiin quawAojdwsa ojul sjdoad SunoA jo uonisuesy ayl poddns Aj1oauip 01 [9pow 1a)10M pes| 3ullSIXa 3yl pualxa pue uayidualls

v/y

/v

14oddns a3edosdde pue Ajies an@ad ajdoad SunoA pue ualp|iyd paljijuapl Jeyl aunsua o0} pue ‘|ooyds
Suiaea| Jayye uawAojdwsa Jo Suuiesy ‘uoieanpa Suloduo o3 Suissasdoud jou jo ysu 1e ajdoad 3unoA pue ualp|iyd jo uolledyiuap! AjJea ayj aunsua oy -
:sjuawaduedte Aouade 13nw arosdw|

O [ €D (2D | TO (suejd A1aA1ja@ Ul T Hed) sjuaWHWWO)
sjuawliwwo) °9

ALIBIA YeJES J||D :SJaqIBN IBuUIge) 066 :(314) saaAojdw3z saqunp Jejayoieg YOIN :40333410 Sujuieat Suojayn pue uoneINpy :3jelo3draia

J0day 3JuewWI0Idd 91810393110 ZT-9T0Z € 1214enD




7S Jo 1€ 9ded

(Z) %IT'1T (£) %88°8€ (€) %L0°€T (S) %9v°'8€
%0 (21) %99'99 (T) %8 (9) %9t

- - DE%ER Y () %vs (€) %€z
ula.n/1BqUIY Jaquiy/pay I ulaIn /Iaquiy Jaquiy/pay

8T :|e101 (Z Med) suoIdy ssauisng 310D 3jel032aliq suiede ssaldold

(s) %0s

]
- (%ot
(8) %L9
(v) %0v
("oN) % Jequy

@)
s}|nsay |d ue|d @1esodio) jo Asewwns %w

AD Ajpusug piiyd e usallpg -

S310N

o/v|9/v|v/y4
vO | €D | Z0 | TO

(sue|d Asanijag ul T Hed) sjuawiwwo)

‘AJenuef Jo pua ay3 1e palaadxa S| 43DINN WOoJj UoIsIIap ¥
sda3s IxaN/suony 3unediyin/sanss|

"Jaquiada( ul paniwgns sem uopedljdde s3ysiy piiyd 430INN YL

uaJp|lyD 421y pay00o] 104 S9W0INQ -

ASa1e1S @unjoniisesju| |epPOS -

$22IA49S BulINd04d pue Sujuoissiwwo) 03 yoeouddy yyo -

S192.43S Ajpualid pIyd ‘o|geanl] Suneasy -
:aJ4e swweldoid ayl ydnouayy ssalppe 03 uiwie si Jipie) sanssi Ay Jnoj ay|
‘paAnjoAu] os|e a1am 3)doad | papsendajes ale Jipied

8unoA pue uaipjiyd “Jipied wouy uonedidde 43)INN 243 dojaaap pue uolsip Ajpuald4 pliyd e ssai8oid 03 JaqWIBAON Ul pauaauod sem dnoud Supjiom y urysile aidoad 1'e

AI3IN YeJES JJ|D :SIaqWIBIA 33UIqe) 066 :(314) saaAojdwiz Jaqunpy Jejaydleg YIIN :4033211Q Sujuiea Suojay] pue uoneINPJ 1338103
10day aouew.0}iad 33e40323.1q £LT-9T0Z € J2MenpD




76 Jo g€ 93ed

'LTOZ Adenigag 8 U0 JU3A3 s3Je\ dIHS S,¥YOTM 9y} 1e pajuasaid aq ||Im pue Jiodal uoljen|end

910¢ S3|BM dIHS 2Y3 Ul papn|daul usaq sey 3oid 8y *s30|1d UMO J13y3} unJd 01 Sy Ys|a/\ 19430 Jnoj paoddns pue YoM 9Y3 yum paxsom diysiaupied ay) “(auswAhojdws jo

sinoy Q0SE papinosd pue) Aep yoea ualp|iyd g€z Jo 28edane ue Aq passa2de Sem pue 9T-GTOZ Ul pPaJani|ap sem 10|id papualxa uy ‘sAepijoy jooyas ay3 Sulnp jipied ui uoneaudap
[e120S JO SeaJe Ul SulAl| UaJp|iyd 01 SBIJIAIIE puB UOI1BINP3 ‘S||1YS uoniiInu pue ods ‘sjeaw Ajijenb poo3 sapinoad ‘sjooyas yum Suisiom y3nouys ‘1eyi gHN 2|eA pue jjipied

pue ‘yipded Jods ‘Buliale) uolleanp3 [12uno) HipJded Jo Al ‘Jipied pood yum diysiauied ul Suppdom jojid Aduade-13jnw e si (d3HS) awwesdold uawydiiul AepijoH |ooyds ay L

aWeIs0.d JUsWyoug AepI|OH [00Y3S

01 suoI32e JuawaSeuew JuedlIusiS 01 aNp £ Yjuow 1e 33ed0303JIp Y3 1o} paduejeq si uolyisod Supojiuow 328png |[eiano ay3 ‘suswadeld Ayuno) Jo IO ul puadsiano ay3 aydsag

“1eal |eloueUl S1Y3 Seale Jaylo ul Suipuads 1o13sal

*saidijod s,|15uno) 3y3 Jo uoijedijdde JUa3ISISUOD BINSU 0} PUB 3JUIsqe Wl Suo|

ssaippe 03 uae) Sulag si uoide pue siseq Ajyiuow e uo wea] Juawaseue|p uoieINp3 Aq pamalaal
S| SSaUDIS J4e1S "S198ie) pue S|aAd| 9T-STOT dA0ge Ajjueaiyiusis s| uojdafoad |enuue [el3IUl By} pue
9T-GTOZ Ul UBYl £T-9T0Z Ul JayBiy 9q 03 3NUIIUOD S3JBJ JUISTE J4BIS PASEQ |O0YDIS PUE [BJIUII Ylog

198png
panosdwi aney ‘sjidnd ojuy3a AjJouiw Jo aduewsoyad [|edaao pue a8endue| |euolyippe ue se ysij3ug yum sjidnd se yons ‘sisulea| 3|qelau|na o) sawodng -
28e1s A9y AJana 1e panoidwi sey sainseaw auljpeay SulAaiyde sn|d Uoldy |ooyas pue uoldy jooyds e sjidnd N3 jo uoiiodoad ayy -
"JedA S|yl 7 01 8§ WO} paseaJdap sey solewayiew pue ys|am 40 yst8u3 Suipnjoul J-, sapels s35I9 G aaaiyoe sjidnd Jo 9505 UeYl $53] a19ym sjooyas AJepuodas ayl -
Jayienb Bupiewyduag 3samo| ay3 ui sjooyas
1O Jaguwinu ay3 ui aseaJdap Suipuodssllod e pue Jalienb Suppiewyduag 3saysiy ay3 ul SJooyIs 4O Jaquunu ay3 Ul 9Sealdul ue usaq sey 249y} ‘oseyd Asewnud ay3 ssony -
.7_

saSeJane |euollRU 3] dA0qe dJe 98e1S Aay AJaAa ik pue s|aAd| Jaysiy pue pajdadxa syl Je sio3edipul duewloiad ujew ay3 Ul sawodlno [idnd [jesanQ
iSEaJE JO Jagwinu B Ul 9T-GTOZ Ul SluawaAoldwi usaq aAey mnm:.r

(aA1} "xXe) (s2sS220nS pue SM3aN poon) SJUIWIAIYIY ~F)

douewo0}1ad 91-SADT

29Ao|dwa 12dQs0|

sAep / sem JeaA ay) Joj 393.1e] By '91el0303lIp 3y}
Joj aaAojdwa Jad 150| sAep §'TT moys Jej os Jeal
91 JOJ 22UISqe SSaUYIIS BY] - BIUISHE SSAUYIIS

‘dwweJsoud sjooyds Ainjua) Tz g pueg ay3

40} 3s1o4axa 8uidoas wuojul ||Im ya1ym Aemuapun s ipne Aduaiyns e ‘uoisinoid AJunod ul Jo yoe| e
WwoJy sasiie Jusawade|d AJunod Jo 1IN0 YA\ "9|qissod JaAalaym suawiade|d jJualind Suluayiduas
uo siseydwa ue yum ‘Sunnasiy juswaseuen ysiy e Ajuein8au passnasip pue AjJea paijiuspl

aJe sased Ysly 'dnoud 109(o4d juiof e paysi|qeisa aAeY $21e4032341Q SIDIAIBS UIP|IYD pue uoieanpl

12w AjjenJed uaaq Ajuo sey 1a8.1e3 sSuiaes ayl

1ey3 3084 3y3 8u13d3|424 ‘00°000°2T97F Ajrewixoldde
mou s| puadsiano paldafoid ayy ((N3S ‘83 ‘Hipied
Jo apisino uojieonpa Suuinbal ualp|iya) 198png
Aluno) Jo InQ 9Yy1 01 UOIIE|3J Ul 13S SEM Y0067

Jo 128.e3 s3uines y— sjuawade|d Ayunod jo InQ

suoay sunesdimin

(any "xen) anoqe pajou uey Jayio — ajel0323d1q 104 saduajjeyd Aay

aduajjeyd

SJIUBWAA3IYIY pue saduajjey) J3Yl0 ‘0T

AlId N YeleS Jj|D 1SJIaqWIBIA J2UIge)

066 :(3.14) seaAo|dw3 sequinn Jejaydieg y2IN :4032241Q

Sujuiea Suojay] pue uoieanpy :ajel033a4iq

10day aouew.0}iad 33e40323.1q £LT-9T0Z € J2MenpD




gze abed

CARDIFF 2020 DESIRED OUTCOMES - PERFORMANCE POSITION FEBRUARY 2017

Secondary

OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position
September 2016
1. All children and young people will be able | The percentage of children securing their
to access an appropriate, high quality first choice for school placement:
education place that meets their
individual needs. Primary 86%
Secondary 76%
The percentage of children securing one of
their 3 choices for school placement:
Primary 93%
Secondary 88%
The number of schools from within
catchment
oversubscribed (over 10%)
6 schools
Primary
3 schools




yzz abed

OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position Cardiff Wales Average
Academic year Ranking 2015/16
2015/16
2. Educational
attainment at the | The percentage of pupils achieving the Foundation 88.9% 7 87%
end of each key Phase Outcome Indicator, at the end of year 2
stage will be the
best in Wales and | The percentage of pupils achieving the Core
in line with top Subject Indicator, at the end of Key Stage 2 89.5% 8 88.6%
quartile
performance in The percentage of pupils achieving the Core
the core cities of | Subject Indicator, at the end of Key Stage 3 86.6% 11 85.9%
the UK.
The percentage of pupils achieving the Level 2+
Core Cities data is not easily threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs A* - 62.5% 8 60%
accessible or comparable. C inc. Maths & Eng/Welsh)
The percentage of pupils achieving the Level 2
threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs A* - 84.3% 13 84%
C)
The percentage of pupils achieving the Level 1 94.4% 17 95.3%

threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSE'S A* -
G)




Gee obed

CARDIFF 2020 DESIRED OUTCOMES - PERFORMANCE POSITION FEBRUARY 2017

OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position Wales Average
Academic year 2015/16 2015/16
3. Every child will The percentage of pupils achieving the expected outcomes
leave primary (level 4) at the end of Key Stage 2 in:

school literate
and numerate in

line with age
related English 91% 90.3%
expectations.
Welsh (as a first language) 96.1% 90.8%
Mathematics 91.4% 91%

The percentage of pupils achieving above the expected
outcomes (level 5) at the end of Key Stage 2 in:

English 44.7% 42%

Welsh (as a first language) 47.6% 38%

Mathematics 45.3% 43.2%
OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position Wales Average

Academic year 2015/16 2015/16




9¢¢ abed

OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position Wales Average
Academic year 2015/16 2015/16
4. Children and Categorisation of LA Maintained Special Schools (January
young people 2016):
with additional January 2017
learning needs - Green 4 Not available
will be able to - Yellow 2
access an - Amber 0
improved system - Red 1
designed to The percentage of SEN pupils achieving the Foundation
ensure their Phase Indicator, at the end of year 2:
needs are
assessed, and - Statemented 16.7%
the provision
necessary to - School Action Plus 45.3% Not yet available
meet those needs
is planned for in a - School Action 73%
more
collaborative, The percentage of SEN pupils achieving the Core Subject
consistent and Indicator, at the end of Key Stage 2:
equitable way.
- Statemented 16.7% 20.6%
- School Action Plus 45.3% 55.5%
- School Action 73% 74.8%
Enhanced progress measures
Z;ﬁﬂ g?g;ﬁgfége;,fg%ﬁr;hls The percentage of SEN pupils achieving the Core Subject
people Indicator, at the end of Key Stage 3:
- Statemented 25.6% 21.7%
- School Action Plus 50.9% 54.2%
- School Action 70.3% 70.6%




/zc abed

CARDIFF 2020 DESIRED OUTCOMES - PERFORMANCE POSITION FEBRUARY 2017

OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position Wales Average
Academic year 2015/16 2015/16
The percentage of SEN pupils achieving the Level 2+
threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs A*-C
including Maths & English/Welsh)
- Statemented 16% 14.1%
- School Action Plus 17.8% 23.6%
- School Action 29.8% 30.3%
The percentage of SEN pupils achieving the Level 2
threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs A* - C)
- Statemented 44 .3% 41.1%
- School Action Plus 56% 64%
- School Action 70.2% 75.1%
The percentage of SEN pupils achieving the Level 1
threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs A* - C)
- Statemented 63.2% 65.2%
- School Action Plus 82.7% 90.6%
- School Action 92.7% 97.2%




8¢e¢ abed

CARDIFF 2020 DESIRED OUTCOMES - PERFORMANCE POSITION FEBRUARY 2017

school meals vs those not eligible

OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position Wales Average
Academic year 2015/16 2015/16
5. Pupils from low-

income families will

achieve at the same | The percentage of eFSM pupils achieving the Foundation

level as their peers- | Phase Outcome Indicator, at the end of year 2 80.2% 75.7%

we will close the

attainment gap.
Difference in achievement between pupils eligible for free
school meals vs those not eligible 11.7 14.3
The percentage of eFSM pupils achieving the Core
Subject Indicator, at the end of Key Stage 2 78.8% 771%
Difference in achievement between pupils eligible for free 13.6 14.3
school meals vs those not eligible
The percentage of eFSM pupils achieving the Core
Subject Indicator, at the end of Key Stage 3 70.8% 69.4%
Difference in achievement between pupils eligible for free 20.0 224




6¢¢ abed

CARDIFF 2020 DESIRED OUTCOMES - PERFORMANCE POSITION FEBRUARY 2017

school meals vs those not eligible

OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position Wales Average
Academic year 2015/16 2015/16

The percentage eFSM pupils achieving the Level 2+
threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs A*-C
including Maths & English/Welsh) 39.3% 35.6%
Difference in achievement between pupils eligible for free 29.8 31.3
school meals vs those not eligible
The percentage eFSM pupils achieving the Level 2 71.9% 71.6%
threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs A* - C)
Difference in achievement between pupils eligible for free 171 17.5
school meals vs those not eligible
The percentage of eFSM pupils achieving the Level 1 87.6% 92.0%
threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSE'S A* - G)
Difference in achievement between pupils eligible for free 10.3 6.2




0gg abed

OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position Wales Average
Academic year 2015/16
2015/16
6. All young people
will achieve a The percentage young people acquiring a recognised
recognised qualification by the end of Year 11. 99% (33 pupils out of 99.1%
qualification at the 3331 achieved no
end of statutory quals)
schooling.
OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position Cardiff ranking
Academic year
2015/16

7.All young people will
complete statutory
schooling equipped with a
menu of skills for life and
make a successful
transition to education,
employment, or training.

employment or training.

The percentage of Year 11 leavers making a successful
transition from compulsory schooling to education,

(2014/15 Cardiff)

95.5%
(4.5% NEET)

(2014/15 Ranking)

22 out of 22

employment or training.

The percentage of Year 13 leavers making a successful
transition from compulsory schooling to education,

(2014/15 Cardiff)

97.04%
(2.96% NEET)

(2014/15 Ranking)

7 out of 22

| OUTCOME

| KEY MEASURES

Cardiff Position

Wales Average




T¢e abed

CARDIFF 2020 DESIRED OUTCOMES - PERFORMANCE POSITION FEBRUARY 2017

Academic year 2015/16
2015/16
8. All young people are (Wales Average
safe and their emotional 2014/15)
well-being is high
Fixed term exclusions per 1000 pupils in primary 9.38 8
(5 days or fewer)
(Wales Average
Other measures are being explored 2014/15)
to enable more comprehensive/ ; : e i ;
rounded measurement of emotional Fixed term exclusions per 1000 pupils in primary
health and wellbeing. (6 days or more) 0.2 0.5
(Wales Average
2014/15)
Fixed term exclusions per 1000 pupils in secondary
(5 days or fewer) 55.3 55
(Wales Average
2014/15)
Fixed term exclusions per 1000 pupils in secondary
(6 days or more) 0.91 3.4
Attendance in primary schools 95% 94.9%
Attendance in secondary schools 95% 94%




zse abed

OUTCOME

KEY MEASURES

Baseline 2016

9. Children and young
people will be aware of
their right to participate, for
their opinion to be heard,
and will be involved in
decision-making about
education policies and
services which affect their
lives.

Measures to be determined

Cardiff Council has been accepted onto the Child Rights Partners
programme with UNICEF UK from April 2017. The areas Cardiff
is focused upon, in partnership with children and young people,

are:

Creating Liveable, Child Friendly Streets

CRA Approach to Commissioning and Procuring Services
Social Infrastructure Strategy

Outcomes for Looked After Children

There will also be programmes of members training development
and workforce development.

10



cge abed

Success Measure

| Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff Position

Wales Average

Success Measure Key Performance Indicator Cardiff Position Wales Average Cardiff Target
In 2020 strategy Academic year Academic year Academic year
2015/16 2015/16 2016/17
Increase the percentage of The percentage of pupils achieving
pupils achieving the the Foundation Phase Outcome
expected outcomes in the Indicator, at the end of year 2
mandatory areas of learning 88.9% 87% 89%
in the Foundation Phase at
the end of year 2
See also Desired Outcome 2
Increase the percentage of The percentage of pupils achieving
pupils achieving the the Core Subject Indicator, at the
expected outcomes in the end of Key Stage 2
core subjects of
Mathematics, English/Welsh 89.5% 88.6% 93%
and Science in Key Stage 2
at the end of year 6
See also Desired Outcome 2
Increase the percentage of The percentage of pupils achieving
pupils achieving the Level the Level 2+ Threshold (5 GCSE’s
2+ Threshold (5 GCSE’s at at A*-C) including English/ Welsh
A*-C) including English/ and Mathematics) at the end of Key 63% 60% 65%

Welsh and Mathematics) at
the end of Key Stage 4 (year
11) See also Desired Outcome 2

Stage 4 (year 11)




yez abed

In 2020 strategy

Academic year

Academic year

2015/16 2015/16
Improve the levels of The percentage of SEN pupils achieving the
achievement of vulnerable Foundation Phase Indicator, at the end of year 2:
learners in line with their
individual requirements, needs - Statemented 16.7% 14.8%
and aspirations. In particular:
- School Action Plus 45.3% 47.2%
Pupils with additional learning
needs - School Action 73% 67.7%
See also Desired Outcome 4 The percentage of SEN pupils achieving the Core
Wales averages are from June 2015 Subject Indicator, at the end of Key Stage 2:
National Assembly for Wales Research
paper, SEN/ALN in Wales - Statemented 16.7% 20.6%
- School Action Plus 50.0% 55.5%
- School Action 79.2% 74.8%
The percentage of SEN pupils achieving the Core
Subject Indicator, at the end of Key Stage 3:
- Statemented 25.6% 21.7%
- School Action Plus 50.9% 54.2%
- School Action 70.3% 70.6%
Key Performance Indicator Cardiff Position Wales Average

Academic year
2015/16

Academic year
2015/16




Gee obed

The percentage of SEN pupils achieving the Level
2+ threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs A*
- C including Maths & English/Welsh)

Pupils educated other than at

school (EOTAS)

- Statemented 16.0% 14.1%
- School Action Plus 17.8% 23.6%
- School Action 29.8% 30.3%
The percentage of SEN pupils achieving the Level 2
threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs A* -
C)
- Statemented 44.3% 41.1%
- School Action Plus 56.0% 64%
- School Action 70.2% 75.1%
The percentage of SEN pupils achieving the Level 1
threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs A* -
C)
- Statemented 63.2% 65.2%
- School Action Plus 82.7% 90.6%
- School Action 92.7% 97.2%
Key Performance Indicator Cardiff Position Cardiff Target
Academic year Academic year
2015/16 2016/17




9gg abed

Cardiff Polsition

Key Performance Indicator Wales Average Cardiff Target
Academic year Academic year Academic year
o 2015/16 2015/16 2016/17
EOTAS annual census as at 12t January L 11
2016 (NB some of these pupils will also be eve o
registered on a school roll but attending 17.3%
alternative provision) Level 2 To be confirmed
. 4.0% once EOTAS
(75 pupils) PLASC is finalised
Level 2+
4.0%
Those leaving with no qualifications. 12.0%
Pupils educated other than at The percentage of Key Stage 4 EOTAS pupils, not
school (EOTAS) — not on a Cardiff | on a Cardiff school roll, achieving the expected
school roll levels at:
Level 1
All pupils who were receiving EOTAS 13%
provision but not on a school or PRU roll as
at the school and EOTAS annual census .
date 12 January 2016 Level 2 0% To be confirmed
once EOTAS
(24 pupils) Level 2+ 0% PLASC is finalised
Those leaving with no qualifications. 25%




/€¢ abed

Children who are looked after by

The percentage of Children who are
Looked After achieving the expected

(Wales Average
Academic year

any local authority and attend a levels at: 2014/15)
Cardiff mainstream secondary
school or PRU Foundation Phase 88.9% (16 out of 18 To be confirmed
Foundation Phase Outcome Indicator pupils) 64% once PLASC is
(all children on the roll of a Cardiff finalised
school or the PRU as at 12! January
s e loosad ator Pigeelo® | Key Stage 2 68.2% (15 out of 22 64% To be confirmed
Cardiff or any other local authority) Core Subject Indicator pupils) once PLASC is
finalised
Key Stage 4
Level 1 71.4% (20 out of 28 Not available To be confirmed
pupils) once PLASC is
finalised
Key Stage 4
Level 2 46.4% (13 out of 28 Not available To be confirmed
pupils) once PLASC is
finalised
Key Stage 4
Level 2 + 17.9% (5 out of 28 18% To be confirmed
pupils) once PLASC is
finalised
Children who are looked after by
Cardiff Council The percentage of Children who are
Looked After achieving the expected
(all children looked after as at 12t levels at:
January 2016 which is the annual pupil
census date for whom Cardif Councilis | £ 0 yation Phase 71.4% (150utof 21 | Notavailable | Not yet available

the Corporate Parent)

Foundation Phase Outcome Indicator

pupils)

Key Stage 2
Core Subject Indicator

70.4% (19 out of 27
pupils)

73.3%




ggg abed

Key Stage 4

Level 1 54% (25 out of 46 57%
pupils)
Key Stage 4
Level 2 33% (15 out of 46 33%
pupils)
Key Stage 4
Level 2+ 15.2% (7 out of 46 7%
pupils)
Key Performance Indicator Cardiff Position Wales Average Cardiff Target
Academic year Academic year Academic year
2015/16 2015/16 2016/17
Pupils entering Cardiff schools The percentage of EAL pupils achieving
with English as a second the expected levels at:
language
Foundation Phase
Foundation Phase Outcome Indicator 86.6%
Key Stage 2
Core Subject Indicator 88.4%
To be confirmed
Key Stage 3 82.8% Not available once PLASC is
Core Subject Indicator finalised
Key Stage 4
Level 1 99.0%
Key Stage 4
Level 2 90.9%
Key Stage 4
Level 2+ 63.9%

Key Goal: A High Quality Workforce




6c¢ abed

Success Measure
In 2020 strategy

February 2017

Increase the population of ‘Outstanding’ teachers and practitioners in
Cardiff, particularly in those areas of the curriculum where the need
to improve learner outcomes is greatest.

The proportion of schools, inspected by Estyn, judged to have good
or excellent teaching on a three year rolling basis as at the end of the
academic year 2015/16 is 71.4% (30 out of 42) for Primary schools,
33% (3 out of 9) for Secondary schools and 75% (3 out of 4) for
Special schools.

Increase school leadership capacity in Cardiff, to respond to the
diverse and changing needs of education in the city region.

The proportion of schools where Leadership is judged by Estyn to be
good or excellent on a three year rolling basis is as at the end of the
academic year 2015/16 is 74.4% (32 out of 43) for Primary schools,
33.3% (3 out of 9) for Secondary schools and 25% (1 out of 4) for
Special schools.

Implement new school leadership models that enable experienced
Heads and Senior Leaders to oversee and support those appointed
to a role as Head of School, either as part of a federation or by
agreement with the governing bodies of the schools involved.

Create a network of Executive Leaders across the city that is able to
support other schools and lead federations and school improvement
groups.

The LA is currently consulting with head teachers and governors on
federations. A full update regarding formal arrangements will be
provided to the Education Development Board on 11" May 2017.

The consortium have commissioned an Executive Training
programme for primary schools and will be developing learning about
the variety of models for achieving economies of scale between
schools.

Engage all teachers in enquiry led learning related to the
improvement priorities for their school and/or partnership/federation.

The regional professional learning offer, commissioned by the
consortium in partnership with schools, is supporting schools as a
recognition for the need for professional development to align with
their own improvement priorities. A significant amount of
development is currently going into the programmes with
practitioners researching practice within their areas of focus and
working in joint practice with others to shape the materials for the
sessions. Increasingly, schools are collaborating to plan, develop and
deliver against the regional needs.




Ot’¢ abed

More effectively evaluate the contribution of the non-teaching The consortium are commissioning and developing a programme of
workforce to school improvement and harness this capacity to training.

enhance teaching and learning outcomes.

Key Goal: 21stCentury Learning Environments

Success Measure
In 2020 strategy

February 2017

Significantly improve the learning environments
of the existing school estate through the
implementation of the annual Asset
management plan, ensuring best value for
financial resources.

The Asset renewal programme for 2017/18 is being renewed with priorities being
determined according to a needs based criteria.
Conditions reports are being undertaken for a number of schools to determine priorities
and programme in improvement works.

Key Performance Indicator February 2017
The number of schools re-built or 3 Primaries — Ysgol Y Wern, Adamsdown,
significantly re-furbished in the last year Coed Glas

1 Secondary- Fitzalan

Success Measure
In 2020 strategy

Key Performance Indicator Cardiff Position Academic year 2015/16

Increase the number of pupils securing a school
place that meets individual needs, where
appropriate in accordance with their first
preference.

The percentage of children securing their
first choice for school placement:

Primary 86.0%

Secondary 76.0%




Tt abed

The percentage of children securing one

of their 3 choices for school placement:

Primary 93.0%
Secondary 88.0%
The number of schools from within

catchment oversubscribed (over 10%)

Primary 6 schools
Secondary 3 schools

Success Measure
In 2020 strategy

February 2017

Complete the planning of the next set of priorities for the 21st century
school programme, including a focus on Special Educational Needs
provision across the City, by the 31st March 2017.

Welsh government are in the early stages of formulating funding
models for the Band B investment programme. The LA will submit
their plans in September 2017.

Offer a co-ordinated Admissions process, with the voluntary aided
sector, which provides parents/carers with a clear picture of the school
place choices available to them and the likelihood of securing first
preferences.

The co-ordinated admissions arrangements are due to go to
Cabinet on 16" March 2017, following the closure of the
consultation process.

Embed a new Community Focused Schools approach, across all
Cardiff Schools, providing a range of activities and opportunities to
enrich the lives of children, families and the wider community; and
contributing to community objectives including local cohesion,
sustainability and regeneration.

There are a significant number of schools who are already
interacting positively with their communities. The aspiration is to
ensure that all schools practice a Community Focused Approach
and work is ongoing in this respect.

Develop approaches to learning in the context of the whole city which

A city offer for the Creative Education Partnership in Cardiff has




2 abed

ensures the full participation of every young person in the life of
Cardiff, through business, sporting and cultural links.

been released to schools to provide real-world learning
opportunities in the creative and cultural sector. There is a specific
action plan for the new High School in the West.

Complete the construction of a new High School in the East of the city,
in partnership with Cardiff & Vale College by autumn 2017.

Construction has commenced and the school is on track to open in
the autumn term 2017.

Complete the construction of three new two form of entry primary
schools, by spring 2018.

Planning consent has been gained for Howardian and is in the
process of being gained for Ysgol Glan Morfa and Hamadryad.

Complete the construction of a new High School in the West of the city
by September 2018.

The contact for the new Cardiff West Community High School has
been awarded and the design is being taken to planning stage.

10



et abed

Key Goal: A Self- Improving School system

Success Measure
In 2020 strategy

Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff Position February 2017

List of schools in a category
February 2017

Have no schools in an
Estyn category.

The number of schools in an
Estyn follow up category:

-Estyn monitoring (EM)
-Significant improvement (SI)

-Special measures (SM)

EM-5
SI- 1
SM- 5

EM- Riverbank Special School, Bryn
Hafod Primary, Whitchurch High,
Radyr Comp, All Saints CIW Primary,

Sl- Cantonian High

SM- Woodlands Special School,
Eastern High, Trelai Primary,
Michaelston Community College,
Glyn Derw High School

Success Measure
In 2020 strategy

Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff Position January 2017

Number of green schools

Increase the proportion of
schools categorised as
green by Welsh
Government in the annual
national categorisation
process.

WG categorisation outcomes
are published annually in
January.

The percentage of Cardiff
schools categorised as ‘Green’
in the annual Welsh Government
School Categorisation process

Primary- 36% (Wales average 27%)

Secondary- 26% (Wales average
26%)

Special-57% (Wales average 41%)

Primary- 35 out of 98
Secondary- 5 out of 19

Special- 4 out of 7

| Success Measure

| Key Performance Indicator

| Inspection Report Analysis-

| Inspection Report Analysis-

11



vz abed

In 2020 strategy

Outcomes from September 2011-
August 2016 for Key Question 1
(reports graded excellent for
outcomes)

Outcomes from September 2011-
August 2016 for Key Question 1
(reports graded good for outcomes)

Increase the proportion of
schools where Standards
are judged by Estyn to be
good or excellent.

Between 2011-2016

The proportion of schools judged
to be excellent or good for Key
Question 1: How good are
outcomes over the past 5 years.

Excellent

Primary- 9.78% (Wales 3.63%)
Secondary- 4.76% (Wales 11.79%)
Special- 12.50% (Wales 16.22%)

Good

Primary- 68.48% (Wales 67.75%)
Secondary- 38.10% (Wales 34.91%)
Special- 75% (56.76%)

Success Measure
In 2020 strategy

Key Performance Indicator

Academic Year 2014/15

Academic Year 2015/16

Secure improved learner
outcomes at the
designated Challenge
Cymru Secondary
schools that are at least
in line with the welsh
average.

Note that the Challenge Cymru
Programme is ending 315t
March 2017. Beyond this date
we will continue to ensure
improved Key Stage 4
outcomes in our lowest
performing schools.

The percentage of pupils
achieving the expected levels at
the end of Key Stage 4 in:

Willows High School — L1, L2 and
L2+

Willows High School
L1 83.6%, L2 78.9%, L2+ 46.9%

Willows High School
L1 95%, L2 93%, L2+ 53%

St llityd’s High School- L1, L2
and L2+

St llityd’s High School
L1 97%, L2 85.6%, L2+ 46.1%

St llityd’s High School
L1 98%, L2 98%, L2+ 55%

Michaelston Community College—
L1,L2 and L2+

Michaelston Community College
L1 89.3%, L2 68%, L2+ 25.2%

Michaelston Community College
L1 82%, L2 61%, L2+ 25%

12



Girg abed

Glyn Derw High School- L1, L2
and L2+

Glyn Derw High School
L1 79.5%, L2 63.6%, L2+ 23.9%

Glyn Derw High School
L1 86%, L2 67%, L2+ 29%

Eastern High School- L1, L2 and
L2+

Eastern High
L1 64.7%, L2 43.8%, L2+ 14.9%

Eastern High
L1 72%, L2 35%, L2+ 22%

Cantonian High School- L1, L2
and L2+

Cantonian High School
L1 92.5%, L2 87.5%, L2+ 45%

Cantonian High School
L1 97%, L2 92%, L2+ 51%

Success Measure
In 2020 strategy

February 2017

Have no schools running recurrent deficit budgets.

There are 12 schools currently running deficit budgets. At the end
of 2014-15 there were 21 schools running deficit budgets.

Have all secondary schools paired with another school, either within the
consortium or the city to support leadership of teaching and learning.

All schools in Cardiff continue to be part of an accredited school
improvement group or network. Lead schools are implementing
their professional learning programmes and the lead practitioners
have been deployed across the region.

Have an agreed peer to peer model operating across the city, based on
the shared use of data and performance measures.

The majority of schools are involved in a formal peer enquiry or
have senior leaders undertaking leadership development.

13




9tr¢ abed

Key Goal: Schools and Cardiff in Partnership

School Governance

Success measure in 2020 Key Performance Indicator Cardiff position 2014/15 Cardiff position 2015/16
strategy

Further strengthen school The percentage of local authority

governance, increasing the governing body vacancies 7.95% (31 positions) 6.91% (27 positions)
number of school governors and

the range of skills that they are The percentage of governing

able to offer to help drive school | body vacancies 8.78% (179 positions) 8.13% (166 positions)
improvement.

Schools Partnerships (Business/Public/Voluntary sector and Communities/Families)

Success measure in 2020 strategy

February 2017

Improve the broad range of skills of children starting school as
measured by the new foundation phase profile, in partnership with
families, communities, health and the early year’s sector.

Data not yet analysed. The baseline for the new Foundation
Phase profile which assesses the abilities of children on entry to
school was collected for the first time this Summer.

Cardiff is also commencing work to evaluate the impact of Flying
Start programmes across the city over the last 8 - 10 years.

Ensure that all schools have a clear business partner, with

purposeful shared objectives.

Eight secondary schools were partnered with a business under
the Business in the Community ‘Business Class’ programme as at
February 2017.

Many schools/business partnerships also exist across the city
which have evolved through local arrangements.

14



Youth Engagement and Progression

Success measure in 2020
strategy

Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff position 2015/16

Cardiff ranking

Increase the numbers of young
people that make a successful
transition to the world of work.

See also Desired Outcome 7

Other measures are being gathered to
extend these annual measures from
Careers Wales

The percentage of Year 11
leavers making a successful
transition from compulsory
schooling to education,
employment or training.

(2014/15 Cardiff)

95.5%
(4.5% NEET)

(2014/15 ranking)

22 out of 22

The percentage of Year 13
leavers making a successful
transition from compulsory
schooling to education,
employment or training.

(2014/15 Cardiff)

97.04%
(2.96% NEET)

(2014/15 ranking)

7 out of 22

/¢ abed

Ensure that all young people
have access to careers advice,
guidance and work experience
opportunities.

Working in partnership with young people, parents, schools, youth services, communities, training
providers, further and higher education, businesses large and small, the public sector, and voluntary
sector, the Council is seeking to create a coalition for change that commits to making a real difference
to young people’s lives and in turn, the prosperity of Cardiff. A report on the implementation of the
Cardiff Commitment will be provided to Education Development Board in April 2017.




8¢ abed

Vulnerable learners / Alternative curriculum

Success measure in 2020
strategy

Provide a broader range of
alternative curriculum options
that respond effectively to the
needs of vulnerable learners
that may have difficulties learning
in a classroom environment.

See also Desired Outcome 5 and 8

P=provisional

Refer to the EOTAS performance measures within the ‘Excellent Outcomes’ goal which provide
details of outcomes achieved by pupils that access Education Other Than at School.

The performance of pupils with additional learning needs should also be considered in the context of
this success measure. Work is ongoing to add to the educational attainment measures listed within
‘Excellent Outcomes’ which needs to take account of provision and access to services.

Available measures for other vulnerable groups,and measures of engagement in school such as
attendance and exclusions are presented together below.

Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff position 2015/15

Wales Average Academic
year 2015/16

The percentage of eFSM pupils
achieving the Foundation Phase
Outcome Indicator, at the end
of year 2

Difference in achievement
between pupils eligible for free
school meals vs those not
eligible

80.2%

75.7%

14.3

The percentage of eFSM pupils
achieving the Core Subject
Indicator, at the end of Key
Stage 2

Difference in achievement
between pupils eligible for free
school meals vs those not
eligible

78.8%

13.6

771%

14.3

16



61¢ abed

Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff position 2015/15

Wales Average Academic
year 2015/16

The percentage of eFSM pupils
achieving the Core Subject
Indicator, at the end of Key
Stage 3

Difference in achievement
between pupils eligible for free
school meals vs those not
eligible

70.8%

20.0

69.4%

224

The percentage eFSM pupils
achieving the Level 2+ threshold
at the end of Key Stage 4 (5
GCSEs A* - C including Maths &
English/Welsh)

Difference in achievement
between pupils eligible for free
school meals vs those not
eligible

39.3%

29.8

35.6%

31.3

The percentage eFSM pupils
achieving the Level 2 threshold
at the end of Key Stage 4 (5
GCSEs A* - C)

Difference in achievement
between pupils eligible for free
school meals vs those not
eligible

71.9%

171

71.6%

17.5

17



0G¢ abed

Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff position 2015/16

Wales Average Academic

year 2015/16

The percentage of eFSM pupils
achieving the Level 1 threshold
at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 87.6% 92.0%
GCSE'S A*-G)
Difference in achievement
between pupils eligible for free 10.3 6.2
school meals vs those not
eligible
Attendance in primary schools

95% 94.9%
Attendance in secondary
schools 94.5% 94.2%
Fixed term exclusions per 1000 (Wales average 2014/15)
pupils in primary (5 days or 9.38 8.0
fewer)
Fixed term exclusions per 1000 (Wales average 2014/15)
pupils in primary (6 days or 0.2 0.3
more)
Fixed term exclusions per 1000 (Wales average 2014/15)
pupils in secondary (5 days or 55.3 55.3
fewer)
Fixed term exclusions per 1000 (Wales average 2014/15)
pupils in secondary (6 days or 0.91 3.4

more)

Success Measure

Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff Position Academic year

Wales Average Academic

18



TG¢ abed

In 2020 strategy 2015/16 year 2015/16
Children who are looked after by | The percentage of Children who
any local authority and attend a are Looked After achieving the
Cardiff mainstream secondary expected levels at:
school or PRU
Foundation Phase 88.9% (16 out of 18 pupils) 64%
(all children on the roll of a Cardiff school
or the PRU as at 12" January 2016 ;
which is the annual pupil census date Key Stage 2 68.2% (15 out of 22 pupils) 64%
who were looked after either by Cardiff - -
or any other local authority) Key Stage 4 71.4% (20 out of 28 pupils) Not yet available
Level 1
Key Stage 4 46.4% (13 out of 28 pupils) Not yet available
Level 2
Key Stage 4 17.9% (5 out of 28 pupils) 18%
Level 2 +
Key Performance Indicator Cardiff Position Academic year Wales Average Academic
Children who are looked after by 2015/16 year 2015/16
Cardiff Council
The percentage of Children who
(all children looked after as at 12th are Looked After achieving the
January 2016 which is the annual pupil .
census date for whom Cardiff Council is expected levels at:
the Corporate Parent) ) . )
Foundation Phase 71.4% (15 out of 21 pupils) Not available

Key Stage 2 70.4% (19 out of 27 pupils)
Key Stage 4 54% (25 out of 46 pupils)

Level 1

Key Stage 4

Level 2 33% (15 out of 46 pupils)

Key Stage 4

Level 2 + 15.2% (7 out of 46 pupils)

19



This page is intentionally left blank



Background

Education Development Board
Terms of Reference
October 2016

The Education Development Board (EDB) and the Vulnerable Children and Families
Board sit beneath the Cardiff Public Services Board and have a specific focus on the
education and well-being of children and young people in Cardiff.

Purpose of the EDB

EDB is a Partnership Board

» Maintain an overview of progress against the desired outcomes and goals of

Cardiff 2020:

O

O O O O

Excellent outcomes for learners

High quality workforce

Self-Improving school system

21st century schools

Schools & Cardiff in partnership
(Performance framework being developed)

» Focus upon ‘unlocking’ and driving up performance in those areas where
partners can add most value.
o Cardiff 2020 Goal - ‘Schools & Cardiff in Partnership’

Youth engagement and progression

Employability / schools & business partnerships

School governors’ recruitment

Early help / Community and family engagement
Vulnerable learners and alternative learning opportunities

» Link up with Vulnerable Children and Families Board

» Providing a point of strategic reference for significant programmes or projects
running under the other 4 goals — for example: The Band B 21st Century
Schools Submission

Page 253



Board Membership

Name Organisation
Rod Alcott Chair

Nick Batchelar Cardiff Council
Cllr Sarah Merry Cardiff Council
Jackie Turner Cardiff Council
Angela Kent Cardiff Council
Ken Poole Cardiff Council

Hannah Woodhouse

Central South Consortium

Ceri Assiratti

Admiral Group plc

Ashley Kindred

Panasonic UK

Mike James

Cardiff and Vale College

Professor Dan Davies

Cardiff Metropolitan University

Professor Amanda Coffey

Cardiff University

Louise Harris

Big Learning Company

Mark Owen

Careers Wales

Jane Morris

Governors Wales

Edwin Counsell

Diocesan Director C/W Schools

Andrew Williams

Radyr Comprehensive School

Jan Comrie Grangetown Nursery
Sarah Coombes Llanishen Fach

Kath Keeley The Hollies
Suzanne Scarlett Cardiff Council
Natalie Stork (Facilitator of meeting) Cardiff Council

Meeting Frequency
The Board will meet half termly.

6t October 2016
39 November 2016
27 February 2017
6th April 2017

11t May 2017

6th July 2017

The board will be provided with an overview document of progress against the Cardiff
2020 Goals and Success measures at every meeting, with a focus on the Cardiff

Commitment (Goal 5- Schools and Cardiff in Partnership)

Page 254




GGe abed

The Education Development Board Work Programme 2016/17

6t October

| 3 November

| 2nd February

| 6% April

| 11t May

| 6 July

STANDING ITEMS

Minutes of last
meeting and matters
arising

Minutes of last
meeting and matters
arising

Minutes of last
meeting and matters
arising

Monitoring of
progress Cardiff 2020

Minutes of last
meeting and
matters arising

Monitoring of
progress Cardiff
2020

Minutes of last
meeting and matters
arising

Monitoring of
progress Cardiff
2020

Minutes of last
meeting and matters
arising

Monitoring of
progress Cardiff
2020

SPECIFIC

School Performance
2015/16

Review of EDB work
programme 2015/16

Terms of Reference
2016/17

Cardiff 2020 and work
programme 2016/17

Work programme
2016/17

Schools/Business
Partnerships model

Cardiff 2020 baseline

Cardiff 2020 goal —
‘Excellent Outcomes
for Learners’

School Performance
summary (final
results) 2015/16

School Performance
January 2017
categorisation

School Performance
2016/17 ‘currently
secures’

Cardiff 2020 goal- A
High Quality
Workforce

Cardiff 2020 goal-
‘21st Century
learning
environments’
(Band B
investment
programme)

ALN/SEN

Cardiff 2020 goal ‘A
Self-Improving
School System
(Governance,
Federations)

Cardiff 2020 Goal -
Schools and
Cardiff in
Partnership




Page 256



Agenda Item 7

CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

7 MARCH 2017

CHILD SEXUAL EXPLOTATION (CSE) - PROGRESS BRIEFING

Reason for the Report

1.

To provide the Committee with an updated progress report on the
implementation by Cabinet of Committee’s 2016 CSE inquiry report
recommendations (Appendix A). The report sets out an operational

update against each of the recommendations as at February 2017.

Background

2.

The Committee agreed its report following its investigation into CSE in
July 2016 and Cabinet approved a response to the Committee’s inquiry
report at its meeting on 13 October 2016. The response report noted that
the inquiry took place and provided feedback on the drafting of the CSE
Prevention Strategy, which was approved by Cabinet in May 2016. A

copy of the Prevention Strategy was attached to the response.

The CSE Prevention Strategy and implementation plan not only
addressed all 13 of the Committee’s recommendations but also identified

actions and timescales under five clear aims, namely:

Understand
Raise awareness
|dentify

Support

® a0 T o

Disrupt and prosecute.

Page 257



The Committee noted that a Financial Pressures bid within the Council’s
2017/18 Budget allocated additional funding of £151,000 for a Child
Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Prevention Team — a temporary (three years)
Multi Agency CSE Prevention Team to be established to continue to
implement the CSE Strategy and address the need that has been

evidenced.

Scope of Scrutiny

5.

The scope of this scrutiny is to consider the response to each of the
inquiry’s recommendations, and to pass on any observations, comments
or recommendations to the Director of Social Services. Members may

wish to consider:

a. the progress being made to undertake the actions identified to

address each recommendation;

b. the impact of the actions to improve the effectiveness of the
protection and support for those affected by CSE and tackle

perpetrators.

Way Forward

6.

Councillor Sue Lent (Cabinet Member for Early Years, Children &
Families) has been invited to attend, and may make a statement. Tony
Young (Director of Social Services) has been invited to present the

progress report and to answer any questions Members may have.
Members are invited to consider the information set out in the attached

report and to identify any issues on which they would wish to receive

further information.

Page 258



Legal Implications

8.

The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend, but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations
in this report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal
implications. However, legal implications may arise if and when the
matters under review are implemented with or without any modifications.
Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to the
Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising from those
recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council
must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any
procedural requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the
body or person exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be
undertaken in accordance with the procedural requirements imposed by
the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and properly
informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the
Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and

proper in all the circumstances.

Financial Implications

9.

The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, review and
recommend, but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations
in this report are to consider and review matters there are no direct
financial implications at this stage in relation to the work programme.
However, financial implications may arise if and when the matters under
review are implemented with or without any modifications. Any report
with recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set

out any financial implications arising from those recommendations.

Page 259



RECOMMENDATION

Committee is recommended to consider the contents of the report attached at
Appendices A and provide the Cabinet Member and Director with any

comments, concerns or recommendations.
Davina Fiore

Director of Governance and Legal Services
1 March 2017

Page 260



Progress to Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Committee
Child Sexual Exploitation Prevention
February 2017

R1. A CSE Referral Pathway be developed, which will set out clear and concise
route of end-to-end care for those referred into the Council. This Pathway could
also be used as a tool across a range of activities to promote a clear, consistent
message across all practitioners, partners and the wider community.
(Supported by Key Finding KF3)

The Cabinet Response to Scrutiny Committee reported on the then new arrangements
in place to deal with CSE concerns. These arrangements are now embedded in
Children’s Services practice and is ensuring the effective, multi-agency management
of CSE cases.

R2. An Officer at Operational Manager or above be made responsible for CSE,
and their job description to include a range of responsibilities including raising
awareness of CSE across the Council, playing a role in making strategic
linkages, pooling resources, linking with the LSCB on strategic issues,
reporting to Cabinet and Scrutiny Committees and ensuring that systems for
referral, support and rehabilitation within the Council are fit for purpose.
(Supported by Key Finding KF2)

As part of the Council’s overall budget proposals for 2017/18, the Directorate’s CSE-
related financial pressure bid has now been agreed by full Council. This enables a
CSE prevention team to be established under the leadership of a CSE Lead Manager
(at Operational Manager 2). The Directorate will begin immediately to recruit to these
posts.

R.3 After 12 months of operation, a survey be carried out amongst all partners
and practitioners to gauge the effectiveness of the Multi Agency Safeguarding
Hub (MASH) in Cardiff and also improvements in partnership working and
information sharing.

(Supported by Key Findings KF8 — KF11)

R4. Members would like to commend the work carried out to date by the CSE
Lead Manager and CSE Coordinator and that our thanks and the thanks of the
many witnesses who took part in the Inquiry be passed on to them. It is also
recommended that these posts be made permanent.

(Supported by Key Findings KF12, KF13)

See above

Page 261



R5. That Children’s Services review the way that it deals with incoming CSE
referrals as detailed in KF15. This is to meet the commitment required by the
National Action Plan to “support the identification of CSE and enable a timely
range of appropriate responses”.

(Supported by Key Findings KF14, KF15)]

As reported by Cabinet to Scrutiny Committee the management of cases where there
is a CSE concern have been reviewed and new arrangements put in place. These
arrangements are now embedded within Children’s Services practice. The service
continues to take a proactive, preventive approach to abuse through sexual
exploitation in recognition of the profound and lasting effect it has on children and their
families. The management of all referrals where there is a CSE concern continues to
be overseen by the CSE Lead Manager ensuring consistency across the service.

The CSE Multi Agency Strategy Meeting process has been embedded in practice.
Staff within Children’s Services and our partner agencies are aware of their distinct
roles and the expectation to work proactive as a cohesive team to prevent abuse and
support recovery.

R6. Ongoing training be given to social workers to ensure that consistent,
professional, timely advice is given to everyone who makes a referral to
Children’s Services. Linked to this, wider training outside of the organisation
(particularly to schools) should form part of the wider training programme to
empower individuals and organisations to intervene at lower levels and
therefore assist in reducing the number of referrals being made via the CAP
Desk.

(Supported by Key Findings KF16, KF17)

A list of agencies who have received training from the CSE lead Manager and/or CSE
Coordinator is attached at Appendix one. A similarly diverse training schedule is
planned for the coming year. The team remain responsive to requests from any
agency to provide training.

The CSE Professional Interest Group (PING) is very well established. It meets
quarterly with around 60 professionals working across the City in organisations like
Police, Education, Schools, Health, Youth Offending Service, Mental Health, Housing,
Probation and Third Sector in attendance. The group continues to spread good
practice, share expertise and promote a strong sense that everyone is working
together to tackle CSE in Cardiff.

R7. A strategic, coordinated awareness raising and training programme be
developed with input from all partners. Whilst it is acknowledged that the CSE
Lead Manager and CSE Coordinator are currently engaged in CSE training with
social workers and practitioners, further work needs to be planned, developed
and implemented. This should include the coordination of current materials that
could be used as part of the programme. The programme should include
mechanisms for delivering a large scale campaign across the City, and also
more targeted awareness raising and training to include vulnerable groups,

Page 262



community groups, schools’ training, those engaged in the night-time economy,
foster carers, staff in children’s homes and those engaged in providing council
services via the commissioning and procurement process.

(Supported by Key Findings KF17,KF28-30, KF31-34)

Work has taken place with schools, youth service and third sector organisations to
deliver CSE awareness raising sessions in schools, youth work settings, supported
accommodation and residential children’s homes. This work is ongoing. For example
the CSE Prevention Team is currently working with St Teilo’s school to develop a
group work programme for boys. The aim of the group is to:

- Raise awareness around healthy relationships, rights and responsibilities

- Promote safe social media use

- Educate around consent, peer pressure and power

- Educate around sex, pornography and healthy relationships

- Challenge myths around boundaries in relationships

- Help keep boys safe and empower them to seek help

This programme will begin with students in St Teilos’ next term. Subject to evaluation
and review, it is hoped that the programme will be rolled out across schools in the
coming year.

The booklet ‘CSE — a Guide for Parents’ is presently being translated and will be
printed for circulation to agencies across Cardiff working with vulnerable families.

The resource pack for professionals ‘CSE — a practitioner’s toolkit’ has been written
and circulated widely within Children’s Services and via the CSE PING. It is being used
across agencies to support direct work with children to raise their awareness of CSE
and reduce risks.

A targeted campaign to raise awareness of parents, carers, professionals and
communities is being planned and will begin in with the public in Summer 2017. This
will include the use of published materials, social media and pop up road shows
under the banner ‘Not in our City, Not to our Children’.

The CSE Prevention team is working with the Families First team to ensure that the
forthcoming round of funding will include CSE awareness work with families as a
standard expectation.

R8. Itis also recommended that a programme of campaigns for children and
young people is developed by young people, to included PSHE teaching
materials, social media, development of apps, etc. The wording of all material
should be very carefully considered not to stereotype victims, and materials
should also pay particular attention to boys and young men who were identified
as a particular “hidden” group.

(Supported by Key Findings KF17,KF28-30, KF31-34)

The resource pack for professionals makes good use of materials already designed
by children and young people including comic strip leaflets, videos and apps.

Page 263



Work is underway to strengthen the voice of children in the response to CSE in Cardiff.
An example of this is the Young People’s Conference, hosted by Children’s Services,
which will be taking place on 16" March 2017.

Each school has been invited to nominate up to three children to attend the
conference and throughout the day participants will take part in activities and
workshops which will raise their awareness around child sexual exploitation including
how children can look out for dangerous adults, spot when their peers may be in
danger, call for help and keep themselves and their friends safe.

The conference will be delivered in partnership with voluntary sector organisations
like Barnardo’s, NSPCC, Safer Wales and YMCA who are key providers of CSE
prevention services in the City and experts in their fields.

By the end of the day participants will be trained as CSE Prevention Ambassadors
for their schools. Following the conference the CSE Prevention team will work with
the Ambassadors and schools to hold events in each school/ cluster of schools
where the Ambassadors will educate their peers.

This event aims to promote the idea that empowering children and raising their
awareness to prevent CSE is how we keep children safe. It will also demonstrate
how statutory and voluntary sector agencies are working closely together to this end.

R9. That the LEA (Local Education Authority) conduct a risk assessment of
those not in mainstream education, and that the results of this risk assessment
be reported to the C&V LSCB and to the Children & Young People Scrutiny
Committee. Members were particularly concerned about the potential risks
inherent in children undertaking alternative curriculum and home schooling.
Whilst it is recognised that the LEA does not have statutory responsibility to
account for those children and young people, an idea of the scale of the issue
and potential “risks” should be assessed.

(Supported by Key Findings KF18-19)

The CSE Team is working closely with the newly appointed Education Safeguarding
Officer both to deliver training to education staff and to meet the needs of individual
children in specific circumstances. This work will continue to develop.

R10. Itis also recommended that the Education Department play an active role
in the awareness raising and training programme for schools. The proactive
and positive work undertaken by Willows High School and St. Teilo’s High
School should be included within the programme.

(Supported by Key Findings KF20-22)

Please see R.7, R.8 and R.9 above.
R11. It is recommended that a report on the restructure of the CAMHS service
be factored into the work programme of the Children & Young People Scrutiny

Committee for consideration at a future date.
(Supported by Key Findings KF24-25)

Page 264



R12. Whilst it is recognised that the LSCB is not accountable to the Council, it
is recommended that the Cabinet requests that C&V LSCB make a commitment
to report to Cabinet and the Children & Young People Scrutiny Committee on
progress towards achieving the All Wales National Action Plan, and commit to
submitting, for information annually, progress against the Multi Agency CSE
Strategy.

(Supported by Key Findings KF 5 — KF7)

Cardiff and Vale LSCB has re-established the CSE Strategic Group. The CSE Lead
Manager is a member of that group which meets quarterly. The group will receive
reports on the implementation of the All Wales National Plan and CSE Prevention
Strategy.

R13. Itis also recommended that the LSCB should review whether the current
governance structure enabled robust scrutiny of the organisation and consider
the need for an independent Chair.

(Supported by Key Finding KF7)

This was responded to in Cabinet Member correspondence CM33619

Page 265



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL
GYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

7 MARCH 2017

CHILDREN’S SERVICES PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT INFORMATION

REASON FOR THE REPORT

1.

The Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee is responsible for scrutinising
the performance of Children’s (social) Services. This report sets out performance
data outlining progress against the objectives aligned to the social theme for the
quarter ending 31st December 2016.

BACKGROUND

2.

The ongoing development of the Cardiff Performance Management Framework has
brought into line the monitoring and evaluation of progress against the key objectives
as set out in the Corporate Plan and the performance indicators set to assist in the
understanding of the overall performance position of the Council. This range of
performance data relating to Children’s Services is contained in Appendix B to this
report.

The Cabinet have identified that the delivery of their key priorities and the Council’s
performance against key indicators should be the focus of future quarterly reports.
Quarterly reports are prepared on that basis, allowing for trend analysis to be
undertaken on an appropriate basket of indicators and the effective delivery of the
Administration’s key priorities as attached at Appendix A.

The performance report attached at Appendix B has been constructed to highlight
the progress made in delivering the key objectives, associated performance
indicators, and commentaries that help to identify progress, issues and actions
planned where the trend in performance is falling. To make the information in the
performance report clearer, each indicator is accompanied by an arrow, and in some
cases, a happy, indifferent or sad face.

For your information, these symbols represent the following:

e The face symbol shows whether performance is likely, unlikely to, or may meet
the target set for the year.

e The arrow direction shows whether performance has declined, has been
sustained or improved when compared with an appropriate previous period.

At the meeting officers will be present to explain the performance information to the

Committee, to highlight performance issues, and to answer questions that Members
might have.

Page 267 1



PERFORMANCE DURING QUARTER 3: OCTOBER TO DECEMBER 2016

7.

Performance is being reported against the following corporate improvement
objectives:

Looked after children in Cardiff achieve their potential
People at risk in Cardiff are safeguarded
People in Cardiff are supported to live independently

The Service has three main functions:
a. Promoting the welfare of children in need

b. Safeguarding children
c. Improving outcomes for looked after children

OVERVIEW OF QUARTER 3 PERFORMANCE

9.

10.

11.

12.

Performance during Quarter 3 is mixed with improvements in some key areas, but
some declines in other areas. A brief overview of these is provided below, with more
detailed information available in paragraphs 16 — 41 below.

Performance in relation to timeliness of statutory visits to looked after children
increased again from 95% to 96%. This is a notable improvement on the 2015-16
annual outturn figure of 87%. The percentage of social worker vacancies reduced
slightly from 25% to 23%.

Performance in relation to timeliness of initial and review child protection conferences
remains good despite the decline from 97% to 89% and 100% to 97% respectively.
All late conferences that can be held, have since been held. For further information,
please see paragraphs 23 and 24.

Work to progress the Directorate’s commitments in the Corporate Plan has continued
and key areas of progress include:

a. Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Strategy — has enabled significant progress
to be achieved in ensuring that children and young people are protected from
CSE. The strategy has impacted as follows:

e Drawn all key partners together with a common objective and action plan.
¢ Enabled an audit and analysis of service effectiveness.

¢ Drawn more effectively on the voices of children and their families.

e Promoted city wide awareness raising in the night economy.

b. Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) - Threshold meetings are held
weekly to quality assure referrals and decision making. Remedial actions are
identified and addressed by the relevant agency as appropriate.

c. Corporate Parenting Strategy —

e During the quarter, 2 young people attended the Corporate Parenting
Advisory Committee for the first time and made a positive contribution to
the meeting. Further consideration is being given to how the Committee
can formally engage young people on an ongoing basis.

Page 268 2



d.

e Between March and December 2016, 47 families have been supported
and family breakdown has been prevented for 93 children by the Safe
Families for Children initiative; just one child has been accommodated.
This is a new prevention service that works with Children’s Services to link
families in need with local volunteers who can offer them help and support
through a crisis.

e Between April and December 2016, 57 children from 26 families have
received services from the preventative Family Group Conferences
initiative. Accommodation as a result of family breakdown has been
avoided for 9 of these children with an estimated cost saving of £72k.
Family Group Conferencing utilises the strengths of family / friends to
make their own plan to support and safeguard the children.

e The number of children supported by the Looked After Children
traineeship scheme is currently 5 (with a further 2 working with the tutor),
and an additional 7 apprentices within the Council.

Specialist training regarding the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales)
Act 2014 — From April to September a total of 1,071 attendees across Cardiff
and the Vale have received Social Services & Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014
training at an appropriate level. Changes in practice due to the implementation
of the Act are becoming evident across teams in the region, however it is a long
process and it is too soon to measure the impact of these changes.

13. There has been some slippage in progress against some of the milestones in the
Corporate Plan relating to:

a.

Recruitment and retention of children’s social workers - The percentage of
social worker vacancies in Children’s Services has reduced slightly during the
quarter to 23.3% (from 24.8% in Quarter 2) and recruitment initiatives are
ongoing. Vacancies rates have not reduced further due to internal promotions
and transfers. Job creation has commenced in relation to the pool of additional
social workers and it is anticipated that 6 social work posts will be filled in
Quarter 1 2017-18. As a result of work to improve recruitment and retention, a
more stable workforce across the service is emerging and, except where
essential maternity cover is required, there is less reliability on agency staff.
There are some good examples of staff achieving promotional appointments,
thereby supporting career development and staff retention.

Effectiveness of Transition - A successful £2.54 million Intermediate Care
Fund (ICF) bid is now supporting the new “Disability Futures Programme” to
transform services for disabled children and learning disabled adults with
complex needs. This has included the creation of two transition worker posts in
the Adult Learning Disabilities team to work within the complex needs service
supporting young adults from the age of 16.

14. In relation to the Directorate Plan, there has been progress in relation to:

a.

Early Help Strategy — The Joint Assessment Family Framework (JAFF) pilot is
ongoing and subject to regular monitoring and review. The first supervision
session for staff involved in the pilot was held and was led by a senior
practitioner within the Team Around the Family (TAF) team. Supervision takes
the form of a practice exchange, providing an opportunity for practitioners who

Page 269 3



are using the JAFF to discuss their experience and raise any issues that they
are encountering. Further advice and guidance is given in response to issues
raised.

New model for the delivery of children’s social services - Progress with
Signs of Safety Project Plan continues — training is ongoing; engagement with
Team Managers, Principal Social Workers and lead officers from partner
agencies has been successfully undertaken and engagement sessions with
front line staff will commence in Quarter 4.

When | Am Ready Scheme - Training sessions continue to be held and the
rolling programme of awareness has been completed. Recruitment of a When |
Am Ready Support Worker is underway and it is anticipated that the Support
Worker will be in post in Quarter 4.

Remodelling of services for disabled children, young people and young
adults — Progress includes:

e Work to review and monitor the pilot services continues.

e Cardiff Disability Index continues to deliver alongside the Vale Disability
Index to create a regional approach. The number registered since the
Index became active in September 2016 is 90. The Index will be formally
launched on 17t March 2017.

e New service specification for integrated respite has been drafted -
consultation with families and providers will take place in Quarter 4.

e Funding secured towards the development of a regional Integrated Autism
Service.

Regional Workforce Development Partnership — \Website demonstration took
place at the Regional Workforce Board and was endorsed.

Health and wellbeing of the Social Services workforce — Flexitime was
rolled out across the Directorate from the 15t September in line with the
Council’s ‘Work Life Balance’ Policy. The Chief Executive together with Director
of Social Services and other senior managers met with staff to update them on
key areas of progress at a corporate level.

Agile / Mobile Working Strategy — Approximately 550 Social Services staff
have been mobilised through the Agile Mobile Working project. Positive
feedback from a survey undertaken of Phase 1 staff included: “More time to
complete recordings and paperwork = less stress” and “This has definitely had
an effect on people’s health and wellbeing which in turn increases productivity
and performance”.

Strategic Approach to Commissioning - Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan
Regional Partnership Board established to meet the Social Services &
Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 requirements. This includes a project to develop
key joint commissioning strategies with the University Health Board and Vale of
Glamorgan Council. Data collation across the region is continuing to inform a
Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan Integrated Market Position Statement. This will
also be informed by the Population Needs Assessment which is due for
completion in Quarter 4.

Page 270 4



i. Collaborative working — Cabinet paper completed seeking agreement to
progress the development of a detailed operational model for a Regional Social
Care Workforce Development Training Unit with Cardiff taking the lead on
progressing the developments.

j. Benchmarking - Available all Wales performance indicators for 2015-16 were
identified and included in relevant target setting exercises for 2017-18.

15. There has also been some slippage in progress against some of the milestones in
the Directorate Plan relating to:

a. Adolescent Resource Centre (ARC) — Staff started taking up post during the
quarter and recruitment to remaining positions is ongoing. The site has been
secured, the final plan for the building has been agreed and a planning
application is in development.

b. Joint working protocol between Health Service and Children’s Services — A
psychologist continues to be available to social workers with consultations being
held on a ‘surgery’ basis. This continues to have a positive impact but as it is
limited to advice and guidance, it means that costs for alternative therapy
continue to rise.

c. Social Services Workforce Strategy — work has commenced on the
development of a Social Worker Traineeship Scheme within the Directorate.

d. Bilingual Services - The Directorate continues to work towards increasing
capacity to deliver bilingual services as there is a current lack of capacity in the
teams that is reflected in the small number of Welsh speakers Council wide.
Staff are encouraged to enrol on Welsh language lessons and use any existing
Welsh that they have. Increasing the number of Welsh speakers is proving
difficult under the current recruitment process and it is hoped that Linguistic
Assessments will be integrated into the Human Resources recruitment process
in order to begin making a difference. To date only one post has been
advertised as Welsh essential and, unfortunately, no applications were received.

e. Budget and savings proposals — The Month 8 (November) monitoring position
for Social Services shows an overspend of £5.741m against a budget of
£146.352m. This is an increase of £160,000 compared to the position for
October 2016. The overspend of £3.056m reflects a savings shortfall of
£1.507m plus significant projected cost growth (£1.3m) in relation to external
fostering. Fostering placements increased by 30 in the first 8 months of 2016-
17, a reflection of the overall growth in the number of looked after children (+51)
in the same period. There has also been cost growth in relation to new
residential placements (after offsetting savings in relation to the return of
children in out of county placements is taken into account). The position also
reflects overspends in support costs for care leavers and external legal costs,
reflecting the ongoing high level of expenditure in these areas. The ongoing use
of agency staff is also impacting on staffing budgets in certain areas such as
Safeguarding and Looked After Children 14+, though the position should
improve if agency numbers reduce, as anticipated, in the remainder of the year.

Page 271 5



f. Quality Assurance Framework (QAF) — funding has been identified for a full-
time Quality Assurance Officer post across the Directorate. The recruitment
process is underway in anticipation of the post being taken up in Quarter 1
2017-18. Case management audits continue to be undertaken (although
numbers are low). An analysis of the audits and identification of emerging
themes is considered by the Children’s Management Team on a quarterly basis.
Themes emerging from complaints are also considered on a quarterly basis and
presented to the Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee.

DETAILED COMMENTARY

A) PROMOTING THE WELFARE OF CHILDREN WITH CARE & SUPPORT NEEDS

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Performance indicators relating to referrals (prior to April 2016), and initial and core
assessments is no longer available as these have been replaced with Wellbeing
Contacts / Referrals and Wellbeing Assessments.

Children’s Services received 6,927 Wellbeing Contacts / Referrals in Quarter 3
(Contacts 1) a decrease of 13% from 7,950 in Quarter 2. Contact / Referral numbers
must be treated with caution because we do not yet understand the implications of
the Act on the figures, and we only have two quarters of new data, so it is too soon
for new trends to be identified. A detailed breakdown of Wellbeing Contacts /
Referrals is provided at Appendix C for the Committee’s information. This report
shows the source and outcome of the 6,927 Wellbeing Contacts / Referrals received
by Children’s Services during Quarter 3.

Performance in relation to the timeliness of assessments (SSWB 24) was 88.3% (445
/ 504) compared with 86.3% (527 / 611) in Quarter 2. Appendix C details the source
and outcome of the 350 Wellbeing Assessments that were completed during the
quarter. Please note that the figures for numbers of assessments does not match
because the Pl requires us to include provision of Advice and Assistance.

The percentage of children supported to remain living within their family (SSWB 25)
was 56.6% (899 / 1,589) compared with 57.3% (942 / 1,643) in Quarter 2. Of the
1,589 children with a Care and Support Plan at 315t December 2016, 899 were being
supported to live at home (i.e. were not being looked after).

The percentage of looked after children returned home from care during the year
(SSWB 26) was 9.9% compared with 6.2% in Quarter 2. Of the 893 children who
have been looked after during the year to date, 88 have returned home. This Pl is
cumulative, and performance will improve as we progress throughout the year.

The latter two Pls are a welcome measure of the effectiveness of the service in
supporting children and young people within their families.

B) SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN

22.

23.

The number of children on the child protection register at the end of Quarter 3 was
196 (from 279 at the end of Quarter 2) (CS CPR 4).

89.1% (57 / 64) of initial child protection conferences took place within the 15 working
day timescale in Quarter 3 — reducing from 96.5% (111 / 115) in Quarter 2

Page 272 6



24.

% timely initial and review CP conferences

25.

26.

27.

(SCC/014). 7 conferences for 3 sibling groups were late in December. 2 were
rescheduled to enable the parents / children to attend and the other was due to a
delay in requesting the conference. Performance was 100% for October and
November. All late conferences have since been held.

Timeliness of review child protection conferences was 96.9% (217 / 224) in Quarter 3
compared with 100.0% (296 / 296) in Quarter 2. 3 conferences were late during the
quarter for a sibling group for whom the Court has instructed that no further
conferences should be held. A further conference in relation to a sibling group of 4
was late in November as it had to be rescheduled. All late conferences that can be
held, have since been held.

Timely Initial and Review Child Protection Conferences

1000 1000 10001000 9956
1000 995 o0, 075 984 988 o7g 970 966 o70 992 100.0 1000 %2 g5 1000 996 gg4 1000
100.0 922 93.0

88,9 . B 92.2[% 209 o1.

86 .4
86.3 8500 856
75.8 79.3

6.
89.1

90.0 1
80.0
70.0 1
60.0
50.0 -
40.0 1
30.0
20.0 +

10.0 +

0.0

eI |T|IT|TI|Ie|e |2 Iglelele|lEIRlE

NN | A DD ||| F O | OO |[O]O| O] D

S|o|lo|o|o|lac|loclcgloc|lc|s|lala|lalsa|lalo

[oV] o™~ (o] o~ ~N o~ [oV] N ™~ ™~ ™~ (o} ™~ o~ o~ o~ ™~

Q3|Q4 Q1|1 Q2| Q3| Q4 |Q1|Q2|Q3| Q4 |Q1|Q2|Q3|Q4|Q1|Q2|Q3
Quarter

| @Timely Initial CP Conference BTimely CP Reviews |

100% (196 / 196) of children on the child protection register had an allocated social
worker at 315t December 2016.

The percentage of re-registrations of children on the child protection register (SSWB
27) reduced to 2.0% (1 / 51) compared with 5.6% (5 / 89) in Quarter 2.

The average length of time for children who were on the CPR during the year (SSWB
28) was 271 days (36,015 / 133) compared with 198 days (29,105 / 147) in Quarter 2.
This is based on children who were de-registered during Quarter 3.

C) IMPROVING OUTCOMES FOR LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN

28.

The number of children who were looked after at 315t December 2016 (not including
those children being looked after as part of a respite care arrangement) was 690
compared with 701 at 30" September 2016 (CS LAC 3e). This represents a rate of
9.4 children per 1,000 in Cardiff, which is above the all Wales rate of 8.8 per 1,000 as
at 31st March 2015. The recent fluctuation in the number of looked after children is
displayed in the graph below.

Page 273 7



Number of Looked After Children

750

700 701 690
681 =
o2 048 650 82 644 681 []

650 a6 —— = - H
600 5 s 557 579 578 592
540 551 P& 530 — m

="

A

550 -

I R T e T S e e I e I e I e [ e e ) R e T [ R B B e e = R e
asH Y
400 +H — R
eI B e e e e e e e e e i e e e e e N e e e e e e e
I e T e T e N e N e O e I e O e N e e e B e e T e e e e i e e e e e
250 H - R

wH 44— 1~ HMHMNMH MM H

Number of looked after children

Q[T [ N S S S ) S | S S ) S G S S ) S ) S S G S S S S S S S G
w4~ NrH+<>r1"1TM1T 1T HHHHHMH"HHHHHHHH B

[ R e e e e e =

011-12
011-12

2011-12
2011-12
2012-13
2012-13
2012-13
2012-13
2013-14
2013-14
13-14
13-14
2014-15
14-15
2014-15
2014-15
15-16
2015-16
2015-16
2015-16
16-17
016-17
16-17

20
20
20
20
20
20

&
Q2

~
Q4

N
Q2

1 Q3 Q1 |Q2 Q3| Q4 Q1| Q2| Q3| Q4 | QA1 Q3 | Q4

Quarter

Q2 Q1]Q2 | Q3 | Q4 | Q1 Q3

29. 73.8% (386 / 523) of looked after children were placed with agency providers at the
end of Quarter 3 (CS LAC 44), stable from 74.0% (388 / 524) in Quarter 2. The
number of children placed in agency placements has reduced to 47 from 50 at the
end of Quarter 2.

30. 61.6% (322 /523) of children in regulated placements were placed in Cardiff at the
end of Quarter 3 compared with 60.9% (319 / 524) at the end of Quarter 2 (CS LAC
58). A further 85 children placed outside Cardiff were within 20 miles of their home
address. 8 of the children not placed in Cardiff are placed with relative carers. For
some children placement outside the authority is in their best interests, examples
include children placed with family members who live outside Cardiff, children placed
in specialist placements and children who are placed in areas that are closer to their
home address than some parts of the city.

31. 94.6% (454 / 480) of statutory reviews for looked after children were held within
prescribed timescales in Quarter 3, an improvement from 93.8% (499 / 532) in
Quarter 2 (SCC/021). Of the 26 reviews that were not held on time, 14 were held
within a week, 5 within 2 weeks, 6 within 4 weeks and 1 at 5 weeks. All late reviews
have since been held. 96.3% (462 / 480) of statutory visits were held in accordance
with regulations in Quarter 3 showing a continued increase from 95.3% (507 / 532) in
Quarter 2 (SCC/025).

32. All looked after children were allocated to a social worker at 31t December 2016.

YOUTH OFFENDING SERVICE

33. The numbers of First Time Entrants (FTEs) to the Youth Offending Service (YOS) has
increased slightly during Quarter 3 to 25 (from 24 in Quarter 2). The 25 young people

committed 50 offences, averaging 2 offences per young person. During Quarter 3, a
total of 119 offences were committed by 56 young people (of whom 25 are the FTEs),

Page 274 8



34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

giving an average of 2.13 offences each.

The YOS Annual Plan for 2016-17 has been agreed with the YOS Management
Board and will be submitted to the Youth Justice Board (YJB) for approval. ltis
hoped that the Annual Plan for 2017-18 will be completed by 13t April 2017.

An interim YOS Manager has been appointed and will be in post early Quarter 4 -
some hand-over sessions have taken place recognising that it will take time for the
new manager to develop a full understanding of the service.

Work to finalise the YOS restructure exercise continues and re-location is scheduled
for Quarter 4.

Work on finalising the re-offending toolkit results for 2015-16 is ongoing following the
recent appointment to the YOS Information Officer post.

YOS have not yet made any referrals to the Emotional and Wellbeing Service (a
Health initiative) as resource issues have delayed it becoming operational. Referrals
to the service will be for children and young people in contact with YOS.

STAFFING

39.

40.

The percentage of social worker vacancies in Quarter 3 was 23.3% compared with
24.8% in Quarter 2 (Staff 1). The percentage of social worker vacancies in
Children’s Services has reduced slightly during the quarter to 23.3% (from 24.8% in
Quarter 2) and recruitment initiatives are ongoing. Vacancies rates have not reduced
further due to internal promotions and transfers. Job creation has commenced in
relation to the pool of additional social workers and it is anticipated that 6 social work
posts will be filled in Quarter 1 2017-18. As a result of work to improve recruitment
and retention, a more stable workforce across the service is emerging and except
where essential maternity cover is required, there is less reliability on agency staff.
There are some good examples of staff achieving promotional appointments, thereby
supporting career development and staff retention.

The average number of days of sickness absence for staff in Children’s Services in
Quarter 3 2016-17 was 9.7, compared with 11.1 in Quarter 3 2015-16. The Assistant
Director, Children’s Services reviewed sickness in the categories where there was
the most growth in Quarter 2 (back problems, genito-urinary and neurological) and
determined that all appeared to be inescapable absences.

41. 88% compliance with 6 monthly reviews had been achieved at the time of writing. Al
PPDRs that could be reviewed, were reviewed one exception.

WAY FORWARD

42. Members are invited to consider the information set out in the report and to identify

any issues which require more detailed scrutiny.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

43.

The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend,
but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to

Page 275 9



consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications. However, legal
implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented with or
without any modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to
Executive / Council will set out any legal implications arising from those
recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf the Council must (a) be within
the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement imposed
by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person exercising powers of behalf of
the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural requirements
imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and properly
informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the Council's
fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the
circumstances.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

44,

The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend,
but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to
consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications at this stage in
relation to any of the work programme. However, financial implications may arise if
and when the matters under review are implemented with or without any
modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to Executive /
Council will set out any financial implications arising from those recommendations.

RECOMMENDATION

The Committee is recommended to:
Consider the contents of the report and report any comments to the Cabinet Member.

Tony Young
Director of Social Services
24t February 2017

Page 276 10



ik @ — € Jauenp Jo} puads adeluadlad ayl sjuasaidal anoqe 3|qel mﬁ_
s '
‘€ 1anenb ul 95/6 01 T Jonenb ul %18 shep 0z ulyiim o3 papuodsai Sulaq . T ——
wiody pasestoul sysanbas uoyauny-Bnw %¥6 UNM ‘g 1934enD woJj syuie|duiod ] . . . ] ] . . .
yam aoueldwo) 9%/ T°Z6 Sem sisanbay Ul 3SB3IIUI %ET B SI SIY) “E JNeNy e e o & e e o T
sisanbay uoyewJoju| sjutejdwo) BT snomy
a 8 Iu 9 [314 58] sMas1 8D
[314 065] uoEINp3
( 4 Jeak um.m/ S S S, 314 002] #3q w023
$3JAeQ 19|qeL | [314 524] (59295 wop | Aag w023
/ 31190IN YSn0JY) SPEU 33ISGAM 33 O3 SHSIA JO %09 J9AD pouad suwes a4 10} (%0v) (214 0807152 8 H ‘50
£9€TOT'T woyj dn sisiyy | 1314 266] 590 413
auljuo apew sSeq ea1xd / saipped Joj sysanbal Jo %E v/
"A31D ay3 ssoloe ‘
auljuo apew mou suopedijdde jiwiad Supjied Jo %S 1/ ’ Rouasy g auiang 1a3png yeis
\_ sgnH 13 AJeiqi] 01 s1ISIA
Qm.v.._mmwrn 2Jam alayl Jeak LT-9TOZ |[esuoys s uines paidafold Jo % LT9T07 SBupnes jo % papaloid m
\ / 2y3 JO Jjey 1sT ay1 Suung %00T %06 %08 %0L %09 %05 %0% %0E %0z %0T %0

|\ L i Il 1 1 i i Il 1 1 1
SS

5334n053Yy

Ys|aM Ul uaaq aAeY % Mews /
U3y Yyum dn 19s sjUNOIZE 099°€6 AY3 JO

N~
SAI95178 9
‘qnH JIApY 2.3u3) A1) 9 Z 0 m. aw = w m > Po— n_N_
ay1 01 SUdID J0j Sjuawalinbal a8ensue| m. M. H 00 H L H H, (snias wod) Asg rm.Wu
Jejndod 3sow ayj aJe (%1°T) @sandnyiod @0 0 a0 00 a0 o foa 1o (@)
, ! ] Ve b ] = | 0 [0l ounod (g
uayl pue (%z's) aigesy ‘ysijdu3 ueyl 18yio 18 sreiodioy ()
00007 528 H ‘swo)
21SGIM §,]12UNOD Y] MIIA 03 YdIym o i
uj sa8en8ue| iejndod 3sow ay3 aie asand f 0000f _
-n}i0d pue ueleSunH ‘yYsijod ‘asauiy) ===— (0009 L1-9T0Z S3uines pajaaloid jo adejuadiad
. 00008
S{ERI0) D43 0007 128p08 m 50003 Uolpalaid w
40 9%89°0 40} JUN0JJE JZJ 01 S||eD YS|aM t._t._mu OH Huwccou OH m__mu 000081 00009T 000OVT 0000ZT 000'00T 00008  000'03  000'Ov  000'0Z 0
/ ssgengue] lswoisn) ' e ——————————————————————
\ I 90nossy
B 5MeS139
%68 : aur] Sunsoday Jieday sayI] jooqadeq 6928 S — %HMH“E —
%L6 - USIPM %96 - Ys18u3 : 2D 01 S13]jeD PpApiseoduia siamofjo) 8112 | #eq ooz
[IPUNOIYIPIEID SIOMO|0} SS0'89 e s Bty
%66 : SQNH 03 SIONSIA P SO H SW0)
spimy SE— 590 A3
€0 s|9A37 uohdejshes Jawolsn) BIP3IA |B120S £1-9T0Z wN\NQ 138png pasafoid

L1-9T0Z € 4914enD PJe3ai0dS MIIAIBAQ |12UNno)

V XIANAddV



— uopesiuesio ayj ss040e palajduwiod Uaag aABY SMAIAIBIU] 3JOAN O3 UINIY JO *Nm—

BEEA0iw EDm 195IEL m

i 8

[314 006] - 5§

[314 145 seunasay

[314 58l 5189

314 065] SI0LPS UoN - uoieanp3

[314 00E'S] Hooyas - uoneNpl

[314526] Aag w023

|34 080T] 52 '8 H ‘swo3

1314 z66] sdo A

(314 tpv'ot] 2iesodio)

uosiad 434 1507 sAeq 314 - 20UIsqY SSAUNIIS

|ej0) 3esndion
[314 (314 [ETE] [314 (314 osot]
el aesodiod  [314006]-55 TS sewnosay 8] sWAS1®D  OpSjuoneanpl  sZglAeguool SDBH Swod  [3ld Z66]sdo Aud
: - - %08
| i i * %78
— %P8
—_— %98
| LI 4]
— %06
—_ ! %16 ! ! 576
%E6 %6 %E6
HEE W6
%6
%96
%96
%86
%001

aaue||dwo) Malnay Jeap J|BH - Yadd

(argelewm) /T-9T €0 m  LT-9T 152 m
0O0'000'8 000000 0O00'000'9  0OO'000'S  0OO0'000°F  OOO'000°E 000’000 000'000'T -
61897
{ybs) eauy |ewially ssoug U LoRNpaY
159'52€
182'TF8'S
(3) Bopgoeg acueualuE | LORINPaY
000°005'y
FLT'6S0'E
ryepr (3) 1502 Buuny 2101 uj vopanpay
000009t
0T1'7€8'7
(3) sudiaoay |eyded
000°00€"L
L1-9T0Z Juawaseueyy Jassy ajesodio)

usaunfiaquy £

"a30Wi2 [ppupuly YBNo3 ayj UIYUM 3/GDuUIDISNS o))

3.p A3y1 10y 43PI0 Ul JSOI PIINP3IL D 10 S3IIAIAS JBAI[IP PUD ‘SOJIS 3IIAI3S JO J3GUINU D S5O0 PIIaniap Al
~1N3 21D 10Y3 SUOPIUNS PUD S33IAJ3S UBI|D-31 PUDWIAP JWOISNI 3BDUDWI PUD PUDISI3PUN 153G 03 51 Wip D

*[12uno) ay3 ssoade s301A13s Ay Jo Suideysal ay3 ael|de)

03 sasdead Supjiom dojanap pue saiSojouyaal Sujjqeua Jojdxa |im sadinias Suideysay

S30IAIDS duideysay

uaainfiaquy 9

*$9184039341p || SSOJOB UORINpPaI
1500 pue AJaAI|ap 3ARI3YA Joddns 03 SANSEIW IPIM-|IDUNOD YSI|qeISa ||Im oljojiiod SiyL

S9JIAIRS UIUOISSIWIWO)) g Buljqeu]

LT-9T0¢C € 493enD pP4eI3102S MIIAIDAQ [12UNn0)




(0T) %€T
lquiy

(b¥) — LT-9T0Z €O

yodaJ syl ui papnjaul S1I03eI1PU| IUBWI0JIId JsuleSe 3duew.ioidd

(6) %St (vT)%ET
Jaquiy/pay uldain/Iaquiy

LT-9T0Z Ue|d 31e10d0) 3y} Ul SJU3WWWO) JsuieSe aduew.04ad

(09) — LT-9T0Z €O

LT1-910¢ Moday asuewo}iad pue Alanallag €0



7S Jo 1t @8ed

|12UNoD 3y ulylim saonuaidde

UIADS |eUOIMpPE UB pue ‘(101N 3y} Ym Supldom oml Jayping e yum) anly Ajzualana s| awayds diysasuiesy ualp|iyd a4y payoo] ayl Ag pauoddns
ua4p|iyd 40 Jaqwinu Y| “uaJp|iyd ay3 psendajes pue uoddns 01 uejd umo 413yl ew 01 spually / Ajlwes Jo syiduauls ayi sasi|ian ulduaaajuo)

dnoup Ajiwed g/ F Jo SulAeS 1500 pal1BWIISD UB YHM ‘UdIp|IYDd 353Y] JO SUIU 10} pOPIOAR UD3Q SBY uMmopd|ealq AjILue) JO }NSaL e Se UOI1epoWLLI0dDY
"aAlleIUl $9oUBIRjU0) dnodo Ajlwed aA11e1UBASId aY] WOU) SBIIAISS PAAIDIAL DABY SaljIWe) 97 WOy UaLp|iyd /S ‘9TOZ 1oqwadaq pue |udy usamiag
"sIsu2 e y3nouyl uoddns pue djay wayl 4210 UBD OYM SI931UN|OA |EIO| Y1IM padu

Ul SaljIWey 3ul] 01 SBIIAIDS S,UBIP|IYD YUM SHIOM 181 9IIAISS UOIIUDASId Mau B SI SIY| "Pal1epowwOodde uaaq sey pliyd auo 1snf ‘aAneniul uaip(iyd Joj
sal|lwe4 ajes ayl Aq uaJp|iyd €6 404 pajuanald uaaq sey umopieauq Ajlwey pue payioddns usaq aney sal|iwey /{ ‘9TOZ JoqWadaQg pue Yyalen uaamiag
‘uolre|ndod |ennualod

Ua4p|1yo 1248 Pa¥ 00| 3y} Ul asi |elaualod ay3 pajesiniw sey siyl pue ‘uojjuanald punode sajjiold Ino SulIaAlap Ul 9pew uaaq sey ssaiold poon | 413yl aA3IYde Yjipied ul
:ssa180.4d | uaJp|Iyod Jalje paxyoo] 7T

(sewo23nQ Juawiwwo) Sunejnsdesua) ssaldoad jo Asewwing | sanaaigO Juswanosdw|

[|e 40} S||jS pue uoneanpa Jayag ‘T Ayuougd

sanliold ue|d 31ei0d.o)

ssa180.4d jJo Asewwns @iz
o

@

'8T-/T07 4o} Buiias 1981e1 wiojul 0} o
JeaA ay3 Bulnp paysijgelsa aq ||1m auljaseq vy ‘paiiodal uaaq sey Jeah ay3 Buunp
Id SIY3} JeaA 15414 @Y1 sI £T-9T0Z Se paijdde uaaq sey 8uiles oyy oN dd v/N %T9 V/N | aulaseg %6'6 24E2 WOJ} SWOY pauJnial ualp|iys Jaye

‘aWoY pauinial aAey gg ‘@iep pay00| 0 98e1Ud213d - 9Z ANSEIN

01 JeaA ay3 Sulnp 13}je Payoo| UG SABY OYM UJP|IYD €68 Y3 JO

, D | 9T-STOZ | LT-9T | 91-ST LT-9T LT-9T
(usaun @ Jequiy ‘pay 404) Aejuawwio) v | wnnno | ynsay | ynsay 1981 1nsay

23inos | ¥ | |enuuy 0 £0 |enuuy €0

J01BJIPU| DUBWLIOLNIJ

S10ledipuj 2duewlioliad ‘T

|enzuaod 413yl ana1yde uaJpjiyd Jaye payoo :z'T aAnI3lqo uawanoidw| e
IV 404 S||)|S pue uoiednp3 191313 :T AMJold

2JOWS|3 1§ 3UIT SJ||D :SISQWIBA JBUIqe) 006 :(314) saaAojdwiz Jaqunpy gunoj Auo] :40323110 S22IAJDS |BID0S :33e40332.410
14oday ajuew04iad 9184032310 LT-9T0Z € 1934enD




76 Jo g 93ed

popiendajes a.e jjipae) uijsu je ajdoad :1°z aA1a3[qO juawanoidwy e

3|doad ajqesaujnp SunJoddng ;g Ajli0lid

£10Z Ya4en Aq siaulied yum uonieloqe||od uj A8aiesis Sunnualed alesodio) ayl Jo sjuawa|a Ay paqui3

tO | €D | TO | TD (suejd Asanijaq ul T Hed) sjuawiiwiwio)

Sjuswjwwo) i€

¢

"uaJp[IyD 404 S3jIWe 34eS 01 sass204d |eduasas panoidw|

'$150d SUOSIad PI123UL0D) 0] PRLINJIJAJ JJBIS Juduewad

:sdays A9y ION

*SU0SI9d Pa122UuU0) 404 $S920.4d JUDWIINIOBY

‘auilnol o Janew e se uaddey suoissas Suisiel-ssaualeme pue SulieYS-UOIIBWIOUI S3IURIRLUOD) dnodD Ajlwe4

‘ualp|IyD 404 SaljIWe 34es 01 S|eliafal Jo Sulioyuow aso|)

:suonoe SuneSin

's3s0d SUOSI9d paldsuuo) o3 sjuawiuiodde Atesodwia]

'S@2uaJsajuo) dnoip Ajlwe4 jo asn Ajpwil pue ajelidosddy

‘Ua4p|Iyd 104 Saljiwe4 ajes 03 s|essasas lelidosdde pue Ajpwi

:S3NSS|

"SJUIWIDABIYDE

41931 Jo uo1u8023J Ul [EPaW puB 21B21}1139 B UdAIS pue sjuawysijdwodoe 419y} Joj pasield pue pasiudodal 219Mm s1aAe3| aied pue ajdoad Sunoj

‘9107 Ul apew aney Asyl sluswaA3IyIe Yl 9184g3[30 UJP|IYD J91E PIX 00| pue Sianes| 24ed 3unoA auaym ‘pjay aJam spiemy syJeds 1y3iug |enuue ay|
*J0U JO siaquiaw Ajlwey yum pade|d aq ued

PIIYd B J3YIaYM J9PISUOD SJUSLUSSISSE 9SAY| "SIUDISSISSE SUOSIad PalIsuuo) ayeuapun 0} sised Alesjodwa) B uo 3s0d Ul MOU BUe SIDNJOM |BIDOS OM |
‘siseq Bulo8uo ue uo ajdoad BunoA a8e8ua Aj|ewJo} ued 33111WWO0) Y1 Moy 01 uaAIS Sulaq S| UoIIRIPISUOD J3YMN4 ‘Suilaaw

243 01 UoIINqLIIU0d dAIlsod B apew pue awlil 1511 9yl Jo) 391 wwo) Alosiapy Suuased aiesodio) ayl papuaiie ajdoad SunoA om) ‘4anenb ayi Sulung

-
4

Page

2JOWS|3 1§ 3UIT SJ||D :SISQWIBA JBUIqe) 006 :(314) saaAojdwiz Jaqunpy gunoj Auo] :40323110 S22IAJDS |BID0S :33e40332.410
14oday ajuew04iad 9184032310 LT-9T0Z € 1934enD




76 Jo £ 98ed

'a1elidosdde asaym Aduade juens|al ayl Aq passalppe pue paiijuapl

9JE SUOIIDE [B|paway 'SupEW-UOISIIBP pPUe S[e1iayad ainsse Ajjenb o3 (HSYIN) gnH SuipienSajes Aduady nInAl 243 18 Apjeam pjay ssuilaaw pjoysaiyl
'Wed] JUBWISSASSY 13 10BIU0D) S3DIAIRS ,SINPY 01 PaJajjo usaq aAey ad1oe.d

pasn20j-awo23no uo Joddns dn-moj|oj pue Sutuied] ‘sadueyd asayl Jo Joedwl| ay3 24nseawt 0} Uo0s 00} Si 1| pue ssadoud Suoj| e s| } JaAsmoy ‘uoidal
9U1 Ul SWead) SSoJoe 1U3pIAS Bulwoaq aJe 10y 3y} Jo uolieluawajdwi ay) 01 anp ad1oesd ul saBuey) ‘|aAl| aiedoldde ue 1e Suuiesl $TOZ 12V (sv1em)
Sulaq|a/M '8 S92IAIAS |BID0S PAAISIAUL DABY 3|BA DY) PUB JJIpJe) SSOIJe S9apualie T/0‘T JO |e10) B uedA [e1dueuly BY] JO syuow Xis 1541y ayl Suing| papJlendajes ale Jipie)
:ssaudoud up sl e adoad '1'¢

(sewo23nQ juawliwwo) Sunejnsdesua) ssaldoud jo Arewwing | sanaaiqO Juawanosdw|

9|doad ajqesaujna Sunuoddns z Ajuond

ssai8oud jo Aiewwing °g

"8T-/T0T 404 8un1as 3984e1 wioyu] 03 Jeah

2y31 Sulnp paysi|qelsa aq ||Im auljaseq ¥ "palodal usaq sey |d Siyl

ey Jeah 1511 Y1 S| /T-9T0Z Sse paljdde uaaq sey Buijel oyy oN shep mc_v@.ﬂ
=4 ’ ' ’ .m}.m.t Supyom / dd v/N %9'L6 V/N auleseq | %¢'86 | L Ulyum pa3ajdwod salinbus uoosqelid
ulym paia|dwod a1am 99z ‘s 493enp Suunp sauinbua Hmm. 9yl JO 1PPE 0 SBEIUR0IAY BT QINS g_:_

'%9°L6 T JOHEND ‘%/6 T JOMEND (£ T-9T0T 4104 3NSaY %a

‘8T-/T0T 404 8u113s 1984e1 WIoul 0} JedA =
Y1 Sulnp paysi|geisa ag ||IM ulaseq ¥ ‘pauodal uaaq sey |d Siyl Aty
eULIEBA 120U DR SLLT-970Z 56 pRlidae uaag sey SUREL v oN dd V/N %E'LS V/N aul|aseqg | %S'9S 41343 uIym BuiAl| ulewal o} vmtoma:m

‘(1oye payoo|
guiaq jou a1am Aayy "a°1) awoy 1e aAl| 03 pajtoddns Suiaq sueMm 868
‘9T'ZT'TE e ue|d Woddng pue aie) e yim uaJip|iyd 88S'T 3yl JO

‘pap.ieng8ajes ale Jjipie Swieal || Ul Sa1JUeldeA
RERENERE B - weze | weve | %otz | wst | weez IEBLES)

5

Y

d

uaJlp|iyo jo adeluadlad - GZ INSealn

u1 s 1e 3]doad T°Z Uoaas 3as asea|d sajepdn pue suollde 104 }40OM |B120S JO a8e1Uaiad - T He1s
9T-ST0C | LT-9T 91-ST LT-9T LT-9T

uinyinQ | ynsay | ynsay | 1984e1 | 3nsay
|enuuy 0 €0 |enuuy €0

(uaaup 13 Jaquiy ‘pay 10j) Alejuawiwio) J03}BJIpuU| IUBWIOHI

22.nos

Slojedipuj @2duewiollad 't

2JOWS|3 1§ 3UIT SJ||D :SISQWIBA JBUIqe) 006 :(314) saaAojdwiz Jaqunpy gunoj Auo] :40323110 S22IAJDS |BID0S :33e40332.410
14oday ajuew04iad 9184032310 LT-9T0Z € 1934enD




7S Jo v 98ed

‘padueyua JaYung S| SaljiWe) J1I9y] pue uaJp|Iyd JO 32I0A 31 aunsua 03 ssa20.4d s3ullas|A d1831e.415 AduaBy 1yn|Al 35D 01 sadueyd Juswa|dw|
‘A893e.1S 92403110\ Y1 JO UoRIUBWS W] BY] PUB S31AISS JO Sul||[9powaJl 3Y] U0 JJOM
13s0d Ul Bulaq SJ914B1S MAU pue Sulned| JJB1S USaMI3g awl] JO JUunowe
3y3 9onpau 03 ulwie ‘7 11BN Ul 9313IWWIO) JUIO[ BALY 3DIAIDS 03 pajuasald aq 03 sia8euew pue sIa)JOAA [el120S Jo polad ad130u uo saded Bulalg
“30|1d Suiulel) pasnd04-awoINo Jo uoljejuawa|dw|
19V g/MSS @243 U0 S3|npow Suiuleal-a auljuo ayl 0] paonpoJlul aq ||IM SIJOMA |BID0S mau ‘papualie AjJood uaaq sey Suluiel) WOOISSE|D Sy
:sdays A9y aN
‘JJIpJeD Jo ajoym ay3 Joj uejd uiydosesano auo aa.se 03 A}a100S aseas|q S, J3WIdYz|y pue SIOLISIP Y1 Y1IM SUOISSNISIP PUB UOIIe}|NSU0)
*‘A891e11S 35D 3Y3 ulelsns 03 Wea) Isi|eads Juauewsad e Ysi|qeiss 03 pariwgns piq Yyimodo
‘a1eldoudde se Sa1ouBdBA JDYJOAN |BID0S JDA0D 0 Pash ag 03 NUIIUOD SII0M |e120s Aduady
"HSYIN 01 sjetuajad Jo Aljenb pue ssauajeludosdde ul Juawaaosdwi 10} SUlI0}UOW PUB SS3UIJBME 3SIEJ 0] S9|puade HSYIA |8 03 suoejuasald Jenday
"3011d ay3 jo ued se 3uiuiesy 92j30e.d paseq-awo23N0 woJj Sujuied) Juawa|dw) 03 SIJONN |BI20S 03 Patayjo aq 03 Joddns SuioduQ
:suone sunesdnin
"9]oym e se yyipJe) Joj uejd SulydietaA0 U0 OUl PaBIaw JI DAIIIDYD 2J0W 3¢ PINOM UDIYM BIIUSWSP uo sue|d 1013SIP [BNPIAIPUI XIS JO 32UD1SIXT ™
'S90UDIAAXD 193]} WO JOA0D3 pue 35 Wou) Aeme yealq 03 3S) Jo swidiA Joddns 03 Ajpuadin puodsad 0} 321AI3s 3sijeldads e Buissadoe salynouia %
'S2IDUBIBA JIDNJOM |BID0S SDIAIDS S,Ua.4p|Iyd Sulonpad 1aylind o
"yijesH ‘uonneanpd "8 ‘s|euoissajosd Jaylo wody HSYIN 01 Spew s|esdalad Jo Alljenb pue $310e1u09 Jo awnjoA Yim [eap o1 Aloeded HSYIN (@)
‘Buiuiea) jo uonjejuaws|dw| pue uluies) passni0)-3wWwodino jo 1edw| SuliojUoA| %
1sanss|
*351249X3 U0I3B}NSUOD B JO Lied se siauped
yum paseys 3uiaq Ajualuna sy “Ajjeusajul paasse pue padojanap uaaq sey sniels Ajpualid elauawaq o3 uoneas ul uejd uonoe apim-Ald Jipied v
Awouooa awn 1y3iu ay3 ul Suisies-ssaualeme dpIM-AlD paiowold e
S9l|IWey J19Y] PUB UlJp|IYD JO SIDIOA 3Y] UO A|9AI1DD)40 210w umelq e
SSIUDAIIJS IIAIDS JO SISA|EUR pUE JIpNE Ue pajgeuy e
ue|d uoioe pue aAI1393(qo uowwWwod e Yyum 1aylado] siauped Ad) ||e umelq e
:SMo||04 se pajoedw| sey A8ajeuis ayl 3D wouy
pajo9304d aue 9jdoad BunoA pue uaip|iyd 1ey3 Sulinsua uj paaaiyoe aq o1 ssaldoud Juedaiyiudis pejqeua sey Aajesis (35)) uoneyojdxy |enxas piiyd syl
'uolludlRJ Jjels pue Juawdo|anap
JaaJsed uioddns Agasayl ‘syuswiuiodde jeuonowodd SuiAsiyoe Jyels Jo sajdwexa poosd awos aJle 219y ‘Jels Aouade uo Ajjigel|as ss9| Si 49yl
‘paainbau si 1aA02 Alluiaiew |eluassa asaym 1dadxa ‘pue Suiiawa S| JIAIBS Y] SSOIIE II0PHIOM B|(EIS 2I0W B ‘UOIIUSIR] PUB JUdWINIIAI 2A0idwi 0)
}40M JO }nsal e sy ‘QT-LT0C T 491N Ul paj|i} 34 ||IM S1s0d }JoM |B120S XIS 1eyl pajedidijue S|} pue Sia)Jom [BI120s [euollippe jo [ood ay) 0} uoiiejaJ ul
PaJdUSWLWIOD SBY UOIIB3JI (Of *SJ3)SUBJ} pUB suoljjowosd [BuIdIUl 0 3NP J3Y1IN} PAINPaAJ JOU dARY S31eJ Salouedep “Sulo8uo ale sanlleliul Juawiinioal
pue (z JouenyD Ul %8¢ Wouy) %€ €z 01 Ja1ienb ay3 Sulinp Aj3ysi|s paonpad sey Sa2IAIBS S,Ua4p|iyd Ul SSIDUBIEA JIHI0M |e120S Jo aSejuadsad sy
2J0Ws|3 1 U7 SJ||D :SI2qUIBA J2UIqe) 006 :(314) seahojdw3 Jaquinn 8unoj Auo] :a030a1Q S9JIAJDS |B1D0S :91e1032241Q

14oday ajuew04iad 9184032310 LT-9T0Z € 1934enD




76 Jo G 93ed

"Ajjuapuadapul 91| 01 palsoddns

IpJe) ul 8jdoad £z uoi1aas 9as asea|d a1epdn / suoijoe Jo adie

. #1pJe) ul ajdoad €7 uon |d @1epdn / suon} E| i s e G (a u,
1UDWUIRNA0Y YS|oM Ag Atenuer Jo pua paysijgnd aq [Im Jaqwa23q €0) 95,
{19QWSAON pue J3(0120 40} 1|NSaJ |eilded 4 "J01BIIpUl SAIlRINWND

13A0 10 g/ pade uone|ndod poQ‘T Jod
«9T'F | Suoseas aied |BI20S JOJ 24D JO Sidjsued)
poaAejap Jo 21e4 3Y] - 6T 24NSEIA

9 | 9T-ST0C | LI-9T | 91-ST LT-9T LT-91
(uaauin g 1aquiy ‘pay 104) Arejusawwo) v | wnnuno | ynsey | ynsay | 108ie1 | ynsey 103ed1puU| BdUBWIO}IRd

92In0S | Y | |enuuy 0 €0 |enuuy €0

slo}edipuj ajuew.ojlad °/

Ajpuapuadapul ani| 03 pajsoddns ale yipie) ul 3jdoad €'z 2A1393[qO Juswanosdw| e -
9]doad a|qesaujnA Sundoddng :Z Aliaiad
N

£15

"$T0Z 12V (S21BM) Bulag-||3/M pue sa21nJas |e1d0S 3yl uipiedas awwes3oad Suiuleds 1sijeidads e jo aseyd puodas ay3 JO 1IN0 ||04 Em_a%ﬂeu
Pt

*8T0TZ Uateln Ag AlD Ajpuali{ elnuawaq pasiugodal e Jipie) axew 0} bmg

/10T Y24e Aq siaunied yym uoneloge||od ur A8ajeis uoiielio|dx3 [Bnxas pliyd ipied ay3 jo syuawa|a Ay Juawa|dw|

. "L10T Yo4eN Aq %8T mojaq
S19MJOM |BID0S S,Ua4p[Iyd 40} 3184 AJuBDdeA B SUIRIUIBW PUB SIASIYIE [12UNO0D) 3yl SULINSUD ‘SI9)JOM |BID0S S,UaJp|IYd JO UOIIUSI2J pUE JU3WIINIIBL 3yl anoidw)

‘910z aunf Aq s|edlajal
8uiSeuew Joj syjuswaduedle (HSYIN) gnH uipiendajes Aouady 1INy mau Supuawajdwi Ag waey juedijiugis wody uaJp|iyd Sunossloud Joy walsAs ayi anosdw|

(sue|d Asenijaq ul T Hed) sjuawwwo)

Sjuswliwwo) ‘9

‘JipJed yHoN Ajpusid{ eljuawaq — Weasisyiom Yyl e 104 Suipuny 10} pun4 aie) ajelpawiaiu| o3 piq 3afoad Suppop paseg Ajjeson

2JOWS|3 1§ 3UIT SJ||D :SISQWIBA JBUIqe) 006 :(314) saaAojdwiz Jaqunpy gunoj Auo] :40323110 S2IIAISS |BID0S :33eJ103334Ig
14oday ajuew04iad 9184032310 LT-9T0Z € 1934enD




7S Jo 97 93ed

91 ‘@10}213Y] "%SG JO Yluouwl e Ul 95e3129p B ‘QT(Qg 49qWIA0N 10} £90°7 01 paiedwod ‘096°T SI 9107 42qwala( 404 350] SAep pag Jo Jaquinu ay] "%9T
10 yluow e Ul 95ea423p B 97 19qWSN0ON J0o4 61 03 paiedwlod ‘T SI 9TOZ Joqwadaq 40j +G/ pade )0 g Jo Jaqwinu [e101 ay] “ieaA ise| poliad awes
2Y3 ul sAejap 0/ 92Ul UBYJ JOMO] %ET S JaqUINU SIY] "%ZZ 4O YIUOW dY3 Ul 3SEII3P ||BISA0 UB UM ‘QTOZ JSqUBAON 10} 8/ 03 paledwod ‘Tg si pieog
diysiaulled aue) |e1dos 3 YyijeaH pajesdaiu| ayy Aq papiodal se gToz Jaquiadaq 404 $H0d O Jaquinu |B30} 8yl '24ning ayj ul pue JeaA Jualind ayj

Ul D01 01 uone(al ul aduew.oyad Suluieisns 1oy wioe|d aanisod e Suipinoad ‘pancadwi Ajjuediyiudis pey yijeaH pue |12uno) Jipied uaamiaq Supjiom
diysiauped jey) papn|ouod ueiowe|o JO 3|BA 9yl pUB JIpJe) ul 9duewJopad D01 Qg JO MaIARL 3210 UPNY S3BM V "£ZT-9T0¢ 40} suoijoe pasododd ay3
03 Su1INqIIIUOD ‘9T-GTOZ J2IUIM JO MIIASL BY3 WOJS SUOIIBPUI WL 3y} Juawa|dwi 03 |12uno) uediowe|o Jo 3|eA 3yl pue yijeaH Suipnjoul sisuyped
YHM p3Jom 91e10303JIQ S9IINIIS |BI20S "Pala|dwiod sem /£T-9T07 Ue|d J9IUIM 3B/ PUB JHipJe) 3yl (DoLq) 24e) jo siajsued] palelaq o3 uone|as uj
'Spa9u xa|dwod pue sanijiqesip Suiuiea| J0j 921A495 Julof

B PUB 821AJ3S Wsine pajeldalul ‘s|apow |BI3UApPISaL Ssasse 03 ad.eydsip ‘sweal a8ieyas|p pajeidajul ‘19e3u0) JO JUI0d 15414 ‘SUOIIN|OS UOIIEPOWIWOIIE
‘uonnuanaud pue uoljuanialul Ajses Suioddns sapnjoul siy | w3sAs 3joym 3yl ssolde uonesdajul poddns 01 Suinuinuod st (4J1) pun4d aJe)
2leIpawJalu] ay3 jo uoneiuawa|dwi Sulo8uo ‘a1ed |BID0S 3 NPE Ul SDIIAISS 4. [BID0S pue Yjjeay jo AJaAljap pue juawadeuew pajeiSajul 0] uonejal u|
'97 Jo a@8e ayj woudj synpe 3unoA Suilioddns 221A49s Spasu xa|dwod ay3 Uulylim }Jom o] wesl saljljigesiq

Suiuiea Ynpy 9yl ul S150d J23J0M UOILSURI} OM] JO UOIIEIID BY)} PapNn|dul sey Siy] "Spasu xa|dwod yum synpe pajqesip Suiuiea| pue uaJp|iya pajqesip
10j S32IAIBS WI0osuel]) 0} ,Bwweldold sainind Ajjigesiq, mau ayl Suioddns mou si piq (421) pun4 aJe) ajeIpawlialul uol||iw 5 ZF |NJssadans y
:ssaldoud

Ajuspuadapul

3Al| 01 ﬁmtm%:m

aJe yipJe) ul 9|doagNE'z

(sewo21nQ Juawiwwo) Sunejnsdedus) ssaidoud jo Alewwng

sanaR(qo EoEgo.@..:_

=4
a|doad sjqesaujna Sunioddns g E_m,mmi

ssai30.d jo Alewwns °g

"Ajpuapuadapul o Jeal
9Al| 03 payioddns JyipJe) ul 9jdoad €'z uol3das aas asea|d aiepdn . . . } ) } . a1 SulINp JUBWISSISSY SJDJe) B Palayjo
/ suonoe o4 /TS S| 21ep 03 JedA SJUBWSSISSY S4aie) pala|dwod = L 8L e 0563 mﬂ Lo 2JoM jeyl synpe 1o} Sulied aie oym

JO Jaquinu |e10] "SJa1ed BZE‘E JO INO $SO‘Z — SI9440 JO Jagquuinn 0549 synpe 2|qI31|2 Jo a8eluadiad - BETOVIS

‘Apuspuadapu (1934e awWAYIS Jusawhed 1.l

9Al| 03 palioddns yipJe) ul 3jdoad €'z uoi3das aas aseald aiepdn } i ST Lon_aumm “m — n_ou mmm
/ suolioe 104 ‘/0/ 21ep 0} JedA — (3WdYdS 3y}l spiemol Sunjiom o ¥ V/N 649 /N €0) £0L PN P 0P
9TL ul s3jnpe jo Jaquinu B0l syl - SZIVIS

a|doad g yum) 1G9 Yynsal € 1a1leny "I0IBJIPUI BAIIRINWIND

D | 9T-STO0C | LI-9T | 91-ST LT-91 LT-91

(usain B Jequiy ‘pay 104) Alejuawiio) v | wnnno | ynsay | ynsay | 198ie1 | 3ynsay 101B21pU| dduewio)iad
32inos | Y | |enuuy rdo) £0 |enuuy €0
2J0Ws|3 1 U7 SJ||D :SI2qUIBA J2UIqe) 006 :(314) seaAojdw3 Jaquiny 8unoj Auo] :1033211Q S9IIAIDS |BIDOS :33e10323.41Qg

14oday ajuew04iad 9184032310 LT-9T0Z € 1934enD




76 Jo Lt 98ed

‘s3sod juauewuad ul SApAYD ULBJIL pUB 12NpUl ‘1In10aY

"LT0Z Adenuer 6T UO 13UIgED WOJ) BIIAISS PUB [3pOW JUBWAR 103410 M3U 3y} JO uoiesiioyine Suiyaas a4 ||Im 33e1031934id YL

Juaized mau ay3 129|102 Uyl pue jualled 1xau 3yl Joj 3deds paq ayl aledauid ‘28uno| adseydsip ay3 o1 Jo 1odsuely J1ayy 03 syuaied

JO J3jsueJy ayl yiim spiem ay3 1doddns 03 Jje1s Jo weal e apisduoje a8uno| 984eydsip ay3 ajedodiodul [|Im eyl wes] 1oddns 981eydsig souswwo)
"8T-/T0Z 10} SOWIAYIS papuny 4] 0 1USWJ3e puB JUSWIILIS UOIYISOd 19BN pajeldajul uediowe|D JO sjeA pue Jipie) 213|dwo)

‘pdemuo) Aem 2a.8e pue 5]020104d UOIHSURI] PA1E||0D M3IARY

'8T-/T0T 40} UONISUBI] O3 UOIIR|a4 Ul ||BJ140ysS Sulpuny |e1aualod ssalppy

‘Auanijap aininy udisap pue wJaojul 01 awwelsoid 47| Y3 UIYlM S321AIS 10|Id UOI}ISUBI] B1BN|BAT

'S221AJ9S uollsuely Buidojaaap ul sdais 1xau Ajiauapi 01 Ayjigesiq 1 yijeaH pliyd o1 uoddns

:sdajs A9y IxaN

‘wea] siaie) ayl Ag Ajpoauip pa12eluod aq [|IM SYIUOW ZT 1SB| 93 Ul SI194J0 SIUSLUSSISSY SI24BD) PIAIDISL 10U SABY OYM SIJeD 3soy |

'S921AI3S |e3dsoy-1sod pue -aud se

[1om se Ajjigeded |ejidsoy-ul yjoq 03 sajejal siy] “poriad Jajuim ayi ul suosiad 1ap|o Joj a1ed 0] Aydeded dojanap 03 siaulied S3IIAISS [BID0S pue YjjeaH
“dom Juawndop suollisuedly ulol ssaigoud o1 paiiauspi 3sAjeuy ssauisng

"42] uIyum 10|id UOI}ISURI] JOJ B2INOSII PaLJIIUP|

"SM3IAJ21U] JUBJ3J SUIMO[|0) DPELW B] ||IM S1S0d J2XJ0M UOoIlisuel] 01 siuswiulodde jeyl pajedidijue si 3

:suone Sunesdinin

‘SJUBLWISSISSY SJaue)) Jo uoila|dwod Ajjuanbasqns pue wea| sisie) ayl Ag paniadal s|e.ia4ad ay3 uo 1pedwi ue pey sey Yailym paonpad aneY SI94J0 Jaie)
*Andeded awoy 3uisinu / [e1auapisal pue aJed Aseljiwog

*/TOZ YoJel Jo pus ay3 1e sasead 321AI3s uollisuell jojid 1oy Suipuny

“dom juawdo|anap |euoilippe axeuapun o} Ayoeded uo Joedwi pue saiyjigesiq Suiuiea }npy ul sisod JayJom uoilisuel} 01 Suininioad ul Aynaig
1S3NSs|

'8ujl03u0 S| pue JI9qWIDAON Ul pa1Jels S350d (SAMYD) SI9NJOMN JUBWISSISSY SiaJe) Buipuelsino 9yl 01 1USWHNIIY "1981.] PISIXD 0} 9S4N0J UO 3104313y}
S| pue JedA 1se| poliad swes 9y} Jof ET 01 pasedwod (1ep 01 Jeadh £LTG) ST S! € 4914enD SulNp SJUBWISSISSY SiaJe) paia|dwod Jo Jaquinu 3y “(si1a4ed
687 € 40} SI2440 50°7) 41894 1se| poliad awes 3y}l 10} %G 79 03 paledwlod ‘(s1a4ed gZE‘E 10) S19440 $60 ) JUSLUSSDSSE UR P340 919M SI24BD JO %/ 19 £
Jauenp Suung "gT-/T0Z 4104 |9pOW Mau e aindold pue 321AI3s 31n3n} ay3 10} S|opow 1uawAed 12a11Q ||e 48pISU02 01 paysl|qelsa uaaq sey dnouo 12aloid
v ‘(uoissiwpe 2udsal / WOy 9J4ed pue pPaseadap 9J9M SUOSEaJ UIBW 3Y3 ‘YIIYM JO) pasead Of pue siuawAed 10341g pPaHels S1asn 92IAI9S 07 ‘€ JouenD
Sulng awayas ayl spiemol Supjiom ajdoad g Yyum ‘(a1ep 03 Jeah £0/) € Jouen Sulnp awayds JuawAied 32a41Q Yl UO SIBSN 3IIAIDS TG oM sy
‘(shejap 5z) L1-9102

JaqWBaAoN pue 1aqo3aQ 03 (sAejap g€) 9T-STOT JaqUWBAON puUk J12qo32Q Sulledwod uaym suoseay aJe) |BId0S J0j 3Je) JO siajsuel] paAe|aq ul uoianpal
%6 B paljiluap! sey 1odal Bupjiewyduaq Sa2IAISS ,SHNPY U3l i (Alenuer ul anp aJe s3nsaJ Jaquiadaq) € J234enp 404 }nsad 1ed e Joj uaau8 pasdses
0s|e pue 7 Ja1eny 4o} uaai8 pagSel sem J01BI1pU| SJUBWIOMLR D01 3Yl "9T0¢ 49qwadaq ul s3984e31 )0 |eudalul yiog pasaiyae sey diysiauped

Page 286

2JOWS|3 1§ 3UIT SJ||D :SISQWIBA JBUIqe) 006 :(314) saaAojdwiz Jaqunpy gunoj Auo] :40323110 S22IAJDS |BID0S :33e40332.410
14oday ajuew04iad 9184032310 LT-9T0Z € 1934enD




76 Jo 8 98ed

“ (8) %ze (1) %v (2) %81 (2) %81
DET) %89 Y (2) %8t (0) %0 (2) %81 (1) %6
 (z)%ss (2) %8 (0) %0 (1) %6 (2) %81
I u3ain/1AquIYy Jaquy/pay u3ain/1aquiy Jaquy /pay

9 ,S}NpPY ‘9 s, uaJpiy) ‘€T ulof — SZ :|ejo) S SHUNPY ‘ ¥ S,uaJp|Iyd ‘Z ulor - T :|e3o)
:|e101 (Z 311ed) suondy ssauisng 9107 ajelo3daliqg jsuiede ssaidoid :[e103 (T Med) sjuawHWWO) ue|d ajelodlo) jsuiede ssasdold

SUOIJIY pue sjuUaWHWWO) — ssaiSoud jo Alewwns ‘1T

0
(2) %9°8¢ g
(1) %EvT 0
(T) %EbT O

(o) % oquy. [RieNsame ST
(al

S)|nsay |d ue|d 21e10di0) jo Atewwins Ot

JeaA aujjaseq e ul aJe Ydiym (%8 ¢t) Sid € 404 papn|aul J0u Dy
1eaA auljaseq e ul aJe YdIiym (%8°zv) Sid € 40} papnjaul 1ou Oy
JeaA aulaseq e ul aJe YIYM (%8°¢t) Sld € 404 papn|oul 10u DY

S9JO0N

s3npe 1o} Sulied aie oym siaJed Jnpe 3|qi81|2 ||e 03 SIUBWISSASSY SJaIeD 1940

LT0Z Aq 32V (s3]e M) Buiag-||]9M pue s32IAISS [BID0S Y3 Yim
DUl Ul spaau Joddns pue 24e2 Y3Im SJUSpISaL 3 NPE. JJIpJeD 1o 34ed JO uoisiaoid 12a41p 03 9AI1BUIDYE U S sjuawAed 10241 Jo »jeidn syl 95eaJaul 03 2nUIIU0D)

LT0Z Aq |endsoy wouy (D01 Q) 248D Jo Jajsuel] pake|ag e oualadxa OYm SJUBPISI JJIPJeD JO JaCUINU B0} 3Y) 3anpad 01 siaulied Yijeay Jno Yiim YJopn

94ED |RIDOS }|Npe
Ul S3JIAIDS 24BD [BID0S pue y3jeay jo AJaaijap pue JuawaSeuew ay} Joj [apow paiel8aiul ue jo Ayjiqises) ayl (gHN) pieog YyeaH Ausiaaiun ays yim alojdxg

pooyynpe Suiyoeoidde ualpjiyd 3|qesaujna pue pajgesip 1o 1Joddns [BUOIISURI] JO SSBUAIIRYS 3y} daoidw|

(sueld Asanjaqg ul T Hed) siuawpwwo)

Sjuswjiwwo) ‘g

2JOWS|I 1 JUIT SJ||D :SIAqWIAR IduUIge) 006 :(3.14) seahojdw3 Jaqunp gunoj Auo] :1032341Q S2IIAISS |BID0S :33eJ103334Ig

14oday ajuew04iad 9184032310 LT-9T0Z € 1934enD



7S Jo 67 @8ed

" JOLEND Ul 32USWIWIOD [[IM SJUBLUSSISSE JO SIa}j0 auoyda|al
*S]UBLISSISSY SJale)

Suiiajo 03 sialiieq Aji3uapl 03 pue sialed 03 AInp s,[1puno) ay3 Inoge
swea} ||e 0} yeads 03 sSuileaw wea) pualie 03 JAdIQ Adljod siaie)

*SJUBLLSSASSY SJa4e) uo Joedwl

ue pey sey siyl 'yei1s juauewliad jo uawiuljodde ayz Suipuad (SAMYD)
SIDMON JUBWISSISSY SIa48) OM] AJUD JO SISBQ DY) UO SINUIIU0D 32IAIDS dY)
pue JaqWaAoN Ul paje)s sisod Juauewlad Bulpueisino ayl 03 JUaWIINIIBY
SIUBLISSASSY SiaJe) ul Juawanoaduw|

'ssaud |ed0|

91 pue sal}ISIaAIuN pue syuapnis ‘sdnoud 3siij AHUNWWOI ‘S1I0M
YinoA ‘1031235 pJ1y] ‘SIuapisad [BIO| SIpN|duUl dudlpne 1984e) ayl
"J931M ] Y}IM Ul-31} B PUB SLIDAPE Pa}S00Q-}00(gade JO SISISU0d

SIYL "ZT0Z YdJen 21e| |11un sa8essaw Jo weaJls Apeals e yim anuiuod
[I!M pue JaquWanoN T AepuoiA Uo paliels ALAIIOE elpawl |e1d0S 3y |
‘S9AIeIIUI BuISIJaApE JBYJ0 pue Jodsued) [B0] UO SUISILISAPY
*siapinoud

92IAI3S 0] pue ‘Jjel1s Jo siaqwaw Jo/pue a1ignd ay3 4o s||eJ1004

ysiy ate aiayy aiaym s3uip|ing |1DUNO) 0} PaINQLIISIP 3¢ 01 SI13150d

*10323s 2l|gnd pue ajeAlid ayj ul s3j04 JaJed Joy Ajdde 03 ajdoad asow
98e4nodua 031 wie pue Suio8uo Ajjualund aJe uSiedwe) J9)JOM 24D |BI20S
V 94, 3y} 10} ue|d dwwel8oid AJAIDY BIPSIA g UOIIEDIUNWWOD pPUB Ue|d
103fo1d 3y ‘Jp4eD ssouoe sanssi Ayoeded aled |esauas ag 03 anUNUOD aUdY L
19)4ew awoy a.ed Suisinu pue Aseljpiwop ay; jo Ayjiely

'19UIgeD) YUM UOISSNISIP 404 pasijeuls

3 ||IM UB|d [BI2UBUI4 PUE SIDIAIDS |BID0S paleJdalu| 91.40129410-3|0YM
e uaym Aleniqa{ 10j pauue|d S| UOIIRIBY [RUI Y °£Z0Z PUB T20T

03 dn $221A49S ,SYNPY 40 109dSau Ul 194J0 IIAIAS dAIlEIUaARLd pauue|d
pue juaiind ay3 jo 1pedwi ayl jo Suljjapow |eldueul) d142ads uo
pPasnJ04 pue Jaquadaq ul 3auiqe) Aq paiapisuod sem sieald 0T—g xau
9Y3 JBA0 $321AI3S S npY Buipinoad Jo 3500 ay3 Jo sisAjeue pajesdaiul
uy "£zZ0Z pue TZ0z 01 dn $921AJ3S S,UdJp|IyD JO 122dsaJ U] 1940 IIAISS
aAejuanald pauue|d pue jualand ayj jo 3pedw ayy jo Suljjapow
|eloueul) o4193ds papn|oul SIYl ‘ue|d |BIoUBUI{ pue S3JIAIS |BID0S
pales8a1u| Jeah 0T-5 pasodoud e jo 1ioddns ul Supjuiyl pue uoR3JIP
218918415 In0 8u1119S SIaqWaIN }PuIgeD) 03 suoilejuasald 3yl jo

1541} 9Y1 @pew sey Jo3dauig 3yl "8T-/T0¢ 404 198png |1punod pasodoud
9Y3 Ul papn|aul uaaq dAeY 40323J1Q 94l Aq pa1liwgns spiq 94nssald

UJ

o0
SDIAIDS SITNDY
pue s,uaJpjiyD 40j 9T-STOZ PUe LT-9TOT 40j 1984e) WESS'/F paulq@ioo
ay1 isuieSe W9 ¢F O S||ejoys s3ulaes pajed|dijue s19|4a4 n:m%@n
ay3 ‘uoiisod ||edaA0 ay3 Jo swud) u| ‘sad1ud pag Bulsinu ul sasefaul
8ujo3uo snjd pataAlap sinoy aJed Alejjpiwop s,ajdoad Jap|o Jo Jaqunu
ay1 u1 yimou3 Bumnuuod s193)334 (000°083F+) uonisod SNpy 3yl 41990120
ul sjuawade|d 3ul4a)soy Ul asealdul ue snid sjuswade|d [elIUspPISaL |BUIIXD
mau 01 uniejal (000°‘083+) S1S02 [euonippe aJe aJayl ‘s198png s,uaJip(iyd
uQ °S22IAIBS ,SYNPY pue s,ualpjiy) uaamiaq Hjds Ajjenba si puadsiano
ul dseatoul 8yl ‘9TOZ 4290300 Joj uolysod ayy 03 pasedwod 0O0‘09TF 40
9sEaJoU| Ue SISyl "WwzSE'9¢TF 40 198png e JsuleSe W/ ST Jo puadsiano ue
SMOUS 5921AJ3S |e120S 40} uolisod Suliojiuow (8 YIUo|Al) 9TOZ JoqWanoN ayl
128png aje1032241Q

suony sunesinn

adua|eyd
(any "xe) anoqe pajou uey Jayio — ajel032ad1q 104 saduajjeyd Aay

SIUBWIAA3IYIY pue saduajjey) J3Yl0 ‘T

2JOWS|I 1 JUIT SJ||D :SIAqWIAR IduUIge) 006 :(3.14) seahojdw3 Jaqunp

gunoj Auo] :1032211Q S221AJ3S |BID0S :31e40332.41g
14oday ajuew04iad 9184032310 LT-9T0Z € 1934enD




76 Jo 06 @3ed

's3ulpaad0.4d aJ4ed JO JaquUINU BY3 Ul 35EaIdUl U U] Pa1daj4ad si s1yl ySnoylje ‘9T ¢T'TE 18 96T 03 9T'60°0€ 18 6/7 WOL) paonpal os|e sey 1215183y uol109304d P|IYD 3yl Uo uaJp|iyd jo

Jagquinu ay| ‘STOZ 49quiadaq aduls padnpad sey aunsly a9y ey 2wl 35414 3yl — 9T ZT'TE 18 069 01 9T°60°0€ 1 TO/ Wodj Jayje paxyoo| Sulag uaJlp|iyd Jo Jaquinu ay3 uj uoionpay

" doupwiofiad

pup Aynnanpoad saspalauj uing ul yarym buiaqjiam ® yijpay s,ajdoad uo 13affa up poy Aja11ulfap soy siyj, pup ,ssa4ls ssaf = yiomiadod pup sbuipioal 33ajdwod 0] awil

240, :papN|dUl JJels T aseyd JO uayelrapun AsAIns B WoJj )oeqpasy) anllsod '1aafosd Supjuopn a[iqoIAl 2118y 8yl YSnoay) pasi|iqow 1am JJels SadlAlRS [e120S 0SS Ajl@iewixoiddy

'LTOZ Adenuer 6T U0 12UIge) 0] 3DIAISS pue [9pow JuawAed

10310 M3U 3y} JO uoiesuoyINe SulXaas 3 ||Im 91e40303.410 AYL "9T0T 42qWadaq ,/ U0 AuIINIDS UOISIIBQ-ald 10} Pasijeul) sem sjuawAed 1a41Q Joj Jaded |esiesddy suondo ayL

*14odad 921440 UPNY S9|BM Y3 Ul 3d130e4d pooB se pasiu8odaal sem siy} pue ‘ol pue moyj |eadsoy yum pajeldosse saduajeyd ayl uo

dug diys4aulied aoueyua 03 ,Wea] [BENUIA, SAIINIDXD JOIUDS B JO JUSWYSI|RISa 3y} Pa| 91840303410 YL "%ZZ 4O Yluow dy) Ul 3Sealdap ||eJ9A0 Ue YIM ‘9TQZ J2GWDAON 10j 8/ 0}

paJedwod ‘79 01 Suidnpal ‘pieog diysiaulied a4e) |e1dos 3 YijeaH pajesdaiul ayl Ag papodal se ‘9Tz 1oquiadaq 404 $H01Q 4O JIagquinu [e10} [|e42A0 3y} Ul paynsal sey siyl "uejd

LT-9T0Z ®Y1 Ul paulejuod suolde pasodold ay) 03 SulINgLIIUOD ‘9T-GTOZ 491U JO MIIARI BY] WO SUOIIEPUILLILLIOIRS 3Y) Juawajdwl 0} djeA Byl pue yijeaH Suipnjoul siaulied

YIIM PaXJOM 218101231 SIDIAIBS |BIDOS "9TQZ 420Wia1das 1STZ U0 Juang wnio4 Suluue|d J9IUIA 3Y3 Jo) pa3e|jdwod (uejd uonoe Suipnjoul) /T-9T0Z Ue|ld J9IUIM 2|BA PUB JipJed

"JUBLWAA|OAUI SDIIAIDS [BID0S 0] JoLid ‘9ouelsISSY

pue 221ApY ‘uoljew.ojul Buysanbad s1oejU02 duoyda|al uo apInd pue asiApe 03 Siseq Ajlep e UO $13214J0 10e3U0D YIM Ajjulol Jiom siadom |e1dos ay| “Bulllas Ajunwwod e uigam

8ujAl| Juspuadapul uieluiew pue uledal 03 pajioddns aJe sjenpIAIpUl pue uael sl yoeosdde aanejuanald e 34nsuD 03 S19214J0 SUINSIA PUB S1321440 19e3U0D Yim Ajjulol BupEgm

UD3q Sey Wea} ay| 'SIIIOM [BIDOS / DPEID 331U} PUe 8 BPEID OM] JO SISISUOD Wead) 3y} :9T0Z Jaquialdas 9z uo dn 13s Sem Wea) JI0M [BI20S (J0dH) 19B3U0D JO JUIOd ISI14 @H L
(anl} "xel\l) (S955920NS pue SMaN Po0D) SIUBWBABIYIY L2

'sadpnl Joluas a10jaq sSuipaadoud ated ui aJle jeyl Sased Jo Jaquinu pwE

ay1 ul paydajad st pue Aepipnl ayl Ag pasiudodal si sased Jo Alixajdwod ay|

‘9T'60°0€ 18 647 YUM patedwod 9T'ZT'TE 18 96T sem

1915189y U0I1193104d P|IYD @Y1 UO U3IP|IY2 JO Jaquinu 3Yy] "STOZ 42qwadaq

20Uls paonpal sey ain3ly 9yl 1eyl awi 31l Yl — 9T'60°0€ 18 TOL Yyum

paJedwod 9T ZT'TE 18 069 SeM J21je payoo| Sulag uaJp|iyd 4o Jaquinu ay |

'SASED HZ-07 YUM SI2XJOM |BID0S

ZC PUB S3SBI §7Z-GZ YHM SII0M [BID0S {7 ‘SaSeI +0E YHM SI2)I0M |B1D0S

v/d 7 9JaMm 3JaY3 ‘1aquiadaQ ul Speojased awos JOo uoniesIsn||i Jaliq e anls o)
"92IAJDS YT UIYHM

sased Jo Ajxa|dwod 3y} Jou SPeo|ISED JIJOM [BID0S [BNPIAIPUI JO SAIREDIPUI

‘speojased Sujduajjeyd pue xajdwod Ajysiy J0ou 2J4e A3yl se uonned Yyum paleadl aq isnw saundiy asayl ‘(221A19S

JuiSeuew Joj s1ay40M |BID0S BY] 0] JUSLLELSA] SI ) PUE Palelsiapun U3Jp|IyD 491V P33 007 9yl Ul ¢'8T 01 dJIAIIS PaaN Ul PlIYD 9yl Ul #'¢T wody

9q J0UUR) YJoM Jo Alixa|dwod pue awn|oA ay] ‘aierdoidde uaym SuiBued) €'9T SEM SI33J0M |BID0S 10) PEO|DSED FEIBAE ||BIIA0 BY] IS|IYM

pue se Speo|ased aanpal siaxJom |e1oos uoddns 03 aae|d ul sassa30.4d ‘9017 18 SEM gT0Z 49qWadaQ Ul 921A43s 3y} Aq padeuew sased Jo |e103 ayL

2. 249y} pue S35BD S10}juowW A|3s0|d wea) Juswaseuew ay| S3sSed SIAIAS S,uaip|iy)d jo A1ixajdwod Suiseasdu|

2J0Ws|3 1 U7 SJ||D :SI2qUIBA J2UIqe) 006 :(314) seahojdw3 Jaquinn 8unoj Auo] :a030a1Q S9JIAJDS |B1D0S :91e1032241Q

14oday ajuew04iad 9184032310 LT-9T0Z € 1934enD




This page is intentionally left blank



Quarter 3

Indicator Indicator Title [Pl Type 2007- [2008- ([2009- [2010- |2011-12|2012-13|2013-14|2014-15|Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 2015-16|Q1 Q2 Q3 2016- |Curren |Status | 2016- | Level Comments
Ref 08 |09 10 11 2015-16|2015-16|2015-16|2015-16 2016-17|2016-17|2016-17 |17 t 17 T”gae’t'
n
Progre Target Aimgn
SS
Children are protected from significant harm and are empowered to protect themselves
Contacts 1 [Number of Local New for |New for |New for |New for |New for [New for [New for |New for |New for [New for [New for [New for |New for 7,558 7,950 6,927 Target | N/A | Target | Target |New indicator introduced for 2016-17 in response to
Local Pl [Contacts / 2016- |2016- |2016- |2016- |2016-17(2016-17(2016-17|2016-17|2016-17|2016-17(2016-17(2016-17|2016-17 setting setting | setting |changes implemented as a result of the Social
Referrals 17 17 17 17 not not not |Services & Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014.
Received appropr appropr|appropr|Contacts and referrals are no longer recorded
iate iate iate |separately - since 6th April 2016 they have been
recorded on a single "Contact & Referral" form.
CS CPR 4 |CPR caseload Local 207 213 283 272 255 372 314 255 300 322 311 342 342 336 279 196 Target | N/A | Target | Target |Figure does not include 10 temporary registrations
Local PI setting setting | setting |where case management responsibility for the
not not not [children is retained by their home authority.
appropr appropr|appropr
iata iata iata
SSWB 27 |The percentage of |CP- 2.1 3.2%| 5.6%| 2.0% Baselin| 4 Baselin|Baselin|1/51
National Pl|re-registrations of |DDP e year eyear | eyear |1 of the children registered during the quarter had
children on local been on the CPR within the previous 12 months. No
authority Child RAG rating has been applied as 2016-17 is the first
Protection year that this Pl has been reported. A baseline will be
Registers established during the year to inform target setting for
2017-18.
SSWB 28 |Average length of [CP - 206 198 271 Baselin| w Baselin| Baselin|36,015/ 133
National PI{time for all children|Appendix e year e year | e year | The average length of time on the CPR for the 133
-U who were onthe |pDDP children who we de-registered during Quarter 3 was
CPR during the 271 days.

QJ year No RAG rating has been applied as 2016-17 is the
(@] first year that this Pl has been reported. A baseline
('D will be established during the year to inform target

setting for 2017-18.
AN
scE®d4 [The percentage of |Local 48.9%| 73.5%| 72.7%| 86.3%| 82.6%| 84.6%| 83.8%| 90.7%| 96.4%| 98.5%| 93.0%| 90.9%| 94.4%| 91.2%| 96.5%| 89.1%: @ v 90.0%| 81.0%|57 /64
LokDr  |initial child 7 conferences for 3 sibling groups were late in
protection December. 2 were rescheduled to enable the parents /|
conferences due in children to attend and the other was due to a delay in
the year which requesting the conference. Performance was 100%
were held within for October and November. All late conferences have
15 working days of since been held.
the strategy All Wales average 2014-15 = 92.6%
SCC/034 |The percentage of |Local 98.9%| 99.2%| 99.5%| 99.2%| 98.5%| 98.0%| 98.5%| 99.8%| 100.0%| 99.6%]| 100.0%| 99.6%| 99.8%| 98.4%]| 100.0%| 96.9% @ - 100.0%| 70.0%|217 / 224
Local PI child protection Three conferences were late during the quarter for a
reviews carried out sibling group for whom the Court has instructed that
within statutory no further conferences should be held. A further
timescales during conference in relation to a sibling group of 4 was late
the year in November as it had to be rescheduled. All late
conferences that could be held, have since been held.
All Wales average 2015-16 = 98.0%

Children and young people are supported to live safely within their families with the lowest appropriate level of intervention

Targets set by CSSIW are highlighted

Page 1 of 3

01/03/17




Quarter 3

Indicator Indicator Title [Pl Type 2007- [2008- ([2009- [2010- |2011-12|2012-13|2013-14|2014-15|Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 2015-16|Q1 Q2 Q3 2016- |Curren |Status | 2016- | Level Comments
Ref 08 |09 10 11 2015-16|2015-16|2015-16|2015-16 2016-17|2016-17|2016-17 |17 t 17 T”gae’t'
n
Progre Target Aimgn
SS
SSWB 24 |The percentage of |CP - 99.2%| 86.3%| 88.3% Baselin| . Baselin| Baselin (445 / 504
National Pl|{assessments Appendix e year eyear | e year [No RAG rating has been applied as 2016-17 is the
completed for DDP first year that this PI has been reported. A baseline
children within will be established during the year to inform target
statutory setting for 2017-18.
timescales
SSWB 25 |The percentage of |CP- 2.1 59.0%| 57.3%| 56.6% Baselin| ¥ Baselin| Baselin 899 / 1,589
National PI|children supported |DDP e year eyear | e year [Of the 1,589 children with a Care & Support Plan at
to remain living 31.12.16; 899 were being supported to live at home
within their family (i.e. were not being looked after).
No RAG rating has been applied as 2016-17 is the
first year that this Pl has been reported. A baseline
will be established during the year to inform target
setting for 2017-18.
SSWB 26 |The percentage of [CP - 1.2 3.2% 6.2% 9.9%) Baselin L Baselin| Baselin|88 / 893
National Pl|looked after DDP e year e year | e year |Of the 893 children who have been looked after
children returned during the year to date, 88 have returned home.
home from care This Pl is cumulative, and performance will improve as
during the year we progress throughout the year.
-U No RAG rating has been applied as 2016-17 is the
Q_) first year that this Pl has been reported. A baseline
(Q will be established during the year to inform target
P2y setting for 2017-18.
A~
N Looked after children experience the best care and support to help them recognise their abilities, have aspirations and achieve their full potential
Cs 3e|LAC caseload (not |Local 521 520 530 521 568 557 611 650 662 630 625 644 644 678 701 690/ Target | N/A | Target | Target |Cardiff rate at 30.06.16 = 9.4 per 000
Lo | |including respite setting setting | setting |Wales rate at 31.03.15 = 8.9 per 000
care arrangements not not not
for disabled appropr appropr|appropr
childran) iata iata iata
CS LAC 58|Percentage of Local New for| 61.4%| 64.8%| 67.0%| 65.6%| 62.2%| 62.0%| 60.7%| 60.4%| 61.6%| 60.9%| 62.5%| 62.5%| 61.2%| 60.9%| 61.6% @ L 65.0%| 58.5%|322 /523
Local PI children in 2008- The PI counts only children placed within the LA
regulated 09 boundaries and excludes children placed in
placements who neighbouring authorities close to their home area and
are placed in attending Cardiff schools.
Cardiff 17.4% (35) of children not placed in Cardiff are placed
within 10 miles of their home address.
8 of the children not placed in Cardiff are placed with
arelative carer.
Planning always takes account of placement location
for children. Some children need a specialist
placement that is not available in the city or need to
live away from families, communities or individuals
that could present risks for them.
SCC/021 |The percentage of |Local 92.3%| 95.9%| 96.2%| 96.4%| 95.2%| 95.2%| 92.4%| 88.3%| 93.2%| 96.0%| 95.9%| 92.7%| 94.5%| 96.1%| 93.8%| 94.6% @ i 100%| 70.0%|454 / 480
Local PI looked after Of the 26 reviews that were not held on time, 14 were
children reviews held within a week, 5 within 2 weeks, 6 within 4 weeks
carried out within and 1 at 5 weeks. All late reviews have since been
statutory held.
timescales during All Wales average 2014-15 = 95.5%
i

Targets set by CSSIW are highlighted

Page 2 of 3

01/03/17



Quarter 3

Indicator Indicator Title [Pl Type 2007- [2008- ([2009- [2010- |2011-12|2012-13|2013-14|2014-15|Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 2015-16|Q1 Q2 Q3 2016- |Curren |Status | 2016- | Level Comments
Ref 08 |09 10 11 2015-16|2015-16|2015-16|2015-16 2016-17|2016-17|2016-17 |17 t 17 T”gae’t'
n
Progre Target Aimgn
SS
SCC/025 |The percentage of |Local 69.3%| 79.5%| 88.2%| 83.9%| 85.1%| 89.5%| 87.7%| 88.9%| 85.1%| 85.3%| 85.3%| 91.1%| 86.6%| 94.1%| 95.3%| 96.3% © 4 90.0%| 81.0%|462 /480
Local Pl |statutory visits to All Wales average 2015-16 = 88.1%
looked after
children due in the
year that took
place in
accordance with
Cardiff is the destination of choice for committed social work professionals
Staff 1 Percentage of CpP-2.1 22.1% | 26.1% | 15.2%| 14.7%| 15.9%| 14.5%| 20.8%| 27.2%| 23.5%| 21.4%| 21.6%| 22.2%| 22.2%| 22.9%| 24.8%| 23.3% @ L 18.0%| 19.8%|107.4/461.1
Local PI social work MASH 27.8%
vacancies in all 1&A = 30.5%
teams CIN = 25.5%
LAC = 14.7%
The percentage of social worker vacancies in
Children’s Services has reduced slightly during the
quarter to 23.3% (from 24.8% in Quarter 2) and
recruitment initiatives are ongoing. Vacancies rates
have not reduced further due to internal promotions
and transfers. Job creation has commenced in
relation to the pool of additional social workers and it
is anticipated that 6 social work posts will be filled in
Quarter 1 2017-18. As a result of work to improve
recruitment and retention, a more stable workforce
across the service is emerging and except where
-U essential maternity cover is required, there is less
g_) reliability on agency staff. There are some good
(Q examples of staff achieving promotional appointments,
(.D thereby supporting career development and staff
retention.
N
8 Children’s Services are provided on the basis of the most efficient and effective use of resources
CS LAC 44|Percentage of LAC|Local 56.4%| 56.6%| 58.9%| 62.0%| 64.2%| 68.6%| 67.4%| 71.8%| 70.3%| 70.3%| 70.0%| 72.0%| 72.0%| 73.6%| 74.0%| 73.8% @ > 70.0%)| 77.0%]|386 /523
Local Pl [placements with

independent
ector provider

Of the 386 placements with agency providers, 172
started within the last 12 months.

Targets set by CSSIW are highlighted

Page

3of3

01/03/17




This page is intentionally left blank



G6¢ abed

Summary of Wellb Contact / Referrals Quarter 3 2016/17

Cs- CS - Move to
cs- Information CS - Manager's |Strategy CS-No [CS- Signpost to
Contact |Received on CS-JAF |Authorisation |Discussion/Me |Further |Early CS - Wellbeing Grand
Source / Outcome to MHub |Open Case Required [Required eting Action Intervention NULL Total Total %
CAFCASS 10 6 172 5] 193 2.8%
Central government agency 1 1 33 21 56 0.8%
Family Bl 7 1 1 274 4 32 1 323 4.7%
Friend/Neighbour 1 2 36 2 7 48 0.7%
Independent provider agency 16 1 5 1 23 0.3%
LA Housing Dept. or Housing Association 5 1 36 7 49 0.7%
Local Authority's own Social Services Dept. 14 31 1 44 346 1 52 8 497 7.2%
Other Agency 2 111 2 2 487 1 91 8 704 10.2%
Other Departments of own or other LA 6 24 13 211 2 46 4 306 4.4%
Other individual 3 11 2 17 3 36 0.5%
Police 55) 709 1 B 27 1659 5] 83 34 2576 37.2%
Primary health / Community health 21 122 17 8 29 749 12 107 4 1069 15.4%
Probation 22 1 219 29 1 272 3.9%
School 35 94 1 38 455 6 80 4 713 10.3%
Secondary health 26 3 17 2 48 0.7%
Self referral 1 4 1 6 0.1%
LKBordetazency z a S [I0°1 % of Source of Wellbeing Contact/Referral Quarter 3
_ 2016/17 - = Centrol governmen
agency, 0.8% .
UK Border Agency, 0.1% __ Sefreferral, 0.1%  w cafcass, 2.8% ey u Family, 4.7%
Source of Wellbeing Contact / Referral Quarter 3 2016/17 o
Secondary health, 0.7% W Friend/Neighbour, 0.7%
3000
2576 = Independent provider
2500 agency, 0.3%
2000 B LA Housing Dept. or
Housing Association,
1500 0.7%
1000
= Probation, 3.9% B Local Authority's own
500 193 Social Services Dept.,
56 6 8
0 L .
3 & & &
& & & &
o o «© A
&é‘ & & = Other Departments of
& < own or other LA, 4.4%
s Ni
&
&
& B Other individual, 0.5%
Outcome of Wellbeing Contact / Referral Quarter 3 2016/17 % of Outcome of Wellbeing Contact/Referral Quarter 3
5000 4 B CS-Wellbeing 2016/17
4500 Assessment, 8.0 NULL, 1.1% mCs- Conlzacot;o MHub,
4000 = CS - Signpost to Early : B CS-Information
Intervention, 0.5% Received on Open Case,
3500 17.2%
3000 ® CS - JAF Required, 0.3%
2500 B CS-Manager's
2000 Authorisation Required,
0.4%
1500 1190 B CS - Move to Strategy
1000 Discussion/Meeting,
556 2.3%
500
[
CS - Contact to MHub ~ CS - Information Received  CS - JAF Required €S- Manager's CS-Move to Strategy ~ CS - No Further Action  CS - Signpost to Early €S- Wellbeing NULL
on Open Case Authorisation Required Discussion/Meeting Intervention Assessment
Source of Wellbeing Contact / Referral by Outcome Quarter 3 2016/17
| CS - Contact to MHub
1800
= CS - JAF Required
1600
1400
1200 W CS - Manager's Authorisation Required
1000
800
B CS - Move to Strategy Discussion/Meeting
600
400
200 = CS - Signpost to Early Intervention
= CS - Wellbeing Assessment
N
@&(b NULL
m CS - Information Received on Open Case
 CS - No Further Action




Summary of Wellbeing Assessments Quarter 3 2016/17

96¢ abed

Comprehensive

Assessment Required required

Manager's authorisation Needs can be met by the Needs can be met through Needs can only be met

individuals preventative services  through Care & Support

Plan

abuse, harm or neglect

Protection of child from Provision of Information;
advice or assistance

There are no care and
support needs to be met

Needs can be |Needs canonly |Protection of |Provision of There are no
Comprehensive [Manager's Needs can be |met through |be met through |child from Information; care and
Assessment authorisation met by the preventative |Care & Support |abuse, harm [advice or support needs
Source / Outcome Required quil individuals services Plan or neglect i to be met Grand Total |Total %
Central government agency 2 3] 5 1.4%
Family 2 4 11 3 3 2 25 7.1%
LA Housing Dept. or Housing 1 1 4 1 7 2.0%
Local Authority's own Social Services Dept. 4 10 4 4 5 1 28 8.0%
Other Agency 3 11 24 16 2 5 61 17.4%
Other Departments of own or other LA 1 2 6 7 8 13 4 41 11.7%
Other individual 1 1 0.3%
Police 6 1 10 13 5 11 6 52 14.9%
Primary health / C health 7 11 24 15 4 5 66 18.9%
Probation 3 10 8 1 2 24 6.9%
School 13 8 5 2 1 11 40 11.4%
Total % 7.4% 1.1% 22.3% 30.3% 16.6% 10.6% 1.4% 10.3%
. o i
Source of Wellbeing Assessment Quarter 3 2016/17 % of Source of Wellbeing Assessment Quarter 3
o 2016/17
6 ® Central government ® Family, 7.1%
61
. school, 11.4% agency, 1.4%
B LA Housing Dept. or
52 Housing Association,
50 2.0%
= Probation, 6.9%
41 20 ® |ocal Authority's own
40 Social Services Dept.,
8.0%
28
30 25 24
Primary health /
20 Community health, —— ® Other Agency, 17.4%
18.9%
10 5 F
1
. ]
Central Family LA Housing Dept.  Local Authority's Other Agency Other Other individual Police Primary health / Probation School B Other Departments of
government or Housing own Social Services Departments of Community health " Police, 14.9% own or other LA, 11.7%
agency Association Dept. own or other LA ' ¥ Other individual, 0.3%
Outcome of Wellbeing Assessments Quarter 3 2016/17 % of Outcome of Wellbeing Assessments Quarter 3
120
= There are no care and 2016/17 .
106 L] Comprehensive
support needs to be .
t 10.3% Assessment Required,
100 met 10- 7.4%
[ ] Provision of
78 ion; i
80 '"f‘;'s's';::::"c":‘:‘v’;; ® Manager's authorisation
required, 1.1%
58
60 = Protection of child from
abuse, harm or neglect,
10.6% B Needs can be met by
37
40 36 the individuals, 22.3%
26
20
4 5 B Needs can only be me
0 - . — . . . . . || through Care & Support

B Needs can be met
through preventative
services, 30.3%

Plan, 16.6%

Outcome of Wellbeing Assessment by source Quarter 3 2016/17

met

W Comprehensive Assessment Required

W Manager's authorisation required

W There are no care and support needs to be

W Needs can only be met through Care &
Support Plan

m Protection of child from abuse, harm or
neglect

® Needs can be met by the individuals

m Needs can be met through preventative
services

Provision of Information; advice or assistance




Agenda Item 9

CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CHILDREN and YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

7 March 2017

Female Genital Mutilation (FGM) - Report of the Committee’s Task & Finish
Group

Reason for the Report

1. . This report enables the Committee to approve the draft report of this
Committee’s Task & Finish Group, copy attached at Appendix A.

Background

2. Atits meeting in September 2016 the Committee considered its work
programme for the year and agreed to undertake an inquiry into FGM in Cardiff.

The Terms of Reference for the task group:

* Identify the scale of the problem in Cardiff.

+ Identify options to improve awareness of FGM across professional and
ethnic minority groups.

» Improve the training of professionals who may come into contact with FGM.

» Ascertain what work is being undertaken in the wider community and
schools.

+ Identify ways to improve the operation of the FGM clinical pathway including
proposals for an all wales FGM clinic.

» Improve the collection and robustness of FGM data across Cardiff.

3. It was agreed that a Task & Finish Group be established to undertake this inquiry.

Members of the Task & Finish Group were:

» Councillor Dianne Rees (Chair)

Page 297



» Councillor Lynda Thorne
» Councillor Heather Joyce
» Karen Dell’Armi (Parent/Governor Co-optee)

» Patricia Arlotte (Roman Catholic Co-optee).

4. The Inquiry took place during January and February 2017. The following report
sets out the key findings and conclusions arising from this Inquiry, as well as a

number of recommendations arising from the evidence gathered.

5. The task group members, to identify appropriate findings for the Inquiry and its

recommendations, used evidence received throughout the inquiry.

Way Forward

6. The draft report of the Task & Finish Group, is attached at Appendix A.

Members’ attention is particularly drawn to the Recommendations section.

7. Members may wish to consider the report, make any amendments and agree

whether to approve the report to be considered by the Cabinet.

Legal Implications

8. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not making policy decisions. As the recommendations in this
report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications.
However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are
implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations
for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising
from those recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council
must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural
requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person
exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with
the procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure

Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken

Page 298



having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be

reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

Financial Implications

9. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not making policy decisions. As the recommendations in this
report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications
at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However, financial
implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented
with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision
that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications arising from

those recommendations.

RECOMMENDATIONS
The Committee is recommended to:

e Consider the draft report of the Task and Finish Group, copy attached at
Appendix A.
e Endorse the report, subject to any comments the Committee wish to make, for

submission to the Cabinet.
Davina Fiore

Director of Governance and Legal Services and Monitoring Officer
1 March 2017

Page 299



This page is intentionally left blank



scrutiny

A Report of the Children & Young People
Scrutiny Committee

FEMALE GENITAL MUTILATION (FGM)

February 2017
}ig(%
NI\
CARDIFF
CAERDYDD County Council of The City and County of Cardiff

Page 301



CONTENTS

CHAIR'S FOREWORD......tiiiitii e e e aaa e 1
INTRODUCTION. ...t e e e e e neas 2
KEY FINDINGS . ... e 4
RECOMMENDATIONS . ... e 12
EVIDENCE. ... e —— 15
Definition of FGM.......ooiii e, 15
Types Of FGM. ... 15
Legislation Governing FGM...........c.ccoiiiiiiiiiee, 16
FGM Protection Orders..........ccoiiiiiiii e 18
Policy & Guidance on FGM. ... 22
Role Of BAWSO ... e 24
Current FGM ProCesSes. .....ouvuviiiniiiiiiieieieie e 26
National Training Frameworks. ... 26
National Awareness Raising Frameworks....................c.ooooies 28
Evidence Gathering Session 1: 31 January 2017...................... 29
Evidence Gathering Session 2: 16 February 2017..................... 33
INQUIRY METHODOLOGY ... .ottt e e e e aa e e e e e e e e annnnes 38
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS . ... e 39
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS . ... e 39
COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE........cciiiiiiii e 40

Page 302




CHAIR’S FOREWORD

| was very pleased to take part in the FGM Task and Finish Group of the Children
and Young People Scrutiny Committee as this issue has long been a concern of

committee members.

FGM has been illegal in the UK since 1985 with recent legislation in the Female
Genital Mutilation Act 2003.Yet while there has been much good work
undertaken to tackle FGM, the Task and Finish short scrutiny inquiry set out to
ascertain the scale of the problem in Cardiff and to identify how the issue is being
addressed. Our findings concluded that there is much work still to be done, not
least in data collection and in intelligence sharing. We hope that that our report
will highlight the need to provide ongoing support to the agencies involved in

tackling this matter.

| should like to thank Alison Jones, Principal Scrutiny Support Officer for her
invaluable support in this important inquiry and my fellow committee members for

their commitment to this scrutiny.

Chair, FGM Task & Finish Group

1
Page 303




INTRODUCTION

1.

Female Genital Mutilation (FGM) is illegal in the UK. In England, Wales and
Northern Ireland, civil and criminal legislation on FGM is contained in the
Female Genital Mutilation Act 2003 (the act). In Scotland, FGM legislation is
contained in the Prohibition of Female Genital Mutilation (Scotland) Act 2005.
The Female Genital Mutilation Act 2003 was amended by sections 70-75 of
the Serious Crime Act 2015.

The World Health Organisation (WHO) defines FGM as all procedures (not
operations) which involve partial or total removal of the external female
genitalia or injury to the female genital organs whether for cultural or other
non-therapeutic reasons (WHO, 1996). Details of the practice are set out in

the Evidence Section on page 14 below.

During the development of its 2016/17 work programme, the Children &
Young People Scrutiny Committee agreed to undertake a short scrutiny

inquiry into Female Genital Mutilation (FGM). The aim of the Inquiry was to:

Identify the scale of the problem in Cardiff.

¢ Identify options to improve awareness of FGM across professional and
ethnic minority groups.

¢ Improve the training of professionals who may come into contact with
FGM.

e Ascertain what work is being undertaken in the wider community and
schools.

¢ Identify ways to improve the operation of the FGM clinical pathway

including proposals for an all wales FGM clinic.

Improve the collection and robustness of FGM data across Cardiff.

2
Page 304




4. It was agreed that a Task & Finish Group be established to undertake this

inquiry. Members of the Task & Finish Group were:

e Councillor Dianne Rees (Chair)

e Councillor Lynda Thorne

e Councillor Heather Joyce

e Karen DellArmi (Parent/Governor Co-optee)

e Patricia Arlotte (Roman Catholic Co-optee).

5. The Inquiry took place during January and February 2017. The following
report sets out the key findings and conclusions arising from this Inquiry, as

well as a number of recommendations arising from the evidence gathered.

3
Page 305



KEY FINDINGS

Overall, the Inquiry concluded that there had been a lot of work undertaken at

operation level in relation to tackling FGM in Cardiff. However, there were a

number of key issues that Members agreed needed to be addressed. These are

as follows:

Strategic, Joined-Up Working

KF1.

Members were satisfied that systems, processes and procedures were in
place to deal with any FGM disclosures. However, it was not apparent
during the Inquiry that partners were working together strategically. There
did not appear to be a lead agency responsible for FGM, and whilst
Members agreed there were many pockets of proactive, effective working
practices, individually and across some partner organisations, there

appeared to be a lack of coordinated working across all partners.

For example, whilst there was evidence of training, education and
awareness raising within Health, Crown Prosecution Service, BAWSO,
Cardiff Council and South Wales Police, there did not appear to be a
coordinated package that could be used across all these organisations,
delivering a consistent message. In addition, there was no evidence of a
partnership group covering the Cardiff area, to synchronise work, pool

resources, develop strategies and action plans etc.

Data/information in relation to FGM

KF2. During the Inquiry, one of the main issues of concern was the availability

of intelligence. Whilst it was acknowledged that good reporting

mechanisms are in place, lack of data was an issue.

4
Page 306




KF3.

KF4.

Members were unable to ascertain a consistent, coordinated data set on
the numbers of FGM cases, including the type of FGM and an age
breakdown. Members felt that this data was critical in identifying the scale
of the problem within Cardiff, and presented the Task Group with
significant difficulties during their deliberations. In addition, Members
were unable to identify whether numbers reported were duplications or
whether they were old or new cases. This had also been an issue for
community members who had voiced their concerns about the reality of

the problem within Cardiff.

Health provided the Inquiry with the number of FGM cases that had been

referred to the Welsh Government between October and December 2016.
Within Cardiff, 20 cases had been identified, and these had come via the

safeguarding MASH and the All Wales Clinical Pathway. No further

details were available at the time.

The Crown Prosecution Service reported that there was one potential case
of FGM (Type 2) being investigated in Cardiff. No prosecutions had taken

place.

Another issue of concern arising from the Inquiry was that of the transient
population in the area, and the lack of data on population profiles.
Members and witnesses all agreed that there had been issues with
statistics, including census data. It was agreed that local statistics were

needed.

The Crown Prosecution Service (CPS) informed the Inquiry that an FGM
task Group is being set up with the Police and Health to look at data sets
and look at how the agencies can work together to improve data collection
and avoid duplication. The CPS stated that Bristol already have good
systems in place in collecting and reporting FGM cases and they would be

looking at this as part of the Task Group work.

5
Page 307



Challenging Cultural/Belief Conventions

KF5. The Inquiry heard how FGM was very complex and linked intrinsically with
a community’s belief system and culture. Members heard case studies
and anecdotal evidence from professionals and via community meetings
held in Grangetown, which highlighted the difficulties faced by women and

girls within their communities.

The Inquiry identified that currently, The Black Association of Women Step
Out (BAWSO) is a key organisation in working within communities.
BAWSO stated that the focus of their work in this area was under the
wider umbrella of positive parenting, challenging the paradigms within the
community, but not just focusing on FGM. BAWSO stated that newly
arrived community members may not be aware that it is illegal, and those

established communities view it as a manifestation of their wider culture.

KF6. In addition, BAWSO reported that they had encountered different levels of
desire to engage with them. For example, they reported that the
Sudanese community were very open to engaging with them; but they had

encountered difficulties with those from Sierra Leone and the Gambia.

KF7. The Inquiry acknowledged the need to avoid stigmatisation or victimisation
within communities. BAWSO stated that what was most important was that
women did not want to be defined by FGM. It was imperative that a trusting
environment is established and a sensitive approach. It agreed that
communities need to be involved and updated regularly on legislation
relating to FGM, especially those communities that are relatively “new”
within Cardiff, and that community work needs to be bottom up, community

led. Currently, it was agreed that it was more top down.

BAWSO informed the Inquiry that they had been engaged with 788 families
in the past three years. This work ranged from awareness raising to 1-1

support.

6
Page 308



Training

KF8. Members were informed of a wide range of training that had been
undertaken with a range of professionals in Cardiff and Wales. This

included:

e Crown Prosecution Service (CPS) delivering training to Dyfed Powys
Police; CPS lawyers all provided with aide memoirs linking behaviour
and legislation;

e All South Wales Police Officers trained in recognising signs of FGM,;

e FGM training within maternity services were in place;

e A wider ranging training programme in Health planned for DOSH
(Integrated Sexual Health); SARC (Sexual Assault Referral Centre);
Gynaecology; Maternity; and safeguarding. Once this had been
delivered, “train the trainer” sessions would be established.

e Social Services Staff in assessment and safeguarding.

KF9. In addition to other Health training programmes, the Inquiry identified the
need for training for GPs. Whilst it was acknowledged that training would
be rolled out based on areas of higher levels of Black and Minority Ethnic
(BME) communities, it was also imperative to identify and work with GPs in
areas where there were emerging new arrivals in communities (for example,
Llanrumney), to ensure that the message is with GPs within the earliest

timeframe possible.

KF10.Members also highlighted the need for training within schools at both
primary and secondary level. Members felt that FGM training across all
those connected with the school, including attendance officers, youth

workers and at teacher training level should be implemented.

7
Page 309



Awareness Raising/Education

KF11. The Inquiry agreed that there had been a proactive, sustained training and

awareness-raising programme in place over a number of years and this

should be commended. This included:

Awareness raising within the Somali community, where it was reported
that approximately 90% of this community had engaged in some form
of education. The awareness-raising programme included details on
how to report and who to report to.

BAWSO and the NSPCC youth projects in Mary Immaculate and
Fitzalan Schools.

Posters within every GPs surgery in Wales (with NSPCC, Welsh
Government and BAWSO);

“Voices” DVD — used in schools etc;

Work with airports at key times of the year;

Work with Cardiff University medical students to make FGM part of
their studies;

Work with trainee social workers to make FGM part of their studies.

Upcoming work will include:

From 1 April 2017, BAWSO increasing awareness raising work within
schools;

CPS recommending that FGM and other forms of honour-based
violence be included on the national curriculum, which was currently

being reviewed and implemented in 2020.

In addition, BAWSO and the CPS also stated that they would like to have

FGM community champions in place, who would be available to undertake

peer-to-peer work with communities and bring together harder to reach

individuals and groups.

8
Page 310



Reporting FGM Cases

KF12. The Inquiry identified the obligations and routes into reporting FGM (via
the Section 47 pathway), and Members were satisfied that effective

processes and procedures were in place to deal with FGM cases.

The Inquiry concluded that there are systems in place for the reporting /
monitoring of “at risk” families and girls, and should a family (for instance)
take a long “family holiday”, this would be followed up. However, the Task
Group would like to see a further move towards developing a more

proactive, preventative approach to those at risk from FGM.

In addition, Health reported that, within maternity services, a mandatory

question on FGM is asked across all ethnicities.

Protocols/Procedures/Policies

KF13. Much of the work governing FGM was already in place via legislation and
national policy and practice, and Members were satisfied that locally, any
cases of FGM would be dealt with effectively and sympathetically. However,
Members were concerned about ongoing budget / financial pressures that
may affect this. For example, the FGM Pilot Clinic had yet to receive
funding, and BAWSO reported a reduction in charitable funding that would

have a significant impact in relation to the work they do.

KF14. The Inquiry Team were informed by the CPS that the protocol in relation to
FGM was being updated, and the new protocol will have more detailed
requirements, particularly regarding notification; decision-making; and

reporting.

KF15. The Inquiry concluded that there was a need for a clear pathway to be put
in place that could be used to reach out to all professionals, and used

widely as part of the education and awareness raising activities, as well as

9
Page 311



ensuring that the community know where to go to get help, advice or

support.

KF16. The Inquiry Team were also informed that the CPS, as part of its FGM
Task Group work would be to develop a Five Year Strategy covering FGM,

and that an Action Plan would be part of this.
KF17. The Inquiry was also informed of work currently being undertaken between

Swansea Council and BAWSO in addressing FGM. Swansea Council had

supported BAWSO both in terms of partnership working and funding.

All Wales FGM Clinic

KF18. The Inquiry were informed that a dedicated FGM clinic had been approved
to run within the CHAP (Cardiff Health Access Practice) at Cardiff Royal
Infirmary. The Clinic would run once a week on a 12 month trial period,
but, as yet, is not funded. £60,000 was needed for the pilot. The service
would provide physical and psychological help. Members agreed that they
would support the bid and that this will be one of the key

recommendations arising from this Inquiry.

Funding Issues

KF19. Funding for the FGM Clinic had been highlighted as a particular concern
during the Inquiry.

KF20. In addition, funding was an issue for BAWSO. Some of its charitable
funding had come to an end and currently, nobody is funding some of the
proactive work they have undertaken. A lot of what they currently do is
based on the goodwill of volunteers. Lack of funding has affected the

amount of work they are currently able to undertake. Members were

10
Page 312



particularly concerned about how this would affect the work required in

new and emerging communities within Cardiff.

11
Page 313



RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the following recommendations are commended to the

Cabinet and other key partners for consideration. The recommendations should

be reported back to this Scrutiny Committee within 6 months, unless otherwise

stated.

Recommendations to the Cabinet:

R1. Itis recommended that the Council take a lead role in establishing a local
partnership group to address FGM in Cardiff (supported by KF1). This

group should be responsible for the strategic and operational overview of
FGM. This will include:

e Data collection and intelligence gathering (KFs 2-4).

¢ Linking with partners and communities to play a more proactive role in:

@)

o

Community engagement (KFs 5-7).

A coordinated training package across all professionals (KFs 8-
9).

Coordinated Awareness Raising and Education Programme.
approach to professionals; communities affected by FGM,;
wider community generally (KF 11).

Training and awareness raising/ education in all schools,
including teacher training, attendance officers etc. (KFs 10-11).
Development of Protocols and Pathways (KFs 14-15).
Development of an FGM Strategy and Action Plan (KF 16).
Support for the FGM Clinic Trial (KF 18).

Work with partners to explore funding streams for delivering
the above (KFs 19-20).

12
Page 314




e Explore spreading the work amongst partners and other third sector
organisations, to relieve the pressure on BAWSO, both in terms of
financial and time constraints they currently find themselves with
(KF19).

R2. Itis recommended that the Council play a key role in the Crown Prosecution
Service / BAWSO led FGM Task & Finish Group to address improved data
collection/reporting and local intelligence (KFs 2-4); and the FGM Strategy
and Action Plan (KF16).

Recommendation to the Crown Prosecution Service and BAWSO:

R3. The FGM Task & Finish Group report back to this Scrutiny Committee

within 12 months on its findings in relation to the following:

¢ |dentifying, developing and implementing a system for the collection of
FGM data that can be used and shared across all partners. This
should include breaking down the data into type of FGM procedure,

age profiles, ethnic origin, number of re-referrals etc.

e Work across all partners to develop statistics in relation to the local

population, to identify the range of communities in Cardiff.

e Evaluate the approach used in Bristol as a potential benchmark for kick

starting this process.

e Development of an FGM Strategy and Action Plan.
Supported by KFs 2-4; 16

13
Page 315



Recommendation to the Children & Young People Scrutiny Committee:

R4. Itis recommended that this Scrutiny Committee write a letter of support for
the FGM Clinic Pilot, based on the findings from this Inquiry (KF18).

14
Page 316



EVIDENCE

Definition Of FGM

The World Health Organisation (WHO) defines FGM as all procedures (not operations)
which involve partial or total removal of the external female genitalia or injury to the
female genital organs whether for cultural or other non-therapeutic reasons (WHO,
1996).

Types of FGM

FGM (sometimes called Female Circumcision) is a traditional practice, which takes three

main forms:

Type 1 - Circumcision (Sunna)
This is the least severe form of FGM and involves the removal of the hood of the clitoris
preserving the clitoris itself. This type of operation is also known as Sunna, which means

‘tradition’ in Arabic.

Type 2 - Excision (Clitoridectomy)

It involves the partial or total removal of the clitoris together with parts of the whole of the
labia minora (small lips which cover and protect the opening of the vagina and the
urinary opening). After the healing process has taken place, a large scar tissue forms to

cover the upper part of the vulva region.

Type 3 - Infibulation (also called Pharaonic Circumcision)

This is the severest form of FGM. The term ‘infibulation’ is derived from the name given
to the Roman practice of fastening a ‘fibular’ or ‘clasp’ through the large lips of their
wives genitalia in order to prevent them from having illicit sexual intercourse.

In infibulation, the clitoris, the whole of the labia minora and the internal parts of the labia
majora (the outer lips of the genitals, which lubricate the inside of the skin folds to
prevent soreness) are removed. The two sides of the Vulva are then sown together with
silk, catgut sutures, or thorns leaving only a very small opening to allow for the passage

of urine and menstrual flow.

15
Page 317




Type 4 — Unclassified

This includes all other operations on the female genitalia including pricking, piercing, and
stretching of the vulva region, incision of the clitoris and/ or labia, cauterisation by
burning the clitoris and surrounding tissues, incisions to the vaginal wall, scraping

(anqurya cuts) or cutting (gishiri cuts) of the vagina and surrounding tissues.

Legislation Governing FGM

FGM is illegal in the UK. In England, Wales and Northern Ireland, civil and criminal
legislation on FGM is contained in the Female Genital Mutilation Act 2003 (the act). In
Scotland, FGM legislation is contained in the Prohibition of Female Genital Mutilation
(Scotland) Act 2005. The Female Genital Mutilation Act 2003 was amended by sections
70-75 of the Serious Crime Act 2015.

UN Convention of the Rights of Child

Articles 6, 19, 36 and 39 all are relevant to the protection of Children from FGM.

Children Act 2004

Section 11 of the Children Act 2004 places a duty on all professionals “to safeguard and
promote the welfare of children”. This includes councils, schools, the police and health

professionals. All have a role in ensuring that women and girls are protected.

The Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act

This helps all services work together to make sure that children and young people enjoy
healthy, happy lives and from April 2016 it places a duty on everyone to report when

they have concerns that a child might be at risk or experiencing abuse or neglect.

Criminal law in England and Wales

Under section 1 of the Female Genital Mutilation Act 2003, a person is guilty of an FGM
offence if they excise, infibulate or otherwise mutilate the whole or any part of a girl’s or
woman’s labia majora, labia minora or clitoris. To excise is to remove part or all of the

clitoris and the inner labia (lips that surround the vagina), with or without removal of the

16
Page 318



labia majora (larger outer lips). To infibulate is to narrow the vaginal opening by creating

a seal, formed by cutting and repositioning the labia.

Offences of FGM

It is an offence for any person (regardless of their nationality or residence status) to:
e Perform FGM in England and Wales (section 1 of the act).
e Assist a girl to carry out FGM on herself in England and Wales (section 2 of the
act).
e Assist (from England or Wales) a non-UK person to carry out FGM outside the

UK on a UK national or UK resident (section 3 of the act).

If the mutilation takes place in England or Wales, the nationality or residence status of

the victim is irrelevant.

Failing to protect a girl from risk of FGM

If an offence under sections 1, 2 or 3 of the act is committed against a girl under the age
of 16, each person who is responsible for the girl at the time the FGM occurred could be

guilty of an offence under Section 3A of the act.

FGM taking place abroad

It is an offence for a UK national or UK resident (even in countries where FGM is not an
offence) to:
e perform FGM abroad (sections 4 and 1 of the act)
e assist a girl to carry out FGM on herself outside the UK (sections 4 and 2 of the
act)
e assist (from outside the UK) a non-UK person to carry out FGM outside the UK

on a UK national or UK resident (sections 4 and 3 of the act)

An offence of failing to protect a girl from risk of FGM can be committed wholly or partly
outside the UK by a person who is a UK national or UK resident. The extra-territorial

offences of FGM are intended to cover taking a girl abroad to be subjected to FGM.

17
Page 319



Any person found guilty of an offence under sections 1, 2, 3 of the act faces up to 14
years’ imprisonment, a fine or both. Any person found guilty of an offence under section

3A of the act, faces up to 7 years’ imprisonment, a fine or both.

Under provisions of the law which apply generally to criminal offences, it is also an
offence to:

¢ Aid, abet, counsel or procure a person to commit an FGM offence.

e Encourage or assist a person to commit an FGM offence.

e Attempt to commit an FGM offence.

e Conspire to commit an FGM offence.

Any person found guilty of such an offence faces the same maximum penalty for these

offences under the act.

Civil law in England and Wales

Under section 5A and schedule 2 of the act provision is made for FGM protection orders.
An FGM protection order is a civil law measure which provides a means of protecting

actual or potential victims from FGM.

Applications for an FGM protection order can be made to the High Court or family court
in England and Wales with the purpose of protecting a girl or woman against the
commission of a genital mutilation offence or protecting a girl or woman where such an

offence has been committed.

Other legislative aspects

The act also:
e Guarantees lifelong anonymity for victims of FGM (section 4A of the act).
e Places a mandatory duty on health and social care professionals and teachers to
notify the police where they discover FGM has been carried out on a girl under
18 years of age during the course of their work (section 5A of the act).

e Provides for statutory guidance on FGM (section 5C of the act).

18
Page 320



FGM Protection Orders

Female Genital Mutilation (FGM) Protection Orders under the Female Genital Mutilation
Act 2003 as amended by section 73, Serious Crime Act 2015 commence on 17 July
2015. FGM Protection Orders protect girls under 18 years but also vulnerable female

adults over 18 years too.

Examples of the types of orders the court might make are:

» to protect a victim or potential victim from FGM from being taken abroad;

» to order the surrender of passports or any other travel documents, including
the passport/travel documentation of the girl to be protected;

» to prohibit specified persons from entering into any arrangements in the UK
or abroad for FGM to be performed on the person to be protected;

* toinclude terms in the order which relate to the conduct of the respondent(s)
both inside and outside of England and Wales; and

* toinclude terms which cover respondents who are, or may become involved
in other respects (or instead of the original respondents) and who may

commit or attempt to commit FGM against a girl.

Orders may also be made against other people, not named as respondents in the
application, recognising the complexity of the issues and the numbers of people who

might be involved in the wider community.

Breach of an order is a criminal offence, and the respondent may be arrested if the
police believe there is reasonable cause to suspect there is a breach of the order. The
offence of breach of an FGM Protection is subject to a maximum penalty of five years’
imprisonment. As an alternative to prosecution, a breach of an FGM Protection Order
can be dealt with through the civil route as a contempt of court, which is punishable by

up to two years’ imprisonment.

Under the act, the following three categories of person can make an application for a
FGM Protection Order:

+ the person to be protected, without leave of the court;

19
Page 321



* arelevant third party, who can make an application on behalf of a victim or
potential victim, without the leave of the court; and
* any other person on behalf of the person to be protected, as long as they

obtain he court’s permission to make an application.

A court can also make an FGM Protection Order, without application being made to it, in
certain family proceedings. In addition, a criminal court can also make an FGM
Protection Order, without application, in criminal proceedings for a genital mutilation
offence, where the person who would be a respondent to any proceedings for an FGM
protection order is a defendant in the criminal proceedings. An FGM Order can also be
made in such criminal proceedings to protect a girl at risk, whether or not they are the
victim of the offence in relation to the criminal proceedings. For example, the younger
sister of the victim of a genital mutilation offence could also be protected by the court in

criminal proceedings.

The Female Genital Mutilation Protection Orders (Relevant Third Party) Regulations
2015 gives effect to this, enabling local authorities to act as relevant third parties from 17
July 2015. This enables Local Authorities to make an application without first needing to
apply for the leave of the court to do so. This is similar to Forced Marriage Protection
Orders.

All Wales Child Protection Procedures - ALL WALES PROTOCOL 2011

The All Wales Child Protection Procedures are an essential part of safeguarding children
and promoting their welfare. The common standards they provide guide and inform child
protection practice in each of the Local and Regional Safeguarding Children Boards
across Wales. They outline the framework for determining how individual child

protection referrals, actions and plans are made and carried out.

They are based on the principle that the protection of children from harm is the
responsibility of all individuals and agencies working with children and families, and with
adults who may pose a risk to children. Partnership working and communication
between agencies is identified as key in order to identify vulnerable children and to help

keep them safe from harm and abuse.

20
Page 322



The All-Wales Child Protection Procedures are kept up-to-date by the All-Wales Child
Protection Review Group (AWCPPRG). The group has a mandate and representation
from, all of Wales’ Local and Regional Safeguarding Children Boards and partner
agencies. The group also produces supplementary protocols and practice guides, on an

All-Wales basis, and provides a platform for sharing good practice across Wales.

In addition to the main All Wales Child Protection Procedures a number of additional
procedures and protocols have been produced giving advice about procedures to be
undertaken in specific circumstances. These include protocols issued at an all-Wales
level and regional Child Protection Forum protocols. Protocols that have been produced

on an All-Wales basis and include the All Wales protocol Female Genital Mutilation.

The Protocol sets out the procedures and practice guidelines to be used by all

professional in dealing with suspected cases of FGM, in particular that:

¢ All agencies should work with the practicing communities to develop appropriate
education and preventive programmes with a view to eradicating the practice of
FGM.

o All staff that have responsibility for child protection work must be acquainted with
the All Wales Child Protection procedures and with any local preventative

programmes, which exist.

¢ Any information or concern that a child is at risk of, or has undergone FGM must

result in a child protection referral to social services and/or the police.
e FGM places a child at risk of significant harm and will therefore be investigated

(initially) under Section 47 of the Children Act (1989) by Social Services and the

police child protection team.

FGM In Wales

FGM is a traditional practice native to certain regions in Africa — including Somalia,
where 98% of women are affected — the Middle East and South-east Asia. Cardiff

houses one of the highest numbers of people with Somali heritage in the UK. Dr

21
Page 323



Mwenya Chimba, co-chair of the Wales FGM Forum, said more than 600 women are

living with fully or partially removed genitals in Wales.

What Policy And Guidance Is Available

WALES

FGM Safeguarding Protocol — Developed the All Wales Protocol on FGM 2011
Multi-Agency FGM Strategic Leadership Group - the Strategic FGM Leadership
Group which provides oversight and direction to this work in Wales and covers trafficking
and FGM. ltis chaired by KimAnn Williamson (CPS). The Group comprises individuals
from the statutory and third sectors, who lead on specific tasks. The Group has
developed a number of publications, leaflets and initiatives to raise awareness of FGM.
The Group has developed a future work plan, which includes training and awareness

raising.

All Wales FGM Training Panel — this panel is chaired by Dr Heather Payne (Senior
Medical Officer, Welsh Government) and includes Linda Davies (Designated Nurse
Safeguarding Children, Public Health Wales NHS Trust).

CPS / NSPCC Protocol - All police forces in England and Wales have signed up to a
protocol with the Crown Prosecution Service in relation to the investigation and
prosecution of FGM, and joint training on FGM for police officers and CPS investigators,
supported by the College of Policing. The protocol states: “Our priority is creating
systems for tackling FGM and forced marriage which put the victim at the heart of
investigations, empowering them so they feel confident to come forward and supporting
them so they can pursue their complaint fully. We are also continuing with our
programme of working with communities to raise awareness and educate them about
the harm of FGM and forced marriage and will be focusing on early investigations and
the building of good-quality evidence with the CPS, so that all those concerned in the
practices of FGM and forced marriage will know that they can no longer carry out or aid

these shameful practices with impunity”.

22
Page 324



Government statement opposing FGM - This outlines what FGM is, the legislation and
penalties involved, and the help and support available. The statement is often referred to

as a ‘health passport’.

College of Policing APP — National police guidance on FGM has been published by the
College of Policing. The Authorised Professional Practice (APP) is designed to raise
awareness of and demystify the practice of FGM for officers and those they work with so
that it can be more proactively prevented and prosecuted. APP includes guidance on
how officers can spot the signs of FGM; the reasons why it is practised; how it is carried
out; talking to potential victims; using interpreters and the role of the police in tackling
FGM. It gives officers and police staff a scenario to work through which includes FGM
taking place in the UK and examples involving acts taking place outside the UK, carried

out by a UK person.

FGM Safeguarding Pathway and All Wales FGM Clinical Pathway — see attached
appendix 1 & 2.

NATIONAL

Mandatory reporting of female genital mutilation procedural information - This gives
health and social care professionals, teachers and the police information on their
responsibilities under the female genital mutilation (FGM) mandatory reporting duty
which came into force 31 October 2015. It covers: when and how to make a report; next

steps following a report; and failure to comply with the duty.

Ending violence against women and girls (VAWG) strategy - The Home Office
published a strategy for tackling violence against women and girls in November 2010.
Action plans updating the government's work towards this goal are published annually in
March. The latest action plan was published in March 2014 and sets out cross-

government progress.

A call to end violence against women and girls: action plan - (HM Government,
2014).

23
Page 325



Declaration to end FGM - On 6 February 2014 the government published an anti-FGM

declaration setting out practical steps including:

¢ hospitals to provide information on patients who have been subjected to FGM,;

¢ the launch of a community engagement initiative which will involve the voluntary
sector; and

¢ the appointment of a consortium of leading FGM campaigners to deliver a global

awareness campaign.

Multi-agency practice guidelines: Female Genital Mutilation - Guidance to help
frontline professionals in England and Wales to work together to better identify and
protect children and adults at risk of female genital mutilation (FGM). It Outlines the
issues and presents good practice when dealing with victims, and sets out the required
information and multi-agency actions to be taken in all cases. It gives job-specific
guidance for: health, education, police, and children's services, and presents step-by-
step actions, advice on what not to do, a list of points to consider and guidance on the
legal position. Also outlines initiatives to reduce the prevalence of FGM and lists

specialist health services and organisations working on issues around FGM.

Practical toolkit for frontline practitioners - providing information on children
experiencing domestic violence and aiming to help practitioners understand what
legislation and guidance means for them and their work.

Recognising and preventing FGM - (Home Office, 2014)

Black Association Of Women Step Out (BAWSO)

One of the main charities which delivers services around FGM is BAWSO. Established
in 1995, BAWSO is an all Wales, Welsh Government Accredited Support Provider,
delivering specialist services to people from Black and Ethnic Minority (BME)
backgrounds who are affected by domestic abuse and other forms of abuse, including

Female Genital Mutilation, Forced Marriage, Human Trafficking & Prostitution.

BAWSO is at the forefront in the fight to eradicate FGM. It established the FGM Health
and Safeguarding project in 2010 (the Tackling Female Genital Mutilation Initiative

[TFEGMI]) which aims to develop and strengthen community-based preventive work to

24
Page 326



safeguard those at risk. Since the start of the project they have worked with over 2500
families to raise awareness about the issues in order to protect women and girls at risk
and provide support to survivors. The community-based approach has been a success
because the community are the key drivers of change to make Wales an FGM-free

nation. They are involved in the design and delivery of activities.

As part of ongoing work to prevent FGM, they engage with young people and empower
them to raise their voices to spark conversation about FGM related issues. The young
people have developed scripts and performed in plays which condemn the practice, with
support from National Theatre Wales. More recently they produced a leaflet and film for
use to raise awareness in schools through a partnership of NSPCC, BAWSO, Welsh

Government and Burning Red.

The eradication of FGM remains a priority despite funding challenges. More work needs
to be done to safeguard girls at risk, as well as supporting survivors of FGM. Training
was provided to professionals through a funded project, but the funding has now ended

and any further training has to be paid for.

There is an increasing realisation that ending FGM has to be community-led working,
together with a statutory-led response. Community-based organisations working with
local authorities, safeguarding leads and statutory professional should be part of a

comprehensive local response to implement strategies to end FGM. This includes:

e Awareness raising and prevention work

e Supporting engagement and relationships

e Providing advice and consultation

¢ Meeting the mental health needs of women and girls
e Support in accessing specialist support services

e Training professionals

e Developing resources.

25
Page 327



Present Process

The maternity services and Sexual Health clinics provided by the health service in Wales
use the All Wales FGM Clinical Pathway form to capture all the relevant details
regarding FGM, and provide three separate pathways depending on the patient’s

circumstances:

e Pregnancy Pathway
e Paediatric Pathway
e Adult Pathway.

There are approximately 60 cases a year identified through the Clinical Pathway.

Referrals through the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) for children who are at
risk of FGM are captured by the system. The data collected shows that during the past
year 33 children have been referred where there was a suspicion of FGM, with the

following outcome:

¢ One was already a live case
e Four had a strategy discussion / meeting held
e 22 had a wellbeing assessment / initial assessment undertaken

e 6 had no further action taken.

The Department of Health has also developed a FGM Safeguarding pathway (see
Appendix 1).

All referrals should be made to the 101 service who have been provided with the

necessary processed to capture the information and refer the case to the MASH.

The NSPCC also has a dedicated help line for FGM (0800 028 3550).

Training

National Training Framework on violence against women, domestic abuse and

sexual violence - The aim of the National Training Framework is to create a consistent

26
Page 328



and quality assured approach to training on these issues. In order to meet this aim, the
framework incorporates central and localised delivery, which offers national standards of

delivery alongside a flexible approach to local implementation.

A local training needs analysis should be compiled immediately prior to drafting the
training plan. The training needs analysis should consider the training requirements as
outlined within each group of this Framework and map these against any existing
training on offer locally. The training needs assessment should also outline the numbers

of professionals who require training.

Where existing training fulfils only some of the learning outcomes for each group these
courses should be developed to meet the requirements fully. Where existing training is
identified which fully meets the requirements, the training needs assessment should

specify the reach of that training and use this information when developing the training

plan.

The Home Office provides a free e-learning package for professionals who need to find

out more about identifying and responding to FGM.

The Female Genital Mutilation programme (e-FGM) is made up of five 20 to 30
minute e-learning sessions, which are designed to improve the knowledge and
awareness amongst healthcare professionals of some of the issues which FGM has on

women and children. The programme covers the following topics:

* An Introduction to FGM

» Communication Skills for FGM consultations

* Legal and Safeguarding Issues regarding FGM in the UK

* FGM: Issues, presentation and management in children and young women

* FGM: Issues, presentation and management in women and around pregnancy.

The project is supported by a number of key stakeholder organisations. They are: Health
Education England (HEE), Department of Health (DH), Community Practitioners and
health Visitors Association (CPHVA), School and Public Health Nurses Association
(SAPHNA), Royal College of General Practitioners (RCGP), The Royal College of
Midwives (RCM), Royal College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists (RCOG), Royal
College of Paediatrics and Child Health (RCPCH).

27
Page 329



Awareness Raising

Passengers travelling through Cardiff Airport are being given information about
FGM, as part of an awareness campaign organised by the multi-agency Wales FGM
Strategic Leadership Group. The start of the summer holidays is recognised as being a
particularly important time of year for detecting and preventing FGM, as children can be
taken out of the country in order for FGM to be carried out abroad. KimAnn Williamson of
the Crown Prosecution Service, who chairs the Wales FGM Strategic Leadership Group,
said: "FGM can devastate the lives of victims, but too often this is a practice that is
carried out in a secretive environment that makes it difficult to monitor and prevent. In
Wales, all children identified as being at risk of FGM are reported to social services, so

that safeguarding procedures can be put in place”.

The NSPCC in Wales partnered with Welsh Government and the FGM Strategic
Leadership Group to produce advice posters for schools to display ahead of the summer

break.

Statement opposing female genital mutilation - This outlines what FGM is, the
legislation and penalties involved and the help and support available. The statement is

often referred to as a health passport.

Communities Tackling Female Genital Mutilation in the UK — Best practice Guide
The Tackling Female Genital Mutilation Initiative (TFGMI) has supported community
based organisations for six years to actively develop models to tackle and prevent FGM.
Throughout this time, models of best practice have emerged, new approaches have
been developed and key principals for community engagement have been strengthened.
The Best Practice Guide distils the learning of the TFGMI and highlights the importance
of community engagement and outlines ways that organisations and local authorities can
begin to undertake engagement and contribute to changing attitudes and ending the

practice of FGM

28
Page 330



Evidence Gathering Session 1 — 31 January 2017

Discussions at this meeting were undertaken in an informal, semi-structured format. The

notes below highlight some of the key items discussed at the meeting, and have been

set out under some key headings.

Datal/information in relation to FGM

1.

Following introductions, LJ informed the Group that currently, there was one potential
case of FGM (Type 2) being investigated by the CPS. Following an initial
assessment and a peer review which came back with an inconclusive result, the

case was being assessed by the only two experts in the UK on FGM.

The Group asked whether LJ was aware of any other cases with the CPS in Wales —

to which she responded that there was one other case in Swansea.

The Group agreed that the main issue they have in relation to FGM is the availability
of intelligence. Whilst it was acknowledged that good reporting mechanisms are in

place, lack of data is still an issue.

The Group said that, within the area, a very conservative estimate of 600 females
have been affected by FGM.

0 - 14 is the average age range for girls to be “cut”.

Another issue of concern to Members and the Group more widely was that of the
transient population in the area, and the lack of data and population profiles, as

current census data will only drill down to “Black African” and no further.

MH drew the Group’s attention to a quote in the Paving Report considered by the
Children & Young People Scrutiny Committee on the 27 September 2016, where it

was reported that:

29
Page 331



There are approximately 60 cases a year identified through the Clinical Pathway.

Referrals through the MASH for children who are at risk of FGM are captured by the
system, the data collected shows that during the past year 33 children have been

referred where there was a suspicion of FGM, with the following outcome:

One was already a live case
Four had a strategy discussion / meeting held
22 had a wellbeing assessment / initial assessment undertaken

6 had no further action taken.

Protocols / Procedures / Policies

8. LJ stated that the protocol in relation to FGM was being updated, and the new
protocol will have more detailed requirements, particularly regarding notification;

decision-making; and reporting.

9. South Wales Police stated that they were contacted via intelligence; cases reported

direct to SWP; or reports via children’s services, education etc.

Training

10. LJ also updated the Group that the CPS had delivered training to Dyfed Powys
Police; lawyers had been given aide memoirs linking behaviour and legislation; and

took the Group through the changes in legislation since 2004.

11. All South Wales Police Officers are trained in recognising signs of FGM.

12. EB reported that, within health, every service would receive training and awareness
raising in relation to FGM. Her colleague, Linda Hughes-Jones would be in a better
position to report on this. Linda also reported quarterly to Welsh Government, so

would have some data for the Group on this issue.

30
Page 332




Reporting FGM Cases

13.

14.

15.

16.

Children’s Services informed the Group that, if a potential case of FGM is brought to
their attention, a Section 47 would be initiated. NJ also updated the Group on the
training and awareness raising that is ongoing, particularly in the areas of

assessment and safeguarding.

The Group talked through the obligations and routes into reporting FGM, highlighting
the Section 47 pathway and Members were satisfied that effective processes and

procedures were in place to deal with FGM cases.

The Group agreed that there are systems in place for the reporting/monitoring of “at
risk” families and girls, and should a family take (say) a long “family holiday”, this

would be followed up. GPs also have a duty to report any suspicions.

EB reported that, within maternity services, a mandatory question on FGM is asked

across all ethnicities.

Ongoing Issues in relation to FGM

17.

18.

19.

NJ reported that a particular problem is that women (rather than girls) are having

reversal procedures, then finding that they are having it re-done.

Clir Thorne stated that she had chaired a community meeting (with two more
planned) where she had met with five women. She informed the group that she was
surprised to find out that women were primarily responsible for “pushing” FGM within
the community. She was also told, anecdotally, that some GPs are still performing

the procedure.

The Group talked around the issue of the very strong cultural (and sometimes
religious) beliefs around FGM — TG told the group about contact she had had with a
woman, who had shown her letters from her mother, highlighting the kinds of
pressure she felt under not to “let the family down”. The Group also agreed that

there were a wide range of cultural reasons why FGM was prevalent in their society.

31
Page 333



20. A major problem in relation to FGM is getting women to come forward, and therefore

the authorities being made aware of the issue.

Awareness Raising/Education

21.

22.

23.

24.

The Group discussed the awareness raising and training that had taken place. They
agreed that there had been a proactive, sustained training and awareness-raising
programme, particularly within the Somali community, where it was reported that
approximately 90% of this community had engaged in some form of education. The

awareness-raising programme included details on how to report and who to report to.

The aim of the programme is to encourage and promote preventative measures, but

at present, there was no measurable outcome to this work.

The Group highlighted the role of BAWSO and the NSPCC in undertaking the
training, education and awareness raising programmes, and highlighted youth

projects in Mary Immaculate and Fitzalan Schools.

KDA enquired to whether these education and awareness raising would be available
to primary school staff, and was informed that attendance officers for these schools
had been trained in FGM.

Positive Message

25. A key message that Members wanted to pass to the Group was that they wanted to

praise the work that had been done to date and to support this ongoing work.

All Wales FGM Clinic

26.

EB took the Group through the latest position in relation to the bid for an All Wales
FGM Clinic. EB stated that, to date, the Health Board had not accepted the bid for
2017/18 and therefore, the bid was still awaiting funding. EB stressed that the need
for such a facility was critical in high prevalent areas in Cardiff. The Group and
Members of the Task Group all agreed that they would support the bid and that this

will be one of the key recommendations arising from this Inquiry.

32
Page 334



Evidence Gathering Session 2 — 16 February 2017

Discussions at this meeting were undertaken in an informal, semi-structured format. The
notes below highlight some of the key items discussed at the meeting, and have been

set out under some key headings.

Datal/information in relation to FGM

The Group discussed the data provided by Linda Hughes-Jones (UHB) on the number of
FGM cases that had been referred to the Welsh Government between October and
December 2016, which was 40 (of which, half were from Swansea). It was explained
that these cases would have come via the safeguarding MASH and the All Wales

Clinical Pathway.

KAW outlined her role in relation to FGM. As her colleague had stated at the last
meeting, there was very little case work, but this is also the picture nationally. KAW
stated that an FGM task Group is being set up with the Police and Health to look at data
sets and look at how the agencies can work together to improve data collection and
avoid duplication. KAW stated that Bristol already have good systems in place in
collecting and reporting FGM cases and they would be looking at this as part of the Task

Group work.

BAWSO also reported that disclosures are increasing, but this is due to the increased

prominence and profile of FGM.

In relation to data and information, all agreed that there had been issues with statistics,

including census data. It was agreed that local statistics were needed.

Protocols/Procedures/Policies

The Group discussed the Referral Pathway, and the need for a clear pathway to be put
in place, that could be used to reach out to all professionals, and used widely as part of
the education and awareness raising activities, as well as ensuring that the community

know where to go to get help, advice or support.

33
Page 335



KAW stated that another aim for the Violence Against Women T&F group would be to
develop a 5 Year Strategy, and that an Action Plan would be part of this.

PA asked whether there was a pathway/flowchart that shows the “journey” from
reporting an FGM case, and JC responded by stating that FGM was a child

protection/safeguarding issue, and therefore is treated as such.

MC and LE highlighted the work BAWSO are doing in Swansea and that the Council is
actively engaged with BAWSO in terms of partnership working and funding.

Training

EB stated that FGM training within maternity services were in place, and they are

currently planning “train the trainer” sessions.

It was agreed that, currently, there is a gap in health in relation to this issue and
awareness raising and training, but the pathway will greatly assist in this issue. EB
stated that training in the following were being planned — DOSH; SARC; Gynaecology;
Maternity; and Safeguarding. Once this had been delivered, the train the trainer

sessions would be established.

HJ raised the issue of training for GPs. The Group talked around concentrating efforts in
areas of high numbers of BME residents, but it was generally agreed that it was
important to identify and work with more new arrivals in communities, to ensure that the

message is with GPs at the earliest timeframe.

Reporting FGM Cases

In addition, JC reminded the Group that in relation to FGM, everyone is duty bound to

report.

34
Page 336



Ongoing Issues in relation to FGM

LT updated the Group on the latest round of Community meetings that she had
arranged. She told the group that she had met with a group of older Somali women,
who stated that many of them had been subject to the procedure, but it was not done
anymore. LT said that the women were concerned about potential duplicate reporting of
numbers of FGM cases and wanted to know whether the cases reported to Welsh

Government were current or past cases.

MC stated that there were still some parts of the community that still practice FGM and
that BAWSO's role was to offer support. There was no one approach to this, and the
picture is varied across each community. She said that the Sudanese community were
very open to engaging with them; but they had encountered difficulties with those from

Sierra Leone and the Gambia.

The Group enquired whether there was much interaction between the communities, and

MC responded that, at ground level, they did.

The Group went on to explore the issue raised by HJ about the feeling of stigmatisation
or victimisation within communities. MC stated that communities need to be involved

and updated regularly on legislation relating to FGM, especially those communities that
are relatively “new” within Cardiff. MC stated that community work needs to be bottom

up, community led. Currently, it was more top down.

Members asked BAWSO about their work with Swansea, and it was discovered that the
work had originally started in Cardiff in 2010 and replicated in Swansea. BAWSO stated
that the focus of their work in this area was under the wider umbrella of positive
parenting, challenging the paradigms within the community, but not just focusing on
FGM. BAWSO stated that newly arrived community members may not be aware that it
is illegal, and those established communities view it as a manifestation of their wider
culture. What was most important was that women have stated that they do not want to
be defined by FGM.

LE explained that FGM was very complex and linked intrinsically with a community’s
belief system and culture. It was imperative that a trusting environment is established

and a sensitive approach.

35
Page 337



Awareness Raising/Education

KAW and MC highlighted some work she had been involved in — posters within every
GPs surgery in Wales (with NSPCC, Welsh Government and BAWSO); the “Voices”
DVD and showing this in school assemblies etc; working with airports at key times of the
year; working with Cardiff University medical students to make FGM part of their studies;
working with school liaison officers; and working with trainee social workers on this

issue.

Both agreed that they would like to have FGM community champions in place, who
would be available to undertake peer-to-peer work with communities and bring together
harder to reach individuals and groups. BAWSO stated that they think the visibility of the

FGM Clinic will also go some way to address this.

MC took the Group through the work they had done in schools. This had included a lot of
awareness raising activities, using a range of approaches. It is the intention of BAWSO

to undertake this work again from 1 April 2017.

KAW stated that the CPS had recommended that FGM and other forms of honour based
violence be included on the national curriculum, which was currently being reviewed and

implemented in 2020.
BAWSO informed the Group that they had been engaged with 788 families in the past

three years. This work ranged from awareness raising to 1-1 support. It was agreed that

a breakdown of this work would be shared with Members of the T&F Group.

All Wales FGM Clinic

The Group discussed the FGM Clinic, and EB updated the Group that the clinic was
proposed to run once a week on a 12 months trial period, but, as yet, not funded.
£60,000 was needed for the pilot, and the service would provide physical and

psychological help.

36
Page 338



Funding Issues

Funding was an issue for BAWSO. Funding had come to an end and currently, nobody
is funding some of the proactive work they have undertaken. A lot of what they currently
do is based on the goodwill of volunteers. Lack of funding has affected the amount of

work they are currently able to undertake.

37
Page 339



INQUIRY METHODOLOGY

M1. The Children & Young People Scrutiny Committee applies a project

management approach to its inquiries; including mechanisms to

consistently prioritise topics suggested for scrutiny, scoping reports and

project plans. The aim of these is to ensure there is a dialogue with the

services involved in the scrutiny process with the ultimate aim of improving

overall service delivery and enabling effective scrutiny.

M2. The process for the Inquiry was agreed via a Scoping Report agreed by

Members. The key milestones were as follows:

Meeting 1

Context briefing
e Agree the scope of Inquiry, research and witnesses.

e Review Paving Report considered by C&YP Scrutiny Committee which
provides background context to the main issues.

Meeting 2

Evidence Gathering Session — meeting with witnesses:

DI Cath Cooke (SWP);

DS Tessa Gould (SWP);

Leanne Jonathan (CPS); Emily Brace
(FGM Clinical Lead, Maternity);
Natasha James (CCC, Safeguarding).

Meeting 3

Evidence Gathering Session — meeting with witnesses:

Emily Brace (FGM Clinical Lead, Maternity);
Jan Coles (CCC, CSE Lead Manager);
Mwenya Chimba (BAWSO);

Loyce Eades (BAWSO);

KimAnn Wiliamson (CPS).

Meeting 4

Review Meeting

e To review evidence received to date and any written evidence.

e Consider content, findings, conclusions & recommendations for the draft
report.

Meeting 5
Draft report

Key findings and Recommendations

Members to consider draft report, including agreeing key findings and
recommendations.

Sign Off.

38
Page 340




LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in
this report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal
implications. However, legal implications may arise if and when the
matters under review are implemented with or without modification. Any
report with recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet / Council
will set out any legal implications arising from those recommendations. All
decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be within the legal
power of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement imposed
by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person exercising powers
on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the
procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. standing orders and
financial regulations; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly
motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its

taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in
this report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial
implications at this stage in relation to any of the work programme.
However, financial implications may arise if and when the matters under

review are implemented with or without any modifications.

39
Page 341




CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
TERMS OF REFERENCE

The role of the Committee is to scrutinise, measure and actively promote
improvement in the Council’s performance in the provision of services and
compliance with Council policies, aims and objectives in the area of children and

young people, including:

e School Improvement

e Schools Organisation

e School Support Services

e Education Welfare & Inclusion

e Early Years Development

e Special Educational Needs

e Governor Services

e Children’s Social Services

e Children & Young Peoples Partnership
e Youth Services and Justice

e Play Services.

To assess the impact of partnerships with, and resources and services provided
by, external organisations including the Welsh Government, Welsh Government
Sponsored Public Bodies, joint local government services and quasi-
departmental non-government bodies on the effectiveness of Council service

delivery.

To report to an appropriate Cabinet or Council meeting on its findings and to
make recommendations on measures, which may enhance Council performance

and service delivery in this area.

40
Page 342




Agenda Item 10

CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CHILDREN and YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

7 March 2017

School Term Time - Report of Committee’s Task & Finish Group

Reason for the Report

1. . This report enables the Committee to approve the draft report of this

Committee’s Task & Finish Group, copy attached at Appendix A.

Background

2. Atits meeting in September 2016 the Committee agreed to request from
Council on 28t July 2016 to undertake a Task & Finish group to investigate
‘School Terms Times. The Committee agreed the Motion as agreed at Council

on 28 July as the Terms of Reference for the task group:

o To undertake an inquiry into amending school term times with a view to
shortening the summer break in order to create an additional week’s

holiday elsewhere during the school calendar.

3. Members of the Task & Finish group were:
e Councillor Richard Cook (Chair)

e Councillor Jim Murphy

e Councillor Lynda Thorne
e Councillor Jo Boyle

e Councillor Paul Chaundy
e Councillor lona Gordon

e Mss Carol Cobert, Church in Wales Co-optee member.

Page 343



The members considered that they were unable to provide any advice or
recommendations to Cabinet without seeking the gauging the views of
Cardiff's Schools Chair’s of Governors and Head Teachers on the potential

change of term times.

The task group members, to identify appropriate findings for the Inquiry and its

recommendations, used evidence received throughout the inquiry and from the
Questionnaire sent to all Cardiff's Maintained School’'s Chair of Governors and

Head Teachers.

Way Forward

6

The draft report of the Task & Finish Group, is attached at Appendix A.
Members’ attention is particularly drawn to the Recommendations section

(page 16).

Members may wish to consider the report, make any amendments and agree

whether to approve the report to be considered by the Cabinet.

Legal Implications

The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not making policy decisions. As the recommendations in this
report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal
implications. However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters
under review are implemented with or without any modifications. Any report
with recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out
any legal implications arising from those recommendations. All decisions
taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be within the legal powers of the
Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement imposed by law; (c) be
within the powers of the body or person exercising powers on behalf of the
Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural requirements

imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and

Page 344



properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the
Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in

all the circumstances.

Financial Implications

9 The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not making policy decisions. As the recommendations in this
report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial
implications at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However,
financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are
implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with
recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any

financial implications arising from those recommendations.

RECOMMENDATIONS
The Committee is recommended to:

e Consider the draft report of the Task and Finish Group, copy attached at
Appendix A.
e Endorse the report, subject to any comments the Committee wish to make, for

submission to the Cabinet.

Davina Fiore
Director of Governance and Legal Services and Monitoring Officer
28 February 2017

Page 345



This page is intentionally left blank



scrutiny

A Report of the:
Children & Young People Scrutiny Committee

School Term Times

March 2017
'—\\’ r&
4
CARDIFF
CAERDYDD The City and County of Cardiff

Page 347



CONTENTS

CONTENTS. ...

CHAIR'S FOREWORD........cccoiiiiinerre s

TERMS OF REFERENCE ........cccooiitrrntrrnre e

1030 1 I =

WELSH GOVERNMENT CONSULTATION.......ccccceriiiiinnnnnenns

ENGLISH AUTHORITIES.........ccoieirierre e ensenns e

NEWPORT CITY COUNCIL INSET DAYS .........ccitmemmnmermmsineenas

GENERAL NUT COMMENTS. ........ocooiiinrniinnres st smne e

EVIDENCE REVIEW ...ttt sssas s atiisss s sssss s s snnsns

SURVEY OUTCOME..cc.....cieiiiinnnnnrrrrnssins e snnsssssss s sssnsse s

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS........ccoeccsiueeennnee e nsssessssne s

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS .........ccoiiitumrnnnnnnnsnn s snsssssssasnenans

RECOMMENDATIONS ....ccoorirr e

Background information - Survey responses

Page 348




i\

Councillor Richard Cook
Chair, Children & Young People Scrutiny Committee

X

Page 349


http://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=119

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Council at its meeting on 28 July 2016 debated a motion, proposed by Clir Ed
Bridges and seconded by Bill Kelloway, on School Holidays. Following the debate
Council approved the Motion following an amendment, proposed by Clir Weaver and

seconded by ClIr Mitchell. Motion 1 as amended was carried as follows:
The Council notes:

+ The disproportionately expensive cost of holidays during the traditional school

holiday period, and the impact these costs have on families in our city.

« That families want to observe designated school holiday periods, but that the
excessive cost of taking breaks during these periods can prove prohibitive —
meaning families often have to choose between taking no holiday at all, or taking

pupils out of school during term time.

* Moves by other councils in the UK to examine existing school term
arrangements with' a view to shortening the summer break in order to create an
additional week’s holiday elsewhere during the school calendar when families

can take holidays. at a cheaper rate.

« The Councilresolves to ask the Members of the Children & Young People
Scrutiny. Committee to consider, as part of their future work planning, whether

they wish to undertake a detailed analysis of the issue.

The Children & Young People Scrutiny Committee agreed at its meeting on 27th
September to undertake an inquiry into amending school term times in line with the
request by Council on 28th July. The first meeting of the task group was held on 14th
November 2016.

Members of the Task Group agreed that prior to providing any response to the

Cabinet, it would be prudent to seek the views of Head Teachers, Teachers, and

School Governing Bodies, firstly on whether or not to investigate the possibility of

Page 350



amending school term dates and then to provide a robust evidence base on which to

consider their decision.

Members of the Task & Finish Group were:
e Councillor Richard Cook
e Councillor Jim Murphy
e Councillor Lynda Thorne (Chair)
e Councillor Joe Boyle
e Councillor Paul Chaundy
e Councillor lona Gordon
e Ms. Carol Cobert, Church in Wales Co-Optee.

Page 351



CONTEXT

. Section 42 of the Education (Wales) Act 2014 (the 2014 Act) made changes
to term date setting for maintained schools in Wales by inserting new sections
32A — 32c into the 2002 Act. As a result, local authorities retain the right to set
term dates for community, voluntary controlled, and community special and
maintained nursery schools. Also relevant governing bodies retain the right to
set term dates for their schools. A local Authority is under a duty to co-operate
and co-ordinate with each relevant governing body in its area and every other
local authority in Wales when setting term dates so that those dates are the
same or as similar as can be. Similarly a relevant governing body is under a
duty to co-ordinate and co-operate with every other relevant governing body
in its local authority area and the local authority in whose area it is situated
when setting term dates so that those dates are the same or similar as can
be.

. If despite efforts, term dates are not agreed the section 32B(1) of the 2002 Act
gives Welsh Ministers the power to direct local authorities and relevant
governing bodies on what their term dates must:be.

. Local authorities are required to inform the Welsh Minister of the term dates
set for all maintained-schools within their respective areas by the final working
day of August. Notification of their 2017/18 term dates was submitted by all 22
local authorities by 28 August 2015.

. The term dates notified by local authorities fell into two groups. Group A
comprised of dates agreed by 16 Local Authorities and Group B comprised of
the other six Local Authorities, which included five Authorities in North Wales
and Powys. As a result the Welsh Ministers found it necessary to consider
using their powers to direct Local Authorities and relevant governing bodies
what term dates must be so that term dates are harmonised across Wales.

WELSH GOVERNMENT CONSULTATION

. The Welsh Misters carried out a 12 week consultation from the 9 November

2015 to 1 February 2016 in respect of the harmonising school term dates for
all maintained schools in Wales for the school year 2017/18. Seeking views
on the term dates that Welsh Ministers proposed to set for all maintained

Page 352



schools in Wales for 2017/18 and draft Direction. The dates consulted on
were:

First day of the Monday 4 September 2017

year

Autumn half term Monday 30 October 2017 to Friday 3
holiday November 2017

Christmas Holiday | Monday 25 December 2017 to Friday 5 January 2018

Spring half Term Monday 19 February 2018 to Friday 23 February 2018

Easter Holiday Friday 30 March 2018 to Friday 13 April 2018

Summer half term | Monday 28 May 2018 to Friday 1 June 2018

Final day of school | Tuesday 24 July 2018

6. A total of 55 responses were received, only nine of which were from local
authorities, although it can be assumed that had all 22 local authorities
responded their responses would be in line with the naotification they originally
submitted. Cardiff Council did not respond to the consultation.

7. However, it should be noted that Anglesey local authority responded that the
authority neither agreed nor disagreed with the proposed dates, even though
the authority previously notified the Welsh Government that it proposed to set
term dates in Group A, suggesting that the local authority had changed its
position.

8. In deciding whether to direct what term dates must be for 2017/18, The
Minister has taken into account the notifications submitted by all 22 local
authorities and information from 127 Voluntary Aided (VA) and Foundation
schools. They retain responsibility for setting term dates and the Minister is
satisfied they have undertaken significant work to ensure dates are as similar
as possible.

Page 353



9. The Minister was also mindful that due to their hard work in co-operating they
were able to ensure that three sets of school holidays are the same across
Wales, and has noted that apart from Anglesey - the two sets of term dates
selected by local authorities and VA and foundation schools fall into a clear
geographical spread between the South Wales authorities, and the North
Wales authorities and Powys, and as such considered that this would reduce
any impact on parents in terms of childcare.

10. There were however some differences across the two groupings, which can
be seen in the tables below:

e Group A - Blaenau Gwent, Bridgend, Caerphilly, Cardiff, Carmarthenshire,
Ceredigion, Monmouthshire, Neath Port Talbot, Merthyr Tydfil, Newport,
Pembrokeshire, Rhondda Cynon Taff, Swansea, Torfaen, Vale of
Glamorgan and Isle of Anglesey along with 90 voluntary aided and
foundation schools which aligned with their respective local authorities
within Group A.

First day of school year: Monday 4 September 2017.

Autumn half term: Monday 30 October 2017 - Friday 3 November 2017.
Christmas holiday: Monday 25 December 2017 - Friday 5 January 2018.
Spring half term: Monday 19 February 2018 - Friday 23 February 2018.

Easter holiday: Friday 30 March 2018 - Friday 13 April 2018.

Summer half term: Monday 28 May 2018 - Friday 1 June 2018.

Last day of school: Tuesday 24 July 2018.

. Group B — Conwy, Denbighshire, Flintshire, Gwynedd, Powys, Wrexham
and 35 VA and foundation schools which aligned with their respective local
authority.

First day of school year: Friday 1 September 2017.

Autumn half term: Monday 30 October 2017 — Friday 3 November 2017.
Christmas holiday: Monday 25 December 2017 - Friday 5 January 2018.
Spring half term: Monday 12 February 2018 - Friday 16 February 2018.
Easter holiday: Monday 26 March 2018 - Friday 6 April 2018.

Summer half term: Monday 28 May 2018 - Friday 1 June 2018.

Last day of school: Friday 20 July 2018.

11.The Minister decided not to use powers to direct local authorities and the
governing bodies of Voluntary Aided and Foundation schools what term dates

must be.

12.The Minister’s expectation was that local authorities and VA and foundation
schools set their term dates for 2017/18 in line with those they originally

Page 354



notified to the Welsh Government. The Minister therefore expected Anglesey
to review their dates in view of their consultation response and with a view to
aligning with its neighboring authorities in Group B.

13.The Minister’s decision not to issue a direction on term dates for 2017/18 will
not impact on future term date setting arrangements. Local Authorities and
relevant schools remain under a statutory duty to co-ordinate and co-operate
which each other to ensure that term dates are the same or as similar as
possible for 2018/19. The Minister wrote to Local Authority’s and schools
reminding them to submit notifications of the term dates they propose to set
for 2018/19 to the Welsh Government by the last working day of August 2016.

ENGLISH LOCAL AUTHORITIES

14. Section 32 of the Education Act 2002, states that, a Council has a duty to set
school terms and holiday dates for community, voluntary controlled,
community special schools and maintained nurseries, in its area. Governing
Bodies set the dates for voluntary aided schools and Academy trusts for
academies and free schools.

15.In previous years, the Local Government Association has coordinated the
preparation of a standard school year draft for each year. However, the LGA
has decided to stop coordinating the development of draft models for standard
school year.

16. English Local Authorities now have to co-ordinate their term dates across their
schools-and with neighbouring local authorities. A number have proposed
changing the length of the summer break, including

Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council - Barnsley Metropolitan Borough
Council agreed that the Borough’s term times and holiday dates for 2017 to
2018, will see a shorter summer break and a two-week break at October half-
term. This follows consultation with neighbouring South Yorkshire authorities,
and trade union/teacher associations as well as further feedback and
comments received from head teachers. Following the Call-in period
questions were raised about the consultation exercise. Due to the different
views of stakeholders, the Council decided to conduct a wider public
consultation during 2017/18 on proposals for any future changes. In the
meantime the Council will maintain the standard pattern of school holidays.

Brighton & Hove Council - The term dates for schools will include an
extended autumn half term in the academic year 2017/ 18. The first extended

Page 355



autumn half term will run from 16 October to 27 October 2017. The same
holiday pattern is planned for the 2018 to 2019 school year. The pilot
arrangements and changes will be reviewed.

Kent County Council — to undertake further consultation on elongating the
half term breaks and shorten the summer breaks for 2018/19 and 2019/20.

Lincolnshire — Tall Oaks Academy Trust — Two schools have altered the
structure of their year to create additional weeks of holiday in term time. In
2015 they adopted a four-week summer holiday which allowed them to add
extra weeks holidays to the school’s terms in September and November and
also two weeks in May.

NEWPORT CITY COUNCIL - INSET DAYS

17.Eveswell Primary School’s Governing Body has agreed to coordinate all 5
inset days into one week in June (adding an extra week to the Whitsun half
term break). This allows parents to book cheaper holidays and therefore
holidays will not affect attendance at other times in the year.

GENERAL NUT COMMENTS

18.Some MPs and commentators have suggested that the school summer break
(usually of five-six weeks) is too long. Yet children need time to re-charge
their batteries, play and spend time with their families. The summer break is
also essential for the completion of larger building and maintenance projects,
including removal of asbestos, which for health and safety reasons cannot
take place during term time.

19.In fact schools in Britain have shorter summer holidays than many other
countries. The summer breaks is eight weeks long in Belgium, France and
Norway; nine weeks in Canada; ten weeks in Finland, Hong Kong, Ireland,
Poland and Sweden; 11 weeks in Iceland and 12 weeks in the USA. The
summer break in Finland is four weeks’ longer than that in England and
Wales, yet the country’s education system is considered to be among the best
in the world. Behind Mexico the UK has the least number of public holidays of
any nation in the world.

Page 356



11

20. Private schools in the UK have longer summer holidays yet, there is no
suggestion that this is disadvantageous for their pupils.

21.Some have argued that a six-week summer break is inconvenient for parents,
but the solution is not longer time spent in school but better holiday provision
for children.

22.Compressing the summer break into four weeks, as some have suggested,
would cause problems for millions of families scrambling to book holidays.
There would be even higher prices at peak periods and a greater likelihood
that parents would simply take their children out of school during term time.

23.In Wales, responsibility for the setting of school holidays will, as a result of the
Education (Wales) Bill, be devolved to the Welsh Government.. The
Education Minister in Wales has stated that there are no plans to change the
existing structure.

EVIDENCE REVIEW

24. The Committee agreed at its meeting on 27 September to undertake an
inquiry into amending School term Times in line with the request by Council
on 28 July. The'first meeting of the task group was held on 14 November
2016, and in attendance were Richard Cook, Joe Boyle, Lynda Thorne,
Heather Joyce, Jim Murphy and Carol Cobert.

25.The Members agreed that Clir Lynda Thorne would be Chair for this Task &
Finish group inquiry. Members considered that the key issue for Members to
agree at this meeting was whether the group can clearly work towards
whether they wish to undertake a detailed analysis of the issue.

26. A representative from the Education and Lifelong Learning Directorate stated
that any change to Cardiff's Schools term time dates will require significant
consultation across the whole of Cardiff, and any decision would have to have
agreement across all school, other bordering local authorities and Consortium
Local Authorities. Finally, should Cardiff Council wish to implement their own
term time dates then this would have to be approved by the Welsh
Government.

27.Members reflected on the information provided, and felt that they were unable

to provide a full and detailed response to Cabinet. Members commented that
prior to providing any response to the Cabinet, it would be prudent to seek the

Page 357



views of Head Teachers, Teachers, and School Governor Bodies on whether
or not to investigate the possibility of amending school term dates to provide a
robust evidence base for their consideration.

28.The Members agreed to undertake a survey of head teachers, teachers, and
school governor bodies to canvas their views on the potential for a change in
the school term dates. The output of these views could then be used by the
Task Group to, agree a way forward for this investigation and form a basis of
the Committee’s recommendations to Cabinet.

29.Members identified a number of questions, which they felt would provide them
with sufficient evidence to form an opinion on their way forward with the
investigation.

The questions that were agreed were:

1)

2)

Do you wish for the Council’s Cabinet to seek Welsh Government
approval to change the School Term time dates to shorten the summer
break in order to create-an additional week’s holiday elsewhere during
the school calendar...... YES / NO.

Which of these options do you consider would best achieve a change
in term dates to reduce the summer term holiday to 5 weeks, choose
all that you feel apply.

Move one weeks summer holiday to the Christmas Holiday.....YES/NO
Move one weeks summer holiday to Autumn Half term.....YES/NO
Move one weeks summer holiday to Spring Half term.....YES/NO
Move one weeks summer holiday to summer half term.....YES/NO

Do you wish for the Council’s Cabinet to agree to consider reorganising
Schools Inset Days so that pupils do not have to attend school on Eid
alAdha and Diwali YES /NO

30. The questionnaire was sent to all to head teachers, and the school governor
body to respond, Welsh versions of the letter and survey form were also sent
to all schools.

12

Page 358



SURVEY OUTCOME

31.The survey was open for responses from the 13 January 2017 to the 20
February 2017. A total of 72 responses were received and the resultant
analysis of all returned survey forms was:

1) Do you wish for the Council’s Cabinet to seek Welsh Government
approval to change the School Term time dates to shorten the summer
break in order to create an additional week’s holiday elsewhere during
the school calendar.

YES
NO.

Overall view

2) Which of these options do you consider would best achieve a change
in term dates to reduce the summer term holiday to 5 weeks, choose
all that you feel apply.

a) Move one weeks summer holiday to the Christmas Holiday
YES
NO

b) Move one weeks summer holiday to Autumn Half term
YES
NO

Page 359



c) Move one weeks Summer holiday to Spring Half term
YES
NO

d) Move one weeks Summer holiday to summer half term
YES
NO

Options

36.11%

m Christmas = Autumn = Spring = Summer

t to agree to consider reorganising

2) Do you wish for the Coun
ils do not have to attend school on Eid

Schools Inset so that p
al-Adha
YES

o \

Change Inset Days

Yes, 15

No, 57

14

Page 360



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend
but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to
consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications at this stage in
relation to any of the work programme. However, financial implications. may arise if
and when the matters under review are implemented with or without any

modifications.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend
but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to
consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications. However, legal
implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented with or
without modification. Any report with.recommendations for decision that goes to
Cabinet / Council will set out any legal implications arising from those
recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be
within.the legal power of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement
imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person exercising powers on
behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural
requirements imposed by the Council e.g. standing orders and financial regulations;
(e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having
regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and

proper in all the circumstances.

15

Page 361



RECOMMENDATION TO CABINET

RECOMMENDATION TO CABINET

The Committee recommends:

That Cabinet considers the overall results from the responses received from
Cardiff's Schools and :

e Decides whether it should undertake formal consultation with the view
to seeking the Welsh Government’s approval to change the School
Term Dates for Cardiff's Schools .

e Inform Schools Governing Bodies that they may wish to amend their
Inset days to link with Eid al-Adha and Diwali.

16

Page 362



Agenda Item 11

CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEPOLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:
7 March 2017

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:
ANNUAL REPORT 2016 - 17

Background

1. The Council’s Constitution requires all Scrutiny Committees to ‘report annually to
the Council on their workings and make recommendations for future work

programmes and amended working methods if appropriate’.

2. A copy of the Scrutiny Committee’s draft Annual Report 2016-17 is attached at
Appendix A. This report outlines the Committee’s main activities from June 2016
to March 2017. Wherever possible the report identifies the impact that the
Committee has had, in terms of the Cabinet’s responses to the Committee’s
comments and recommendations. Where responses on specific topics have not
yet been received, these will be added to the Report prior to it being laid before

Council if possible.
Way Forward

3. The Committee’s Principal Scrutiny Officer will present the draft report at the
meeting, and Members will discuss and agree any changes that Members feel
need to be made. The Scrutiny Officer will then make any required amendments,
and send the agreed Annual Report for presentation by the Committee Chair at

March 2017’s Full Council meeting..

Page 363



Legal Implications

4. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this
report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications.
However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are
implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations
for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising
from those recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council
must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural
requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person
exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with
the procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure
Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken
having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be

reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.
Financial Implications

5. There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.

RECOMMENDATION

The Committee is recommended to
consider, if necessary amend, and approve the attached draft Annual Report
2016-17 to be laid before Council.

DAVINA FIORE
Director of Governance and Legal Services and Monitoring Officer

1 March 2017

Page 364



A Report of:

Children & Young People Scrutiny
Committee

Annual Report 2016 — 2017
March 2017

N\
N

CARDIFF
CAERDYDD

2\

The City and County of Cardiff

Page 365



CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

7 L

Councillor Richard Cook
(Chairperson)

RS

. Councillor lona Gordo

5

Councillor Joe Boyle

Y

ouncillor Heather Joybe

RGOS

-- St - KRR
Mrs Patricia Arlotte Carol Cobert Karen Dell’Armi Mrs Hayley Smit
Roman Catholic Church in Wales Parent Governor Parent Governor
Representative Representative Representative Representative

Page 366


http://www.cardiff.gov.uk/content.asp?nav=2872,4274,4280&parent_directory_id=2865&id=1195&Language=
http://www.cardiff.gov.uk/content.asp?nav=2872,4274,4280&parent_directory_id=2865&id=1205&Language=
http://www.cardiff.gov.uk/content.asp?nav=2872,4274,4280&parent_directory_id=2865&id=6973&Language=
http://www.cardiff.gov.uk/content.asp?nav=2872,4274,4280&parent_directory_id=2865&id=1212&Language=

Page 367



Councillor Richard Cook
Chairperson of the Children & Young People Scrutiny Committee
March 2017

Page 368



INTRODUCTION

The Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee plays an important role in
assessing service performance and informing service and policy development
across a range of Council services, including all aspects of Education, Social Care
for Children, Children’s Play and the Youth Service.

This report presents the Committee’s main activities during 2016-17 and uses
where ever possible the National Welsh Characteristics of Good Scrutiny to

ensure that there are:

e Better outcomes - Democratic accountability drives improvement in public
service.

e Better decisions - Democratic decision making is accountable, inclusive and
robust.

e Better engagement — The public is engaged in democratic debate about

current and future delivery of public services.

Between May 2016 and February 2017 the Committee Members have undertaken
training in performance information and budgeting, and visited front line services.
The Committee has scrutinised a wide range of topics contributing to the
development and improvement of services for children and young people, a list of

which is set out below under the following headings:

¢ Inquiries — Where the Committee has undertaken an examination of a topic
over a period of time, resulting in a formal report to the Cabinet. The

Committee has also undertaken a number of short one day investigations.

e Policy Development — Where the Committee has contributed to the
Council’s policy development processes by considering draft policy

documents.

e Pre-decision - Where the Committee has evaluated and commented on
policy proposals before they go to the Cabinet, giving the Cabinet the

opportunity to know Scrutiny Members’ views prior to making their decision.

Page 369



Monitoring - Where the Committee has undertaken monitoring of the
Council’s performance and progress in implementing actions previously
agreed. The Committee has also set up two Monitoring Panels, one for

Budget monitoring and the other for Performance monitoring

Call-In - Where a Member has invoked the Call-in procedure under the
Council’s constitution, to review a Cabinet decision prior to its

implementation.

Inquiries

Child Health and Disability — Progress Report

Child Sexual Exploitation - Cabinet Response
Effectiveness of School Governors — Progress Report
School Term Times - Inquiry

Female Genital Mutilation - Inquiry

Committee Panels

®,

% Budget Monitoring

Policy Development

>

0

*,

X/
L X4
7
°

X/
°e

Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014
Scrutiny of Central South Education Consortium — Joint working
Schools Admission Policy

Welsh in Education Strategy

Pre-decision Scrutiny

3
<
<
o
o

X/
L X4

2017-18 Budget Proposals

Corporate Plan 2017- 2019

Cardiff 2020 Strategy — Aiming for Excellence
Specialist Provision for Primary Aged Pupils
Families First transitions arrangements

Direct Payments

Performance Monitoring

Page 30



% ESTYN Inspection monitoring

% Children’s Services — Quarterly Performance Monitoring

¢ Education and Lifelong Learning — Schools Annual Report 2015/16 and
quarterly performance reports

% Central South Education Consortium — Estyn Report update & Consortium’s
contribution to raising standards in Cardiff's Schools

% Safeguarding Board Annual report - Primary Aged Pupils with Speech and

Language Difficulties and with Behavioural, Emotional and Social Difficulties

Member Briefings

% Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS)
“* Youth Service

®,

«» Maintenance issues at Cardiff's Schools

Call-in

% School Catchment Area Consultation — Cabinet Decision CAB/15/84
Public Voice

“+ Specialist Provision for Primary Aged Pupils with Speech and Language

Difficulties and with behavioural Emotional and Social Difficulties

The Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee has held 10 full Committee
meetings, and one joint meeting with Community and Adult Services Scrutiny
Committee since May 2016. As a result of the consideration of over 46 reports,
covering policy development, pre-decision scrutiny, monitoring progress and
service area performance, the Scrutiny Committee Chairperson sent 35 letters to
the Cabinet and officers, which included requests for additional information,

comments, and observations on items considered at the Committee Meetings.

Also as a result of these meetings the Committee agreed to write to the relevant
Cabinet Member identifying 11 recommendations for the Cabinet and officers to
consider. The Committee received timely responses from the Cabinet to all letters

that requested a response. In addition officers have provided information where

Page 371



requested and agreed to amend future reports in response to the Committee’s

requests.

Summary for this Administration 2012 - 2017

During the last 5 years, this Committee has held 58 full Committee meetings,
including joint meeting with Community and Adult Services Scrutiny Committee.
As a result of the consideration of over 190 reports, covering policy development,
pre-decision scrutiny, monitoring progress and service area performance, the
Scrutiny Committee Chairperson sent 134 letters to the Cabinet and officers,

which included requests for additional information, comments, and observations.

Also resulting from the consideration of these issues at meetings of the
Committee, Members agreed to write to the relevant Cabinet Member identifying
53 specific recommendations for the Cabinet and officers to consider. The
Committee received timely responses from the Cabinet to all letters that requested
a response. In addition, officers have provided information where requested and
agreed to amend future reports in response to the Committee’s requests. The
Committee also undertook up to 18 separate inquiries and held five special call-in

Committee meetings.

Page /2



PUBLIC QUESTIONS TO SCRUTINY — BETTER
ENGAGEMENT

The Council’s five scrutiny committees regularly invite citizens and representatives
of community and third sector organisations to provide evidence at committee
meetings and Task & Finish inquiries. During 2016/17, this Committee has
received advice, comments and concerns from numerous people who have either

been invited or requested attendance at Committee.

In May 2016, the Chair of the Committee received correspondence from a number
of citizens, who requested the opportunity to address the Committee. They wish
to present their views, comments and advice to Committee on proposals to review
the provision of Specialist Provision for Primary Aged Pupils with Speech and
Language Difficulties, and with Behavioural, Emotional and Social Difficulties. In
addition they wanted the Members to be aware of the impact they feel the closure
of Meadowbank would have on the lives of children with a Speech and Language
Impairment in Cardiff who receive at first hand the experience of the staff, pupils

and the environment in which they work in.

The Chair agreed to invite these members of the public to address the Committee.
A copy of the documentation, which some citizens had sent to Scrutiny Services

for Member’s consideration, was also circulated prior to the meeting.

The Committee heard some very passionate comments about the education and
support provided by the school, and how these proposals could impact on the
future outcome of pupils with speech and language difficulties and with
behavioural emotional and social difficulties. The Committee was fully aware that
the consultation period had ended, however having read and considered the
information in the Cabinet report and reflected on the information provided by the
parents, staff and governors the Members agreed to provide the Cabinet with its
comments, concern and recommendations in respect of the policy and service

development proposed in the Cabinet report.

Page 373



The Cabinet subsequently resolved that the Director of Education and Lifelong

Learning, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Education be authorised to:

e Carry out a further review of speech and language support in Cardiff with
the aim of bringing forward revised proposals;

e Undertake further engagement with schools and other stakeholders in
relation to early intervention for children with behavioural emotional and
social needs;

e Work with the governing bodies of Meadowbank and Allensbank Schools to
ensure the needs of children with speech and language needs placed at the

schools can continue to be met effectively, pending any revised proposals.

The Cabinet subsequently considered a report on School Organisation
Planning: Specialist provision for primary aged pupils with Speech and
Language Difficulties and with Behavioural Emotional and Social Difficulties at
its meeting on 14 July 2016 and RESOLVED,; that the Director of Education and
Lifelong Learning, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Education be

authorised to;

e Carry out a further review of speech and language support in Cardiff with
the aim of bringing forward revised proposals;

e Undertake further engagement with schools and other stakeholders in
relation to early intervention for children with behavioural emotional and
social needs;

o Work with the governing bodies of Meadowbank and Allensbank Schools
to ensure the needs of children with speech and language needs placed
at the schools can continue to be met effectively, pending any revised

proposals.

Page 3¢4



Scrutiny Review — Better Decisions

Wales Audit Office (WAQO)'s February 2016 inspection report included the following

recommendations, which impacted on Scrutiny in Cardiff:

e Develop an approach to cross-cutting scrutiny (given the increasing nature
of collaborative service delivery and governance, and the Wellbeing of
Future Generations agenda).

e Consider scrutiny’s role in addressing the strategic challenges facing the
Council at this point in time.

e Ensure that any vacancies on scrutiny committees are filled quickly.

e Consider webcasting scrutiny committees.

In response to the recommendations in WAQO'’s previous 2014 Corporate
Assessment report, the scrutiny committee chairs had already jointly
commissioned the Council’s Improving Scrutiny report, which had reported in
September 2015, proposing a range of improvement actions that were currently

being implemented.

In response to WAQ'’s further recommendations, the Cabinet at its meeting on 21
March agreed a statement of actions. These included a Review of Scrutiny, which
has been undertaken, with recommendations to be implemented from the start of
the next political term. The Review engaged Members, officers and external
stakeholders, and the resultant report was reported to Constitution Committee on
2 March 2017.

Arrangements to scrutinise cross-cutting issues have been developed by the

Council, including:
o Joint meetings to scrutinise cross-cutting issues including: Social Services

Reporting Framework; Community Hubs; Alternative Delivery Mechanisms;

and Human Trafficking.

Page 375



o Joint task and finish groups, for example to consider Community

Infrastructure Levy.

o Joint scrutiny with neighbouring authorities on issues including Regulatory

Services and the Central South Consortium Joint Education Service.

o In September 2015 it was agreed that the Policy Review and Performance
Scrutiny Committee would take lead overview role for scrutinising the work
of Cardiff Partnership Board, with the other four Committees undertaking
detailed scrutiny of Partnership Board work streams. The Policy Review
and Performance Scrutiny Committee undertook a review of the What

Matters strategy in January 2016.

Vacancies are allocated to political groups under political proportionality rules, and
are discussed on a monthly basis with Party Group Whips. Vacancies that have
been unable to be filled by a particular political group have been offered to other
political groups and independent councillors. Appointments to vacancies on
committees have been considered as a standing item on all Full Council meeting
agendas. As a short-term measure, Full Council in July 2016 decided to reduce
the number of members on scrutiny committees down to eight for the remainder of
this Administration. The 2016 Member Survey also explored the challenges that
Members faced in filling vacant Committee places. It found a range of challenges,

including other Council duties, family and work pressures to be key factors.

Webcasting facilities are in place in County Hall and in the City Hall Chamber,
allowing some Scrutiny committee meetings and Full Council meetings to be
webcast. The Management Statement of Action directed the introduction of
webcasting of committee meetings to include one scrutiny committee meeting per
month from December 2016. Committees piloted webcasting between November
and December, and Economy & Culture scrutiny committee held the first live

scrutiny webcast in December 2016.

Page 376



Committee Member Development — Better Decisions

Scrutiny is a Member-led function whose success is closely linked to the capacity
and development of the Members who sit on Scrutiny Committees. The Scrutiny
Team therefore worked closely with colleagues across the Council to provide a
continuous range of opportunities for Members to build or refresh their Scrutiny
skills, and to extend their knowledge and insight into a range of issues relevant to

their Scrutiny role.

The Members hold pre-Committee meetings to discuss, analyse and understand
the issues being considered, and where necessary ask for further clarification of
information. From this, the Members established a number of lines of inquiry for

the meeting.

The Members continued with the operation of a Budget Monitoring Panel to better
focus the work of the Members on monitoring Directorate spend and
implementation of savings proposals, and to reduce the number of items
considered at Committee meetings. Members received briefings and guidance on

various aspects of expenditure, performance and operation.

Page 377



Highlights from the Committee’s work during 2016/17

This section of the Annual Report presents highlights of the Committee’s activities
during 2016-17. The report identifies what the scrutiny committee was trying to

achieve in each piece of scrutiny, and what it actually achieved.

Task & Finish Group Inquiries — Better outcomes

A key part of the Committee’s work is the identification and investigation of key
areas of concern, to enable better outcomes for public services and drive
improvement in service provision. These can often be areas which a Directorate is
not actively working on, or which are cross cutting in nature, involving several
Directorate and partner organisations. The outputs from these investigations are
reported back to the lead Cabinet Member for consideration, and — where

appropriate — the implementation of the Committee’s recommendations.

School Term Times

A request to look into the timing of school holidays was agreed by a Full Council
meeting of Cardiff Council on 28 July 2016, at which the following motion was

agreed:

» The disproportionately expensive cost of holidays during the traditional
school holiday period, and the impact these costs have on families in our
city;

« That families want to observe designated school holiday periods, but that
the excessive cost of taking breaks during these periods can prove
prohibitive — meaning families often have to choose between taking no
holiday at all, or taking pupils out of school during term time;

* Moves by other councils in the UK to examine existing school term

arrangements with a view to shortening the summer break in order to

Page 348



create an additional week’s holiday elsewhere during the school calendar
when families can take holidays at a cheaper rate.

* The Council resolves to ask the Members of the Children & Young People
Scrutiny Committee to consider, as part of their future work planning,

whether they wish to undertake a detailed analysis of the issue.

The Children & Young People Scrutiny Committee agreed at its meeting on 27
September to undertake an inquiry into amending school term times in line with
the request by Council on 28 July. The first meeting of the task group was held on
14 November 2016.

Members of the committee initially agreed that prior to providing any response to
the Cabinet, it would be prudent to seek the views of Head Teachers, Teachers,
and School Governing Bodies, firstly on whether or not to investigate the

possibility of amending school term dates, and then to provide a robust evidence

base on which to consider their decision.

The results of this survey were subsequently reviewed by the Task Group and
indicated that a majority of schools responding to the inquiry wish to have the
summer holiday shortened by one week. The survey did not, however, clearly
indicate which other holiday the week should move to. The outcome of the survey

was reported to Cabinet in March 2017 for Cabinet to consider.

Female Genital Mutilation (FGM)

This item was raised as part of the discussions around issues for consideration in
the Committee’s work programme in July 2016 and was subsequently approved at
Committee on 27 September 2016. The Members identified a number of concerns

particularly around:

e |s it happening in Cardiff?
e How are community leaders responding to the practice?

e What work is being undertaken in schools and communities?

Page 379



e Have there been any prosecutions?

At the first meeting of the Task Group the members considered a paving report on
FGM which included:

A definition of FGM, covering the four Types of FGM

e The legislation relating to FGM, in particular the Children’s Act 2004, The
Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act, Female Genital Mutilation Act
2003, section 73, Serious Crime Act 2015.

e All Wales Child Protection Procedures - ALL WALES PROTOCOL 2011.

e The level of FGM in Wales.

e FGM Policies and Guidance.

e Third Sector support (BAWSO).

e The present process in place in Cardiff for FGM.

e Training for professionals.

e Awareness raising in communities.

The Task group also held two round table discussions with numerous stakeholders
involved in FGM. These discussion identified a number of key issues which the
task group reported to Committee for consideration by Cabinet, the Cardiff and

Vale University Health Board and other partners.

The findings of the Inquiry will be reported to Cabinet in March 2017.

The Appointment and Effectiveness of Local Authority School

Governors

Committee undertook this Inquiry as part of their 2015/16 work programme. The
resultant report capturing the key findings and recommendations was published in
July 2015 and reported to Cabinet.

The Cabinet Member for Education responded to the Committee’s inquiry report

letter on 19 October 2015. The response letter reported that the Cabinet Member
Page 380



was pleased to note that the report’s overall findings and recommendations
reflected her own views, and that strengthening school governance is a priority for
Education. The response report stated that all 10 of the Committee’s

recommendations had been accepted.

The Education and Lifelong Learning Directorate also developed an action plan,
dated June 2015, for the implementation of the recommendations, which provided
a detailed explanation of how each recommendation was being addressed,

together with an anticipated implementation date.

In December 2016 the Committee requested and received a progress report. The
progress report gave a detailed explanation of the work undertaken since the
receipt of the Committee’s inquiry report letter, as well as the work in further
developing the effectiveness of school governors in improving the educational
attainment of their pupils. The report demonstrated the progress across the 10
recommendations as well as explaining the next steps in the continuous

improvement of school governing bodies.

The Committee was very pleased to see that all the inquiry report’s
recommendations had been addressed. Members did, however, feel that although
the progress report explained in some detail what was being done, some of the
comments in the report didn’t reflect the reality of what was happening in individual

school governing bodies.

Schools Causing Concern

The Committee agreed to refocus the second phase of the inquiry to visit schools

which had experienced unexpected recent dips in pupil performance. They visited
three schools and were particularly interested to find out what had cause the dip in
performance, what actions had been put in place, and what support and advice the

schools had received.

Following consideration of a visit outcome report to Committee in May 2016 the

Members agreed to write to the Cabinet Member with the observations that they

Page 381



had made during their visits. These visits had been arranged to enable the
Members to explore the factors challenging the performance of schools which had

shown an unexpected drop in pupil performance last year.

Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE)

The Committee agreed to undertake a Task & Finish Inquiry into Child Sexual
Exploitation in Cardiff, as concerns had been raised during last year’s inquiry into
Human Trafficking. The Director of Social Services also highlighted it as an issue
of concern. The Members organised the inquiry to assess the robustness of the
CSE strategy, the preventative measures in place and the level of the Council’s
and partner organisations response to incidents of CSE. It agreed to explore
partnership working and resource allocation associated with managing CSE in
Cardiff. Members were also interested in assessing the scale of CSE in some

communities.

The Task Group heard from third sector organisations, the Police, Cardiff & Vale
University Health Board, Probation, Youth Offending Service, Education, Welsh
Government and the Local Safeguarding Children’s Board. The Members have

also considered the All Wales Protocol and best practice examples from other

local authorities.

The report was presented to Cabinet on 27 July 2016, and Cabinet agreed a full
response on 13 October 2016. The Cabinet response confirmed that all of the
report’s 13 recommendations had been accepted. In addition as well as detailing
the Cabinet’s response to each of the recommendations, the response contained a
copy of Cardiff's newly developed Child Sexual Exploitation Prevention Strategy.
This sets out the commitment of partners in Cardiff to do everything possible to
prevent child sexual exploitation, protect and support those affected by CSE and
tackle perpetrators. It is important to note that for now, this is a Cardiff only
strategy. The Council is continuing to work with colleagues in the Vale of

Glamorgan with an aim to develop a regional strategy.

Page 382



A coordinated, proactive, multi-agency approach is essential to fulfil the

overarching outcomes of the strategy and those of the National Plan, namely:

* Prepare children, families, communities and professionals to spot children
at risk.

Prevent harm.
*  Protect victims.

* Pursue, disrupt and prosecute perpetrators.

The strategy and implementation plan demonstrates how partners in Cardiff are
determined to do all they can to work together to find CSE wherever it takes place

and limit the impact on children and families.

Additional funding for a CSE team was also included in the budget for 2017/18.

Page 383



Policy Development & Pre-Decision Scrutiny
— Better Decisions

A key part of the Committee’s work is the review and assessment of effectiveness
of the Council’s policies which will impact of the lives of Children & Young People
in Cardiff. The Committee always ensures that its work programme enables the
scrutiny of any policy development and the pre-decision of any Cabinet report

seeking approval for a strategy or policy affecting Children & Young People.

The Committee has during the past year undertaken pre-decision scrutiny of the

following key policies:

« Cardiff 2020 Strategy — Aiming for Excellence
++ Specialist Provision for Primary Aged Pupils
+» Families First transitions arrangements

% Direct Payments

+ Welsh in Education Strategic Plan

+ Schools Admissions Policy

Cardiff 2020 Strategy — Aiming for Excellence

The Committee received the strategy at its June 2016 meeting. The report set out
the long term improvement strategy for education and learning in Cardiff that
secures the commitment of all key stakeholders to a clear set of goals and desired
outcomes. The report also details the following aspects of the strategy’s vision that
“All children and young people in Cardiff attend a great school and develop the
knowledge, skills and characteristics that lead them to become personally

successful, economically productive and actively engaged citizens”.

The Committee noted that this is a very high level strategic document which
focusses on the key aspirations for education over the next five years. Members

were informed that there were operational plans which will deliver the success

Page 384



measures along with actions, performance measures and milestones. The
Members understood that at this stage these operational plans were not fully
drafted and asked that the strategy with operational plans, be presented to the

Committee at its December 2016 meeting, which was duly provided.

Members expressed some concern around the governance arrangements for the
implementation and assessment of the Cardiff 2020 — Aiming for Excellence
Strategy, which will be undertaken by the Council’s Education Development
Board. The Committee was subsequently informed of the Strategies governance

arrangements..

The Committee agreed to include the review and monitoring of the implementation

of the strategy in its future work programme.

Families First Transition Arrangements

The Committee considered the Families First Annual Review report for 2015/2016
at its meeting on 18 October 2016. Members heard that Cardiff had not yet set any
transitional arrangements for the end of the contract in March 2017. Members
expressed concern that there may be a risk that Families First will not be in a
position to continue to help families in need in light of the underspend on staff and
the number of staff leaving. Members agreed that they wished to consider the draft
Cabinet report as soon as it was available to ensure that it is considered by

Cabinet in a timely manner.

The Committee received the draft Cabinet report at its December 2016 meeting.
The report set out the proposed interim arrangements for the transition period,
which includes varying some existing contracts in order to extend their initial
contract terms, decommissioning some of the services and potentially

commissioning pilot/alternative arrangements during the transition period.

The report also set out a timetable for the governance arrangements to ensure a

smooth progression to new arrangements for service users together with equality

Page 385



impact assessments which were used to inform the proposals for the interim

arrangements.

The Committee subsequently wrote to indicate that it was pleased with the draft
Cabinet report and considered it to be a positive response to the concerns raised
around the transitions arrangements by Committee in October. The Members
reviewed the plans for the interim arrangements and the next Families First

programme.

The Committee recommended that all appropriate providers must be considered
as part of the tendering process, both large and small organisations, and that the
draft Cabinet report should be brought back to this Committee prior to its

consideration by Cabinet.

Direct Payments

In 2005 the Council appointed the Cardiff & Vale Coalition for Disabled People
(CVCDP) (now Diverse Cymru) to provide a service which was responsible for
supporting the service user to recruit a Personal Care Assistant (P.A.) or to

establish a contract with an Agency.

Diverse Cymru has continued to provide the Direct Payment Support Service. The
value of the service equates to annual payments of circa £700,000. During the last
11 years service user numbers have increased, and currently 621 adults and 151

children are in receipt of a Direct Payment, with 40 adults and 16 children ‘working

towards’ a Direct Payment with Diverse Cymru (figures as of November 2016).

There was a need to recommission the Direct Payments support service to comply
with procurement requirements, and also to ensure that the service integrates
effectively with current models of social care prevention and support. In addition,
Full Council on 25 February 2016 included a saving of £200,000 from a review of
the administrative arrangements for Direct Payments, including ‘the current

contract with a support provider. Consideration to be given to alternative service

Page 386



delivery focussing on quality and best use of resources whilst continuing to

maintain existing service user support to those receiving a direct payment’.

The draft Cabinet report set out the proposals to recommission the service. The
report indicated that the preferred model would be one organisation delivering the
Support and Managed Accounts Service across the City. It was proposed that the
contract for Direct Payments will be delivered as a whole package by tendering to
the market for providers to deliver services which meet the outcomes of individuals
as set out in their support plans, offering individuals more choice, control and

independence in their lives.

The Committee wrote expressing some concern around the governance and
dispute resolution processes within the current system and recommended that the
new contract must set out clearly the governance and responsibility arrangements
for all parties as well as including a comprehensive dispute resolution process.
The Committee also expressed concern that the current contract currently offered
two separate hourly rates, which did not meet the current Foundation living wage.
The Committee therefore recommended that the Cabinet must be provided with
the option to ensure that all people employed through the Direct Payments system
received the Foundation living wage of £8.45 per hour, as set out in Council
Policy. Finally, the Committee requested that a progress report on the
implementation of the contract and operation of the new Direct Payments support
service for children and young people be provided to the committee one year after

the contract had been signed.

2017-18 Budget Proposals

The Council’'s Constitution allows for scrutiny committees to consider the draft
Cabinet budget proposals prior to their consideration by the Cabinet and Full
Council. The Committee considered the Council’s draft Corporate Plan and draft
budgetary proposals for 2017 -18, including their detailed savings proposals and

Capital Programme at its meeting in February 2017. It reviewed the draft

Pags 387



Corporate Plan and budget savings proposals, and tested their impact on the

outcomes for children and young people.

The Committee identified a number of issues across the Corporate Plan,
Corporate Budget and Directorate Budget reports. These concerns were included
in a letter, sent to the Policy Review and Performance Scrutiny Committee for it to
take into consideration when it reviewed the overall Corporate Plan, Consultation
and Budget proposals on 15 February 2017 and to the Cabinet for consideration at

its meeting on 16 February 2017.

The Committee’s letter was considered by Cabinet and Council during their
deliberations on the proposals. The Cabinet Member for Corporate Services and
Performance also responded to the letter providing a full explanation on the

specific budget savings points raised by the Committee.

School Admission Arrangements and Welsh in Education

Strategy

The Committee is due to consider the pre-decision scrutiny of the School
Admission Arrangements and Welsh in Education Strategy at its final meeting in
March 2017. The outcome of this will be sent to the Cabinet in time for its meeting
on 17 March 2017.

Page 338



Performance Monitoring — Better Outcomes

The Committee has a clearly defined role in the Council’s improvement and
governance arrangements, and its work programme includes a high level of the
monitoring and review of Directorate performance, resource management, target

setting and improvement management.

This year the Committee reviewed the level of Member involvement in monitoring

performance and budget, particularly at Committee. The Committee agreed to set
up a Budget Monitoring Panel to free up some time at Committee and better focus
the Members’ analysis of information through an ongoing informal panel that

reports back to the Full Committee.

Budget Monitoring Panel

The Committee agreed to create a Budget Monitoring Panel to more effectively
investigate each Directorate’s progress in achieving the Council’s agreed savings

proposals, and in managing any potential expenditure overspends during the year.

The Panel agreed a programme of meetings to review the Cabinet Budget
Monitoring reports as and when they are published. The Panel has met twice this
year and has reviewed the Month 4 and Month 6 Cabinet budget monitoring
reports. The outcome of each panel meeting was reported (where appropriate) to
Committee and letters sent to Directors (if required), seeking clarification on
savings programme, details of funding calculations and a commitment to

undertake a detailed investigation.

All requests for information were responded to promptly, and reported to Members

at their next Panel meeting.

Pags 389



Quarterly Performance Reports — Children’s Services

During 2016/17 the Committee noted generally improving performance across
many indicators; however they expressed their concern at a few indicators
showing reduction in performance. The Committee has reviewed each quarterly
corporate performance report together with a catalogue of local indicators which

the Members have requested to regularly monitor.

The Committee has reviewed all of the local performance indicator reports in
detail, following which the Committee has written if they had concern about areas
where performance was either reducing slowly, or which had experienced a
sudden dip in performance. Members have also written passing on their
appreciation of the work officers had made in those areas where performance has

improved.

Performance Reports — Education and Lifelong Learning

The Committee continued its new approach to the scrutiny of educational
performance by scheduling throughout the year examination of particular aspects
of performance, in addition to an overview of annual performance in January. The
meetings have focused on the development and implementation of the Cardiff

2020 strategy together with the Education Corporate Performance reports.

The performance monitoring reports enable Committee to review, assess and
challenge the implementation of all actions and thereby the delivery of high quality
education and improved outcomes for children and young people in Cardiff’s

Schools.

The Committee has regularly written to the Cabinet Member seeking clarification

on actions and recommended improvements in performance.

Page 380



Central South Consortium — Annual Performance Report

The Committee considered the Consortium’s business plan as part of its
consideration of the Education Business Plan. The Committee’s key task was to
ensure that the two business plans fitted together in ensuring the improvement of

outcomes of Cardiff’s pupils.

The Committee also reviewed the monitoring and assessment of the work of the
Consortium in Cardiff together with a briefing paper setting out how the
Consortium contributed to raising standards in Cardiff's schools. The Members
also discussed how the scrutiny committees of the five local authorities
participating in the Consortium could best scrutinise the strategic direction and
output of the Consortium. They agreed that the chairpersons and scrutiny officers
from all five scrutiny committees would meet as a collaborative scrutiny panel to

undertake a more strategic overview.

Page 391



Committee Briefing Reports — Better Outcomes

The Committee agreed to receive briefing papers outside the normal Committee
agenda so that they could be more effectively reviewed. The Committee agreed to

receive these briefings as and when they were available.
Subjects covered included:
% Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service
% Youth Service
% Maintenance issues at three of Cardiff's Secondary Schools.
The outcome from the Members’ review of the briefings has been reported to

Committee and appropriate letters sent to Directors. All requests for information

have been responded to promptly and reported to Members..

Page 392



The Council’s Call-In Procedure provides that any non-Executive Member may

request to call-in a decision of which notice has been given in writing to the
Operational Manager (Scrutiny Services). The Committee received a request for a
call in on Cabinet Decision CAB/15/84 on Welsh Medium Schools Catchment
Areas. The Call-in was held on 17 May and the outcome of the meeting was to not

to refer the decision back to Cabinet.

Page 393



Suggested Items for 2017/18 Work Programme

The Committee receives regular work programme updates at which Members
have the opportunity to consider items suggested by members of the public, young
people, organisations, Council Members and other scrutiny committees, for
inclusion on the work programme. Committee Members can also suggest any new

issues which may be of interest to the Committee.

Following the May 2017 Council elections the new Administration may agree at
Council to continue with a Children & Young People Scrutiny Committee. Should
the Committee consider a new work programme for 2017/18 municipal year, this
Committee would like to recommend the following items to be considered for

inclusion in its work programme:

% Youth Service inquiry

% The monitoring and reduction of young people who are not in education,
employment or training

% Cardiff 2020 Strategy

% Consortium performance

% Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014

s Play Service

The Council is responsible for co-ordinating the production of the main strategies
and plans covering service development and provision across a range of services
and agencies. The Committee’s future work programme could include:

¢+ Children’s Services Improvement Plan
% Corporate Plan and Budget

®,

% Integrated Family Support Team

The Committee has undertaken a number of task group inquiries during the year

and will be identifying further issues for consideration during June/July 2017.

Page 394



It is suggested that the Committee continues to receive the regular progress and

performance reports on:

+« Children’s Services performance

R

¢ School performance

¢ Budget proposals and monitoring

Scrutiny Services, City and County of Cardiff,
Room 263, County Hall, Atlantic Wharf, Cardiff. CF10 4UW
Tel: 029 2087 2953 Email: scrutinyviewpoints@cardiff.gov.uk
© 2017 City and County of Cardiff

Page 395



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

7 March 2017

CORRESPONDENCE UPDATE - INFORMATION REPORT

Background

1. Following most Committee meetings, the Chair writes a letter to the relevant
Cabinet Member or officer, summing up the Committee’s comments and

recommendations regarding the issues considered during that meeting.

2. Committee letters and their responses are now included with the Committee
papers on the internet, to ensure that all documents relating to the Committee

meeting are accessible and public.

Issues

3. Committee letters are sent following discussions around the key points raised
in the Committee during the Way Forward section of the meeting, and are
linked to the formal minutes of the meetings. Responses received from
Cabinet Members and external withess, where appropriate, are also copied to
the papers for the relevant meeting Children and Young People Scrutiny
Committee papers and are evidenced in future reports or copied to Members
if requested. A summary of the letters sent and responses received is

attached at Appendix A.

Page 397


http://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=140
http://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=140
http://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=140

Legal Implications

4. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this
report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal
implications. However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters
under review are implemented with or without any modifications. Any report
with recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out

any legal implications arising from those recommendations.

Financial Implications

5. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this
report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial
implications at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However,
financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are
implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with
recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any

financial implications arising from those recommendations.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is recommended to note and review the summary of the
responses receive to the recent letters sent by the Committee, and refer any

questions or concerns to the relevant Cabinet Member or Director.

Davina Fiore
Director of Governance and Legal Services
1 March 2017

Page 398



66¢ abed

Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee
Correspondence Report summary 2016 - 17

Appendix A

Committee | Recipient Subject Response Required Response Response received Future Action
date date
14 June Clir Hinchey | Corporate Requested an updated 10 Copy of latest report
2016 safeguarding report later in the year October attached to letter
Board’s Annual 2016 Recommendations have
Report Amendments to the been agreed and
report suggested incorporated into the
report
A copy of the training A copy of the training
video be provided for video has been made
Members to view available to Members
Follow up | Clir Hinchey | Response to Members considered the | 24 Explanation of the brief
letter on 24 letter letter to be brief and did | January reply to the previous
October not highlight the 2017 letter
2016 changes made.

The annual report still
did not contain sufficient
information to provide
assurance.

Further report providing
information on
Performance reporting.

Further response on
reassurance

Officers are not able to
provide this report in
time

To include in
future work
programme




00t abed

Appendix A

Committee | Recipient Subject Response Required Response Response received Future Action
date date
8 Rosemarie | Child & Members highlighted No response required Further
November | Whittle Adolescent that further monitoring
2016 Head of Mental Health investigations were required
Operations | Service. needed about:
and Delivery * A potential gap in the
Community referrals process,
Child Health assessment and support
Directorate for early years, children
under the age of 6.
* The level of capacity to
meet the expected
increasing demand for
services.
» Of a more specific
phone number for “out of
hours referrals”
8 Councillor CHAD Members recommended | 25 The disability futures Continue to
November | Lent improvement more formal meetings November | programme will continue |monitor
2016 plan with parent. 2016 to arrange formal
meeting and the team
Savings proposals would will attend coffee
not impact on this mornings and events.
respite service Proposal will not impact
on the respite service.
Child Sexual Request for summary Information will be
Exploitation information on cases provided in the near

identified

Awareness raising in
hotels

future

Hotels will be included in
awareness raising plans.




TOY abed

Appendix A

Committee | Recipient Subject Response Required Response Response received Future Action
date date
6 Clir Lent Families First All providers must be No response required Bring back
December draft Cabinet considered for tendering report
2016 report
6 Clir Lent Quarter two Requested targets and 30 Awaiting response Check quarter
December children’s performance trends to January three report
2016 services be included in quarter 3 | 2017
performance report if available
Requested a list of
vacant social worker
posts and agency staff
6 Hannah Consortium Committee requests 30 Briefing on the Pisa Continue
December | Woodhouse | actions to briefing on Pisa results January results provided monitoring
2016 address Estyn 2017
Inspection
Pisa results
6 Clir Merry Effectiveness of | Number of school 30 Details of resignations  [Continue
December school governors | governors who have January provided. monitoring
2016 update resigned 2017

Quarter two
performance

Cardiff 2020

Analysis of sickness
rates by section

Out of county
remodelling

Recommend a board
monitor the 2020
partnership work

Analysis of sickness
rates provided

Joint project group is
addressing this issue

The Education
development board, is a
partnership board and
will undertake the
monitoring




20t abed

Appendix A

Committee
date

Recipient

Subject

Response Required

Response
date

Response received

Future Action

10 January
2017

Clir Merry

Schools Annual

report

Details of actions to
improve secondary
schools

Update on 21st Century
Schools for special
schools

Action plan to address
gap between nFSM and
eFSM

Update on
implementation of new
Curriculum
Amendments to future
reports

9 February
2017

Information requested by
Committee was attached
to the letter

Future briefing
on
Commissioning
61" Form
courses.

10 January
2017

Clir Lent

Direct Payments

Governance and
responsibility
arrangements must be
clear

Consider ensuring
people are paid the
Foundation living wage

Future progress report

16
January
2017

Monitoring arrangements
are built into the
specification

Monthly meetings to
resolve issues and
review performance

Council cannot mandate

this payment

Will provide future
updates




Appendix A

Committee | Recipient Subject Response Required Response Response received Future Action
date date

13 Hannah Consortium To work with the N/A Continue

February Woodhouse | support in raising | education Directorate to monitoring the

2017 — Education | standards provide information work of the
Consortium Consortium

13 Clir Hinchey | Corporate Plan & | Level of contingency 16 Full response received  [Monitoring of

February 2017/16 Budget | Detailed concerns on February budgets by the

2017 proposals various proposals 2017 Panel.

13 Clir Merry Maintenance Further report setting out Awaiting response Include report in

February issues at 3 high maintenance future work

2017 school responsibilities programme.

Details of costs

€0t abed




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Welsh in Education Strategy
	Item 4 - App 1 WESP 2017-2020
	Item 4 - App 2 - WESP Consultation Responses
	Item 4 - App 3 List of Changes to WESP
	Item 4 - App 4 - Statutory Screening Tool WESP

	5 School Admissions Policy
	Item 5 - App A Draft Cabinet Report School Admissions
	CAB 27 Feb 2017 - Admission Arrangements
	CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD

	CAB 27 Feb 2017 - Admission Report - Appendix 1 - Draft School Admissions Policy 2018.19
	CAB 27 Feb 2017 - Admission Report - Appendix 2 - Co-ord Sec Sch Adm Arrangements Consult Doc
	CAB 27 Feb 2017 - Admission Report - Appendix 3 - Formal Responses - Admissions Policy
	CAB 27 Feb 2017 - Admission Report - Appendix 4 - Fromal Responses - Co-ordinated Admission Arrangements
	CAB 27 Feb 2017 - Admission Report - Appendix 5 - Statutory Screening Tool
	n/a
	n/a
	Consider the potential impact on
	Consider the potential impact on
	 promoting and improving access to life-long learning in Cardiff
	 raising levels of skills and qualifications
	 giving children the best start
	 improving the understanding of sustainability
	 addressing child poverty (financial poverty, access poverty, participation poverty)
	 the United Nations Convention on the Rights of a Child  and Principles for Older persons
	Consider the potential impact on
	 promoting the cultural diversity of Cardiff
	 encouraging participation and access for all to physical activity, leisure & culture
	 protecting and enhancing the landscape and historic heritage of Cardiff

	The draft School Admissions Policy was issued for consultation on 05 December 2016 to all those the Council are required to consult with as set out in the Welsh Government School admissions code (headteachers, governing bodies, diocesan directors, neighbouring local education authorities).
	Consider the potential impact on
	 strengthening partnerships with business and voluntary sectors
	 the collaboration agenda and the potential for shared services, cross-boundary working and efficiency savings 

	 Habitats Regulations Assessment: The Conservation (Natural Habitats, &c.) (Amendment) Regulations 2007 provides a requirement to undertake Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) of land use plans.
	The draft School Admissions Policy was issued for consultation on 05 December 2016 to all those the Council are required to consult with as set out in the Welsh Government School admissions code (headteachers, governing bodies, diocesan directors, neighbouring local education authorities).



	6 Education Quarter 3 Performance & Cardiff 2020 - 'Aiming for Excellence'
	Item 6 - App A Corporate Performance Report Q3
	Item 6 - App B Cardiff 2020 Baseline- Desired Outcomes
	Item 6 - App C Cardiff 2020 Baseline - Goals
	Item 6 - App D TOR & Membership of Education Development Board

	7 Child Sexual Exploitation - Progress Report
	Item 7 - App A Progress Report

	8 Children's Services Quarter 3 Performance Report
	Item 8 - App A Corporate Performance Report (CS)
	Item 8 - App B
	Quarter 3

	Item 8 - App C
	Wellbeing Contact-Referral 
	Wellbeing Assessment Summary


	9 FGM Task Group Report
	Item 9 - App A FGM Final Report

	10 School Term Time Task Group Report
	Item 10 - App A STT Final Report

	11 Annual Report
	Item 11 - App A CYP Annual Report 2016-17

	12 Correspondence Report
	Item 12 - App A - Correspondence Report




